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held in book-entry-only form.  The final disbursements of such payments to the Beneficial Owners of the Series G Bonds will be the responsibility of 
DTC, the DTC Participants and the Indirect Participants, all as defined and more fully described herein.  See “THE SERIES G BONDS—Book-Entry-
Only System” herein.

For so long as the Series G Bonds are in the Variable Rate Mode (as defined herein), the Purchase Price, principal of and interest on the Series G 
Bonds will be payable from a Credit Facility (as hereinafter described).  Upon the issuance of the Series G Bonds, the initial Credit Facility will be an 
irrevocable, direct pay letter of credit (the “Letter of Credit”) issued by Bank of America, N.A. (the “Bank”).  See “SECURITY AND SOURCES OF 
PAYMENT FOR THE SERIES G BONDS.” Under the Letter of Credit, the Bank will be obligated, for so long as the Series G Bonds bear interest at the 
Variable Rate, to pay (i) the principal of and interest on the Series G Bonds, when due and (ii) the Purchase Price of the Series G Bonds tendered for 
purchase by the registered owners thereof and not remarketed, as described herein.  The Letter of Credit will expire on October 26, 2010, unless earlier 
terminated or extended as described herein.  See “LETTER OF CREDIT AND REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT” herein.

The Series G Bonds will initially bear interest at the Variable Rate, as more fully described herein.  The Series G Bonds will continue to bear interest 
at the Variable Rate unless, at the option of the Institution, the Series G Bonds are converted to bear interest at the Fixed Rate, all as described herein.

The Series G Bonds in the Variable Rate Mode will be subject to tender for purchase on demand of the registered owners thereof on any Business 
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The Series G Bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity, including extraordinary redemption, mandatory redemption, optional redemption 
and mandatory sinking fund redemption, as set forth herein.

The Series G Bonds shall be special obligations of the Authority payable solely from the Revenues (as hereinafter defined) of the Authority 
paid to the Trustee for the account of the Authority by the Institution in accordance with the provisions of the Agreement.  The payments pursuant 
to the Agreement are a general obligation of the Obligated Group described in the Master Trust Indenture (the “Master Trust Indenture”), dated 
November 7, 1989, as amended and supplemented from time to time, between the Institution, which is currently the sole member and the Representative 
of the Obligated Group, and U.S. Bank National Association (as successor to certain corporate trustees), as Master Trustee.  To secure the payments 
under the Agreement, the Institution will issue a Note to the Trustee secured by a lien on certain revenues of the Institution pursuant to the Master 
Trust Indenture, as more fully described herein.

THE SERIES G BONDS SHALL NOT BE DEEMED TO CONSTITUTE A DEBT OR LIABILITY OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF 
MASSACHUSETTS (THE “COMMONWEALTH”) OR ANY POLITICAL SUBDIVISION THEREOF, OR A PLEDGE OF THE FAITH AND 
CREDIT OF THE COMMONWEALTH OR ANY SUCH POLITICAL SUBDIVISION THEREOF, BUT SHALL BE PAYABLE SOLELY FROM 
THE REVENUES PROVIDED UNDER THE AGREEMENT.  NEITHER THE COMMONWEALTH NOR THE AUTHORITY SHALL BE 
OBLIGATED TO PAY THE SERIES G BONDS OR THE INTEREST THEREON EXCEPT FROM SUCH REVENUES.  NEITHER THE 
FAITH AND CREDIT NOR THE TAXING POWER OF THE COMMONWEALTH OR OF ANY POLITICAL SUBDIVISION THEREOF IS 
PLEDGED TO THE PAYMENT OF THE PRINCIPAL OF OR INTEREST ON THE SERIES G BONDS.  THE ACT DOES NOT IN ANY WAY 
CREATE A SO-CALLED MORAL OBLIGATION OF THE COMMONWEALTH TO PAY DEBT SERVICE IN THE EVENT OF DEFAULT BY 
THE INSTITUTION.  THE AUTHORITY DOES NOT HAVE ANY TAXING POWER.

The Series G Bonds are offered when, as and if issued and accepted by Citigroup Global Markets Inc. (“the Underwriter”) subject to prior sale, to 
withdrawal or modification of the offer without notice and opinions as to legality and certain other matters by Ropes & Gray LLP, Boston, Massachusetts, 
Bond Counsel. Certain legal matters will be passed upon for the Institution by its counsel, Bulkley, Richardson and Gelinas, LLP, Springfield, 
Massachusetts, for the Bank by its counsel, Gadsby Hannah LLP, Boston, Massachusetts, and for the Underwriter by its counsel, Mintz, Levin, Cohn, 
Ferris, Glovsky and Popeo, P.C., Boston, Massachusetts.  It is expected that the Series G Bonds in definitive form will be available for delivery to DTC in 
New York, New York or its custodial agent on or about October 27, 2005.

Citigroup 
Dated: October 20, 2005

†See “Description of Ratings” herein.



 

 

IN CONNECTION WITH THIS PUBLIC OFFERING, THE UNDERWRITER MAY OVERALLOT OR 
EFFECT TRANSACTIONS THAT STABILIZE OR MAINTAIN THE MARKET PRICE OF THE SERIES G 
BONDS AT LEVELS ABOVE THOSE THAT MIGHT OTHERWISE PREVAIL IN THE OPEN MARKET. 
SUCH STABILIZING, IF COMMENCED, MAY BE DISCONTINUED AT ANY TIME. 

No dealer, broker, salesman or other person has been authorized by the Authority, the Institution, the Bank or 
the Underwriter to give any information or to make any representations other than as contained in this Official 
Statement and the Appendices hereto in connection with the offering described herein, and if given or made, such 
other information or representation must not be relied upon as having been authorized by any of the foregoing.  This 
Official Statement does not constitute an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer to buy any securities other than 
those identified on the cover page or an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer to buy such securities in any 
jurisdiction in which it is unlawful to make such offer, solicitation or sale.  The Authority neither has nor assumes 
any responsibility as to the accuracy or completeness of the information contained in this Official Statement, other 
than that appearing under the captions “THE AUTHORITY” and “LEGAL MATTERS” (but only insofar as it 
relates to the Authority). 

Certain information contained in this Official Statement has been obtained from the Institution, DTC, the Bank 
and other sources that are believed to be reliable.  No representation or warranty is made by the Authority, however, 
as to the accuracy or completeness of such information, and nothing contained in this Official Statement is, or may 
be relied on as, a promise or representation by the Authority.  The information herein relating to the Authority, and 
its affairs and condition, has been provided by such entity, and the Institution makes no representation with respect 
to or warrants the accuracy of such information.  This Official Statement is submitted in connection with the sale of 
securities referred to herein and may not be used, in whole or in part, for any other purpose.  The information and 
expression of opinions set forth herein are subject to change without notice and neither the delivery of this Official 
Statement nor any sale made hereunder shall, under any circumstances, create any implication that there has been no 
change in the affairs of the parties referred to above since the date hereof. 

The Underwriter has provided the following sentence for inclusion in this Official Statement.  The Underwriter 
has reviewed the information in this Official Statement in accordance with, and as part of, its responsibility to 
investors under the federal securities laws as applied to the facts and circumstances of this transaction, but the 
Underwriter does not guarantee the accuracy or completeness of such information. 
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INTRODUCTION 

 
 The purpose of this Official Statement is to furnish certain information in connection with the sale by the 
Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities Authority (the “Authority”) of its $71,740,000 Revenue Bonds, 
Baystate Medical Center Issue, Series G (2005) (the “Series G Bonds”).  The Series G Bonds will be issued under a 
Loan and Trust Agreement dated as of October 11, 2005 (the “Agreement”) among the Authority, Baystate Medical 
Center, Inc. (the “Institution”) and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (the “Trustee”).  The Series G Bonds 
are to be issued in accordance with the provisions of the Agreement and Chapter 614 of the Massachusetts Acts of 
1968, as amended from time to time (the “Act”).  The information contained in this Official Statement is provided 
for use in connection with the initial sale of the Series G Bonds.  The definitions of certain terms used and not 
defined herein are contained in Appendix C – “DEFINITIONS OF CERTAIN TERMS.” 
 
 The Series G Bonds are being issued to finance and refinance the costs of the construction and renovation of 
certain facilities located on the Institution’s campus.  See “THE PROJECT” and “ESTIMATED SOURCES AND 
USES OF FUNDS” herein. 
 
 On the date of delivery of the Series G Bonds, the Institution will cause to be delivered to the Trustee an initial 
Credit Facility consisting of an irrevocable, direct pay letter of credit (the “Letter of Credit”) issued by Bank of 
America, N.A. (the “Bank”).  Under the Letter of Credit, the Bank will be obligated to pay to the Trustee for so long 
as the Series G Bonds bear interest at the Variable Rate (i) the principal of and interest on the Series G Bonds, when 
due, and (ii) the Purchase Price of the Series G Bonds tendered for purchase by the registered owners thereof and not 
remarketed, as described herein.  See “THE LETTER OF CREDIT AND REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT” 
herein.  For more information regarding the Bank see Appendix F – “CERTAIN INFORMATION ABOUT THE 
BANK.” 
 
 The Series G Bonds are limited obligations of the Authority and shall be payable solely from the payments to be 
made from certain funds pledged under the Agreement.  For so long as the Series G Bonds are supported by a Credit 
Facility, funds pledged under the Agreement include draws by the Trustee honored by the issuer of the Credit 
Facility.  See Appendix F – “CERTAIN INFORMATION ABOUT THE BANK.” 
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SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE SERIES G BONDS 

The Agreement 

The Authority, the Institution and the Trustee have executed the Agreement, which provides that, to the extent 
permitted by law, the Agreement is a general obligation of the Institution and that the full faith and credit of the 
Institution are pledged to its performance. 

The Agreement provides, among other things, that the Institution shall make payments to the Trustee equal to 
principal of and interest on the Series G Bonds and certain other payments required by the Agreement.  The 
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect until such time as the Series G Bonds and the interest thereon have 
been fully paid or until adequate provision for such payments has been made. 

The Agreement provides, among other things, that while the Series G Bonds are supported by a Credit Facility 
and are in the Variable Rate Mode, no later than the opening of business on the business day next preceding each 
Interest Payment Date the Institution shall pay to the Trustee for deposit in the Bond Fund an amount equal to the 
interest payment then coming due on the Series G Bonds plus 1/12th of the annual installment of principal next 
coming due, if any, by redemption.  While the Series G Bonds are in the Fixed Rate Mode (whether or not they are 
supported by a Credit Facility), on each December 15 and June 15 the Institution shall pay to the Trustee for deposit 
in the Bond Fund an amount equal to the interest coming due on such Bonds on the next January 1 or July 1, as the 
case may be (plus any principal coming due by redemption or stated maturity). 

The Master Trust Indenture 

The Bonds are secured by a Note (the “Note”) registered in the name of the Trustee and issued under the Master 
Trust Indenture dated as of November 7, 1989, as amended and supplemented from time to time (the “Master Trust 
Indenture”), between the Institution and U.S. Bank National Association (as successor in turn to State Street Bank 
and Trust Company, Fleet National Bank and Shawmut Bank, N.A.), as master trustee (the “Master Trustee”) and a 
Supplemental Master Indenture for Obligation No. 6 dated as of October 11, 2005 (the “Supplemental Master 
Indenture”) between the Institution and the Master Trustee and executed in accordance with the Master Trust 
Indenture.  The Note is subject to the same payment and prepayment terms as the Institution’s obligations under the 
Agreement.  The Note and the Supplemental Master Indenture pursuant to which it is issued provide that the 
Institution shall receive credit, to the extent, in the manner and with the effect provided in the Supplemental Master 
Indenture, for payments of principal of and premium, if any, and interest required on the Note in amounts equal to 
(i) amounts paid under the Agreement for the payment of principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the Series 
G Bonds and (ii) Series G Bonds purchased and delivered to the Trustee.  The Master Trust Indenture provides that 
any Obligation issued thereunder, such as the Note, is a joint and several obligation of all Members of the Obligated 
Group.  Currently, the Institution is the only Member of the Obligated Group. 

The Master Trust Indenture contains provisions permitting the addition, withdrawal or consolidation of 
Members under certain conditions.  See Appendix D-1 – “SUMMARY OF THE MASTER TRUST INDENTURE” 
under the headings “Conditions for Membership,” “Withdrawal From the Obligated Group” and “Consolidation, 
Merger, Sale or Conveyance” and Appendix D-2 – “SUMMARY OF SUPPLEMENTAL MASTER INDENTURE 
FOR OBLIGATION NO. 6 AND CERTAIN ADDITIONAL AMENDMENTS TO THE MASTER TRUST 
INDENTURE” under the heading “Supplemental Covenants and Future Amendments to the Master Trust 
Indenture.”  The Master Trust Indenture also contains provisions permitting the issuance of additional Obligations 
on a parity with the Note by the Institution and future Members admitted to the Obligated Group, if any.  See 
“ADDITIONAL INDEBTEDNESS” herein, Appendix D-1 – “SUMMARY OF THE MASTER TRUST 
INDENTURE” under the heading “Limitations on Incurrence of Additional Indebtedness” and Appendix D-2 – 
“SUMMARY OF SUPPLEMENTAL MASTER INDENTURE FOR OBLIGATION NO. 6 AND CERTAIN 
ADDITIONAL AMENDMENTS TO THE MASTER TRUST INDENTURE” under the heading “Supplemental 
Covenants and Future Amendments to the Master Trust Indenture.” 

As provided in the Master Trust Indenture, the Institution has granted, and each Member admitted to the 
Obligated Group shall grant as a condition of such admission, to the Master Trustee a security interest in all of its 
Gross Receipts (as defined in the Master Trust Indenture) (subject to the right of any Member to grant a prior Lien 
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(as defined in the Master Trust Indenture) as permitted under the Master Trust Indenture) as security for its 
obligation to make payments under all Obligations issued under the Master Trust Indenture, including the Note.  The 
Institution represents and warrants in the Master Trust Indenture and each additional Member of the Obligated 
Group shall represent and warrant upon its admission that the Lien granted on the Gross Receipts is and at all times 
will be a first Lien, subject only to certain Liens permitted by the Master Trust Indenture.  The enforcement of the 
Lien on Gross Receipts may be subject to limitations imposed by the Bankruptcy Code and to the exercise of 
discretion by a court of equity and to other significant conditions and limitations including restrictions upon 
assignment of accounts receivable and the proceeds thereof under the Medicare and Medicaid programs.  See 
“BONDOWNERS’ RISKS – Enforceability of Lien on Gross Receipts.” In addition, the obligation of one Member 
to make payments with respect to Obligations in respect of moneys used by another Member may be declared void, 
or such payments may be otherwise prohibited, in certain circumstances. See “BONDOWNERS’ RISKS – 
Enforceability of Master Trust Indenture and Agreement.” 

The Bonds are not secured by a mortgage lien or security interest in any real or tangible personal property or 
any other property of the Institution (other than the lien on Gross Receipts described above). The Master Trust 
Indenture contains restrictions on the creation of certain liens and encumbrances with respect to certain property of 
the Institution and of any additional future Members of the Obligated Group, with certain exceptions. See Appendix 
D-1 – “SUMMARY OF THE MASTER TRUST INDENTURE” under the heading “Limitations on Creation of 
Liens” and Appendix D-2 – “SUMMARY OF SUPPLEMENTAL MASTER INDENTURE FOR OBLIGATION 
NO. 6 AND CERTAIN ADDITIONAL AMENDMENTS TO THE MASTER TRUST INDENTURE” under the 
heading “Supplemental Covenants and Future Amendments to the Master Trust Indenture.” The Master Trust 
Indenture also contains provisions permitting transfers of assets to be made upon compliance with certain tests. See 
Appendix D-1 – “SUMMARY OF THE MASTER TRUST INDENTURE” under the heading “Sale, Lease and 
Other Transfer of Property” and Appendix D-2 – “SUMMARY OF SUPPLEMENTAL MASTER INDENTURE 
FOR OBLIGATION NO. 6 AND CERTAIN ADDITIONAL AMENDMENTS TO THE MASTER TRUST 
INDENTURE” under the heading “Supplemental Covenants and Future Amendments to the Master Trust 
Indenture.” 

The Bondowners of the Series G Bonds will, by accepting their Series G Bonds, be deemed to have consented to 
certain amendments to the Master Trust Indenture which add new or different provisions to the Master Trust 
Indenture as set forth in the Supplemental Master Indenture for Obligation No. 6 and as set forth in certain prior 
amendments to the Master Trust Indenture.  See Appendix D-2 – “SUMMARY OF SUPPLEMENTAL MASTER 
INDENTURE FOR OBLIGATION NO. 6 AND CERTAIN ADDITIONAL AMENDMENTS TO THE MASTER 
TRUST INDENTURE” under the heading “Supplemental Covenants and Future Amendments to the Master Trust 
Indenture.” 

The Letter of Credit 

Upon the issuance of the Series G Bonds, the Bank will provide the Letter of Credit pursuant to the terms of a 
Reimbursement Agreement dated as of October 1, 2005 (the “Reimbursement Agreement”) between the Institution 
and the Bank.  The Letter of Credit will expire on October 26, 2010, unless earlier terminated or extended as 
described herein.  The Letter of Credit will be issued in an amount equal to $72,801,359, which equals the aggregate 
principal amount of the Series G Bonds, plus forty-five (45) days accrued interest thereon at the Maximum Interest 
Rate of 12% per annum.  Under the terms of the Agreement, the Institution may substitute the Letter of Credit with a 
substitute Credit Facility subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the Agreement. 

Pursuant to the Agreement, for so long as the Series G Bonds are in the Variable Rate Mode the Series G Bonds 
shall be supported by a Credit Facility, and each Credit Facility shall be in an amount sufficient to pay the principal 
of the Series G Bonds and forty-five (45) days accrued interest at the Maximum Interest Rate on the principal 
amount of the Series G Bonds then Outstanding.  See “THE SERIES G BONDS” and “LETTER OF CREDIT AND 
REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT” herein. 
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Special Obligation of the Authority 

The Series G Bonds are special obligations of the Authority, equally and ratably secured by and payable from a 
pledge of and lien on, to the extent provided by the Agreement, the moneys received by the Trustee for the account 
of the Authority pursuant to the Agreement. 

THE SERIES G BONDS SHALL NOT BE DEEMED TO CONSTITUTE A DEBT, LIABILITY OR SO-
CALLED MORAL OBLIGATION OF THE COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS OR ANY POLITICAL 
SUBDIVISION THEREOF, BUT SHALL BE PAYABLE SOLELY FROM THE REVENUES DERIVED BY 
THE AUTHORITY UNDER THE AGREEMENT.  THE AUTHORITY DOES NOT HAVE TAXING POWER. 

THE AUTHORITY 

The Authority is a body politic and corporate and a public instrumentality of The Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts (the “Commonwealth”) organized and existing under and by virtue of the Act.  The purpose of the 
Authority, as stated in the Act, is essentially to provide assistance for nonprofit public and private institutions for 
higher education, private nonprofit schools for the handicapped, nonprofit hospitals and their nonprofit affiliates, 
nonprofit nursing homes and nonprofit cultural institutions in the construction, financing, and refinancing of projects 
to be undertaken in relation to programs for such institutions. 

Authority Membership and Organization 

The Act provides that the Authority shall consist of nine members who shall be appointed by the Governor and 
shall be residents of the Commonwealth.  At least two members shall be associated with institutions for higher 
education, at least two shall be associated with hospitals, at least one shall be knowledgeable in the field of state and 
municipal finance (by virtue of business or other association) and at least one shall be knowledgeable in the field of 
building construction.  All Authority members serve without compensation, but are entitled to reimbursement for 
necessary expenses incurred in the performance of their duties as members of the Authority.  The Authority shall 
elect annually one of its members to serve as Chairman and one to serve as Vice Chairman. 

The members of the Authority are as follows:  

 DAVID T. HANNAN, Chairman; term as Member expires July 1, 2006.   
 
 Mr. Hannan, a resident of Hingham, is Chief Executive Officer Emeritus and Senior Consultant to South Shore 
Health and Educational Corporation and South Shore Hospital of South Weymouth, Massachusetts.  South Shore 
Health and Educational Corporation is a not-for-profit, tax-exempt organization and the parent of South Shore 
Hospital. Mr. Hannan is a member of the American College of Healthcare Executives and the American Hospital 
Association.   
 
 MARVIN A. GORDON, Secretary; term as Member expires July 1, 2010.   
 
 Mr. Gordon, a resident of Milton, is Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer of Gordon Logistics, 
L.L.C. in Norwood, Massachusetts.  From 1994 to 1996, Mr. Gordon served on the Board of Directors to Techniek 
Development Co. of San Diego, California.  He also served as Chairman of the Board of US Trust Norfolk (Milton 
Bank and Trust) from 1974 to 1976 and as Vice President and Member of the Executive Committee from 1971 to 
1974.  Mr. Gordon has been actively engaged in non-profit, charitable and civic activities.  His affiliations include 
Treasurer and Chairman of the Finance Committee of Milton Hospital Corporation, President, Milton Fuller 
Housing Corporation, and Corporator of Curry College.  Mr. Gordon has been elected to and appointed to a number 
of public boards and belongs to several civic associations.  Mr. Gordon holds a degree from Harvard College and 
Harvard Business School. 
 
 JOHN E. KAVANAGH, III; term as Member expires July 1, 2011.   
 
 Mr. Kavanagh, a resident of Ipswich, is President and Chairman of William A. Berry & Son, Inc., one of the 
oldest construction companies in the country.  During his 19 years as President, he has redirected the company’s 
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focus from restoration specialties to a full-service building and construction management organization, with 
emphasis on meeting the full range of customer needs: planning, design, construction, operation and maintenance 
services.  Mr. Kavanagh is a Trustee and the former Chairman of the Board of the North Shore Music Theater, 
Corporator of Brigham and Women’s Hospital and Partners HealthCare System, Trustee and member of the Board 
of Directors of Massachusetts Eye and Ear Infirmary, Corporator of Danvers Savings Bank and a former member of 
Tufts University Board of Overseers.  
 
 ALLEN R. LARSON; term as Member expires July 1, 2007. 
 
 Mr. Larson, a resident of Yarmouth Port, is the founding principal of a law firm and a separate consulting firm, 
the Enterprise Management Group, that advise business and non-profit clients on matters of government regulation, 
business competition, market entry, and economic development.  Prior to establishing his law firm in 1984, Mr. 
Larson worked as an antitrust attorney for the Federal Trade Commission in Washington, D.C.  Currently, he is a 
Trustee of Cape Cod Community College, President of the Cape Cod Center for Sustainability, a Director of the 
YMCA-Cape Cod, and a Member of the Yarmouth Town Finance Committee.  Mr. Larson graduated from 
Dartmouth College and earned a J.D. from Albany Law School and an M.B.A. from the University of Minnesota. 
 
 GAYL A. MILESZKO; term as member expires July 1, 2012. 
 
 Ms. Mileszko, a native of Amherst and current resident of Boston, is the Chief of Staff at the Massachusetts 
Department of Labor.  She was associated with the investment banking firm Tucker Anthony Incorporated in Boston 
and New York from 1990 to 2002, serving as a Vice President in public finance and later as a Senior Vice President 
in the fixed income capital markets division.  For the past two years, Ms. Mileszko served in the Office of the 
Massachusetts Governor as the Chief of Staff for Legislative and Intergovernmental Relations, and as the Director of 
External Relations.  She was a member of the staff of the Committee on Appropriations for the U.S. House of 
Representatives from 1983 to 1988, and previously served as a staff assistant to Massachusetts Congressman Silvio 
O. Conte.  Ms. Mileszko holds a B.A. from Yale College. 
 
 TIMOTHY O’CONNOR; term as Member expires July 1, 2009. 
 
 Mr. O’Connor, a resident of Salem, is Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer of Lahey 
Clinic Foundation, Inc.; Lahey Clinic Hospital, Inc.; Lahey Clinic, Inc.; Lahey Clinic Affiliated Services, Inc. and 
Lahey Clinic Canadian Foundation. In addition, Mr. O’Connor is also President, Chief Financial Officer and 
Treasurer of Lahey Clinic Insurance Company Limited.  His memberships and affiliations include the American 
Medical Group Association, the Healthcare Financial Management Association, the Healthcare Information and 
Management Systems Society and the Massachusetts Hospital Association’s Committee on Finance. 
 
 ROBERT M. PLATT; term as Member expires July 1, 2009. 
 
 Mr. Platt, a resident of Newton, is President of National Consulting Inc., a business development and marketing 
strategy organization which assists clients in achieving their true market potential.  Mr. Platt works in conjunction 
with both state and federal government to facilitate the exchange of ideas and opportunities for clients.  His board 
memberships include Past President of the Newton Athletic Association, Past Board of Director of the Newton 
Youth Soccer for Boys and Girls, and Past Board Member of Youth Commission for the City of Newton.  Mr. 
Platt’s current board memberships include Commissioner of Parks and Recreation of his ward in Newton, Advisory 
Board Member for Second Step which aids women who have suffered domestic violence and abuse, and Member of 
the Board of Trustees for Curry College.  Mr. Platt holds a B.A. from Curry College. 
 
 CHRISTINE C. SCHUSTER; term as Member expires July 1, 2006. 
 
 Ms. Schuster, a resident of Sudbury, is the President and Chief Executive Officer of Emerson Hospital Health 
System located in Concord.  Ms. Schuster formerly held the position of President and Chief Executive Officer of 
Quincy Medical Center.  Ms. Schuster is a Member of the Board of Trustees of the South Shore Chamber of 
Commerce where she serves as Vice Chairman of Government Affairs; and is a Member of the Board of Trustees of 
the Massachusetts Hospital Association (“MHA”) where she serves as the MHA Chair of the Clinical Issues 
Advisory Council which provides advice and counsel to the MHA on key medical, clinical, and public policy issues.  
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She also serves on the American Hospital Association Regional Policy Board.  Ms. Schuster was recognized by 
Modern Healthcare magazine and Witt Kieffer Associates as one of the Year 2000 “Up and Comers Award” 
recipients.  She is a frequent speaker both locally and nationally on a wide variety of healthcare topics.  Ms. Schuster 
received an M.B.A. with Honors from the University of Chicago Graduate School of Business and a B.S. in Nursing 
from Boston University. 
 
 There are nine Board Members of the Authority.  Currently, there is one vacancy and a successor has not been 
appointed. 

 

Staff and Advisors 

BENSON T. CASWELL, a resident of North Andover, was appointed Executive Director of the Authority on 
April 9, 2002, and is responsible for the management of the Authority’s affairs.  From 1992 through 2002, Mr. 
Caswell worked for Ponder & Co. in Chicago where he was a Senior Vice President.  From 1987 through 1992, he 
was Vice President of Ziegler Securities, Chicago, Illinois.  From 1983 through 1986, he was an attorney with 
Gardner, Carton & Douglas.  Mr. Caswell holds a Juris Doctor from the University of Chicago, an MBA from 
Lehigh University and a BS from the University of Maine. 
 

ROPES & GRAY LLP, attorneys of Boston, Massachusetts, are serving as Bond Counsel to the Authority and 
will submit their approving opinion with regard to the legality of the Series G Bonds as provided by the Agreement 
in substantially the form attached hereto as Appendix I. 

The Act provides that the Authority may employ such other counsel, engineers, architects, accountants, 
construction and financial experts, or others as the Authority deems necessary. 

Powers of the Authority 

Under the Act, the Authority is authorized and empowered, among other things, directly or by and through a 
participating institution for higher education, a participating school for the handicapped, a participating hospital or 
hospital affiliate, a participating nursing home or a participating cultural institution as its agent, to acquire real and 
personal property and to take title thereto in its own name or in the name of one or more participants as its agent; to 
construct, reconstruct, remodel, maintain, manage, enlarge, alter, add to, repair, operate, lease as lessee or lessor, and 
regulate any project; to enter into contracts for any or all of such purposes, or for the management and operation of a 
project; to issue bonds, bond anticipation notes and other obligations, and to fund or refund the same; to fix and 
revise from time to time and charge and collect rates, rents, fees and charges for the use of and for the services 
furnished or to be furnished by a project or any portion thereof and to enter into contracts in respect thereof; to 
establish rules and regulations for the use of a project or any portion thereof; to receive and accept from any public 
agency loans or grants for or in the aid of the construction of a project or any portion thereof; to mortgage any 
project and the site thereof for the benefit of the holders of revenue bonds issued to finance such project; to make 
loans to any participant for the cost of a project or to refund outstanding obligations, mortgages or advances issued, 
made or given by such participant for the cost of a project; to charge participants its administrative costs and 
expenses incurred; to acquire any federally guaranteed security and to pledge or use such security to secure or 
provide for the repayment of its bonds; and to do all things necessary or convenient to carry out the purposes of the 
Act.  Additionally, the Authority may undertake a joint project or projects for two or more participants. 

Indebtedness of the Authority 

The Authority has heretofore authorized and issued certain series of its revenue bonds for private colleges and 
universities, private hospitals and their affiliates, community providers, cultural institutions, schools for the 
handicapped and nursing homes in the Commonwealth.  Each series of revenue bonds has been a special obligation 
of the Authority. 

The Authority expects to enter into separate agreements with eligible institutions in the Commonwealth for the 
purpose of financing projects for such institutions.  Each series of bonds issued by the Authority constitutes a 
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separate obligation of the borrowing institution for such series, and the general funds of the Authority are not 
pledged to any bonds or notes. 

THE SERIES G BONDS 

The following is a summary of certain provisions of the Series G Bonds.  Reference is made to the Series G 
Bonds for the complete text thereof and to the Agreement for a more detailed description of such provisions.  The 
discussion herein is qualified by such reference. 

Pledge of Revenues Under the Agreement 

Under the Agreement, the Authority assigns and pledges to the Trustee in trust upon the terms of the Agreement 
for the benefit of the Bondowners and the Bank (i) all Revenues to be received from the Institution or derived from 
any security provided thereunder, (ii) all rights to receive such Revenues and the proceeds of such rights and (iii) the 
moneys and investments on deposit in the funds established under the Agreement, other than the Rebate Fund.  
Under the Act, to the extent authorized or permitted by law, the pledge of Revenues is valid and binding from the 
time when such pledge is made and the Revenues and all income and receipts earned on funds held by the Trustee 
for the account of the Authority shall immediately be subject to the lien of such pledge without any physical delivery 
thereof or further act, and the lien of such pledge shall be valid and binding as against all parties having claims of 
any kind in tort, contract or otherwise against the Authority irrespective of whether such parties have notice thereof. 

The assignment and pledge by the Authority does not include (i) the rights of the Authority pursuant to 
provisions for consent, concurrence, approval or other action by the Authority, notice to the Authority or the filing 
of reports, certificates or other documents with the Authority, or (ii) the powers of the Authority as stated in the 
Agreement to enforce the provisions thereof. 

General 

The Series G Bonds will be issued initially in the Variable Rate Mode in denominations of $100,000 or any 
integral multiple of $5,000 in excess thereof, will be dated the date of delivery and will bear interest at the Variable 
Rate from the date of delivery, payable on the Interest Payment Dates applicable to the Variable Rate Mode.  The 
first interest payment date will be November 1, 2005.  The Series G Bonds will mature on July 1, 2026.  The initial 
interest rate will be determined by the Remarketing Agent upon delivery, and thereafter the Remarketing Agent shall 
redetermine the Variable Rate for each Rate Period as provided below and in the Agreement. 

At the option of the Institution and upon certain conditions provided for in the Agreement, the Series G Bonds 
may be converted in whole, but not in part, to the Fixed Rate Mode.  From and after the Fixed Rate Conversion Date 
and upon satisfaction of certain conditions set forth in the Agreement, the Series G Bonds will be issued in the 
denomination of $5,000 or any multiple thereof and will bear interest at the Fixed Rate. 

The principal of and premium, if any, and interest on, and Purchase Price of, the Series G Bonds will be payable 
in lawful money of the United States of America. 

The interest on the Series G Bonds until they come due shall be payable on the Interest Payment Dates 
applicable to the Variable Rate Mode or the Fixed Rate Mode, as the case may be.  Interest on overdue principal of 
any Series G Bond shall bear interest at the last interest rate in effect on such Bond before the principal or premium 
became overdue until duly paid or provided for. 

While the Series G Bonds are in the Variable Rate Mode, interest on the Series G Bonds will be payable on the 
first Business Day of each calendar month.  In any event, interest on the Series G Bonds will be payable on the 
Maturity Date. 

Prior to and including the date of conversion to the Fixed Rate Mode, the principal of and premium, if any, on 
any Series G Bonds while in the Variable Rate Mode are payable when due by check or draft in immediately 
available funds upon presentation and surrender of the Series G Bonds at the principal office of the Trustee.  So long 
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as the Series G Bonds are in Book-Entry-Only form, principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the Series G 
Bonds will be paid to Cede & Co., as nominee for the Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), New York, New York, 
and as the registered owner of the Series G Bonds.  See “THE SERIES G BONDS – Book-Entry-Only System” 
below.   

The Series G Bonds will bear interest from and including the date of delivery of the Series G Bonds.  While the 
Series G Bonds are in the Variable Rate Mode, interest will be computed on the basis of a 365- or 366-day year, as 
appropriate, and actual days elapsed.  While the Series G Bonds are in the Fixed Rate Mode, interest will be 
computed on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months. 

No owner of a Series G Bond in the Variable Rate Mode will be paid interest for any period at a rate higher than 
the Maximum Interest Rate.  The first Rate Period for the Series G Bonds will commence on the date of issuance of 
the Series G Bonds and will be at the Variable Rate. 

The determination of the Variable Rate and the Fixed Rate by the Remarketing Agent of the Series G Bonds 
will be conclusive and binding upon the Authority, the Trustee, the Institution, the Bank and the Bondowners. 

Interest Rate Modes 

Variable Rate Mode 

Determination of Variable Rate.  The Series G Bonds will be issued initially in the Variable Rate Mode.   

During the Variable Rate Mode, except as set forth below, the Series G Bonds will bear interest at the Variable 
Rate, which will be the rate of interest per annum determined weekly by the Remarketing Agent (based on then 
prevailing market conditions) to be the lowest rate which in its judgment would enable the Remarketing Agent to 
sell the Series G Bonds on such date of determination at par plus accrued interest; provided, however, that the 
Variable Rate may not exceed the Maximum Interest Rate.   

The Variable Rate will be determined on the date of issuance of the Series G Bonds, and thereafter the Variable 
Rate in effect for each Rate Period (the “Effective Rate” for such Period) will be determined weekly not later than 
the Business Day next preceding the Effective Date (such determination being made every Tuesday, or if such 
Tuesday is not a Business Day, the next succeeding Business Day).  The Effective Date in the Variable Rate Mode 
is each Wednesday.  If the Remarketing Agent fails to make such determination or fails to announce the Effective 
Rate as required, the rate to take effect on any Effective Date shall be the Variable Rate then in effect on the day 
preceding such date if the Variable Rate for such preceding day was determined by the Remarketing Agent.  In the 
event that the Variable Rate for the immediately preceding day was not determined by the Remarketing Agent, or in 
the event that the Variable Rate determined by the Remarketing Agent shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable 
by a court of law, then the interest rate for such day shall be equal to 110% of the BMA Index made available for the 
week preceding the date of determination, or if such index is no longer available, or no such index was so made 
available for the week preceding the date of determination, 75% of the interest rate on 30-day high grade unsecured 
commercial paper notes sold through dealers by major corporations as reported in The Wall Street Journal on the 
day the Variable Rate would otherwise be determined as provided in the Agreement for the Variable Rate Mode.  
The Remarketing Agent shall announce the Effective Rate electronically or by telephone to the Trustee on the date 
of determination thereof, and, if by telephone, shall promptly confirm such notice in writing.  Each determination 
and redetermination of the Variable Rate shall be conclusive and binding on the Authority, the Trustee, the Bank, 
the Institution and the Bondowners.  While the Series G Bonds are in the Variable Rate Mode, any Bondowner may 
ascertain the Effective Rate at any time by contacting the Trustee. 

Fixed Rate Mode 

Conversion from Variable Rate Mode to Fixed Rate Mode.  The interest rate on all, but not less than all, of the 
Series G Bonds may be converted to the Fixed Rate on the first Business Day of any calendar month at the election 
of the Institution and upon the satisfaction of certain requirements.   
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The Institution may elect to convert the interest rate of the Series G Bonds to the Fixed Rate upon written notice 
to the Authority, the Trustee, the Bank, the Remarketing Agent and each rating agency then rating the Series G 
Bonds given not fewer than twenty (20) days prior to the Fixed Rate Conversion Date, which Date must be the first 
Business Day of a month.  Series G Bonds converted to the Fixed Rate Mode need not be supported by a Credit 
Facility.  On or before the Fixed Rate Conversion Date (i) the Institution will provide the Authority, the 
Remarketing Agent and the Trustee with an opinion of bond counsel to the effect that such conversion will not have 
an adverse impact on the tax-exempt status of the Series G Bonds for federal income tax purposes and (ii) the Bank 
shall certify that the Institution has fulfilled its obligations to the Bank under the Reimbursement Agreement.  On 
the date of successful conversion to the Fixed Rate Mode, the Letter of Credit shall be returned to the Bank.  In the 
event of the conversion of the Series G Bonds to the Fixed Rate, the Series G Bonds are subject to mandatory tender 
for purchase upon not less than fifteen (15) days prior written notice from the Trustee to the registered owners of the 
Series G Bonds. 

The Fixed Rate will become effective on the Fixed Rate Conversion Date and will remain in effect for the 
remaining term of the Series G Bonds; provided, however, that conversion to the Fixed Rate will not take effect 
unless at or before 1:00 p.m. New York City time on the proposed Fixed Rate Conversion Date the Trustee shall 
have received an amount equal to the Purchase Price of all of the Series G Bonds. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the preconditions to conversion to the Fixed Rate Mode are not met, the 
Trustee shall deem the proposed conversion to have failed and the Fixed Rate Mode will not take effect.  However, 
the mandatory tender shall still be made.  The Trustee will immediately notify the Remarketing Agent by telephone 
promptly confirmed in writing, and the Remarketing Agent will attempt to remarket the Series G Bonds in the 
Variable Rate Mode.  In no event shall the failure of Series G Bonds to be converted to the Fixed Rate Mode for any 
reason be deemed to be a default or Event of Default under the Agreement.   

The Remarketing Agent will determine the Fixed Rate at least seven (7) days prior to the Fixed Rate Conversion 
Date.  The Fixed Rate will be the lowest rate which in the judgment of the Remarketing Agent, on the basis of 
prevailing financial market conditions, would permit the sale of the Series G Bonds on the date of such 
determination at par plus accrued interest on the basis of their terms as converted. 

The Remarketing Agent shall, if it determines that serialization will achieve a lower net interest cost on the 
Series G Bonds, determine separate Fixed Rates to be assigned to Series G Bonds to be redeemed from sinking fund 
installments in such amounts and in such years as the Remarketing Agent determines will achieve the lowest net 
interest cost on the Series G Bonds; provided, however, that the principal amount of the Series G Bonds to be so 
selected shall equal the mandatory sinking fund installments therefor.  Each Series G Bond to be redeemed from 
sinking fund installments in the years to which a particular Fixed Rate is assigned shall be deemed to mature on the 
last date on which any Series G Bond bearing interest at such Fixed Rate is to be redeemed from sinking fund 
installments.  The Remarketing Agent shall determine a separate Fixed Rate for each such maturity of Series G 
Bonds.  On the date of determination thereof, the Remarketing Agent shall notify the Trustee electronically or by 
telephone confirmed in writing of the amounts and years assigned to the Series G Bonds and the Fixed Rate.  The 
Trustee shall promptly select, by lot, the particular Series G Bonds or portions thereof to be assigned to the years 
and in the amounts as determined by the Remarketing Agent.  The Trustee shall promptly notify the Institution and 
the Authority in writing of the assigned amounts and years and the Fixed Rate.  The assignment of amounts and 
years and the determination of the Fixed Rate shall be conclusive and binding on the Authority, the Trustee, the 
Institution and the Bondowners. 

Optional Tender 

Series G Bonds (other than Institution Bonds or Pledged Bonds) in the Variable Rate Mode are subject to 
tender, at the option of the registered owner thereof, at a price (the “Purchase Price”) equal to one hundred percent 
(100%) of the principal amount thereof plus accrued and unpaid interest thereon to the Purchase Date (as hereinafter 
defined), upon (i) delivery to the Trustee (with a copy to the Remarketing Agent) of a written notice from the 
registered owner of such Series G Bond (“Bondowner’s Election Notice”) which (a) irrevocably offers to sell such 
Series G Bond or portion thereof at the Purchase Price by stating the principal amount of such Series G Bond or 
portion thereof to be sold (a “Tendered Bond”), which portion shall be a minimum of $100,000 or any multiple of 
$5,000 in excess thereof and shall not result in any portion of a Series G Bond not tendered being below the 



 

 10

minimum of $100,000, and (b) stating the date on which the Tendered Bonds shall be purchased (“Purchase Date”), 
which date shall be a Business Day at least seven (7) days following receipt by the Trustee of the Bondowner’s 
Election Notice; and (ii) except as otherwise provided in the Agreement for the Series G Bonds in the Book-Entry-
Only System, delivery of the Tendered Bond to the office of the Trustee at or prior to 10:00 a.m., on the Delivery 
Date with an appropriate endorsement for transfer or accompanied by a bond power endorsed in blank; provided, 
however, the Tendered Bond shall only be deemed properly tendered hereunder if the Tendered Bond delivered to 
the Trustee conforms in all respects to the description thereof in the Bondowner’s Election Notice.  If the Series G 
Bonds are held in registered form with DTC, they shall be tendered in accordance with the rules and procedures 
established by DTC.  See “THE SERIES G BONDS - Book-Entry-Only System” herein. 

If the Purchase Date is an Interest Payment Date, no accrued interest shall be paid as part of the Purchase Price 
on such date. 

Series G Bonds which are the subject of a Bondowner’s Election Notice described in (i) above, but which are 
not tendered in accordance with (ii) above, shall be deemed tendered and all rights of the owner thereof shall be 
satisfied from the deposit with the Trustee of the Purchase Price held in trust for the benefit of such owner until the 
Series G Bonds purchased with such moneys shall have been delivered to or for the account of such owner.  Series 
G Bonds to be tendered which are not delivered to the Trustee by the owners thereof shall cease to be deemed 
Outstanding, interest thereon shall cease to accrue as of the Purchase Date and the owners thereof shall be entitled 
only to receive the Purchase Price therefor upon surrender of such Series G Bonds to the Trustee. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the registered owners of the Series G Bonds shall have no right to exercise an 
optional tender described therein if the Series G Bonds shall have been accelerated under the Agreement and such 
acceleration shall not have been annulled. 

After the conversion of the Series G Bonds to the Fixed Rate Mode, the registered owners of the Series G Bonds 
shall have no right to tender Series G Bonds for purchase. 

Mandatory Tender 

Change in Mode.  The Series G Bonds in the Variable Rate Mode (other than Pledged Bonds) are subject to 
mandatory tender at a price of par plus accrued interest, if any, to the Purchase Date on the Fixed Rate Conversion 
Date, whether or not the conversion to the Fixed Rate Mode has been successful, upon not less than fifteen (15) days 
prior written notice from the Trustee to the Bondowners, which notice shall state that the Series G Bonds are subject 
to mandatory tender for purchase and that the conversion is subject to the satisfaction of the conditions set forth in 
the Agreement.  

Expiration, Termination or Substitution of Credit Facility.  The Series G Bonds in the Variable Rate Mode are 
subject to mandatory tender for purchase at the Purchase Price on the fifth day (or on the next succeeding Business 
Day if such day is not a Business Day) preceding the expiration, termination or substitution of the Credit Facility.   

Event of Default under the Reimbursement Agreement.  The Series G bonds in the Variable Rate Mode are 
subject to mandatory tender for purchase at the Purchase Price on the tenth day (or the next succeeding Business 
Day if such day is not a Business Day) following receipt by the Trustee of a notice from the Bank that an Event of 
Default has occurred under the Reimbursement Agreement and directing the Trustee to cause a mandatory tender of 
the Series G Bonds.  

Notice of Mandatory Tender.   The Trustee will give notice to the registered owners of the Series G Bonds of 
the mandatory tender at least fifteen (15) days prior to the mandatory tender date; provided, however, that notice of 
mandatory tender by reason of an Event of Default under the Reimbursement Agreement shall be given no later than 
the third Business Day following the Trustee’s receipt of notice from the Bank that an Event of Default has occurred 
under the Reimbursement Agreement.  So long as the Series G Bonds are held in the Book-Entry-Only System, the 
Trustee will only be obligated to notify DTC of any such mandatory tender.  
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Redemption Prior to Maturity 

The Series G Bonds will be subject to redemption prior to maturity as follows: 

Extraordinary Redemption Without Premium.  The Series G Bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity 
from excess moneys transferred from the Construction Fund to the Bond Fund established under the Agreement or 
to the extent moneys are transferred to the Bond Fund pursuant to Section 513(b) of the Master Trust Indenture or 
upon the occurrence of certain events including a taking in condemnation or damage to or destruction of all or part 
of the project financed by the Series G Bonds.  Such moneys (and earnings thereon) shall be used to reimburse the 
Bank for moneys drawn on the Credit Facility or to redeem an equal amount of Series G Bonds in whole or in part 
within one year at a redemption price equal to the principal amount redeemed plus accrued interest to the 
redemption date, without premium.  If the amount so transferred in any one calendar year is less than $100,000, the 
Trustee may, and upon written direction of the Institution shall, apply such amount to reimburse the Bank for 
drawings on the Credit Facility to pay regularly scheduled payments of debt service instead of calling Series G 
Bonds for redemption. 

Optional Redemption.  The Series G Bonds are also subject to redemption prior to maturity: 

(i) while the Series G Bonds are in the Variable Rate Mode, at the option of the Institution as a whole or in part 
at any time, but only from moneys drawn on the Credit Facility in the minimum denomination of $100,000 or any 
integral multiple of $5,000 in excess thereof at a redemption price equal to the principal amount to be redeemed plus 
accrued interest to the redemption date, without premium; or 

(ii) while the Series G Bonds are in the Variable Rate Mode, upon occurrence of an Act of Bankruptcy by the 
Bank, at the option of the Institution as a whole or in part from any funds provided by the Institution at a redemption 
price equal to the principal amount to be redeemed plus accrued interest to the redemption date, without premium; or 

(iii) while the Series G Bonds are in the Fixed Rate Mode, at the option of the Authority with the written 
consent of the Institution or by written direction of the Institution to the Authority and the Trustee, in whole or in 
part at any time after the applicable No-Call Period set forth in the following schedule, in such order of sinking fund 
installments as is directed by the Institution (provided that, if less than all of the Series G Bonds Outstanding shall 
be called for redemption, the Series G Bonds to be so redeemed shall be selected by the Trustee by lot or in any 
customary manner of selection as determined by the Trustee), at a redemption price equal to the principal amount to 
be redeemed plus accrued interest to the redemption date, without premium: 

Remaining Maturity in 
Fixed Rate Period 
 

 
No-Call Period 

Greater than 10 years 
 

5 years 

Greater than 6, but not greater than 
10 years 
 

3 years 

Greater than 4, but not greater than 6 
years 
 

2 years 

Greater than 3, but not greater than 4 
years 
 

2 years 

Greater than 2, but not greater than 3 
years 
 

1 year 

Greater than 1, but not greater than 2 
years 
 

1 year 

Less than or equal to 1 year 0 years 
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At the time of conversion to the Fixed Rate Mode the Institution may adopt a different schedule for the No-Call 
Period if the Institution provides to the Authority and the Trustee an opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect that 
either (i) the adoption of the different schedule will not affect the exclusion of interest on the Series G Bonds from 
gross income for federal income tax purposes or (ii) such actions have been taken as are necessary in connection 
with the adoption of the different schedule to preserve the exclusion of interest on the Series G Bonds from gross 
income for federal income tax purposes. 

Pledged Bonds are subject to redemption at the option of the Institution, in whole or in part, in principal 
amounts of $100,000, or multiples of $5,000 in excess thereof, at a redemption price equal to the principal amount to 
be redeemed plus accrued interest to the redemption date, without premium. 

Mandatory Sinking Fund Installments.  The Series G Bonds shall be redeemed at their principal amounts 
without premium on July 1 of each of the years and in the amounts as follows: 

Year  Principal Amount Year Principal Amount 
2006  $2,075,000 2017 $3,475,000 
2007  2,590,000 2018 3,590,000 
2008  2,670,000 2019 3,700,000 
2009  2,750,000 2020 3,810,000 
2010 2,830,000 2021 3,925,000 
2011 2,915,000 2022 4,040,000 
2012 3,000,000 2023 4,165,000 
2013 3,095,000 2024 4,290,000 
2014 3,185,000 2025 4,420,000 
2015 3,285,000 2026* 4,550,000 
2016 3,380,000   

    
_____________ 
*Stated maturity 
 

The Institution may purchase Series G Bonds and credit them (or any Institution Bonds) against any sinking 
fund installment at the principal amount or applicable redemption price, as the case may be, by delivering them to 
the Trustee for cancellation at least sixty (60) days before the sinking fund installment date.  Series G Bonds 
redeemed at the option of the Institution shall at the direction of the Institution be applied to any sinking fund 
installment. 

Selection of Series G Bonds to Be Redeemed 

In the event of any partial redemption, the Series G Bonds will be redeemed in such order of sinking fund 
installment as is directed by the Institution.  Pledged Bonds shall be redeemed prior to the redemption of any other 
Series G Bonds.  The Trustee may provide for the selection for redemption of portions of Series G Bonds of a 
denomination larger than $100,000.  So long as Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, is the Bondowner, the particular 
Series G Bonds or portions thereof to be redeemed shall be selected by DTC, in such manner as DTC may 
determine.  See “THE SERIES G BONDS - Book-Entry-Only System” herein. 

Notice of Redemption 

The Trustee shall give notice of redemption in the name of the Authority, which notice shall identify the Series 
G Bonds to be redeemed and the CUSIP number of such Series G Bonds and shall state the date fixed for 
redemption and specify the office of the Trustee at which such Series G Bonds will be redeemed.  The notice shall 
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further state that on such date there shall become due and payable upon each Series G Bond to be redeemed the 
redemption price thereof together with interest accrued to the redemption date, that moneys therefor have been 
deposited with the Trustee, and that from and after such date interest thereon shall cease to accrue.  The Trustee 
shall mail the redemption notice (i) in the case of Series G Bonds in the Variable Rate Mode, no fewer than ten (10) 
days prior to the redemption date, and (ii) in the case of Series G Bonds in the Fixed Rate Mode, no more than forty-
five (45) days and no fewer than thirty (30) days prior to the redemption date, to the registered owners of any Series 
G Bonds which are to be redeemed, at their addresses shown on the registration books maintained by the Trustee.  
Failure to mail notice to the registered owner of a particular Series G Bond, or any defect in the notice to such 
registered owner, shall not affect the redemption of any other Series G Bond.  Upon notice to the registered owners 
and deposit of the redemption price with the Trustee, the Series G Bonds to be redeemed (or the portion thereof to 
be redeemed) shall cease to be deemed Outstanding, interest thereon shall cease to accrue as of the redemption date 
and the Bondowners shall be entitled only to receive the redemption price so deposited with the Trustee upon 
surrender of the Series G Bonds to the Trustee.   

Book-Entry-Only System 

 DTC will act as securities depository for the Series G Bonds.  The Series G Bonds will be issued as fully-
registered securities registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC’s partnership nominee) or such other name as may be 
requested by an authorized representative of DTC.  One fully-registered Bond certificate will be issued for each 
maturity of each series of the Series G Bonds, each in the aggregate principal amount of such maturity, and will be 
deposited with DTC. 

 DTC, the world’s largest depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New York 
Banking Law, a “banking organization” within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the 
Federal Reserve System, a “clearing corporation” within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, 
and a “clearing agency” registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange Act of 
1934, as amended.  DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 2 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity 
issues, corporate and municipal debt issues and money market instruments from over 85 countries that DTC’s 
participants (“Direct Participants”) deposit with DTC.  DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct 
Participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited securities, through electronic computerized book-
entry transfers and pledges between Direct Participants’ accounts. This eliminates the need for physical movement 
of securities certificates.  Direct Participants includes both U.S. and non-U.S securities brokers and dealers, banks, 
trust companies, clearing corporations, and certain other organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The 
Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation (“DTCC”).  DTCC, in turn is owned by a number of Direct Participants of 
DTC and Members of the National Securities Clearing Corporation, Government Securities Clearing Corporation, 
MBS Clearing Corporation, and Emerging Markets Clearing Corporation (all of which are subsidiaries of DTCC), as 
well as the New York Stock Exchange, Inc., the American Stock Exchange, LLC, and the National Association of 
Securities Dealers, Inc.  Access to the DTC system is also available to others, such as both U.S. and non-U.S. 
securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and clearing corporations, that clear through or maintain a 
custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly (“Indirect Participants”).  DTC has a 
rating of “AAA” from Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services. The DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are on file 
with the Securities and Exchange Commission.  More information about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com.  

 Purchases of the Series G Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, which 
will receive a credit for the Series G Bonds on DTC's records.  The ownership interest of each actual purchaser of each 
Bond (a “Beneficial Owner” and collectively, the “Beneficial Owners”) is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and 
Indirect Participants’ records. Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase. 
Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to receive written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well 
as periodic statements of their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Owner 
entered into the transaction.  Transfers of ownership interest in the Series G Bonds are to be accomplished by entries 
made on the books of Direct and Indirect Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners.  Beneficial Owners will 
not receive certificates representing their ownership interest in the Series G Bonds except in the event that use of the 
book-entry system for the Series G Bonds is discontinued. 

 To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Bonds deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are registered in the name 
of DTC's partnership nominee, Cede & Co. or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of 
DTC.  The deposit of Series G Bonds with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or such other DTC 
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nominee do not effect any change in beneficial ownership.  DTC has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of 
the Series G Bonds.  DTC's records reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose accounts such Series G 
Bonds are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners.  The Direct and Indirect Participants will remain 
responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their customers. 

 Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants to Indirect 
Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by 
arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time. 

 Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC.  If less than all of the Series G Bonds are being redeemed, DTC's 
practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in such Bonds to be redeemed. 

 Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor such other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to the Series G 
Bonds unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC’s Procedures.  Under its usual procedures, 
DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the Authority as soon as possible after the record date.  The Omnibus Proxy assigns 
Cede & Co.'s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts the Series G Bonds are credited 
on the record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy). 

 Principal, redemption premium, if any, and interest payments on the Series G Bonds will be made to Cede & Co., 
or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC.  DTC's practice is to credit Direct 
Participants' accounts, upon DTC’s receipt of funds and corresponding detailed information from the Authority or 
Trustee or Paying Agent on the payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC's records.  
Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is 
the case with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in “street name,” and will be the 
responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC, the Paying Agent, the Institution or the Authority, subject to any 
statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time.  Payments of principal, redemption 
premium, if any, and interest on the Series G Bonds to Cede & Co., (or such other nominee as may be requested by an 
authorized representative of DTC) is the responsibility of the Authority, the Trustee or the Paying Agent, disbursement 
of such payments to Direct Participants will be the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the 
Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants. 

 The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC's book-entry system has been obtained from sources that 
the Authority believes to be reliable, but none of the Authority, the Institution, the Bank or the Underwriter takes any 
responsibility for the accuracy thereof. 

 None of the Authority, the Paying Agent, the Institution, the Bank or the Trustee will have any 
responsibility or obligations to Direct or Indirect Participants or to the persons for whom they act as nominees 
with respect to the payments to or the providing of notice for Direct Participants, Indirect Participants, or 
Beneficial Owners. 

 So long as Cede & Co. is the Registered Owner of the Series G Bonds, as nominee of DTC, references herein 
to the Bondowners or Registered Owners of the Series G Bonds shall mean Cede & Co. and shall not mean the 
Beneficial Owners of the Series G Bonds. 

Certificated Bonds 

 DTC may discontinue providing its services as securities depository with respect to the Series G Bonds at any time 
by giving reasonable notice to the Authority and the Trustee. In addition, the Authority may determine that 
continuation of the system of book-entry transfers through DTC (or a successor securities depository) is not in the best 
interests of the Beneficial Owners. If for either reason the Book-Entry Only system is discontinued, bond certificates 
will be delivered as described in the Agreement and the Beneficial Owner, upon registration of certificates held in the 
Beneficial Owner’s name, will become the Bondowner.  Thereafter, Series G Bonds may be exchanged for an equal 
aggregate principal amount of Series G Bonds in other authorized denominations and of the same maturity, upon 
surrender thereof at the principal corporate trust office of the Trustee.  The transfer of any Series G Bond may be 
registered on the books maintained by the Trustee for such purpose only upon the assignment in the form satisfactory to 
the Trustee.  For every exchange or registration of transfer of Series G Bonds, the Authority and the Trustee may make 
a charge sufficient to reimburse them for any tax or other governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such 
exchange or registration of transfer, but no other charge may be made to the Bondowner for any exchange or 
registration of transfer of the Series G Bonds.  The Trustee will not be required to transfer or exchange any Series G 



 

 15

Bond during the notice period preceding any redemption if such Series G Bond or any part thereof is eligible to be 
selected or has been selected for redemption. 

ADDITIONAL INDEBTEDNESS 

The Master Trust Indenture permits each Member of the Obligated Group, including the Institution, to incur 
Obligations secured by a lien on each Member’s Gross Receipts on a parity with the Note given as security for the 
Series G Bonds, and in certain circumstances, to incur indebtedness senior to such Obligations, including the Note 
given as security for the Series G Bonds.  The incurrence of additional parity Obligations is subject to certain 
conditions, including compliance with the Master Trust Indenture’s limits on Long-Term and Short-Term 
Indebtedness.  For additional information concerning the incurrence of parity Obligations, see Appendix D-1 – 
“SUMMARY OF THE MASTER TRUST INDENTURE” under the heading “Limitations on Incurrence of 
Additional Indebtedness” and Appendix D-2 – “SUMMARY OF SUPPLEMENTAL MASTER INDENTURE FOR 
OBLIGATION NO. 6 AND CERTAIN ADDITIONAL AMENDMENTS TO THE MASTER TRUST 
INDENTURE” under the heading “Supplemental Covenants and Future Amendments to the Master Trust 
Indenture.” 

 The Bondowners will, by accepting their Series G Bonds, be deemed to have consented to certain amendments 
to the Master Trust Indenture which add new or different provisions to the Master Trust Indenture, as set forth in the 
Supplemental Master Indenture for Obligation No. 6 and as set forth in certain prior amendments to the Master Trust 
Indenture.  See Appendix D-2 – “SUMMARY OF SUPPLEMENTAL MASTER INDENTURE FOR 
OBLIGATION NO. 6 AND CERTAIN ADDITIONAL AMENDMENTS TO THE MASTER TRUST 
INDENTURE” under the heading “Supplemental Covenants and Future Amendments to the Master Trust 
Indenture.” 
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TOTAL DEBT SERVICE 
 
 The following table sets forth, for each respective annual period ending July 1, the amounts required to be made 
available by the Institution in such annual period for payment of the sinking fund installments on the Series G Bonds, 
interest on the Series G Bonds, total debt service on the Series G Bonds, total debt service on all other outstanding 
indebtedness of the Institution, and total debt service on the Series G Bonds and all other outstanding indebtedness of the 
Institution.   
 
 
Period 
Ending 
July 1* 

Sinking Fund 
Installments on 

the Series G  
Bonds  

Interest on the 
Series G 
Bonds** 

Total Debt 
Service on the 

Series G 
Bonds 

Total Debt 
Service on 

Other 
Outstanding 

Indebtedness*** 

Total Debt Service 
on the Series G 

Bonds and Other 
Outstanding 
Indebtedness 

      
2006  $ 2,075,000  $ 1,480,965  $ 3,555,965  $ 13,951,389    $ 17,507,353 
2007  2,590,000  2,098,734  4,688,734  13,826,112 18,514,846 
2008  2,670,000  2,020,707  4,690,707  13,795,339 18,486,046 
2009  2,750,000  1,945,675  4,695,675  13,736,253 18,431,928 
2010  2,830,000  1,862,598  4,692,598  13,565,549 18,258,146 
2011  2,915,000  1,777,103  4,692,103  13,479,727 18,171,831 
2012  3,000,000  1,693,733  4,693,733  13,457,367 18,151,100 
2013  3,095,000  1,593,971  4,688,971  13,430,627 18,119,598 
2014  3,185,000  1,504,911  4,689,911  13,411,093 18,101,004 
2015  3,285,000  1,408,692  4,693,692  13,404,341 18,098,033 
2016  3,380,000  1,309,452  4,689,452  13,210,718 17,900,170 
2017  3,475,000  1,214,050  4,689,050  7,196,495 11,885,545 
2018  3,590,000  1,099,301  4,689,301  7,182,375 11,871,676 
2019  3,700,000  991,148  4,691,148  7,173,371 11,864,519 
2020  3,810,000  882,132  4,692,132  7,158,820 11,850,952 
2021  3,925,000  767,032  4,692,032  5,423,487 10,115,518 
2022  4,040,000  648,458  4,688,458  5,298,527  9,986,985 
2023  4,165,000  529,334  4,694,334  5,128,030  9,822,364 
2024  4,290,000  398,359  4,688,359  3,983,563  8,671,923 
2025  4,420,000  270,984  4,690,984  3,791,760  8,482,744 
2026  4,550,000  137,456  4,687,456  3,334,435  8,031,891 
2027     3,347,455  3,347,455 
2028     3,343,350  3,343,350 
2029     3,345,925  3,345,925 
2030     3,345,450  3,345,450 
2031     3,346,638  3,346,638 
2032     3,343,913  3,343,913 
2033              3,346,988  3,346,988 
      
   $71,740,000  $25,634,794 $97,374,794  $228,369,097 $325,743,891 
 
*Includes immediately following Business Day if July 1 is not a Business Day. 
 
**Interest on the Series G Bonds is calculated at the fixed swap rate of 3.021%.  See Appendix A under the heading 
“Derivatives.” 
 
*** Outstanding indebtedness includes the Institution’s outstanding long term indebtedness, capital leases, 20% of 
debt service of others guaranteed by the Institution and the Institution’s commercial paper program.  Debt service on 
the commercial paper program is calculated at an assumed annual interest rate of 4.5%.  Debt service on outstanding 
indebtedness reflects the net effect of all existing swap agreements.  See Appendix A under the headings 
“Outstanding Indebtedness” and “Derivatives.”   
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DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE RATIO AND RATE COVENANT 

In the Master Trust Indenture, the Obligated Group agrees to use its best efforts to maintain the Historical Debt 
Service Coverage Ratio of the Obligated Group at least equal to 1.10 in each Fiscal Year.  If the Historical Debt 
Service Coverage Ratio, as calculated at the end of any Fiscal Year, is less than 1.10, the Obligated Group covenants 
to retain a nationally recognized Consultant to make recommendations as to rates and charges and other aspects of 
management and operation of the Obligated Group. The Obligated Group agrees, subject to applicable 
governmental, contractual, third-party payor and other restrictions and limitations on its legal authority (“Applicable 
Restrictions”) to revise its rates and charges and other aspects of its management and operation in conformity with 
the recommendations of the Consultant or file with the Master Trustee its reasons for not doing so.  The Obligated 
Group shall thereafter achieve a Historical Debt Service Coverage Ratio of at least 1.10 unless the Obligated Group 
is complying with the recommendations of the Consultant or the Consultant certifies that the Obligated Group is 
prevented from doing so by Applicable Restrictions and the ratio actually achieved is at least 1.00.  Currently, the 
Institution is the only Member of the Obligated Group.  For a more complete description, see Appendix D-1 – 
“SUMMARY OF THE MASTER TRUST INDENTURE” under the heading “Debt Service Coverage Ratios.” 

LETTER OF CREDIT AND REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT 

Letter of Credit   

The following description is subject in all respects to the complete terms of the Letter of Credit.   

Concurrently with the delivery of the Series G Bonds, the Letter of Credit will be issued by the Bank pursuant to the 
Reimbursement Agreement.  See Appendix G – “SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE 
REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT.”  The Letter of Credit irrevocably authorizes draws in accordance with its terms 
in an aggregate amount not exceeding $72,801,359 (as reduced and reinstated from time to time in accordance with the 
provisions of the Letter of Credit, the “Available Amount”), of which an amount not exceeding $71,740,000 may be 
drawn upon with respect to payment of the unpaid principal amount or the portion of Purchase Price corresponding to 
principal of the Series G Bonds, and an amount not exceeding $1,061,359 may be drawn upon with respect to payment 
of up to forty-five (45) days of accrued interest on the Series G Bonds, computed at the Maximum Interest Rate of 12% 
per annum.  Drawings under the Letter of Credit will be submitted by the Trustee to the Bank.  The Bank will be 
obligated to fund each drawing, but not in excess of the Available Amount.  Subject to the provisions contained in the 
immediately following paragraph, each drawing under the Letter of Credit shall reduce the Available Amount by the 
amount of such drawing.   
 

After a drawing for the Purchase Price of the Bonds upon an optional or mandatory tender of the Series G Bonds, 
the Available Amount shall be reinstated only upon reimbursement to the Bank for amounts drawn under the Letter of 
Credit and receipt by the Bank of a certificate from the Trustee in the form required under the Letter of Credit.  With 
respect to a drawing for a scheduled periodic payment of interest on the Series G Bonds payable on an Interest Payment 
Date, if the Trustee shall not have received, within ten (10) days from the date such drawing is honored, notice from the 
Bank to the effect that (i) an Event of Default has occurred under the Reimbursement Agreement, and (ii) the interest 
component of the Letter of Credit will not be reinstated, the Available Amount will automatically be reinstated effective 
on the eleventh (11th) day from the date such drawing is honored in an amount equal to the amount of such drawing.  The 
Available Amount shall not be reinstated for any drawing made with respect to a redemption. 
 

Termination of Letter of Credit 
 

The Letter of Credit will terminate upon the earliest of (i) the date on which the Bank honors the Final Drawing 
(as defined in the Letter of Credit) presented by the Trustee and accompanied by the Letter of Credit, (ii) 5:00 p.m. 
(Boston time) on the date of receipt by the Bank of written notice from the Trustee (accompanied by the Letter of Credit) 
stating that the Trustee has accepted a substitute or replacement Credit Facility in accordance with the terms of the 
Agreement that is effective on the date of such certificate, (iii) 5:00 p.m. (Boston time) on the date of receipt by the Bank 
of a certificate from the Trustee (accompanied by the Letter of Credit) that a conversion to the Fixed Rate Mode has 
occurred, (iv) 5:00 p.m. (Boston time) on the date of receipt by the Bank of a certificate from the Trustee (accompanied 
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by the Letter of Credit) stating that no Series G Bonds remain Outstanding, and (v) 5:00 p.m. (Boston time) on October  
26, 2010. 

 
Reimbursement Agreement 
 
The Bank will agree to issue the Letter of Credit pursuant to the terms of the Reimbursement Agreement.  Reference 

is made to the Reimbursement Agreement for complete details of the terms thereof.  Attached as Appendix G – 
“SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT” is a brief outline of certain 
provisions of the Reimbursement Agreement which should not be considered a full statement thereof. 

The Bank 

Attached as Appendix F is a summary description and certain financial information of the Bank. 

Substitute Credit Facility 

The Agreement provides that at any time prior to the expiration of the Letter of Credit, the Institution may 
provide for delivery to the Trustee of a substitute Credit Facility.  The Agreement contains provisions with respect to 
the acceptability of the substitute Credit Facility.  See Appendix E – “SUMMARY OF LOAN AND TRUST 
AGREEMENT” under the heading “Substitute Credit Facility.” 

THE PROJECT 

 The proceeds of the Series G Bonds will be used (i) to advance refund $61,930,000 principal amount of the 
Authority’s Revenue Bonds, Baystate Medical Center Issue, Series E (the “Series E Bonds”), which were issued to 
finance or refinance the following property owned by the Institution: (a) construction of a new 104,500 gross square 
foot Ambulatory Care Center at 3300 Main Street, Springfield, Massachusetts; (b) construction of a new 100,000 
gross square foot building to house the Ambulatory Surgery Center, Medical Library and education/conference 
space on the Institution’s North campus located at 759 Chestnut Street, Springfield, Massachusetts; (c) renovation of 
various existing spaces within the Institution’s North campus; and (d) acquisition of equipment for the new 
facilities; (ii) to finance routine capital construction, renovations and equipping of various facilities of the 
Institution; and (iii) to pay certain costs of issuance of the Series G Bonds.  For a further description of the projects 
being financed and refinanced with the proceeds of the Series G Bonds, see Appendix A under the heading “The 
Project.” 
 
 The advance refunding of $61,930,000 principal amount of the Series E Bonds (the “Refunded Series E 
Bonds”) will be achieved through the irrevocable deposit of $65,332,470 of the proceeds of the Series G Bonds, 
together with certain funds held by the trustee for the Series E Bonds, in a Refunding Trust Fund (the “Series E 
Refunding Trust Fund”) to be held by U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (the “Refunding Trustee”), under a 
Refunding Trust Agreement dated as of October 11, 2005 among the Authority, the Institution and the Refunding 
Trustee.  Moneys in the Series E Refunding Trust Fund will be applied to the purchase of Government Obligations 
as defined in the Refunding Trust Agreement (the “Government Obligations”).  The Government Obligations, 
interest thereon and the remaining moneys in the Series E Refunding Trust Fund will be sufficient in amount and 
available when necessary to pay when due the principal of and accrued interest and redemption premium, if any, on 
the Refunded Series E Bonds on and until their respective maturity or redemption dates. 
 
 On October 11, 2005 the Institution elected to defease $6,765,000 principal amount of the Series E Bonds (the 
“Defeased Series E Bonds”) through the irrevocable deposit of approximately $7,000,000 of the Institution’s funds 
in a Defeasance Escrow Fund (the “Series E Defeasance Escrow Fund) to be held by U.S. Bank National 
Association, as trustee (the “Defeasance Trustee”), under a Defeasance Escrow Agreement dated as of October 11, 
2005 among the Authority, the Institution and the Defeasance Trustee.  Moneys in the Series E Defeasance Escrow 
Fund will be applied to the purchase of Government Obligations.  The Government Obligations, interest thereon and 
the remaining moneys in the Series E Defeasance Escrow Fund will be sufficient in amount and available when 
necessary to pay when due the principal of and accrued interest and redemption premium, if any, on the Defeased 
Series E Bonds on and until their respective maturity or redemption dates. 
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 None of the funds in the Series E Refunding Trust Fund or in the Series E Defeasance Escrow Fund shall serve 
as security for or be available to pay principal of or interest on the Series G Bonds. 
 
 Upon the closing of the advance refunding and cash defeasance transactions described above, none of the Series 
E Bonds will remain outstanding.  See “VERIFICATION OF MATHEMATICAL COMPUTATIONS” herein.   
 
 

ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS 

Sources of Funds 

Principal amount of the Series G Bonds $71,740,000 
Released P&I Funds 1,317,474 
 
 Total Estimated Sources of Funds  $73,057,474 
 

Uses of Funds 

Deposit to the Construction Fund  6,990,000 
Refunding of the Series E Bonds  65,332,470 
Costs of Issuance, including Underwriter’s Discount and 
   Letter of Credit Fees  735,004 
 
 Total Estimated Uses of Funds  $73,057,474 

 

BONDOWNERS’ RISKS 

General 

Purchase of the Series G Bonds involves certain investment risks.  In order to identify risk factors and make an 
informed investment decision, potential purchasers should be thoroughly familiar with this entire Official Statement 
(including the Appendices hereto) in order to make a judgment as to whether the Series G Bonds are an appropriate 
investment.  Certain of the risks associated with the purchase of the Series G Bonds are described below.  The 
following list, while not setting forth all the factors which must be considered, contains some of the factors which 
should be considered prior to purchasing the Series G Bonds.  This discussion of risk factors is not, and is not 
intended to be, comprehensive or exhaustive. 

Limited Obligations 

The Series G Bonds and the interest thereon are limited obligations of the Authority payable solely from the 
revenues and other amounts pledged therefor pursuant to the Agreement.  The Series G Bonds are not an 
indebtedness of the Authority, the Commonwealth or any political subdivision thereof.  None of the Authority, the 
Commonwealth, any political subdivision thereof, the directors, officers, employee and agents of the Authority or 
any person executing the Series G Bonds shall be liable on the Series G Bonds, nor shall the Series G Bonds be 
payable out of any funds or properties other than as set forth in the Agreement.  The Series G Bonds shall not 
constitute an indebtedness within the meaning of any constitutional, statutory or charter debt limitation or restriction 
and are not payable in any manner by taxation.  The Authority has no taxing power. 

The Letter of Credit; Default by the Bank 

The Bank will issue the Letter of Credit which will authorize the Trustee to draw on the Bank, in accordance 
with the terms and conditions set forth in the Letter of Credit, by drafts, periodically in an amount equal to the 
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principal of the Series G Bonds (other than Institution Bonds and Pledged Bonds) when due, whether at stated 
maturity or upon redemption or acceleration of the Series G Bonds, the Purchase Price of Series G Bonds (other than 
Institution Bonds and Pledged Bonds) tendered for purchase pursuant to the Agreement and up to forty-five (45) 
days of accrued interest at the Maximum Interest Rate on the principal amount of the Series G Bonds in the Variable 
Rate Mode.  The Letter of Credit is the Bondowners’ primary expected source of payment of principal or 
Purchase Price of and interest on the Series G Bonds in the Variable Rate Mode.  The Bank’s obligation under 
the Letter of Credit will be a general obligation of the Bank, which will not be guaranteed or secured, in whole or in 
part, by the United States of America or any agency or instrumentality thereof.  Default by the Bank under the Letter 
of Credit may result in insufficient revenues being available to pay the principal or Purchase Price of and accrued 
and unpaid interest on the Series G Bonds.  Certain information with respect to the Bank is included in Appendix F 
to this Official Statement.   

Payment of Debt Service 

The Series G Bonds are limited obligations of the Authority and are payable by the Authority solely from 
payments to be made by the Institution pursuant to the Agreement and from certain funds held by the Trustee under 
the Agreement.  For so long as the Series G Bonds are in the Variable Rate Mode, funds pledged under the 
Agreement include draws by the Trustee on the Credit Facility.  No representation or assurance can be given that the 
Institution will realize revenues in amounts sufficient to make such payments under the Agreement.  The realization 
of future revenues is dependent upon, among other things, the demand for the Institution’s health care services, the 
ability of the Institution to provide the required health care services, management capabilities, economic 
developments in the Institution’s service area, the Institution’s ability to control expenses, competition, costs, 
legislation, governmental regulation and developments affecting the federal or state tax-exempt status of non-profit 
organizations and future changes in other conditions that are unpredictable.  Unanticipated events and circumstances 
may occur which cause variations from the Institution’s expectations.  The risk factors discussed below should be 
considered in evaluating the ability of the Institution to make payments of debt service in a timely manner. 

Enforceability of Lien on Gross Receipts 

The Agreement provides that the Institution shall make payments to the Trustee sufficient to pay the principal of 
and premium, if any, and interest on the Series G Bonds as the same become due.  The obligation of the Institution 
to make such payments is secured by the Note issued under the Master Trust Indenture which, in turn, is secured by 
a security interest granted to the Master Trustee in the Gross Receipts of the Obligated Group, of which the 
Institution is currently the sole Member. 

To the extent that Gross Receipts are derived from payments by the federal government under the Medicare or 
Medicaid program, any right to receive such payments directly may be unenforceable.  The Social Security Act and 
state regulations prohibit anyone other than the individual receiving care or the institution providing service from 
collecting Medicare and Medicaid payments directly from the federal or state government.  In addition, Medicare 
and Medicaid receivables may be subject to provisions of the Assignment of Claims Act of 1940, which restricts the 
ability of a secured party to collect accounts directly from government agencies.  With respect to receivables and 
Gross Receipts not subject to the Lien, the Master Trustee would occupy the position of an unsecured creditor.  
Counsel to the Institution, the sole Member of the Obligated Group, has not provided an opinion with regard to the 
enforceability of the Lien on Gross Receipts of the Obligated Group where such Gross Receipts are derived from the 
Medicare and Medicaid programs. 

In the event of bankruptcy of the Institution or any other Member of the Obligated Group, transfers of property 
of the bankrupt entity, including the payment of debt or the transfer of any collateral, including receivables and 
Gross Receipts on or after the date which is ninety (90) days (or, in some circumstances, one year) prior to the 
commencement of the case in bankruptcy court may be subject to avoidance or recoupment as preferential transfers.  
Under certain circumstances a court may have the power to direct the use of Gross Receipts to meet expenses of the 
Member of the Obligated Group before paying debt service on the Series G Bonds. 

Pursuant to the Massachusetts Uniform Commercial Code, a security interest in the proceeds of Gross Receipts 
may not continue to be perfected if such proceeds are not paid over to the Master Trustee by a Member of the 
Obligated Group within twenty (20) days of their receipt.  A Member of the Obligated Group is obligated to pay 
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over such proceeds within twenty (20) days of receipt only in the event of a failure to make a required payment on 
an Obligation issued pursuant to the Master Trust Indenture, or on bonds secured by such an Obligation.  If any 
required payment is not made when due, the Members of the Obligated Group must transfer or pay over 
immediately to the Master Trustee any Gross Receipts with respect to which the security interest remains perfected 
pursuant to law.  Any Gross Receipts thereafter received shall upon receipt by a Member of the Obligated Group be 
transferred to the Master Trustee without such Gross Receipts being commingled with other funds, in the form 
received (with necessary endorsements) up to an amount equal to the amount of the missed payment. 

The value of the security interest in the Gross Receipts could be diluted by the incurrence of Additional 
Indebtedness secured equally and ratably with the Series G Bonds as to the security interest in Gross Receipts or by 
the incurrence of debt secured on a basis senior to the Series G Bonds.  See “ADDITIONAL INDEBTEDNESS” 
herein. 

Enforceability of Master Trust Indenture and Agreement 

While the Institution is currently the only member of the Obligated Group, in the event additional entities 
become Members of the Obligated Group in the future, the risk described in the following two paragraphs would 
apply. 

Under Massachusetts law, a nonprofit corporation may guaranty the debt of another corporation only if such 
guaranty is in furtherance of the corporate purposes of such guarantor nonprofit corporation.  In addition, it is 
possible that the security interest granted by a Member and the joint and several obligation of a Member to make 
payments due under an Obligation, including the Note, relating to bonds issued for the benefit of another Member, 
may be declared void in an action brought by third-party creditors pursuant to the Massachusetts fraudulent 
conveyance statutes or may be avoided by a Member or a trustee in bankruptcy in the event of the bankruptcy of the 
Member from which payment is requested.  An obligation may be voided under the federal Bankruptcy Code or 
under the Massachusetts fraudulent conveyance statute if (a) the obligation was incurred without receipt by the 
obligor of “fair consideration” or “reasonably equivalent value,” and (b) the obligation renders the obligor 
“insolvent,” as such terms are defined under the applicable statute.  Interpretation by the courts of the tests of 
“insolvency,” “reasonably equivalent value” and “fair consideration” has resulted in a conflicting body of case law.  
For example, a Member’s joint and several obligation under the Master Trust Indenture to make all payments 
thereunder, including payments in respect of funds used for the benefit of the other Members, may be held to be a 
“transfer” which makes such Member “insolvent” in the sense that the total amount due under the Master Trust 
Indenture could be considered as causing its liabilities to exceed its assets.  Also, one of the Members may be 
deemed to have received less than “fair consideration” for such obligation because only a portion of the proceeds of 
the indebtedness are to be used to finance facilities occupied or used by such Member.  While the Members may 
benefit generally from the facilities financed from the indebtedness for the other Members, the actual cash value of 
this benefit may be less than the joint and several obligation.  The rights under the Massachusetts fraudulent 
conveyance statutes may be asserted for a period of up to six years from the incurring of the obligations or granting 
of security under the Agreement 

In addition, the assets of any Member may be held by a court to be subject to a charitable trust which prohibits 
payments in respect of obligations incurred by or for the benefit of others if a Member has insufficient assets 
remaining to carry out its own charitable functions or, under certain circumstances, if the obligations paid by such 
Member were issued for purposes inconsistent with or beyond the scope of the charitable purposes for which the 
Member was organized.  The enforceability of similar master trust indentures has been challenged in jurisdictions 
outside of Massachusetts.  In the absence of clear legal precedent in this area, the extent to which the assets of any 
Member can be used to pay Obligations issued by others cannot be determined at this time. 
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Financial Status of the Institution and the Project 

Information with respect to the Institution and the Project is included as Appendix A.  The information was not 
obtained from an independent third party.  The financial success of the Institution and/or the Project may affect the 
risk of an acceleration of the Series G Bonds prior to maturity. 

If the Institution were to file a petition for relief under the federal Bankruptcy Code while the Letter of Credit is 
in effect, such filing would constitute an Event of Default under the Reimbursement Agreement requiring, under the 
terms set forth in the Agreement, either an acceleration or the mandatory tender for purchase of the Series G Bonds. 

Swap Agreements  

The Institution has entered into a series of interest rate swap agreements (the “Swap Agreements”) with various 
counter-parties.  The Swap Agreements may be subject to periodic “mark-to-market” valuations and may have a 
negative value to the Institution.  The counter-parties to such agreements may be able to terminate such agreements 
upon certain events of default under such agreements.  Under certain market conditions, the Institution could be 
required to make a material termination payment to a counter-party of a terminated swap.  In addition, the Institution 
is subject to basis risk, risks that the credit ratings of the counter-parties to the Swap Agreements may deteriorate 
and render them unable to satisfy their obligations under the Swap Agreements, and risks relating to changes in the 
Code (defined below), which could adversely affect the Swap Agreements.  See Appendix A under the heading 
“Derivatives.” 

Enforceability of Remedies 

The remedies available to the Trustee, the Bank, the Authority and the Bondowners upon an event of default 
under the Agreement or the Reimbursement Agreement are in many respects dependent upon judicial actions which 
are, in turn, often subject to discretion and delay.  Under existing constitutional and statutory laws and judicial 
decisions, including specifically the federal Bankruptcy Code, a particular remedy specified by the Agreement or the 
Reimbursement Agreement may not be readily available or, if available, may be limited or subject to substantial 
delay.  The various legal opinions to be delivered concurrently with the issuance and delivery of the Series G Bonds 
will be qualified as to the enforceability of the various legal instruments by limitations imposed by principles of 
equity and by bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency, moratorium and similar laws affecting the rights of creditors 
generally. 

The Agreement provides that the Institution shall make payments to the Trustee sufficient to pay the Series G 
Bonds and the interest thereon as the same becomes due.  The obligation of the Institution to make such payments is 
not secured by a mortgage lien or security interest in any real or personal property of the Institution, other than the 
lien on the Gross Receipts of the Obligated Group granted to the Master Trustee under the Master Trust Indenture, 
or of any other party. 

No Redemption Upon Loss of Tax Exemption 

As described under the heading “TAX EXEMPTION” herein, non-compliance with certain requirements of the 
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”) could cause interest on the Series G Bonds to be included 
in gross income for federal income tax purposes retroactive to the date of issuance of the Series G Bonds.  The 
Series G Bonds are not required to be redeemed and are not subject to mandatory acceleration, and the interest rates 
on the Series G Bonds will not be changed, in the event interest thereon is determined to be includable in gross 
income for federal income tax purposes.  No provision has been made to compensate Bondowners for federal 
income taxes, interest and/or penalties which may be assessed in connection with any such tax liability or such 
determination or for any other loss or any diminution of gain which may occur. 

Early Redemption or Mandatory Tenders 

Pursuant to the terms of the Agreement, the Series G Bonds are subject to redemption or mandatory tender for 
purchase prior to maturity at certain times.  See “THE SERIES G BONDS” herein. 
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While the Series G Bonds are supported by the Credit Facility, the Series G Bonds are being offered principally 
on the basis of the financial strength of the Bank.  The Series G Bonds may be subject to mandatory tender for 
purchase before the stated maturity thereof or to acceleration, in the Bank’s discretion, because of an Event of 
Default under the Reimbursement Agreement. See “LETTER OF CREDIT AND REIMBURSEMENT 
AGREEMENT” herein.  

For additional Bondowners’ Risks, see Appendix A under the heading “Bondowners’ Risks and Matters 
Affecting the Health Care Industry.” 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE 

The Authority has determined that no financial or operating data concerning the Authority is material to any 
decision to purchase, hold or sell the Series G Bonds and the Authority will not provide any such information.  The 
Institution has undertaken all responsibilities for any continuing disclosure to Bondowners as described below, and 
the Authority shall have no liability to the Bondowners or any other person with respect to such disclosures. 

The Institution has covenanted for the benefit of Bondowners (i) to provide the annual audited financial 
statements of Baystate Health, Inc. (“BH”), formerly known as Baystate Health System, Inc., which shall include 
one or more supplemental schedules containing information specific to the Obligated Group, by not later than one 
hundred fifty (150) days following the end of BH’s fiscal year, beginning with the fiscal year ending September 30, 
2005 (the “Annual Report”), (ii) to provide certain financial information and operating data relating to the Obligated 
Group by not later than sixty (60) days following the end of each of the first three fiscal quarters, beginning with the 
quarter ending December 31, 2005 (the “Quarterly Statements”), and (iii) to provide notices of the occurrence of 
certain enumerated events, if deemed by the Institution to be material.  The Annual Report, Quarterly Statements 
and notices of material events will be filed on behalf of the Institution with each Nationally Recognized Municipal 
Securities Information Repository and with the appropriate State Repository if such repository is established.  The 
Annual Report and Quarterly Statements are available to any Bondowner of at least $1,000,000 in principal amount 
of the Series G Bonds upon request in writing to the Chief Financial Officer of the Institution at Baystate Medical 
Center, 280 Chestnut Street, Springfield, MA 01104.  The specific nature of the information to be contained in the 
Annual Report, Quarterly Statements or the notices of material events is summarized in Appendix I - “Form of 
Continuing Disclosure Agreement.”  These covenants have been made in order to assist the Underwriters in 
complying with Rule 15c2-12 promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission.  

TAX EXEMPTION 

 In the opinion of Ropes & Gray LLP, Bond Counsel to the Authority, based upon an analysis of existing laws, 
regulations, rulings, and court decisions, and assuming, among other matters, compliance with certain covenants, 
interest on the Series G Bonds is excluded from the gross income of the owners of the Series G Bonds for federal 
income tax purposes under Section 103 of the Code.  Bond Counsel is of the further opinion that interest on the 
Series G Bonds is not a preference item for purposes of the federal individual or corporate alternative minimum 
taxes, although such interest is included in adjusted current earnings when calculating corporate alternative 
minimum taxable income.  

 Bond Counsel is also of the opinion that, under existing law, interest on the Series G Bonds and any profit on 
the sale of the Series G Bonds are exempt from Massachusetts personal income taxes and the Series G Bonds are 
exempt from Massachusetts personal property taxes.  However, the Series G Bonds are included in the measure of 
Massachusetts estate and inheritance taxes, and the Series G Bonds and the interest thereon is included in the 
measure of certain Massachusetts corporate excise and franchise taxes.  Bond Counsel has not opined as to the 
taxability of the Series G Bonds or the income therefrom under the laws of any state other than Massachusetts.  A 
complete copy of the proposed form of opinion of Bond Counsel is set forth in Appendix H hereto. 

 The Code imposes various restrictions, conditions and requirements relating to the exclusion from gross income 
for federal income tax purposes of interest on obligations such as the Series G Bonds.  The Authority and the 
Institution have covenanted to comply with certain rules designed to ensure that interest on the Series G Bonds will 
not be included in federal gross income.  Failure to comply with these covenants may result in interest on the Series 
G Bonds being included in gross income for federal income tax purposes, possibly from the date of original issuance 
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of the Series G Bonds.  The opinion of Bond Counsel assumes compliance with these covenants.  Certain 
requirements and procedures contained or referred to in the Agreement and other relevant documents may be 
changed and certain actions (including, without limitation, defeasance of the Series G Bonds) may be taken or 
omitted under the circumstances and subject to the terms and conditions set forth in such documents.  Bond Counsel 
has not undertaken to determine (or to inform any person) whether any actions taken (or not taken) or events 
occurring (or not occurring) after the date of issuance of the Series G Bonds may adversely affect the value of, or the 
tax status of interest on, the Series G Bonds.  Further, no assurance can be given that pending or future legislation, 
including amendments to the Code, if enacted into law, or any proposed legislation, including amendments to the 
Code, or any regulatory or administrative development with respect to existing law, will not adversely affect the 
value of, or the tax status of interest on, the Series G Bonds.  Prospective Bondowners are urged to consult their own 
tax advisors with respect to proposals to restructure the federal income tax. 

Although Bond Counsel is of the opinion that interest on the Series G Bonds is excluded from gross income 
for federal income tax purposes and is exempt from Massachusetts personal income taxes, the ownership or 
disposition of, or the accrual or receipt of interest on, the Series G Bonds may otherwise affect a Series G 
Bondowner’s federal or state tax liability.  The nature and extent of these other tax consequences will depend upon 
the particular tax status of the Series G Bondowner or the Series G Bondowner’s other items of income or 
deduction.  Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any such other tax consequences, and Bondowners should 
consult with their own tax advisors with respect to such consequences. 

VERIFICATION OF MATHEMATICAL COMPUTATIONS 

 Chris B. Berens, CPA, P.C. (the “Verification Agent”) will deliver reports verifying the accuracy of (i) the 
mathematical computations relating to the adequacy of the maturing principal of and interest earned on the 
Government Obligations and any initial cash balances held by the Refunding Bond Trustee and the Defeasance 
Trustee to provide for the payment of the principal of and accrued interest and redemption premium, if any, on the 
Refunded Series E Bonds and the Defeased Series E Bonds, respectively, when due; and (ii) the mathematical 
computations of actuarial yield on such Governmental Obligations and on the Series G Bonds, which computations 
support certain opinions of Ropes & Gray LLP, Bond Counsel.  The Verification Agent’s verification will be based 
on certain information provided to it by the Underwriter. 

 

LEGALITY OF SERIES G BONDS FOR INVESTMENT AND DEPOSIT 

The Act provides that the Series G Bonds are securities in which all public officers and public bodies of the 
Commonwealth and its political subdivisions, all Massachusetts insurance companies, trust companies, savings 
banks, co-operative banks, banking associations, investment companies, executors, administrators, trustees, and 
other fiduciaries may properly and legally invest funds, including capital in their control or belonging to them.  The 
Series G Bonds, under the Act, are securities which may properly and legally be deposited with and received by any 
Commonwealth or municipal officer or any agency or political subdivision of the Commonwealth for any purpose 
for which the deposit of bonds or obligations of the Commonwealth is now or may hereafter be authorized by law. 

COMMONWEALTH NOT LIABLE ON SERIES G BONDS 

The Series G Bonds shall not be deemed to constitute a debt or liability of the Commonwealth or any political 
subdivision thereof, or a pledge of the faith and credit of the Commonwealth or any such political subdivision, but 
shall be payable solely from the Revenues derived by the Authority under the Agreement.  Neither the faith and 
credit nor the taxing power of the Commonwealth or any political subdivision thereof is pledged to the payment of 
the principal of or the interest on the Series G Bonds.  The Act does not in any way create a so-called moral 
obligation of the Commonwealth or of any political subdivision thereof to pay debt service in the event of default by 
the Institution.  The Authority does not have taxing power. 
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DESCRIPTION OF RATINGS 

Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. (“Moody’s”) and Standard & Poor’s Ratings Service, a division of The 
McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc. (“S&P”) have assigned ratings of “Aaa/VMIG 1” and “AAA/A-1+”, respectively, to 
the Series G Bonds.  The long term rating are based jointly on the Institution and the issuance of the Letter of Credit 
by the Bank.  The short term ratings are based solely upon the issuance of the Letter of Credit by the Bank.  Such 
ratings reflect only the views of such rating agencies, and any desired explanation of the significance of such ratings 
should be obtained from the rating agency furnishing the same, at the following addresses: Moody’s, 99 Church 
Street, New York, New York 10004, and S&P, 55 Water Street, New York, New York 10041.  Generally, a rating 
agency bases its rating on information and materials furnished to it and on investigations, studies and assumptions 
made by the rating agency itself.  There is no assurance that the ratings mentioned above will remain in effect for 
any given period of time or that such ratings may not be revised downward or withdrawn entirely at any time by the 
rating agencies.  Any downward revision in or withdrawal of either or both of such ratings may have an adverse 
effect on the market price or marketability of the Series G Bonds.  The above ratings are not a recommendation to 
buy, sell or hold the Series G Bonds.   

UNDERWRITING 

The Series G Bonds are being purchased for reoffering by Citigroup Global Markets Inc. (the “Underwriter”) 
pursuant to a bond purchase contract between the Authority and the Underwriter.  The Underwriter has agreed to 
purchase the Series G Bonds at an aggregate discount of $161,415 from the public offering price of the Series G 
Bonds set forth on the cover page hereof.  The Underwriter may offer and sell the Series G Bonds to certain dealers 
(including dealers depositing Series G Bonds into investment trusts, certain of which may be sponsored or managed 
by the Underwriter) and others at prices lower than the public offering price stated on the cover page hereof.  The 
public offering price set forth on the cover page hereof may be changed after the initial offering by the Underwriter. 

LEGAL MATTERS 

All legal matters incidental to the authorization and issuance of the Series G Bonds by the Authority are subject 
to the approval of Ropes & Gray LLP, Bond Counsel, whose opinion approving the validity and tax exempt status of 
the Series G Bonds will be delivered with the Series G Bonds.  A copy of the proposed form of the opinion is 
attached hereto as Appendix H.  Certain legal matters will be passed on for the Institution by its counsel, Bulkley, 
Richardson and Gelinas, LLP, Springfield, Massachusetts, for the Bank by its counsel, Gadsby Hannah LLP, 
Boston, Massachusetts, and for the Underwriter by its counsel, Mintz, Levin, Cohn, Ferris, Glovsky and Popeo, 
P.C., Boston, Massachusetts.  Mintz, Levin, Cohn, Ferris, Glovsky and Popeo, P.C., has from time to time provided 
services unrelated to the Bonds to the Institution or its affiliates. 

There is not now pending any litigation restraining or enjoining the issuance or delivery of the Series G Bonds 
or questioning or affecting the validity of the Series G Bonds or the proceedings and authority under which they are 
to be issued.  Neither the creation, organization, or existence of the Authority, nor the title of the present members or 
other officers of the Authority to their respective offices is being contested.  There is no litigation pending which in 
any manner questions the right of the Authority to make a loan to the Institution to finance and refinance the Project 
in accordance with the provisions of the Act and the Agreement.  See Appendix A with respect to the absence of 
material litigation affecting the Institution. 

MISCELLANEOUS 

The references to the Act and the Agreement are brief summaries of certain provisions thereof.  Such summaries 
do not purport to be complete, and reference is made to the Act and the Agreement for full and complete statements 
of such provisions.  The agreements of the Authority with the Bondowners are fully set forth in the Agreement, and 
neither any advertisement of the Series G Bonds nor this Official Statement is to be construed as constituting an 
agreement with Bondowners.  So far as any statements involve matters of opinion, whether or not expressly so 
stated, they are intended merely as such and not as representations of fact.  Copies of the documents mentioned in 
this paragraph are on file at the offices of the Authority and the Trustee. 
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Information relating to DTC and the book-entry-only system described under the heading “THE SERIES G 
BONDS--Book-Entry-Only System” is based on information furnished by DTC and is believed to be reliable, but 
none of the Authority, the Underwriter or the Institution makes any representations or warranties whatsoever with 
respect to such information. 

Attached hereto as Appendix A is a letter from the Institution to the Authority which contains certain 
information relating to the Institution and the Project.  With respect to the letter from the Institution, while the 
information contained therein is believed to be reliable, the Authority and, except as set forth on the inside cover 
page, the Underwriter do not make any representations or warranties whatsoever with respect to such information.  
Appendix B to this Official Statement sets forth the audited financial statements of the Institution for the fiscal year 
ended September 30, 2004, and the accompanying report of the independent certified public accountants.  The 
Authority and the Underwriter have relied on the information contained in Appendix A and Appendix B. 

Appendix C – “DEFINITIONS OF CERTAIN TERMS,” Appendix D-1 – “SUMMARY OF THE MASTER 
TRUST INDENTURE,” Appendix D-2 – “SUMMARY OF SUPPLEMENTAL MASTER INDENTURE FOR 
OBLIGATION NO. 6 AND CERTAIN ADDITIONAL AMENDMENTS TO THE MASTER TRUST 
INDENTURE” and Appendix E – “SUMMARY OF LOAN AND TRUST AGREEMENT” have been prepared by 
Ropes and Gray LLP, Bond Counsel to the Authority.  Appendix H contains the proposed legal opinion of Ropes 
and Gray LLP, Bond Counsel to the Authority. 

Appendix F – “CERTAIN INFORMATION ABOUT THE BANK” has been provided by the Bank.  While the 
information contained therein is believed to be reliable, the Authority and the Underwriter do not make any 
representations or warranties whatsoever with respect to such information. 

Appendix G – “SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF THE REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT” has 
been prepared by Gadsby Hannah LLP, counsel to the Bank.   

Appendix I - “FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT” has been prepared by Mintz, Levin, 
Cohn, Ferris, Glovsky & Popeo, P.C., counsel to the Underwriter.  

All appendices are incorporated as an integral part of this Official Statement. 

The Institution has reviewed the portions of this Official Statement describing the Institution and the Project, 
including those sections entitled “THE PROJECT,” “TOTAL DEBT SERVICE,” “DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE 
RATIO AND RATE COVENANT” and “ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS” and has furnished 
Appendix A to this Official Statement.  At the closing, the Institution will certify that such portions of this Official 
Statement (except for any forecasts and opinions contained herein) do not contain an untrue statement of a material 
fact or omit a statement of material fact necessary to make the statements made therein, in the light of the 
circumstances under which they are made, not misleading and that the aforesaid forecasts and opinions are believed 
to be reasonable in light of the experience of the officers of the Institution and the facts known to them at that time. 

The execution and delivery of this Official Statement by its Executive Director have been duly authorized by the 
Authority. 

MASSACHUSETTS HEALTH AND 
EDUCATIONAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY 
 
 
By: /s/ Benson T. Caswell    
 Benson T. Caswell 

Executive Director 
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October 20, 2005 
 
 
Massachusetts Health and Educational 
Facilities Authority 
99 Summer Street – Suite 1000 
Boston, Massachusetts 02110 
 
Dear Members of the Authority: 
 
In connection with the issuance by the Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities Authority (the 
Authority or HEFA) of its Revenue Bonds, Baystate Medical Center Issue, Series G (2005) (the Bonds or 
the Series G Bonds), we are pleased to submit the following information regarding Baystate Medical 
Center, Inc. (BMC), and other pertinent information for inclusion in the Official Statement of the 
Authority.  Unless otherwise indicated, all data are from the records of BMC and all referenced years are 
the fiscal year ending September 30.  Unless otherwise indicated, the source for all statistics presented 
herein is the internal records of BMC. 
 
 
Introduction 
 
BMC is the sole obligor on the Bonds.  BMC is the flagship hospital of the integrated healthcare delivery 
system headed by Baystate Health, Inc. (BH).∗  A 636 licensed bed, private, non-profit acute care tertiary 
referral center and academic medical center located in Springfield, Massachusetts, BMC is the major 
academic medical center serving Western Massachusetts.  BMC is the fifth largest acute care hospital in 
Massachusetts measured by admissions, (based on the American Hospital Association (AHA) Guide 
2005, which is a guide to U.S. hospitals published by AHA).  BMC is also the western Campus of Tufts 
University School of Medicine and serves as the major tertiary care and teaching hospital for 
approximately 750,000 area residents of Western Massachusetts, encompassing Hampden, Hampshire and 
Franklin counties and towns from the western border of Worcester County.  
 
 
History and Organizational Structure   
 
The community hospitals, which ultimately joined together to become BMC, have been part of the 
community for 119 years.  The Springfield Hospital was established in 1883 and Wesson Memorial 
Hospital and Wesson Maternity Hospital were established in 1900 and 1908, respectively.  BMC was 
created in the 1970s through two separate mergers of these three community hospitals: Springfield 

                                                 
∗ Baystate Health, Inc. was formerly known as Baystate Health System, Inc.  Effective August 1, 2005, Baystate Health 
System, Inc. changed its name to Baystate Health, Inc. 
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Hospital Medical Center, Wesson Women’s Hospital (formerly Wesson Maternity Hospital), and Wesson 
Memorial Hospital. 
 
 
The main campus (the Main Campus, also known as the North Campus) is comprised of facilities of the 
former Springfield Hospital/Wesson Women's Hospital, which are contiguous and located on Chestnut 
Street in Springfield, Massachusetts.  The Main Campus is the site of all acute inpatient services and the 
primary outpatient surgery center.  In addition to the Main Campus, BMC’s Northern Edge Campus, 
located on Main Street in Springfield, houses the majority of BMC’s outpatient services. Also located on 
the Northern Edge Campus is the D’Amour Center for Cancer Care.  The Center, which opened in 2004, 
consolidates the services of the Baystate Regional Cancer Program.  BMC also operates two community-
based neighborhood health centers and an ambulatory surgery center in Springfield.  
 
BMC’s facilities and programs have expanded, consistent with need and demand for health care services. 
 
BH, BMC and the significant entities affiliated with BH and identified in Figure I below are referred to 
collectively as the “System”. 
 

Baystate Medical 
Education and Research 

Foundation, Inc.
nonprofit, tax exempt

49%

Baystate HealthBaystate Health OrganizationalOrganizational ChartChart
Baystate Health, Inc.
nonprofit, tax exempt

Sole Member Entities

or Sole Stockholder 
Entities

Baystate Medical Center, Inc.
nonprofit, tax exempt

Franklin  Medical Center
nonprofit, tax exempt

Mary Lane Hospital Corporation
nonprofit, tax exempt

BHS Insurance Company, Ltd.
off-shore captive

Ingraham Corporation - for-profit

50% Baystate 
Radiology and
Imaging, LLC

for-profit

50% Radiology 
and 

Imaging, Inc.

Baycare Health 
Partners, Inc.

nonprofit, taxable

Greater 
Springfield IPA, 

Inc.

Visiting Nurse Association and Hospice of Western
New England, Inc. – nonprofit, tax exempt 

Baystate Affiliated Practice Organization, Inc. 
nonprofit, tax exempt 

Baystate Administrative Services, Inc.
nonprofit, tax exempt

Baystate Health System
Ambulance, Inc. - for-profit

Health
New England, Inc.

for-profit

95+%
M.D.s

4+%

OHR/
Baystate, LLC

for-profit

Occupational 
Health & 

Rehabilitation, Inc.
51%

Other Entities

Baystate Health Foundation, Inc.
nonprofit, tax exempt

Pioneer Valley Life 
Sciences Institute of 

Baystate Medical 
Center and UMass 

Amherst, Inc.
nonprofit, tax exempt

Dated:  August 2005

University of 
Massachusetts

Amherst

 
 
 
Baystate Health and Affiliated Corporations 
 
Baystate Health, Inc. (BH), a tax-exempt, not-for-profit corporation, is the parent corporation of the 
system. It is the sole member of Baystate Medical Center, Inc., Franklin Medical Center, Mary Lane 
Hospital Corporation, and the Visiting Nurse Association and Hospice of Western New England, Inc.  
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The primary function of BH is to develop and implement the overall strategies for maintaining the 
system's preeminence in Western New England.  
 
Baystate Medical Center, Inc. (BMC) is a tax-exempt, not-for-profit hospital located in Springfield, 
Massachusetts.  With 636 licensed beds, BMC is an academic teaching hospital and tertiary care referral 
center for the region, and is the Western Campus of Tufts University School of Medicine.  It has the 
area’s only neonatal intensive care unit; the region’s only level I trauma center; the area’s only children’s 
hospital; an adult cardiac surgery service with the region’s only open heart surgery program; and the 
area’s only kidney transplantation program.  In 2004, the D’Amour Center for Cancer Care opened.  The 
center is a multi-disciplinary, integrated cancer care center designed to maximize patient convenience and 
accessibility.  BMC also operates a service known as Infusion & Respiratory Services, which provides 
home infusion and respiratory care throughout the BH service area as defined in the “Service Area and 
Market Share” section.  BMC also owns and operates Baystate Reference Laboratories which provides 
laboratory services in Western Massachusetts. 
 
Franklin Medical Center (FMC) is a 95-bed, tax-exempt, not-for-profit hospital located in Greenfield, 
Massachusetts.  It is the only acute care hospital in Franklin County.  Founded in 1895, FMC provides 
medical, surgical, obstetric, pediatric, and psychiatric inpatient care, as well as outpatient services.   
 
Mary Lane Hospital Corporation (MLH) is a 31-bed, tax-exempt, not-for-profit hospital located in Ware, 
Massachusetts.  It provides medical, surgical, pediatric, and obstetric inpatient services, and outpatient 
services.  Founded in 1909 by the Ware Visiting Nurse Association, MLH has a long tradition of 
providing high-quality services to communities in western and central Massachusetts.  In 2005, MLH 
opened a satellite radiology and lab patient care center within a Baystate-owned outpatient facility. 
 
Visiting Nurse Association and Hospice of Western New England, Inc. (VNAH), which affiliated with 
BH in March 1996, is a not-for-profit, tax-exempt organization that provides skilled home-based nursing, 
home care aides services, and hospice care to area residents.  VNAH offers specialty services for 
Alzheimer's disease, AIDS, maternal/child care, wound care, and rehabilitation services, along with 
mental health and intravenous therapy programs.  VNAH is the largest home health care agency in 
Western Massachusetts.  In 2005, the VNAH became the sole corporate member of a new corporation 
named Baystate Total Home Care, Inc. that was created to provide both medical and non-medical home 
health and home care services. 
 
Baystate Affiliated Practice Organization, Inc. (BAPO) is a not-for-profit, tax-exempt corporation 
established in 1991 to employ physicians in support of BH’s primary care requirements and strategy.  The 
57 primary care and specialty physicians who serve in BH’s 18 primary care practices located throughout 
the region are employed by this organization. 
 
Ingraham Corporation (IC) was organized in 1988 to sponsor, develop, promote, manage and invest in 
health care and other business activities.  It is a for-profit, taxable corporation that currently serves as a 
holding company for smaller components of the system, including Baystate Health System Ambulance, 
Inc. 
 
BHS Insurance Company, Ltd. (BHSIC) is a captive insurance company organized and licensed in the 
Cayman Islands, British West Indies.   Formed in 1989, the company was established to provide 
professional liability and other insurance coverage to the corporate members of BH and their employees.  
In 2004, the company began offering malpractice insurance to members of BH’s medical staff who meet 
criteria for participation. 
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Baystate Health Foundation, Inc. (BHF) is a not-for-profit, tax-exempt corporation established in 
December 2000 to raise funds for healthcare-related activities in support of and for the benefit of BH and 
its not-for-profit, tax-exempt affiliates. 
 
Baystate Administrative Services, Inc. (BAS) is a tax-exempt, not-for-profit corporation established in 
1986.  Its purpose is to promote the health, charitable, and educational missions of BH by providing 
management counsel and services to members of the system.  This organization provides key 
management support for the BH family of corporations, including human resources, marketing, strategic 
planning, information services, and financial services. 
 
Baystate Radiology and Imaging, LLC is a for-profit joint venture in which BMC holds a 50% interest 
and through which BMC provides non-hospital based and mobile radiological services. 
 
OHR/Baystate, LLC is a for-profit joint venture in which BMC holds a 49% interest and through which 
BMC provides occupational health and rehabilitation services. 
 
Baystate Medical Education and Research Foundation, Inc. (BMERF), a multispecialty academic group 
practice, was established in 1986 as a not-for profit, tax-exempt foundation to support the educational and 
research programs of BH, as well as numerous community primary care and outreach services.  BMERF 
employs approximately 243 specialists and primary care physicians, who are the backbone of the tertiary 
care program at BMC, and are the principal faculty to over 200 residents and fellows.  Clinical outreach 
programs also extend to FMC, MLH, and a location in Berkshire County, Massachusetts.  BH has board 
representation and reserved corporate powers with respect to BMERF operations, as mandated by the 
BMERF bylaws. 
 
Baycare Health Partners, Inc. (BHP), a not-for-profit, taxable corporation established in 1994, is a 
physician hospital organization, jointly established by BH and the Greater Springfield IPA, Inc.  Control 
is shared equally by the two founding organizations, which are the only two members.  BHP was 
established on behalf of the BH hospitals and 1,000 individual member physicians who practice at these 
hospitals and are members of the Greater Springfield IPA, Inc.  
 
Health New England, Inc. (HNE), established in 1985, is a for-profit, taxable, IPA-type HMO with 
approximately 91,000 members, approximately 95.6% percent of which is owned by BH and the 
remaining approximately 4.4% owned by BH affiliated physicians.  Participating providers include BMC, 
FMC, MLH, Mercy Medical Center, Holyoke Medical Center, Berkshire Health System, Cooley 
Dickinson Hospital, North Adams Regional Hospital, Noble Hospital and participating members of each 
such institution’s medical staffs.  See also "Managed Care Activities." 
 
Pioneer Valley Life Sciences Institute of Baystate Medical Center and UMASS Amherst, Inc., established 
in 2003, is a private nonprofit organization that was formed to contribute to the field of biomedical 
research and to foster training and education in the field of biomedical research and economic well being 
of Western Massachusetts and specifically the Pioneer Valley region. 
 
 
Corporate Governance 
 
BH completed a major corporate restructuring (effective January 2004) which simplified the way BH and 
its patient care entities are governed.  Baystate Health System Health Services, Inc. (which previously 
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governed the operations of the three BH hospitals and home health services) was merged into BH and the 
board of trustees of BH and BHSHS board of directors were consolidated into a single, unified board of 
trustees for BH.  The members of the BH Board also serve as the members of each of the respective 
Boards of BMC, FMC, MLH and VNAH, with the addition of the President of the Medical Staff of BMC, 
FMC and MLH being a member of the respective Board of each such entity.  This restructuring was 
initiated to create a more efficient governance process with streamlined decision-making and to take into 
account possible new standards for non-profit corporation governance related to the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. 
 
The BH Board of Trustees consists of (i) the President and Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation, 
(ii) the Senior Vice President of Medical Affairs of the Corporation, and (iii) up to 22 other elected 
trustees.  The responsibilities of the BH Board are strategic and include system oversight and coordination 
which includes strategic planning and prioritization; financial strength/viability; clinical outcomes/quality 
monitoring; system performance; and facilities/building projects.  The Board has 7 standing committees 
including the Finance, Investment, Audit and Compliance, Compensation, Performance Improvement, 
Governance, and Executive Committees. 
 
The Audit and Compliance Committees were merged in December, 2003 and the combined committee 
consists of board members only consistent with Sarbanes-Oxley guidelines.  The committee members and 
chair are noted on the next page.  The Finance Committee consists of three board members, four BH 
representatives and seven independent community leaders with subject expertise. 
 
As noted above, the BMC Board consists of the same individuals serving as members of the BH Board of 
Trustees, with the addition of the President of the BMC Medical Staff.  BMC’s Board is responsible for 
oversight of BMC’s operational performance, including facility projects and major capital equipment, 
annual operating and capital budgets, clinical outcomes and quality monitoring, education and research 
activities, medical staff appointments and credentialing, organizational ethics policy and guidelines, as 
well as state and federal regulatory requirements and Joint Commission on Accreditation of Healthcare 
Organizations (JCAHO) accreditation requirements.  The BMC Board has two standing committees, the 
Executive Committee and the Board Credentialing Committee, and other committees are appointed as 
deemed necessary.  The approval of the BH Board is required for BMC’s annual operating and capital 
budgets and expenditures by BMC over $3 million. 
 
Elected members for the BH board are chosen at the annual meeting of BH for three-year terms.  As 
specified in the bylaws, no elected trustee serves more than two consecutive full three-year terms but may 
be reelected after one year from the date of expiration of his/her last term as an elected board member.  
This provision does not apply to an incumbent chair of the Board or to a person nominated by the 
Governance Committee of BH to succeed the chair. 
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Baystate Medical Center, Inc. Board of Trustees 

 
  

Name of 
Office 

 
 

Name 

 
 

Affiliation 

Expiration of 
Trustee 
Term 

Expiration of 
Officer Term 

Audit/Finance 
Committee 

 
1. President 

and CEO 
and 
Trustee  

Mark R. Tolosky 
Officer 

President and CEO, 
BH and BMC 

Ex Officio  By 
Appointment  

Finance 
Committee 
Member 

2. Chair and 
Trustee 

B. John Dill President, 
Colebrook Realty Services, 
Inc. 

2007 Annual 
Election 

 

3. Vice 
Chair and 
Trustee 

M. Dale Janes Senior Vice President, 
MassMutual Financial 
Group 

2007 Annual 
Election 

Chair, Audit 
Committee 

4. Trustee Ronald J. Abdow President, 
Abdow Corporation 

2005   

5. Trustee Susan A. Alfano Community Volunteer 2007  
 

 

6. Trustee Allan W. Blair President and CEO, 
Economic Development 
Council of Western Mass 

2005  Audit 
Committee 
Member 

7. Trustee Bruce Brown Community Volunteer 2005  
 

 

8. Trustee Vicky L. Carwein, DNS President, Westfield State 
College 

2005   

9. Trustee Charles L. D’Amour EVP and COO, 
Big Y Supermarkets 

2007   

10. Trustee R. Bruce Dewey President and COO, 
Mestek, Inc. 

2006  Audit 
Committee 
Member 

11. Trustee Thomas J. Doney, M.D. Physician, 
Valley Women’s Health 
Group 

2005   

12. Trustee Enrique Figueredo Executive Director, 
Parent Information Center 
Springfield Public Schools 

2006   

13. Trustee Loring S. Flint, Jr., MD Senior V.P., Medical 
Affairs, 
BH 

Ex Officio  By 
Appointment  

 

14. Trustee Frederic W. Fuller, III Community Volunteer 2007  
 

 

15. Trustee James F. Martin, Esquire Partner, 
Robinson Donovan, P.C. 

2005   

16. Trustee John M. O’Brien, III, CPA Managing Partner, 
J.M. O’Brien & Company, 
PC 

2006  Finance 
Committee 
Member 
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Baystate Medical Center, Inc. Board of Trustees (continued from previous page) 

 
  

Name of 
Office 

 
 

Name 

 
 

Affiliation 

Expiration of 
Trustee 
Term 

Expiration of 
Officer Term 

Audit/Finance 
Committees 

17. Trustee Katherine E. Putnam President, 
Package Machinery 
Company, Inc. 

2007  Finance 
Committee 
Member 

18. Trustee Barbara W. Stechenberg, M.D. Director Pediatric Residency 
Program 
Chief, Pediatric Infectious 
Diseases, 
BMC 

2007   

19. Trustee Frances K. Stotz Certified Financial Planner, 
Financial Consultant 
A.G. Edwards 

2008  Audit 
Committee 
Member 

20. Trustee David W. Townsend President, 
Wood Stock Mills, Inc. 

2006  Chair, Finance 
Committee 

21. Trustee Steven M. Wenner, M.D. Physician, New England 
Orthopedic Surgeons 

2005  Audit 
Committee 
Member 

22. Trustee Alan C. Weintraub, M.D. President, 
BMC Medical Staff 

Ex Officio    

 
 

Senior Management  
 
The biographies of the officers who are responsible for the daily operation of BMC are listed below.  Also 
listed below are biographies of certain BH officers who either have oversight responsibilities for BMC or 
are involved in providing management services to BMC in the areas of corporate staff, finance, and 
human resources.  
 
Mark R. Tolosky, who has been with BH/BMC since September 1992, is President and Chief Executive 
Officer of both BH and BMC.  Before coming to BMC, he served as the Executive Vice President at 
Mount Auburn Hospital, Cambridge, Massachusetts (1987-1992); President of Faulkner Hospital (1985-
1987); and Chief Operating Officer at Faulkner Hospital (1983-1985).  Prior to that, Mr. Tolosky was 
associated with Franklin Square Hospital, Baltimore, Maryland for eight years, ultimately serving as 
Senior Vice President.  Mr. Tolosky received a B.A. degree from State University of New York at 
Binghamton, and an M.B.A. degree in Hospital Administration from Xavier University of Cincinnati, 
Ohio, and a J.D. degree from the University of Maryland School of Law.  Mr. Tolosky is a Fellow in the 
American College of Healthcare Executives, and has also been active in various healthcare and legal 
professional organizations, as well as numerous volunteer leadership positions in civic and community 
affairs. 
 
Trish Hannon, Senior Vice President, Healthcare Operations for BH, has been associated with BMC 
since 1995, serving as Vice President Clinical Services, Director Clinical Affairs and Service Line 
Director Surgery & Anesthesia.  Before coming to BMC, she was the Director of Specialty Services for 
Sharp-Chula Vista, Sharp Healthcare in San Diego, California.  Ms. Hannon received her undergraduate 
education in nursing from Marymount University in Arlington, Virginia and a B.A. and M.A. in Business 
Management from University of Phoenix in Phoenix, Arizona.  She is currently an M.B.A. candidate with 
the New York Institute of Technology, Ellis College. 
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Keith C. McLean-Shinaman, C.P.A., has been Senior Vice President, Finance and Treasurer of BH 
since 1995 and served as Vice President for Financial Planning and Analysis between 1988 and 1995. 
Previously, he served at BMC as Director of Financial Services and Treasurer from 1982 to 1988, and 
Director of Audit Services from 1979 to 1982. Prior to joining BMC, he was with Arthur Young & 
Company.  Mr. McLean-Shinaman received an A.B. degree in Economics from Hamilton College and an 
MBA degree from the Graduate School of Business at Rutgers University.  
 
Donna Ross, Senior Vice President, Strategy & Business Development of BH has been associated with 
BH since 1988.  She previously served as Vice President, Strategic and Program Planning.  Prior to 
joining BH, Ms. Ross held various positions within the healthcare industry, last serving as a Consultant 
with the national healthcare consulting firm, Jennings, Ryan, Federa & Company.  Ms. Ross received a 
B.S. from the University of Pittsburgh and an M.A. from the University of Massachusetts. 
 
Loring S. Flint, Jr., M.D., Senior Vice President of Medical Affairs of BH, has been associated with 
BMC since 1989, serving as Vice President of Ambulatory and Long-Term Care, as Senior Vice President 
of BMC, and most recently as BH Senior Vice President of Medical Affairs.  Previously, he was 
associated with Michael Reese Hospital and Medical Center, Chicago, Illinois for ten years, ultimately 
serving as Vice President, Ambulatory Services and Physician Support Services.  Dr. Flint received a 
B.A. degree and an M.D. degree, both from Boston University, and an M.B.A. degree from the University 
of Chicago. 
 
Dennis W. Chalke, has been Vice President of Finance, Healthcare Operations of BH since 1997 and has 
been associated with BH since 1988.  He is also Vice President, Finance of BMC and previously served 
as Director Financial Analysis, Planning and Managed Care of BH.  Prior to joining BH he held various 
financial positions with several operating units of United Technologies Corporation in Hartford, 
Connecticut.  Mr. Chalke received a B.A. degree in Economics from Ithaca College, Ithaca, New York 
and an M.B.A. from the University of Massachusetts Amherst. 
 
Deborah Morsi, Ph.D., RN, has been Vice President for Patient Care Services BMC and Chief Nursing 
Officer for BH, since 2005. For a year prior, Dr. Morsi served as the interim Vice President for Patient 
Care Services. Dr. Morsi has held a number of leadership positions within BMC. She received a B.S. in 
Public Health from the University of Massachusetts in Amherst, BSN from State University of New York 
at Downstate Medical Center graduating cum laude, and received an M.S. and Ph.D., from the University 
of Massachusetts Amherst. 
 
John F. McCarron, Vice President of Clinical and Diagnostic Services at BMC, has been associated 
with BMC since 1984, serving as Vice President of Medical Support Services and as Administrative 
Director of Pharmacy.  Previously, he was associated with Beverly Hospital, Beverly, Massachusetts, for 
five years serving as Director of Pharmacy, and associated with The Cambridge Hospital, Cambridge, 
Massachusetts, for five years serving as Assistant Director of Pharmacy.  Mr. McCarron received B.S. and 
M.S. degrees from Northeastern University in Boston, Massachusetts.  
 
Tim W. Weir, has been Vice President of Ambulatory Services of BMC since May 2003.  Prior to 
joining BMC, Mr. Weir was Assistant Administrator for Dakota Clinic, Ltd. in Fargo ND.  He received a 
B.A. degree from the University of Minnesota and a Master’s of Hospital Administration and an M.B.A. 
from the University of Iowa. 
 
Michael Moran, has been Vice President for Facilities and Guest Services of BMC since January 2002.  
He most recently served as Executive Director, Facilities for Canyon Ranch in Lenox, Massachusetts.  
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Mr. Moran received a B.S. from the U.S. Naval Academy, and served six years in the U.S. Civil Engineer 
Corps.  He has an M.P.A. from Troy State University in Troy, Alabama. 
 
 
System Strategy 
 
The BH Strategic Plan, which outlines its multi-year goals, strategies and defines measures of success, is 
based on its longstanding mission of improving the health of the communities it serves, its vision to be 
one of the leading health systems in the nation, and its commitment to provide the highest quality care 
while serving the community in a clinically and fiscally responsible manner.  BH’s Strategic Plan is the 
foundation on which decisions are based related to the investment of time and resources, pursuit of major 
strategic initiatives, investment of significant capital funds and development and expansion of clinical 
programs/services.  It serves the basis for formulation of entity-specific objectives, including BMC’s. 
 
To ensure that it remains well-positioned for the future, BH uses a sophisticated and advanced strategic 
planning process for developing and executing its Strategic Plan, which is linked to financial and 
performance planning, and adjusted on the basis of the changing healthcare environment.  In addition to 
annual evaluation of performance against the Strategic Plan and development of annual objectives for the 
System and its entities, a comprehensive planning process is undertaken on a three-year cycle.  BH’s 
leadership is in the process of completing the development of a three-year strategic plan for the fiscal 
years (FY) 2006 – 2008, a process which confirmed the soundness of BH’s vision and its strategic 
direction.  The planning process included members of the BH Board, the system’s six Strategic 
Committees and Physician Leadership Team, with input from members of middle management and other 
physician leaders.  Marian Jennings, a nationally-recognized healthcare consultant and President of M. 
Jennings Consulting, Inc., was engaged to assist with development of the FY 2006 – 2008 Strategic Plan. 
 
BH’s current Strategic Plan is based on the following multi-year goals: 
 
I. Quality:  Differentiate BH by clinical quality; safety; and patient, family, member and physician 

satisfaction. 
 
II. Advancement of Knowledge:  Position BH as a recognized leader in the creation and diffusion of 

medical knowledge through innovative educational programs and commitment to research. 
 
III. Employer of Choice:  Attract, develop, and retain a high-performing, diverse workforce and 

develop a positive work environment that reflects the organization’s values, commitment to 
employees, and the cultures of the communities served. 

 
IV. Strategic Growth:  Focus BH’s growth and development in Western Massachusetts to further the 

service, teaching, and community missions. 
 
V. Operating Excellence:  Distinguish BH by strong financial performance, the efficiency of 

operations, and the effectiveness of integration. 
 
VI. Partnerships:  Pursue mutually beneficial partnerships with physicians, the communities served, 

and with other providers and organizations in the region. 
 
BMC is a focal point for implementation of the System’s strategies, as follows: 
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Quality, Safety, Patient and Physician Satisfaction 
 
BMC, a national leader in computerized physician order entry (CPOE) technology with a decade of 
experience, is among the top 3.5% of hospitals with physicians directly entering orders.  Further, as a 
result of high system utilization, BMC is among the top 1.2 - 1.8% of U.S. hospitals with physicians 
“actively” entering patient orders (defined as >50% of orders).  BMC physicians electronically enter 84% 
of patient orders.   (Source data:  2004 KLAS CPOE report) 
  
Implementation of a new Clinical Information System in 2004 laid the foundation for an electronic 
medical record and a new generation of order entry system providing decision support tools and pharmacy 
integration.  A physician portal allows physicians to access clinical information from their home, office or 
hospital.  Planning for an ambulatory/office electronic medical record is underway with implementation 
scheduled for FY 2005 - 2006. 
BMC has won many regional and national awards in recognition of advances in health care quality and 
patient safety.  In 2003, BMC was named a “Distinguished Performer” by the Premier Award for Quality 
Program, a national award sponsored by Premier, Inc.  BMC was one of five hospitals nationally to 
receive this distinction. The hospital was recognized by the Leapfrog Group for implementing practices 
that help keep patients safe, such as a computerized order entry and safety reporting systems. Leapfrog is 
a consortium of Fortune 500 companies and other large health care purchasers committed to 
breakthroughs in patient safety and health care quality. 

The Adult Intensive Care Unit at BMC is the only ICU to have earned the national Beacon Award for 
Critical Care Excellence from the American Association of Critical Care Nurses (AACCN) two years in a 
row (2004 and 2005).  The Beacon Award recognizes BMC for exhibiting high quality standards, for 
exceptional care of patients and their families and for fostering and maintaining a healthy work 
environment. 
The successful implementation of BH’s web-based Safety Reporting System and development of its 
"culture of safety” began at BMC.  In order to provide the safest possible healthcare, employees are 
encouraged to report all safety events, including medical errors and near misses.  The underlying 
philosophy is that safety events are the results of flaws in the systems/processes - not of the individuals, 
and that safety enhancements will occur through performance improvement as a result of reports of errors 
and near misses in a non-punitive environment. 
 
BMC has strong partnerships with the medical and nursing staff around clinical care processes to ensure 
high quality, patient-centered care.  BMC has been recognized as a leader in quality.  Notable quality 
recognitions include top decile within two Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) project 
areas (acute Myocardial Infarction and care of Coronary Artery Bypass Graft patients), and recognition as 
a national Pneumonia Project Benchmark Institution. 
 
In 2005, BMC won the Professional Research Consultants' (PRC) Five Star Award for Patient Satisfaction 
for care delivered through its Children's Hospital, inpatient care on its Springfield 6 medical/surgical unit, 
Springfield 5 cardiology/telemetry unit, and for its CT scan service at 3300 Main Street, in addition to 
several Four Star Awards. 
 
BMC has created an environment of exceptional service through the creation of service standards and 
implementation of a service recovery program, a recognition program that rewards service by exceptional 
employees, known as Baystate Best. 
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Advancement of Knowledge 
 
BMC’s external clinical research funding (excluding public health grant funding) increased by 26% to 
$6.4 million from FY 2002 – 2004.  In addition, it successfully operationalized its collaborative clinical 
bench research partnership, known as the Pioneer Valley Life Sciences Institute (PVLSI) with the 
University of Massachusetts, Amherst.  The PVLSI has exceeded its initial business plan targets by 
realizing over $8 million in external start-up funding and $5.9 million in research funding awards. 
 
BMC has a full range of resident education programs and has been cited by the Residency Review 
Committee for exemplary graduate medical education programs in Internal Medicine and Emergency 
Medicine. 
 
Employer of Choice 
 
BMC has attained national Magnet recognition by the American Nurses Association, which is their 
highest award for a nursing service in a hospital.  Less than 3% of hospitals in the United States have 
Magnet status.  The national Magnet Recognition Program is based on quality patient care, excellence in 
nursing and supportive professional nursing practice.  Independent research has shown that Magnet-
designated facilities consistently out-perform their peers in recruiting and retaining nurses.  Research also 
shows that achieving Magnet status creates a positive effect beyond the nursing services department.  For 
example, it has been shown that having high quality nurses is one of the most important attributes in 
attracting high quality physicians to the medical staff. 
 
Strategic Growth 
 
To ensure that the latest in clinical care, education and research are available within its service area, BMC 
continues to further develop its Programs of Distinction (PODs) in Cancer and Cardiac Services and 
supporting programs including minimally invasive surgery.  The original clinical planning model, 
developed in 1998, targeted clinical areas for focused development on the basis of their clinical strength, 
potential for market opportunity, and positive financial return. 
 
Other recent clinical accomplishments include: 
- Addition of 28 additional licensed medical/surgical beds at BMC in 2005 to accommodate increasing 
demand for its inpatient services, as approved by the Massachusetts Department of Public Health; 
 
- Completion of major service expansion including a $1.2 million outpatient rehabilitation facility and a 
$4.5 million Neurodiagnostics and Sleep Center in 2005; 
 
- Opening of the $39 million D’Amour Center for Cancer Care in early 2004, bringing the latest in cancer 
care technology to the region.  The D’Amour Center for Cancer Care is the first in New England and one 
of only a handful in the country to provide the PRIMATOM System which delivers highly accurate 
radiation therapy. 
 
- Recognition as a designated Stroke Center by the Massachusetts Department of Public Health in 
December 2004. In recognition of medical expertise, diagnostic equipment and treatment protocols 
available around-the-clock to treat emergency stroke patients. 
 

A-11 



APPENDIX A 
 

- Launch of the Cochlear Implant Program in 2004, bringing cochlear implant technology to Western 
Massachusetts in collaboration with a specialist in otology/neurotology and an implant audiologist, to 
offer new possibilities for hearing impaired patients. 
 
- Acceptance by CMS as an approved facility for carotid stents. 
 
Operating Excellence 
 
BH was recognized as a Top 100 integrated delivery system in the United States for the sixth-year in a 
row, with BMC as its flagship hospital.  This recognition is based on an annual survey by the Chicago 
based SMG Marketing Group which ranks systems on their financial stability and how well they are 
integrated clinically, financially and technologically.  The shared vision behind integration at Baystate is 
to ensure that patients receive optimal care by providing high quality, cost-effective, clinically appropriate 
and effectively coordinated care through local delivery supported by integration. 
 
BMC provides a broad range of high quality, innovative and accessible health care services while 
remaining a low cost provider.  BMC is in the lowest cost quartile based on data from the University 
Health System Consortium Hospitals, an alliance of academic health care providers. 
 
BH and BMC are committed to employee satisfaction and development. Employee satisfaction surveys 
are conducted on an ongoing basis and the results are translated into action plans for change, when 
needed. Nearly all of all BH's and BMC's leaders, defined as senior vice presidents, vice presidents, 
directors, and managers have active leadership development plans in place with identified resources, 
targeted outcomes and measures.  In addition, support of physician leadership development is provided on 
an ongoing basis.  
 
 
Partnerships 
In 2004, BMC entered into a management agreement with the region’s premier orthopedic surgical group 
for the operation of BMC’s Maple Surgery Center. 
 
BMC is also working with Berkshire Medical Center in Pittsfield, MA to provide cardiac services in 
Berkshire County.  Cardiac referrals from Berkshire County to BMC increased by 52% between FY 2002 
(baseline) and FY 2004. 
 
Baystate Radiology and Imaging, LLC, a joint venture between BMC and its radiologists, provides non-
hospital based and mobile radiology services throughout the region. 
 
In addition, BMC is part owner of OHR/Baystate, LLC, a joint venture that provides occupational health 
and rehabilitation services. 
 
 
The Project  
 
The project consists of the following: 
 (I) the advance refunding of a portion of BMC’s outstanding Revenue Bonds, Baystate 
Medical Center Issue, Series E, issued to finance or refinance the following property owned by BMC: (A) 
construction of a new 104,500 gross square foot Ambulatory Care Center; (B) construction of a new 
100,000 gross square foot building to house the Ambulatory Surgery Center, Medical Library and 
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education/conference space; (C) renovation of various existing spaces within BMC; (D) acquisition of 
equipment for the new facilities; and 
 
 (II) financing of routine capital construction, renovations, and equipping of various facilities of 
BMC. 
 
 
Medical Center Services 
 
BMC provides primary, secondary and tertiary care through a broad range of inpatient, ambulatory and 
ancillary services.  Because BMC is the only major academic medical center and tertiary care provider in 
Western Massachusetts, it offers many programs and services that are not available elsewhere in Western 
Massachusetts. 
 
BMC offers a full service regional adult and pediatric cancer program which is approved as a cancer 
center by the American College of Surgeons, kidney transplantation, in-vitro fertilization, the only Level 
III neonatal intensive care, pediatric intensive care, and pediatric intermediate care units in Western 
Massachusetts; cardiac services including the region’s interventional cardiac catheterization and cardiac 
electrophysiology services and adult cardiac surgery, the region’s reference laboratory/pathology, and is 
the only Massachusetts acute care provider west of Worcester designated as a comprehensive Level I 
trauma center with pediatric designation.  The latter is a designation given to the highest of three levels of 
care and awarded to those facilities which can demonstrate the ability to provide emergency services to 
the most critically injured patients.  A heliport is located on site at the Main Campus. 
 
BMC operates a number of satellite ambulatory care sites, including 3300 Main Street, the central 
location for the majority of BMC’s outpatient services, and the Brightwood and Mason Square Health 
Centers which provide primary and sub-specialty services for adults and children.  In addition, BMC 
operates major outpatient programs in internal medicine including cardiac and cancer services, surgery, 
obstetrics/gynecology, pediatric sub-specialty services and rehabilitation services. 
 
Baystate Reference Laboratories (BRL), which operates under the aegis of the BMC Department of 
Pathology, functions as the regional reference laboratory and provides high quality, comprehensive testing 
services to clinicians and residential facilities throughout Western Massachusetts.  BRL’s Board Certified 
subspecialist physician staff is available for individual consultations 24-hours a day.  Laboratory testing 
platforms have been standardized across the three BH hospitals.  BMC’s telepathology capabilities allow 
pathologists at BMC and clinicians to review a slide together, manipulate the microscope and make a 
diagnosis as if they were in the same room including review of surgical specimens at Franklin Medical 
Center in Greenfield.  
 
 
Medical Education   
BMC is designated as the Western Campus of Tufts University School of Medicine (TUSM) and the 
Senior Vice President for Academic Affairs at Baystate serves as Dean. BMC offers nine residency and 
twelve fellowship programs accredited by the Accreditation Council for Graduate Medical Education 
(ACGME). In 1988, BMC entered into a ten-year affiliation agreement with TUSM for undergraduate 
medical education and in 1998, it was renewed for five more years.  In July 2003, a new affiliation 
agreement was negotiated with TUSM to continue to foster excellence in medical education. Residents 
and fellows have TUSM academic appointments as Clinical Associates to recognize their role as teachers 
of medical students. BMC faculty members also have TUSM teaching appointments in their specialties. 
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The residency and fellowship programs continue to grow; in 2004, there were 263 residents and fellows in 
BMC graduate medical education programs, up from 232 in 1995. Approximately 90 doctors are 
graduated from BMC's residency and fellowship programs each year, entering practices to improve health 
care in our community or going on to further education. 
 
 
Undergraduate Medical Education  

Under the TUSM affiliation agreement, BMC provides all five required third-year medical student 
clerkships: medicine, surgery, obstetrics/gynecology, pediatrics and psychiatry. Approximately 19% of 
TUSM third-year medical students complete their clerkship rotations at Baystate.  In addition, fourth-year 
medical students from TUSM and over 35 other institutions take one or more of Baystate's 45 fourth-year 
clerkships. On average, there are about 200 medical students from all over the country learning at 
Baystate each year. International students from the Royal College of Surgeons, Ireland, also travel to the 
United States to participate in elective opportunities.  
 
 
Allied Health Education  
The Office of Allied Health & Professional Education serves several functions within BH. The office 
develops educational programs, provides administrative oversight in support of clinical departments, 
negotiates strategic affiliations, and assists students in securing internship experiences.  

Annually, over 800 students complete internships in the health system. Internships are arranged for 
students in such clinical departments as: nursing, pharmacy, social work, clinical engineering, 
cardiovascular ultrasound, cardiac rehabilitation, clinical pastoral education and other typical allied health 
and ancillary care professions. 
 
 
Accreditations and Licensure  
 
BMC received accreditation from the Joint Commission on Accreditation of Healthcare Organizations 
(JCAHO) following completion of its survey on June 10, 2005.   
 
BMC’s 9 medical residency programs and 12 fellowship programs have received accreditation by the 
ACGME. The Midwifery Education Program is accredited by the American College of Nurse-Midwives 
(ACNM) and was granted an eight year accreditation for the period 1999 – 2006.  BMC is accredited as a 
National Teaching Hospital Cancer Program by the Commission on Cancer of the American College of 
Surgeons, and is a member of the Association of Community Cancer Centers. BMC’s cancer program has 
received accreditation in ultrasound use for breast imaging, and in stereotactic breast biopsy by the 
American College of Radiology. 
 
The Department of Pathology is accredited by the College of American Pathologists. BMC’s Transfusion 
Medicine Services are accredited by the American Association of Blood Banks and are FDA registered. 
 
BMC is licensed by the Massachusetts Department of Public Health, as well as by the Department of 
Mental Health for the operation of its psychiatric programs and substance abuse programs.  In addition, 
BH is accredited through the Accreditation Council for Continuing Medical Education to provide 
continuing education for physicians, accredited through the American Psychological Association to 
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provide continuing education for psychologists, and by the Massachusetts Association of Registered 
Nurses to provide continuing education for nurses. 
 
 
Health Sciences Library   
 
The BMC Health Sciences Library has a collection of over 31,000 volumes and subscribes to over 450 
print and 2,379 electronic journal titles, 110 full text electronic books and the databases MEDLINE, 
CINAHL, MD Consult, UpToDate, Micromedex, Cochrane, Health & Wellness, Alt-HealthWatch, Health 
Business, and Health Source Plus.  All information is fully accessible from the library and throughout the 
institution via the enterprise network system.  Professional librarians provide a full range of reference 
services including comprehensive literature searches, individual and group training sessions, document 
delivery and technology assistance with library hardware and software.  The library is a major resource 
for health care professionals in Western Massachusetts. 
 
 
Research  
 
Research activities at BMC have grown over the last five years, with grants awarded totaling 
approximately $9.7 million in 1999 increasing to $10.1 million in 2004.  There are 501 active research 
protocols currently being implemented within BMC with investigators from all clinical departments 
contributing to these scholarly efforts.  While research at BMC is mainly focused on the diagnosis and 
treatment of diseases, many of the studies are done in conjunction with the health needs of the Western 
Massachusetts community served by BMC.  Two of the prominent programs designed to address 
community needs are breast cancer screening for genetic risk factors associated with this malignancy in 
different racial groups and HIV/AIDS prevention to individuals with high risk. In addition, there are 
research protocols concerned with heart disease and stroke, diabetes, kidney disease and sepsis and 
cancer.  Investigators are also participating in multi-centered national studies sponsored by the National 
Institutes of Health as well as individual research projects awarded by this agency. 
 
The Pioneer Valley Life Sciences Institute, a biomedical research center, was developed through a 
collaborative effort between BMC and the University of Massachusetts at Amherst.   From FY 2002 to 
FY 2004 Baystate received a total of $6.8 million in federal funding to renovate and equip the Institute.  
This Institute is now fully established and operational in a BMC facility. Its initial research efforts have 
been focused on breast cancer, and it is now beginning to expand into the areas of neurodegenerative 
disease and diabetes mellitus. The Institute now has two full-time scientists and eight part-time scientists 
who perform a significant amount of their research at the Institute. The scientists have been successful in 
competing for external grant support, including funds from the NIH and from the John Adams Innovation 
Institute of the Massachusetts Technology Collaborative. 
 
 
Community Outreach Services  
 
BMC has a long history of partnering with diverse groups in the community to improve health care 
delivery and to provide supporting programs that address identified community needs. 
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Highlights of BMC’s community outreach services include two full service satellite community health 
centers, five school-based health centers, and a nationally-recognized, model public health partnership 
with the Hampden County Correctional Center.   
 
Volume is contained in the table below: 
 

Community Outreach Service Annual Visits Associated Timeframe 
Brightwood Health Center 31,500 FY 2004 
Mason Square Health Center 30,913 FY 2004 
School-based health centers  
(Note: data is provided for the 5 centers which were in 
operation in school year 2004-2005) 

5,029 School year 2004-2005 

 
BMC is committed to meeting the identified health and wellness needs of its community with emphasis 
on developing strategies to effect change in the following areas:  family violence, child and adolescent 
health, and health access. BMC offers a multitude of free support groups and educational efforts for 
people dealing with the effects of a chronic illness.   In addition, BMC participates in the Mass Health 
Quality Partnership, a statewide initiative to improve the quality of health care for mothers and their 
babies.  Taking a lead role on issues of family violence, Baystate Children’s Hospital supports the Family 
Advocacy Center, which offers a multi-agency approach to severe child abuse.  Other community benefit 
programming is aimed at improving the health status of Springfield’s most vulnerable populations 
through collaborative approaches (e.g. the Asthma Coalition) based on critical community partnerships. 
 
 
Medical Center Facilities 
 
BMC’s facilities are located on two campuses approximately one mile apart known as the Main Campus 
(also known as the North Campus) and the Northern Edge Campus.  The Main Campus has an area of 
approximately 1,300,000 square feet.  Inpatient facilities are housed on the Main Campus in the 
Centennial Building (1986), Wesson Women and Infants Unit (1991), East Building (1959), North 
Building (1972) and Chapin Building (1939).  Several other buildings on the Main Campus, including the 
Springfield Building (1930) house administrative, outpatient, ancillary and support services.  Also on the 
Main Campus is the Chestnut Building (1998) which includes the ambulatory surgery center, the IVF 
Clinic, Conference Center, Medical Library, outpatient endoscopy, and central sterile support facilities. 
 
In addition, a condominium medical office building with approximately 60,000 square feet is also located 
on the Main Campus.  Two community-based health centers are located off campus within approximately 
5 miles of the Main Campus in facilities leased by BMC.  BMC also owns the Maple Surgery Center 
located at 298 Carew Street, Springfield, Massachusetts, an adjacent medical office building located at 
300 Carew Street, Alcoholism and Drug Services located at 471 Chestnut Street, Springfield, 
Massachusetts, and support services located at 361 Whitney Avenue, Holyoke, Massachusetts. 
 
In FY 2000, BMC sold certain property located at 140 High Street, Springfield (South Campus), and 
consolidated clinical activities on to the Main Campus and the Northern Edge Campus.  BMC continues 
to lease space on the former South Campus for various healthcare related activities and for storage. 
 
BMC currently owns an office building, located at 280 Chestnut Street in Springfield, which houses 
administrative activities, including those previously located on the South Campus. 
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The Northern Edge Campus is located approximately one mile from the Main Campus of BMC.  The 
Northern Edge Campus is comprised of owned and leased facilities which house most of BMC’s 
ambulatory care programs and services across many clinical lines.  Opened in January 2004, The 
D’Amour Center for Cancer Care, a 65,000 square foot facility located at 3350 Main Street, consolidates 
the services of the Baystate Regional Cancer Program.  The following properties are also included in the 
Northern Edge Campus umbrella: 3300 Main Street, a hospital-owned facility for ambulatory care 
services; 3400 Main Street, a leased facility for outpatient programs and services, and the Pain 
Management program; 3601 Main Street, a hospital-owned facility which houses Information Services, 
and various research activities. 
 
 
Medical Staff   
  
As of June 2005, the Medical Staff of BMC was comprised of 1,023 physicians, dentists and podiatrists, 
including 867 active staff members.  Ninety-nine (99%) of the Medical Staff were Board certified or 
Board eligible.  Approximately 540 members of the Medical Staff have faculty appointments at Tufts 
University School of Medicine. 
 
BMC’s Active Staff increased by 6% between April 2002 and June 2005.  The Active Medical Staff 
includes approximately 300 physicians who are directly employed by either BMERF or BAPO.  All full-
time BMERF physicians have faculty appointments at Tufts University School of Medicine. 
 
The Medical Staff is organized into the following nine departments: Anesthesiology, Emergency 
Medicine, Medicine, Obstetrics and Gynecology, Pathology, Pediatrics, Psychiatry, Radiology and 
Surgery. 
 
A profile of the top twenty admitting physicians at BMC is provided in the following table.  Due to the 
data source and the changing nature of clinical practice, primary care physicians and subspecialists who 
practice in ambulatory settings may be underrepresented.  The top twenty physicians accounted for nearly 
23% of total inpatient cases at BMC in FY 2004.  Their average age was 46 and all were under 65 years 
of age. 
 
BMC has strong relationships through its medical staff structure and/or Physician Hospital Organization 
relationships with the community physicians in the top twenty. 
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Top 20 Admitting Physicians at BMC 

 
Rank Specialty of Admitting 

Physician 
Age 
(as of 

7/1/05) 

FY 2004 
Inpatient 

Cases 

Percentage 
of 

Admissions 

Cumulative 
Percentage(Total)

  
1. Gen Med/Geriatrics  48 770 2.1% 2.1%
2. Ob/Gyn (BMERF)* 62 663 1.9% 4.0%
3. Gen Med/Geriatrics 49 543 1.5% 5.5%
4. Gen Med/Geriatrics (BMERF)* 46 398 1.1% 6.6%
5. Cardiology (BMERF)* 58 372 1.0% 7.7%
6. Orthopedic Surgery 50 358 1.0% 8.7%
7. Gen Med/Geriatrics (BMERF)* 41 350 1.0% 9.6%
8. Gen Med/Geriatrics (BMERF)* 49 335 0.9% 10.6%
9. General Surgery (BMERF)* 50 334 0.9% 11.5%
10. Gen Med/Geriatrics (BMERF)* 38 333 0.9% 12.4%
11. Gen Med/Geriatrics 45 325 0.9% 14.3%
12. General Surgery (BMERF)* 44 324 0.9% 16.1%
13. Gen Med/Geriatrics (BMERF)* 43 321 0.9% 17.0%
14. General Surgery (BMERF)* 38 318 0.9% 17.9%
15. Ob/Gyn (BMERF)* 45 302 0.8% 18.7%
16. Cardiology (BMERF)* 53 296 0.8% 19.5%
17. General Surgery (BMERF)* 42 277 0.8% 20.3%
18. Gen Med/Geriatrics (BMERF)* 40 273 0.8% 21.1%
19. Cardiology (BMERF)* 35 270 0.8% 21.8%
20. OB/Gyn 42 266 0.7% 22.6%

Source: FY 2004 data provided by BMC’s decision support system, Horizon Performance Manager. Inpatient case numbers 
reflect number of cases service-wide 
*Physicians employed by BMERF maintain practices at and admit primarily to BMC.  The number of cases attributed to 
BMERF physicians includes oversight for care provided by residents and/or midwives. 
 
The profile of the top 20 physicians showed that 15 of BMC’s top 20 physicians were physicians 
employed by BMERF.  In addition, the top 20 physicians included 9 hospitalists, whose practice is 
dedicated to the care of inpatients.  Their presence at BMC is consistent with the national trend of 
increasing use of hospitalists. 
 
 
Nursing Staff 
 
As of July 15, 2005, BMC employed 1,330 Registered Nurses; 44 Licensed Practical Nurses; 324 
Technical Associates; and 26 Nursing Assistants.  BMC had only a 5.6% vacancy rate and a 4.8% 
turnover rate, as of March 3, 2005, which represents a significant improvement from a 9.4% vacancy rate 
and a 7.7% turnover rate as of January 1, 2002.   (Per diem employees are included in these calculations.)  
 
BMC continues to strive to create and sustain a positive and professional work environment for nurses. 
BMC has recently attained Magnet designation. Magnet designation is the highest recognition the 
American Nurses Credentialing Center (ANCC) awards a nursing service in a hospital, recognizing 
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quality patient care, excellence in nursing, and support of the professional nursing practice. A Magnet 
Hospital is a hospital that has met the rigorous standards of the Magnet Recognition Program.   
 
A Magnet culture will support BMC’s effort to recruit and retain the best and brightest. Through 
educational and financial supports, BMC has increased its number of certified nurses, there are currently 
163 registered nurses in a variety of specialty areas. Other components of BMC’s retention efforts include 
a clinical nursing recognition program, highly competitive wage and compensation program and a work 
life program.  
 
BMC partners with area academic organizations to proactively address the nursing shortage. BMC is 
currently investing in the education of nurses through multiple programs such as joint partnerships with 
academic organizations, scholarship funding, and forgivable loan programs. BMC provides funding to the 
University of Massachusetts, Amherst for clinical nursing faculty positions. This partnership ensures that 
there is an adequate number of faculty for the nursing students entering the program. Another jointly 
administered program between the University of Massachusetts and BMC is a scholarship program for 
nurses receiving a four-year degree. The first scholarships were awarded in 2002, and over the last four 
years $570,000 has been awarded to students.  From 2001 to 2005, BMC has provided forgivable loans to 
students enrolled in a nursing program totaling $647,500. This program offers students forgivable loans in 
exchange for an employment commitment to BMC upon graduation.  BMC believes these innovative 
programs are key to ensuring an adequate nursing workforce in the future.  
 
To effectively respond to changing capacity demands, BMC has developed a large flex team of registered 
nurses who float within specialties, and maintains a per diem nursing staff.  In addition, BMC employs a 
significant number of advanced practice nurses, including nurse practitioners and clinical nurse 
specialists. 
 
 
Employees 
 
As of December 31, 2004, there were 4,109 full-time equivalent (FTE) employees on the BMC payroll, 
which represented 4,377 individual employees. 
 
Average compensation paid to employees at BMC is competitive with that of other hospitals in the local 
labor market as verified by data obtained through wage and benefit surveys.  BMC provides a 
comprehensive benefit package, including medical health insurance, dental insurance, long-term disability 
insurance, a pension plan, tuition reimbursement, and life insurance to all full-time employees.  Many of 
these are also available to part-time employees.  Salaries, wages, and benefits are regularly reviewed for 
the purpose of keeping compensation at BMC current, competitive, and commensurate with performance. 
 
No BMC employee is represented by any labor union.  Management surveys its employees to assess work 
satisfaction and to respond to employee concerns.  BMC participates with certain of its affiliated 
companies in the BH noncontributory defined benefit cash balance retirement plan (the Plan).  The Plan 
covers all of BMC’s eligible employees hired on or before December 31, 2004.  It is BH’s policy and 
practice to fund amounts as are necessary on an actuarial basis to provide for benefits in accordance with 
the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 using the Accrued Benefit (Net Credit) actuarial 
cost method.  BMC’s pension expense was $14 million for FY 2004.  BMC contributed $19.5 million into 
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the Plan during FY 2004.∗  Employees hired on or after January 1, 2005 participate in a new defined 
contribution pension plan. 
 
 
Volunteers  
 
The BMC Volunteer Department has 400 volunteers consisting of adults, including retired seniors and 
BMC employees, teens and college students. 
 
They provide assistance in 50 different areas including the information desks, Pediatrics, Neonatal 
Intensive Care, Day Stay Unit, Intensive Care, Coronary Care and Surgical Family Waiting rooms.  
Volunteers are also assigned to satellite facilities such as the 3300 and 3400 Main Street buildings, in 
addition to the community-based health centers. 
 
The Student Ambassador program, started in 1987, attracts high school students from surrounding area 
high schools who participate in a summer program in which they receive an introduction to healthcare 
careers while providing volunteer service hours.  
 
 
Auxiliary 
 
The BMC Auxiliary, founded in the early 1900’s, has a membership of 250, including 100 life members. 
 
The Auxiliary staffs and operates three gift shops at BMC.  In 2002, the Auxiliary pledged $500,000 to 
the D’Amour Center for Cancer Care, to be provided in annual increments of $125,000 over four years 
between 2002 and 2006.   In 2004, the BMC Auxiliary provided $150,000 in project support to BMC, 
including annual support to the D’amour Center. 
 

                                                 
∗ For additional information concerning the Plan, see footnote 13 of Consolidated Financial Statements and Other Financial 
Information, Baystate Health System, Inc. and Subsidiaries, Years Ended September 30, 2004 and 2003 that appears in 
Appendix B. 
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Service Area and Market Share  
 
BMC’s service area includes Hampden, Hampshire and Franklin Counties and towns along the western 
edge of Worcester County.  In 2003, the most recent year for which statistics are available, 78,086 
inpatient discharges (excluding newborns) originated from this market.  The following map depicts 
BMC’s service area and the location of BMC and other area hospitals. 
                            

Baystate Medical Center 
Regional Service Area

Franklin County

Hampshire County

Hampden County

Worcester 
County
Border 
Towns

FMC

MLH

BMC

Athol

Cooley 
Dickinson Holyoke

Noble

Mercy

Wing

Greenfield

Ware

Springfield Hospitals in Service Area
BH Hospitals

 
BMC served 37.3% of the regional service area’s discharges in 2003 according to the most recent market 
share data available from the Massachusetts Health Data Consortium (MHDC).  Between FY 2000 and 
2003, BMC’s overall market share increased by 0.3%, from 37.0% to 37.3%, as presented in the 
following table. 
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 Fiscal Year 2000 Fiscal Year 2003 
 
 
 
County 

Total 
Service 
Area 

Discharges 

 
BMC 

Inpatient 
Discharges 

 
BMC  

Inpatient 
Market 
Share 

Total 
Service 
Area 

Discharges 

 
BMC 

Inpatient 
Discharges 

 
BMC 

Inpatient 
Market 
Share 

Hampden 47,246 23,169 49.0% 52,047 25,346 48.7%
   
Hampshire 12,433 2,333 18.8% 13,195 2,587 19.6%
   
Franklin 6,894 847 12.3% 7,271 940 12.9%
   
Worcester 
Border 
Towns 

5,223 205 3.9% 5,573 242 4.3%

   
Total 71,796 26,554 37.0% 78,086 29,115 37.3%
Source: MHDC Database 

 
While overall inpatient discharge volume in the service area increased 8.8% between 2000 and 2003, 
BMC’s discharge volume increased by 9.6%.   
 
 
Acute Care Competition 
 
There are eight other general acute care hospitals within BMC’s service area, including system members 
FMC in Greenfield and MLH in Ware.  The table below presents FY 2003 discharges for patients living 
within the service area by hospital (excluding newborns). 
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Discharges (within 

service area) 

 
 

Market Share 

 
 
 

Hospitals Fiscal 
Year  
2000 

Fiscal 
Year 
2003 

Fiscal 
Year 
2000 

Fiscal 
Year 
2003  

 
 

Number of 
Staffed 
Beds* 

BH Hospitals:  
Baystate Medical Center 26,554 29,115 37.0% 37.3% 636
Franklin Medical Center 4,221 4,515 5.9% 5.8% 95
Mary Lane Hospital 1,342 1,404 1.9% 1.8% 31
Combined BH Hospitals 32,117 35,034 44.8% 44.9% 762
  

Other Hospitals within Service Area  
Mercy Medical Center 9,208 10,459 12.8% 13.4% 302
Cooley Dickinson Hospital 7,159 7,460 10.0% 9.6% 125
Holyoke Hospital 7,035 6,795 9.8% 8.7% 202
Noble Hospital 3,065 3,339 4.3% 4.3% 97
Wing Memorial Hospital 1,753 2,646 2.4% 3.4% 39
Athol Memorial Hospital 1,186 1,046 1.7% 1.3% 25

   
All other hospitals:   

Other Western Massachusetts 
Hospitals  

2,875 2,602 4.0% 3.3% N/A 

Out of area Hospitals 7,328 8,705 10.2% 11.1% N/A 
Total 71,796 78,086 100.0% 100.0% N/A 
*Source: Discharge information from MHDC.  Staffed bed count from AHA Guide 2004/2005 for all hospitals, 
except BMC which is from internal sources.   
 

Mercy Medical Center, located in Springfield, Massachusetts, approximately one mile and approximately 
5 minutes driving distance from BMC, served 13.4% of the market discharges and ranked second to BMC 
in overall market share in the service area.  Mercy Hospital, a subsidiary of the Sisters of Providence 
Health System, became affiliated with the Lahey Clinic in Burlington, Massachusetts in 2001.  Mercy’s 
parent, the Sisters of Providence Health System is a part of Catholic Health East, a multi-institutional 
health system jointly sponsored by thirteen religious communities, including the Sisters of Providence. 
 
Cooley Dickinson Hospital and Holyoke Hospital ranked third and fourth with market shares of 9.6% and 
8.7%, respectively.  Cooley Dickinson Hospital is located approximately 18 miles and 20 minutes driving 
distance away from BMC.  Its parent company, Cooley Dickinson Health Care Corporation, is a 
subsidiary of Dartmouth Hitchcock Alliance.  Holyoke Hospital, approximately a ten minute drive and 
seven miles away, is a subsidiary of Valley Health System, Inc., a stand-alone system.  In FY 2003, 
Mercy Medical Center, Cooley Dickinson Hospital and Holyoke Hospital collectively accounted for 
31.7% of the inpatient market. 
 
Also included in the chart above are the following acute care hospitals located within BMC’s service area:  
Noble Hospital, Wing Memorial Hospital and Athol Memorial Hospital.  Noble Hospital is a subsidiary of 
a stand-alone system, Noble Health Systems, and is located in Westfield, Massachusetts, approximately 
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12 miles from BMC.  Wing Memorial Hospital, which is located in Palmer, Massachusetts, approximately 
20 miles from BMC, is a subsidiary of Wing Memorial Hospital Corporation.  The Wing Memorial 
Hospital Corporation is an affiliate of UMass Memorial Health Care, Inc.  Athol Memorial Hospital, 
located in Athol, Massachusetts, approximately 50 miles from BMC, is an affiliate of St. Vincent Hospital 
in Worcester, Massachusetts.  Saint Vincent Hospital is a part of Vanguard Health Systems. 
 
In FY 2003, approximately 90% of the inpatient market received care from Western Massachusetts 
hospitals, the balance of the inpatient market received services from hospitals outside the service area.  
Patient out-migration varies by service, and represents competition BMC encounters from other regional 
tertiary facilities, largely in Boston and Worcester. 
 
The three BH hospitals combined served 44.9% of the inpatient discharge market. 
 
 
Service Area Demographics  
 
BMC’s service area currently has a total population of approximately 750,000 residents which is 
projected by Claritas, Inc. (a national marketing and data resource company) to increase 2.04% during the 
five-year period from 2005 through 2010. 
 
A notable demographic characteristic of the service area is the age of service area residents. In 2005, 
13.7% of the residents of BMC’s service area were aged 65 or older, as compared to a lower 13.5% of 
Massachusetts residents and 12.6% nationally. This aging factor puts additional demands on the health 
care delivery system.  Within the service area, the 65-and-older age group uses hospital inpatient services 
at a rate four times that of the under-65 group. 
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Hospital’s Utilization 
 
The following table is a summary of BMC’s utilization for the last three years, and nine months ended 
June 30, 2004 and 2005. 
               Nine Months 
              Fiscal Year Ended September 30              ended June 30 
 2002 2003 2004 2004 2005 
Average # of Beds in Service      
 Medical/Surgical 346 366 366 366 366 
 ICU/CCU 40 40 40 40 40 
 Obstetrics 64 64 64 64 64 
 Pediatrics 55 55 55 55 55 
 Psychiatry 28 28 28 28 28 
 Neonatal ICU 55 55 55 55 55 
Subtotal 588 608 608 608 608 
 Newborn    57    57    57    57    57 
Grand Total 645 665 665 665 665 
      
Patient Days      
 Medical/Surgical 99,144 100,600 106,759 80,991 79,822 
 ICU/CCU 11,652 11,658 11,318 8,613 8,508 
 Obstetrics 14,717 13,980 13,899 10,265 10,018 
 Pediatrics 10,216 10,311 11,227 8,712 8,181 
 Psychiatry 8,937 8,784 8,396 6,171 6,120 
 Neonatal ICU 16,314 17,310 16,561 12,060 12,708 
Subtotal 160,980 162,643 168,160 126,812 125,357 
 Newborn 8,375 8,574 8,754 6,408 6,530 
Grand Total 169,355 171,217 176,914 133,220 131,887 
      
Discharges      
 Medical/Surgical 21,105 22,129 22,942 17,150 17,371 
 ICU/CCU 415 412 405 314 282 
 Obstetrics 5,132 4,882 4,725 3,493 3,387 
 Pediatrics 3,102 3,043 2,945 2,290 2,225 
 Psychiatry 732 896 971 714 692 
 Neonatal ICU 801 789 753 553 531 
Subtotal 31,287 32,151 32,741 24,514 24,488 
 Newborn 3,700 3,683 3,649 2,680 2,622 
Grand Total 34,987 35,834 36,390 27,194 27,110 
      
Outpatient Observation Cases 3,260 4,441 5,372 4,132 3,881 
      
Average Length of Stay 4.84 4.78 4.86 4.90 4.86 
      
Outpatient Visits      
 Clinic Visits 319,144 312,673 304,870 228,625 224,912 
 Emergency/Urgent Visits 106,848 104,936 101,380 75,364 77,567 
Total Ambulatory Visits 425,992 417,609 406,250 303,989 302,479 
      
Surgical Procedures      
 Inpatient 8,810 8,868 9,095 6,746 6,920 
 Outpatient 17,911 17,894 18,123 13,655 14,064 
Total 26,721 26,762 27,218 20,401 20,984 
      
Diagnostic Tests      
 Laboratory 4,983,742 5,256,856 5,538,631 4,129,323 4,338,108 
 Radiology Exams 215,147 231,233 239,089 178,662 183,368 
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Management’s Discussion of Utilization 
 
Inpatient Services 
 
BMC experienced significant gains in medical/surgical discharges of approximately 8.7% from 2002 to 
2004, while obstetric/newborn volume has declined.  Inpatient surgical volumes have increased during the 
period.  Average length of stay (ALOS) has been relatively stable during the period, ranging from a low 
of 4.78 days in FY 2003 to a high of 4.90 days in the nine months ending June 30, 2004. 
 
Pediatric discharges declined from FY 2002 to FY 2004 while ALOS increased.  This shift is due to the 
continued consolidation of higher acuity services at BMC offset by the shift to outpatient services. 
 
The obstetric discharge volume reduction of approximately 8% from FY 2002 to FY 2004 is in part due to 
declining birth rates across the state.  BMC continues to be the sole provider of neonatal intensive care 
services in the area.   
 
Psychiatric inpatient discharges increased 32% while ALOS declined due to alternative outpatient 
treatment services. 
 
 
Outpatient Services 
 
Clinic volume and emergency room/urgent care visits have decreased 4.6% from FY 2002 to FY 2004, 
while lab and radiology exams have each increased by 11%.  Outpatient surgeries have grown by 1.2% 
during that period and represent over 67% of total surgeries.   
 
 
Financial Information 
 
Statement of Operations 
 
The following Statement of Operations of BMC for each of the three fiscal years in the period ended 
September 30, 2004 was derived from the financial statements of BH and Subsidiaries audited by the 
former auditors of BH and Subsidiaries for 2002 and 2003 and by Ernst & Young LLP for 2004, 
independent certified public accountants.  In FY 2004, separate financial statements for BMC were not 
issued as BMC was audited as a component of BH.  The Statement of Operations for the nine months 
ended June 30, 2004 and June 30, 2005 was derived from financial statements prepared by BMC, which 
have not been audited.  Results for the periods ended June 30, 2004 and June 30, 2005 should not be 
considered indicative of the results for the full year period.  The Statement of Operations for each of the 
three-years in the period ended September 30, 2004 should be read in conjunction with the financial 
statements and related notes included as Appendix B to this official statement which appendix contains 
the audited financial statements of BH for 2004, and 2003, including the details of consolidation which 
display the financial position and results of operations of BMC for 2004. 
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Baystate Medical Center 
Statements of Operations 

(in thousands) 

 
 Fiscal Year Ended September 30 Nine Months Ended 
    June 30 

(Unaudited) 
 2002 2003 2004 2004 2005 
Net patient service revenue $517,017 $545,984 $602,820 $446,731 $494,844 
Other revenue 21,391 22,934 27,859 19,775 22,187 
 Total revenues, gains and other support 538,408 568,918 630,679 466,506 517,031 
      
Expenses      
 Salaries and wages 197,440 209,978 226,306 167,345 179,359 
 Supplies and expense 257,231 270,696 311,261 223,521 253,639 
 Depreciation and amortization 33,158 33,384 35,346 26,085 31,061 
 Bad debts 17,905 19,301 20,628 17,006 16,242 
 Interest expense 10,006 10,287 11,123 8,338 8,864 
  Total Expenses 515,740 543,646 604,664 442,296 489,165 
      
Income before charges for other expenses 22,668 25,272 26,015 24,210 27,866 
      
Other expenses 0 584      0      0      0 
      
Income from operations 22,668 24,688 26,015 24,210 27,866 
      
Other income      
 Unrestricted income from board- 
    designated investments 

 
3,144 

 
1,881 

 
1,539 

 
1,333 

 
1,477 

 Realized (loss) gains on investment (3,288) (769) 4,767 3,346 3,045 
 Equity gain in unconsolidated affiliates 520 728 836 551 742 
 Net interest savings on swap agreements   1,888 1,447 1,200 
 Change in fair value of swap agreements   75 1,530 (380) 
 Loss on extinguishment of debt  (2,574)    
 Other 343 838 298 232 242 
Total Other Income 719 104 9,403 8,439 6,326 
      
Excess of revenues, gains, and other support 
over expenses 

 
$23,387 

 
$24,792 

 
$35,418 

 
$32,649 

 
$34,192 

      
Net assets released from restrictions for capital - 2,299 5,250 5,387 84 
Transfers for the cost of land, buildings and 
equipment 

 
207 

 
448 

 
2,733 

 
2,072 

 
947 

Transfers to affiliated companies, net (12,610) (9,869) (10,393) (8,606) (7,708) 
Net unrealized (loss) gain on investments (7,977) 19,488 5,418 9,037 4,597 
Minimum pension liability adjustment (19,249) (31,949) 12,908 12,729 (36,645) 
Other 566 502 518 359 379 
      
(Decrease) increase in unrestricted net assets $(15,676) $5,711 $51,852 $53,627 $(4,154) 
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Management Discussion of Recent Financial Performance 
 
BMC has generated positive income from operations in each of the last three fiscal years and for the nine 
months ending June 30, 2005.  In FY 2002 BMC experienced an operating margin of $22.7 million or 
4.2%.  In both FY 2003 and FY 2004, BMC exceeded its budgeted operating margin of 4% with income 
from operations of $24.7 million (4.3%) and 26.0 million (4.1%), respectively.  For the nine months 
ending June 30, 2005, BMC has achieved an operating margin of 5.39%. 
 
During the three-year period, BMC’s financial operating performance was influenced by several key 
factors, including: 
 
Volume.  BMC has benefited from increases in service volume during the three-year period ending in FY 
2004.  Over the period, gross charges have increased by over $234 million or 25% and net patient service 
revenues have increased by $85 million or 17%.  As indicated in the discussion of utilization, significant 
increases have occurred in selective inpatient and outpatient services. 
 
Revenue Management and Managed Care Contracting.  BMC has benefited from numerous revenue 
management initiatives performed through a multidisciplinary task force and numerous subcommittees.  
These committees have dealt with a number of issues including contract compliance, denials, copays, and 
charge capture.  In addition, BMC’s managed care contracting process targets appropriate payment levels 
for the services provided. 
 
Medical Management.  BMC has pursued a number of medical management activities under the direction 
of the Vice President for Healthcare Quality.  The focus of these initiatives has been to improve quality of 
care and clinical performance by identifying standardization of care and reducing variation within 
practice.  Opportunities have been identified primarily through internal feedback and benchmarking, with 
over $1 million in net savings to BMC each year by maximizing efficiency and minimizing costs. 
 
Expense Management.  In addition to medical management, BMC has pursued numerous expense control 
initiatives including functional cost reviews, service line reviews, and work redesign.  BMC compares 
very favorably in expense comparisons to similar hospitals both regionally and nationally. 
 
Prior Year Appeals.  Successful reimbursement appeals continued to have a positive impact on financial 
performance at BMC.  As a result of the successful resolution of the Medicare Disproportionate Share and 
other audit appeals, income from operations increased from the 2001 level by $7.8 million in FY 2002, 
$3.1 million in FY 2003, and $3.1 million in FY 2004.  Appeals are fully reserved until final resolution 
and reserves are updated and reviewed annually. 
 
 
Liquidity Position 
 
BMC’s liquidity (unrestricted cash and investments) has improved over the three-year period from total 
days unrestricted cash on hand of 112.4 in FY 2002 to 136.8 in FY 2004.  Between FY 2002 and 2004, 
cash generated from operations has increased 18% ($70.7 million and $83.7 million, respectively).   
 
The following table presents the historical liquidity position for BMC for the fiscal years ended 
September 30, 2003 and 2004.  The cash cushion ratio is the ratio of cash, cash equivalents and board 
designated funds divided by actual historical debt service. 
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Liquidity Table 

 September 30 
 2003 2004 
      (In Thousands) 
  
Cash, cash equivalents, and short-term investments $62,538 $106,369 
Board-designated funds – investments 93,802 99,249 
    Total $156,340 $205,618 
Historical annual debt service (1) $18,844 $19,313 
Cash cushion ratio (2) 8.3 10.6 

 
(1) Includes debt service on BMC capital leases and 20% of debt service of others guaranteed by BMC. 
(2) Assuming maximum future annual debt service of $18,514,846 (includes capital leases and 20% of guarantees), the cash 

cushion ratio would be 8.4x and 11.1x for FY 2003 and 2004 respectively. 
 
 
Debt Service Coverage  
 
The following table presents the historical annual debt service coverage for BMC for the fiscal years 
ended September 30, 2003 and 2004, and the maximum pro forma debt service coverage for BMC for the 
fiscal years ended September 30, 2003 and 2004.  The maximum pro forma debt service coverage is 
calculated by dividing BMC’s total income available for debt service by the maximum pro forma annual 
debt service requirement including the Series G Bonds. 
 
 

Debt Service Coverage 
 September 30 
 2003 2004 
     (In Thousands) 
  
Net Gain $24,792 $35,418 
Plus:  Depreciation, amortization and interest 43,671 46,469 
Net Revenues Available for Debt Service $68,463 $81,887 
Historical Annual Debt Service (1)  $18,844 $19,313 
Historical Annual Debt Service Coverage (2) 3.63 4.24 

 
(1) Includes debt service on BMC capital leases and 20% of debt service of others guaranteed by BMC. 
(2) The Master Trust Indenture definition for debt service coverage is based on actual debt service (see Appendix D-1).  

Assuming the maximum future annual debt service of $18,514,846 (includes capital leases and 20% of guarantees), the debt 
service coverage ratio would be 3.70x and 4.42x for FY 2003 and 2004 respectively. 

 
 
Group Purchasing 
 
BMC participates in Premier, Inc. (Premier) through its affiliation with BH, which is a founding member 
and owner of Premier.  Premier is a leading healthcare alliance collectively owned by more than 200 
independent not-for-profit hospitals and health systems in the United States.  Together, they operate or are 
affiliated with more than 1,800 hospitals and other healthcare sites.  Premier’s owners include some of the 
nation’s largest and best-known not-for-profit hospital and healthcare systems and referral centers as well 
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as strong community hospitals, generally mirroring the composition of the hospital/health system industry 
in the United States. 
 
Premier was created to foster innovation in the delivery of health care services and the development of 
multi-hospital systems.  At present, Premier members are engaged in group purchasing for all types of 
supplies, pharmaceuticals and capital equipment.  They are also engaged in insurance, joint materials 
management, national contracts and franchises, educational exchange for trustees and physicians, shared 
management services, venture capital opportunities, quality assurance, and marketing programs. 
 
BMC is a participant in the Premier Perspective process which provides data to compare both cost and 
clinical quality within peer organizations and selected Clinical Performance Initiatives. 
 
 
Information Services 
 
The information requirements of the System are managed by the Information Services (IS) division of 
BAS under the direction of the Information Technology Strategic Committee.  The committee is 
comprised of senior management across the System and is responsible for prioritizing information 
services hardware and software capital expenditures and for developing the IS strategic plan across all 
entities. 
 
BH has made significant expenditures to upgrade financial and clinical systems.  These include the 
implementation of a new Cerner clinical information system at BMC, FMC, and MLH and continued 
investments in business and clinical system upgrades and equipment infrastructure requirements.  IS 
budgeted capital expenditures have averaged in excess of $13 million per year from FY 2003 to FY 2005.  
Future major investments are planned for an ambulatory Electronic Medical Record (EMR) and a Picture 
Archiving and Communication System (PACS). 
 
 
Grants, Contributions, Gifts and Bequests  
 
Baystate Health Foundation, Inc. (BHF) is a not-for-profit, tax-exempt corporation, which was 
incorporated in December 2000 and established to raise funds for health care-related activities in support 
of and for the benefit of BH and its not-for-profit, tax–exempt affiliates including BMC. 
 
BHF has a professionally staffed development office which conducts development and fund raising 
activities for BMC.  Most gifts and bequests received are restricted by the donor for the benefit of BMC.  
The Board uses discretion with unrestricted funds so that their use best meets the needs of the community. 
 
In 2004, BH and subsidiaries received approximately $8.3 million in donations, of which $6.0 million 
were donations to BMC.  For FY 2003, donations to BH totaled approximately $14.8 million of which 
$11.6 million were donations to BMC.  Included in the 2004 and 2003 BMC total is the special gift 
campaign for the D'Amour Center for Cancer Care, which raised approximately $2.3 million per year and 
the annual Rays of Hope walk, which raised approximately $600,000 per year to support BMC's 
Comprehensive Breast Program. Also included in the 2003 total contributions for BMC are contributions 
of approximately $6.5 million in recognition of perpetual trusts for which BMC is the beneficiary of 
income earned.  In 2004 and 2003, BMC also received $4.3 million and $3.3 million in grants, 
respectively.  
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Outstanding Indebtedness 
 
As of September 30, 2004, BMC’s long-term indebtedness totaled approximately $209.3 million, 
including: 
 
 
(1) A $87.4 million principal balance on the Authority’s Revenue Bonds, Baystate Medical Center 

Issue, Series D (the Series D Bonds), originally bearing interest rates ranging from 2.7% to 6.0% 
with principal maturities and sinking fund payments due on an annual basis in varying amounts 
through 2020.  The original issue discount, which is being amortized, is being reflected as an 
adjustment over the life of the debt. 

 
(2) A $70.3 million principal balance on the Authority’s Revenue Bonds, Baystate Medical Center 

Issue, Series E (the Series E Bonds), originally bearing interest rates ranging from 4.7% to 6% 
with principal maturities and sinking fund payments due on an annual basis in varying amounts 
through 2026.  The original issue discount, which is being amortized, is being reflected as an 
adjustment over the life of the debt. 

 
(3) A $47 million principle balance on the Authority’s Revenue Bonds, Baystate Medical Center, 

Series F (the Series F Bonds) originally bearing interest rates ranging from 4.0% to 5.8% with 
principle maturities and sinking fund payments due on an annual basis in varying amounts through 
2022.  The original issue discount, which is being amortized, is being reflected as an adjustment 
over the life of the debt. 

 
The Series D, Series E, and Series F Bonds were issued under the Master Trust Indenture dated 
November 7, 1989 between BMC, Inc. and U.S. Bank National Association  (as successor to 
certain corporate trustees), as Master Trustee, as amended and supplemented. 
 

(4) A $12.7 million outstanding balance on a loan from the Authority’s Variable Rate Demand 
Revenue Bonds, Capital Asset Program Issue, Series J-2, originally bearing interest at a variable 
rate (1.2% at September 30,2004) and repayable in substantially equal monthly installments 
through 2023. 

 
(5) A $4.24 million total outstanding balance on various capital lease obligations which bear interest at 

various rates with final payments due in 2016. 
 
BMC has entered into guaranty agreements on behalf of FMC and MLH in connection with outstanding 
Massachusetts HEFA (“MHEFA”) bonds including a Franklin Medical Center Series M-4A issue of $9.0 
million in February 2005.  BMC has guaranteed payment of approximately $18.1 million of such loans of 
which approximately $11.2 million is currently outstanding.  BMC has never been required to make a 
payment pursuant to this guaranty. 
 
 
Derivatives 
 
BMC periodically enters into interest rate swap agreements to moderate its exposure to interest rate 
changes and to lower the overall cost of borrowings.  Gains and losses realized on termination of swap 
agreements are deferred and amortized over the remainder of the original terms of the terminated 
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agreements.  In 2001, BMC had four interest rate swap agreements for a notional amount of $10,000,000 
each, associated with the MHEFA Revenue Bonds, Series E. 
 
In 2001, BMC terminated the four swap agreements at a gain of approximately $1,090,000, which is 
being amortized over the remainder of the original terms of the terminated agreements.  The amortized 
gain for FY 2004 was approximately $275,000 which was netted against interest expense. 
 
Due to the favorable interest rate environment during FY 2003, BMC decided to restructure its existing 
fixed rate MHEFA Revenue Bonds, Series D, which had a weighted average fixed rate of approximately 
5.4%.  BMC exercised its call option on $87,420,000 of its MHEFA Revenue Bonds, Series D and on 
July 1, 2003 purchased the bonds from the original holders.  The bonds were reissued on the same date to 
a financial institution for $87,420,000.  In connection with the bond restructuring, BMC recognized a loss 
on the extinguishment of debt of approximately $2,574,000, which is included under other income in the 
consolidated statements of operations. 
 
Also on July 1, 2003, BMC executed a total return swap agreement with the financial institution in the 
amount of $87,420,000.  The total return swap agreement provides for the financial institution to pay 
fixed payments to BMC equal to the debt service on the Series D Bonds and for BMC to pay the financial 
institution variable rate payments based upon the BMA Municipal Swap Index plus 40 basis points.  The 
BMA Municipal Swap Index rate was 1.69% and 1.08% at September 30, 2004 and 2003, respectively.  
The agreement, in effect, converts $87,420,000 of fixed rate debt to a variable rate of interest.  There are 
termination provisions for each party to this contract.  In order to manage the variable rate risk associated 
with the total return swap, BMC in a simultaneous related transaction entered into an interest rate swap 
agreement with the financial institution with a notional amount of $67,470,000.  Under the terms of the 
agreement, BMC pays a fixed rate of 3.26% and receives variable payments based upon the BMA 
Municipal Swap Index from the financial institution.  The fair value of this agreement of approximately 
$593,000 and $518,000 at September 30, 2004 and 2003, respectively, is included in investments in 
pooled funds on the consolidated statements of financial position.  The net interest savings resulting from 
the restructuring and the change in the fair value of the associated interest rate swaps are included in other 
income on the consolidated statement of operations. 
 
On September 1, 2005, BMC entered into a forward swap, having an effective date of October 27, 2005, 
with a financial institution in the notional amount of $71,740,000 at a fixed rate of 3.021% that will serve 
to create a synthetic fixed rate for the Series G Bonds. 
 
BMC was assigned, on August 5, 2005, a Standard & Poor’s Debt Derivative profile score of 2 on a scale 
of 1 to 5 with 1 representing the lowest risk.  According to S&P the rating was due to “excellent 
management practices, with a formal debt and swap management plan in place.” 
 
 
Insurance 
 
BHS Insurance Company, Ltd. (BHSIC), a wholly owned subsidiary of BH, provides professional and 
general liability coverage to BMC and other affiliates of BH with limits of $3 million per medical incident 
and a $15 million annual aggregate.  Excess coverage is purchased for general and professional liability 
with limits of $20 million per occurrence and $20 million annual aggregate. 
 
In addition, BHSIC provides workers’ compensation, employers’ liability, excess workers’ compensation 
and long-term disability coverage for certain BH affiliates. 
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BHSIC also provides professional and general liability insurance coverage to non-employed physicians of 
BH with limits of $1 million per medical incident and a $3 million annual aggregate.  BHSIC reinsures 
this risk for $750,000 excess of  $250,000 per medical incident on a claims made basis using a Lloyd’s 
Treaty and other international companies. 
 
At September 30, 2004, BHSIC held investments of approximately $50.6 million and reserves for losses, 
loss adjustment expenses and premium adjustments of approximately $48.9 million, and had shareholder 
equity of approximately $1.9 million.  The loss reserves are based upon management’s best estimate 
determined with the assistance of an independent actuary. 
 
In addition to liability coverage, BMC also maintains property, business interruption and other insurance 
coverage typically maintained by hospitals.  The property policy insures all buildings and other 
improvements owned by BH, BMC and other BH affiliates in an amount in excess of $800 million with a 
deductible of $50,000 per claim. 
 
 
Litigation 
 
Although there are claims pending or threatened, management is not aware of any pending or threatened 
litigation, which, in the event of an adverse result, would have a reasonable likelihood of materially and 
adversely affecting BMC’s ability to enter into this bond offering or, given BMC’s insurance coverage, to 
carry out its obligations thereunder.  For additional information on certain pending litigation see 
“Bondowners’ Risks and Matters Affecting the Health Care Industry“ under the headings “Antitrust” and 
“Low Income Discount Litigation” below. 
 
 
Sources of Patient Service Revenue 
 
The following table shows BMC’s percentage distribution of gross patient service revenues by payor 
source for the three years ended September 30, 2004. 
 

                   Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 
 2002 2003 2004 
Medicare   29.4%    28.8%    29.8% 
Medicare – Managed Care  4.7   4.3   4.4 
Medicaid 14.6  12.2 10.6 
Medicaid – Managed Care   7.4   9.5 10.4 
HMO/PPO  31.9 36.2 33.5 
Commercial/Other   7.8   4.2   6.6 
Self Pay   2.0   2.7   2.8 
Workers Comp   1.3   1.1   1.0 
Other Government     .9   1.0     .9 
    Total   100.0%   100.0%   100.0% 

 
The BMC payor mix has been relatively flat during the period with Medicare approximately 34%, 
Medicaid 21%, commercial/managed care approximately 41% and other at 4%.  Within Medicaid, there 
has been a continued shift to managed care. 
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Managed Care Activities 
 
BMC continues to experience an increase in the percentage of revenue generated from managed care 
contracts.  Gross patient service revenue from managed care contracts has grown from 44% in FY 2002 to 
over 48% in FY 2004. 
 
BMC has approximately 50 contracts with managed care organizations; however, the vast majority of 
managed care revenue comes from the seven largest plans in the area.  The largest plan in the region 
continues to be Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Massachusetts (Blue Cross) followed by Health Net and 
Health New England in which BH has an approximate 95.6% ownership interest. 
 
The following managed care providers represent BMC’s largest managed care agreements: 
 
 

 FY 2004 
Gross 

Patient Revenue 
Blue Cross HMO/PPO  13.7% 
Health Net (Medicaid HMO)                     9.3 
Health New England                     8.8 
Blue Care 65 (Medicare HMO)                     4.1 
Tufts Health Plan                     2.5 
CIGNA/Healthsource                     1.8 
ConnectiCare                     1.5 
Unicare/GIC                     1.0 
Other HMO/PPO                     5.6 
  TOTAL  48.3% 

 
 
The managed care providers with whom BMC contracts represent a variety of contractual and payment 
relationships.  The Blue Cross contract is a three-year agreement, which expires in September 2007.  Most 
of the other agreements are one-year contracts, many of which are evergreen with inflation increase 
clauses.  The financial arrangements include per diem payments, per case payments, and discounts from 
charges for inpatient services and fee schedules, case rates, and discounts from charges for outpatient 
services.  BMC has a few service specific capitation arrangements (e.g. lab services) and only two risk 
arrangements where up to 15% of payments are withheld and potentially refunded partially, fully, or with 
surplus depending on performance versus budget.  BMC participates in two pay for performance contracts 
which have upside potential based on performance against mutually agreed to quality and utilization 
criteria.  BMC also participates in the Medicare pay for performance demonstration project described in 
further detail below.  Numerous medical management activities exist to ensure care is provided in a cost 
effective manner. 
 
BMC’s managed care contracts are negotiated either directly with the plan or through BHP which 
negotiates managed care contracts on behalf of System providers and 998 individual BHP member 
physicians who practice at the three System hospitals.  Contracts negotiated through BHP include Health 
New England, Tufts Health Plan, Harvard Pilgrim Health Care (HPHC), Unicare/GIC, ConnectiCare, and, 
CIGNA. 
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Medicare risk products have had mixed results in Western Massachusetts.  HPHC withdrew its First 
Seniority product after poor financial results.  There are currently only two Medicare risk plans in the 
region with significant enrollment:  Blue Care 65 and Tufts Health Plan Medicare Preferred (formerly 
Secure Horizons).  BMC currently contracts only with Blue Care 65, and growth has been flat since the 
initial enrollment period.  For the under 65 population, management expects continued increases in PPO 
contracted revenue in the future with volume shifting away from traditional HMO plans. 
 
 
Sources of Patient Service Revenue 
 
Medicare 
 
Inpatient 
 
Medicare is the commonly accepted name for the exclusively federal reimbursement program created by 
Title XVIII of the Social Security Act, 42 U.S.C. Sections 1395 et seq.  Since October 1, 1985, 
Massachusetts acute care hospitals have been governed by the federal prospective payment system 
("PPS") for services rendered to Medicare inpatients, pursuant to which Medicare pays a prospectively 
determined amount for all non-physician services provided in an inpatient setting for each patient 
discharge, depending on the patient's diagnosis related group (or "DRG").  Participating hospitals also 
receive payment for both direct and indirect costs of medical education, capital related costs, and organ 
procurement costs.  PPS permits additional payments, within specified limitations, to be made for atypical 
cases ("outliers") and for hospitals, which qualify as disproportionate share hospitals (hospitals with a 
larger than average population of low-income patients). 
 
Medicare graduate medical education ("GME") costs are reimbursed using a hospital's specific cap on the 
number of interns and residents based on the hospital's fiscal year 1996 cost report.  The number of 
residents for direct medical education payment purposes is based on a three-year rolling average not to 
exceed the base year historic cap.  The Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act 
of 2003 ("MMA ") reduces the statutory resident caps under Medicare for certain hospitals and authorizes 
a "redistribution" of those FTE resident slots to other hospitals including BMC. 
 
Additional payments are available to PPS teaching hospitals for the indirect medical education costs 
attributable to their approved graduate medical education programs ("IME").  The IME adjustment factor 
is applied to the federal portion of the prospective payment rate.  A hospital's IME adjustment factor is 
based on its ratio of interns and residents to beds available for use.  The MMA changed the ways in which 
Medicare pays direct IME.  The calculation for IME was temporarily modified, resulting in a different 
adjustment schedule for patient discharges occurring between April 1, 2004 and September 30, 2007. 
 
The MMA further altered Medicare’s reimbursement of acute care hospitals, including standardization of 
payment for rural and urban hospitals, starting in 2004, and increases to IME and GME funding and in 
Medicare disproportionate share (DSH) payments.  Before the implementation of the MMA, hospitals in 
large urban centers received 1.6% more in Medicare payments for inpatient services than hospitals in rural 
or smaller urban areas, but after April 1, 2004, DSH hospitals not located in large urban centers will be 
eligible for the same DSH adjustment factor as large urban hospitals (subject to a 12% cap). 
 
New provisions in the MMA allow teaching hospitals to receive upwards of $400 million over five years 
to help train doctors.  The MMA schedules a series of increases of the adjustment factor for IME through 
2007, but then scales back the increases beginning in 2008.  The MMA also reclassifies GME programs in 
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Geriatrics and Family Practice in order to make up for the costs of additional residency requirements and 
non-hospital training requirements. 
 
The MMA also implements a number of quality provisions.  For 2005 through 2007, hospitals will 
receive their full market basket update only if they submit data on ten distinct hospital quality measures.  
If they do not submit the data, they will receive the update of market basket minus 0.4%.  BMC 
participates in the quality demonstration project and submits the required quality data.  The MMA also 
decreases the labor-related share of the wage index (used in Medicare’s PPS for inpatient hospital 
services) from 71% to 62%, unless the revision would result in lower payments. 
 
In 1999 Congress passed the Medicare, Medicaid and State Children's Health Insurance Program Balance 
Budget Refinement Act ("BBRA").  The BBRA required that prospective payment systems be developed 
for units theretofore exempt from PPS.  The rehabilitation PPS was implemented in FY 2003 for cost 
reporting periods after January 1, 2002.  The PPS payment methodology is based on per discharge 
payments for case mix groupings.  Congress also mandated in the BBRA that PPS be implemented for 
psychiatric hospitals and units.  The psychiatric prospective payment system will be based on a per diem 
and is expected to be implemented by October 1, 2005.   
 
Outpatient 
 
Medicare implemented an outpatient prospective payment system ("OPPS") on August 1, 2000.  This 
system replaced the earlier cost-based reimbursement methodology for outpatient services.  This payment 
system establishes prospective payment rates for covered outpatient hospital services using Ambulatory 
Payment Classification ("APC") groups.  The OPPS covers essentially all hospital outpatient services 
except those covered by a separate fee schedule or payment system.  Services excluded from OPPS 
include the following:  laboratory services; physical, speech and occupational therapy; end stage renal 
disease; screening mammography; professional fees and durable medical equipment. 
 
APCs are made up of groups of services that have comparable clinical complexity with respect to the use 
of resources.  CMS established relative payment weights for each group based on median hospital costs 
and estimated frequencies of utilization of services in 1999.  The Balanced Budget Amendment of 1997 
("BBA") provided that CMS establish a wage adjustment factor to ensure equitable payment rates.  Unlike 
DRGs, a single outpatient hospital encounter can result in multiple APCs. Deductibles and coinsurance 
apply.  Coinsurance is a fixed amount representing 20% of the national median charges for the group in 
1996 and a coinsurance floor was established equal to 20% of the payment rate amount. 
 
The Balanced Budget Refinement Act of 1999 required that the OPPS include outlier payments to cover 
some of the additional cost of providing care that exceeds established thresholds and transitional pass-
through payments for the additional costs of new and current medical devices, drugs, and biologicals. 
 
 
Medicaid 
 
Under Title XIX of the Social Security Act, 42 U.S.C. Section 1396 et seq., the federal government 
supplements the funds provided by the Commonwealth for medical assistance under the Medical 
Assistance Program ("Medicaid").  The Massachusetts Executive Office of Health and Human Services 
("EOHHS") administers the Medicaid program (now known as "MassHealth") in Massachusetts.  
Pursuant to Chapter 118E of the Massachusetts General Laws, MassHealth rates are set by contracts 
between providers and EOHHS. Under the contract which BMC has signed with EOHHS, MassHealth 
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pays for acute inpatient and outpatient service prospectively on a per discharge or per visit basis.  The 
payment amount per discharge or per visit is a statewide average cost per discharge or per visit, adjusted 
by several factors including case mix, statewide average capital cost, and the higher labor costs of 
hospitals.  In addition, teaching hospitals, such as BMC, receive additional payments for direct medical 
education.  The per discharge or visit amount is established from 1998 cost data as submitted by all 
hospitals to EOHHS, updated for inflation. 
 
A prospective payment system was adopted for outpatient MassHealth services.  Outpatient services are 
reimbursed on a case-mix-adjusted, hospital specific per episode basis.  The system calculates an average 
payment amount per episode ("PAPE") that is paid for each encounter regardless of the type of service 
rendered.  This new payment system was implemented on October 1, 2003. 
 
The Commonwealth has implemented MassHealth pursuant to a federal Medicaid waiver (the Section 
1115 Waiver) which enabled MassHealth to offer Medicaid coverage to populations that were not 
otherwise eligible for Medicaid and to make supplemental funds available to support Medicaid managed 
care organizations and two hospitals in the Commonwealth that provide a disproportionate amount of care 
to Medicaid and uninsured patients.  The Section 1115 Waiver, which was to expire in July, 2005, has 
been renewed for three years under terms that will require substantial changes in the way the 
Commonwealth funds the Medicaid program.  These changes along with the potential for both federal and 
state legislative changes to the Medicaid program, including possible reductions in appropriations and 
eligibility restrictions, may impact acute care hospital reimbursement levels.  For additional information 
on the renewal of the Section 1115 Waiver and its potential effects on MassHealth, see “Bondowners’ 
Risks and Matters Affecting the Health Care Industry” under the heading “Reimbursement for 
Uncompensated Care and Medicaid” below. 
 
 
The Uncompensated Care Pool 
 
The Massachusetts Division of Health Care Finance and Policy (DHCFP) is responsible for the 
administration of the statewide Uncompensated Care Pool (the Pool), which covers care to low-income 
Massachusetts residents for inpatient and outpatient hospital services and bad debts arising in conjunction 
with emergency care for uninsured individuals who do not or cannot pay for the services provided.  The 
Pool is funded through a legislatively mandated annual assessment on hospitals and health plans 
(managed care organizations and other private insurers) and by a contribution by the Commonwealth.  
Total funding for the Pool is capped on an annual basis.  The amount of the cap may vary from year to 
year, and all Massachusetts acute care hospitals share, based upon each hospital’s share of statewide 
uncompensated care costs, in any shortfall resulting from free care and bad debt expenditures in excess of 
the funding in the Pool that is available to hospitals.  For additional information on shortfalls in the Pool, 
see “Bondowners’ Risks and Matters Affecting the Health Care Industry” under the heading 
“Reimbursement for Uncompensated Care and Medicaid” below. 
 
During FY 2004, BMC received a net payment from the Pool of $2,793,898. In FY 2005 BMC received 
protected status from the Pool and therefore will receive payment from the Pool of 88% of its free care 
costs. During the first six months of FY 2005, BMC received a net payment from the Pool of $5,338,377. 
In FY 2006 BMC will not continue to receive protected status. 
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BMC HealthNet 
 
BMC has contracted with Boston Medical Center HealthNet Plan (HealthNet), a MassHealth managed 
care organization ("MCO").  Payment to BMC for inpatient and outpatient services is based on a 
negotiated discount from established charges subject to limitations on the rate of charge increases in 
which HealthNet will participate.  HealthNet receives certain supplemental payments through the Section 
1115 Waiver.  This enhanced funding is in place through June 30, 2006.  Funding for future years is being 
negotiated between the Commonwealth and the federal government.  For additional information on 
HealthNet and the Section 1115 Waiver, see “Bondowners’ Risks and Matters Affecting the Health Care 
Industry” under the heading “Reimbursement for Uncompensated Care and Medicaid” below. 
 
 
Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Massachusetts. Inc. 
 
In FY 2005 BMC entered into a three-year contract with Blue Cross.  The payment methodology 
agreement is a prospective payment system for which the majority of inpatient services are paid at a 
negotiated standard rate adjusted for the individual patient's case mix intensity.  Outpatient services are 
paid through a combination of fee schedules and negotiated discounts from established charges subject to 
limitations on the rate of charge increases in which Blue Cross will participate. 
 
 
Commercial Insurance 
 
Commercial insurers reimburse their subscribers or make direct payment to hospitals on the basis of 
established hospital charges for covered services.  Patients carrying such coverage are responsible to 
hospitals providing services for any deficiency between the amounts paid by the insurer and charges for 
services rendered. 
 
 
Health Maintenance and Preferred Provider Organizations 
 
Payments to hospitals on behalf of subscribers of Health Maintenance Organizations ("HMOs") and 
Preferred Provider Organizations ("PPOs") are generally based on contracts negotiated between the 
hospital and the HMO or PPO organization.  These contracts provide for various reimbursement 
methodologies including per diem rates, per discharge rates, discounts from established charges, fee 
schedules, and capitation payments.  
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BONDOWNERS’ RISKS AND MATTERS AFFECTING THE HEALTH CARE INDUSTRY 
 
Future revenues and expenses of BMC will be affected by events and conditions relating generally to, 
among other things, demand for BMC’s services, the ability of BMC to provide the services required by 
patients, physicians’ relationships with BMC and its facilities, management capabilities, the design and 
success of BMC’s and the system’s strategic plans, economic developments in BMC’s service area, 
BMC’s ability to control expenses, competition, rates, costs, third-party reimbursement, legislation, and 
governmental regulation.  Third-party reimbursement and charge control statutes and regulations may 
change and unanticipated events and circumstances may occur that cause variations from BMC’s 
expectations and these variations may be material.  The following general factors, among others, could 
affect the level of revenues to BMC or its financial condition or otherwise result in risks for Bondowners 
in addition to the risks set forth in the forepart of this Official Statement under the heading 
“BONDOWNERS’ RISKS.” 
 
 
Industry Pressures 
 
The health care industry is in the process of rapid and fundamental change, triggered by the deregulation 
of the acute care hospital reimbursement system, the growing national strength of managed care plans, 
and the anticipated acceleration of direct contracting between providers and employers or governmental 
programs such as Medicare.   
 
The growth of the managed care industry and pressure to enter into direct contracts with employers and 
governmental programs is being driven in part by increasing pressures from employers and other 
purchasers that are seeking to reduce their health care premium costs.  In New England, regional 
integrated delivery systems are developing in order to provide adequate geographical coverage for major 
purchasers of health care and to provide a system through which cost savings may be realized.  This may 
further increase competitive pressures on operators of acute care hospitals, including BMC.   
 
In addition, other proprietary and non-profit entrants to the market may, in certain instances, have 
significantly greater financial resources than BMC and BH.  This and other competitive threats may lead 
to a significant restructuring of the current health care delivery systems in New England, and such 
restructuring may have a material adverse effect on BMC. 
 
 
Increased Competition 
 
Competition among health care providers has increased significantly.  Health care providers are also 
expanding or reconfiguring their service lines in order to capture incremental market share, to enter 
potentially lucrative service lines, or to reduce or limit services in service lines that generate losses. 
 
BMC may face increased competition in the future from other health care providers serving its service 
area, from health maintenance organizations, and from other health care providers that offer comparable 
health care services to the population that BMC serves.  Changes in determination of need regulations that 
facilitate expansion of competitive services may further enhance competition for patients among health 
care providers.  Managed care programs are expected to continue to account for an increasing percentage 
of BMC’s admissions under contracts requiring discounts from charges or payment at negotiated rates. 
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Moreover, other forms of competition may affect BMC’s ability to maintain or improve its market share, 
including increasing competition (i) between physicians who generally use hospitals and non-physician 
practitioners such as nurse-midwives, nurse practitioners, chiropractors, physical and occupational 
therapists and others who may not generally use hospitals, (ii) from nursing homes, home health agencies, 
ambulatory care facilities, surgical centers, rehabilitation and therapy centers, physician group practices 
and other non-hospital providers of many services for which patients generally and currently rely on 
BMC, and (iii) from physician practice management companies, which may attempt to obtain financial 
concessions from hospitals based upon the negotiating leverage of the physician groups that they manage.  
BMC cannot, with any certainty, estimate the impact of this competitive activity. 
 
Management believes that sustained growth in patient volume or covered lives, together with firm cost 
controls, will be increasingly important as the health care environment becomes more competitive.  There 
are many limitations on a hospital’s ability to increase volume and control costs, and there can be no 
assurance that volume increases or expense reductions needed to maintain the financial stability of BMC 
will occur. 
 
 
Legislative, Regulatory and Contractual Matters Affecting Revenues 
 
The health care industry is heavily regulated by federal and state government, with a substantial portion of 
revenues coming from governmental sources.  In the past there have been frequent and significant 
changes in the methods and standards used by governmental agencies to reimburse and to regulate the 
operation of hospitals.  There is reason to believe that substantial additional changes will occur in the 
future.  Legislation is periodically introduced in Congress and in the Massachusetts legislature that could 
result in limitations on BMC’s revenues, third party payments, and costs or charges, or that could result in 
increased competition.  From time to time, legislative proposals are made at the federal and state level to 
engage in broader reform of the health care industry.  These include proposals to promote competition in 
the health care industry, to contain health care costs, to provide national health insurance and to impose 
additional requirements and restrictions on health care insurers, providers and other health care entities.  
The effects of future reform efforts on BMC cannot be predicted. 
 
 
Payment Uncertainty 
 
Governmental sources of revenue are subject to statutory and regulatory changes, administrative rulings, 
interpretations of policy, determinations by fiscal intermediaries, and government funding restrictions, all 
of which may materially increase or decrease the rates of payment and cash flow to hospitals.  There is no 
assurance that payments made under such programs will remain at levels comparable to the present levels 
or will be sufficient to cover all operating and fixed costs.  Currently the Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts, like several other states, is experiencing financial difficulties, and faces the prospect of 
reducing budgeted spending in the near future.  If these factors continue or escalate in severity, the impact 
on healthcare providers, including BMC, could be material.  Further, the ability of healthcare providers to 
achieve improved payments for Medicaid and indigent care services could be severely limited.  Similarly, 
increased federal funding of the Medicare program is critical to the financial results of BMC.  Potential 
decreases in federal payment rates, or annual increases in rates which are less than the growth in 
healthcare costs, made in response to federal budget pressures or growing Medicare costs, could have a 
material adverse impact on the financial results of BMC. 
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Restrictive policies at both the state and federal levels have contributed to declining revenues and 
operating losses at many Massachusetts hospitals.  In recent years, a number of hospitals in New England 
as well as in other areas of the United States have closed or have been converted to non-acute care 
facilities. 
 
BMC is subject to regulatory actions by those governmental or private agencies that administer the 
Medicare and Medicaid programs and by the Massachusetts Department of Public Health (DPH), the 
Massachusetts Department of Mental Health, the Massachusetts Division of Medical Assistance, the 
Massachusetts Attorney General’s Office Division of Public Charities and Antitrust Division, the 
Massachusetts Division of Health Care Finance and Policy, the National Labor Relations Board, the Joint 
Commission on Accreditation of Healthcare Organizations and other federal, state and local government 
agencies and private bodies.  Actions of these organizations could adversely affect future operations or 
revenue of BMC (see “Sources of Patient Service Revenue”).  Renewal and continuation of BMC’s 
operating licenses, certifications and accreditations are based on inspections, surveys, investigations and 
other reviews, some of which may require or include affirmative action or response by BMC.  These 
activities are conducted in the normal course of business of health facilities, both in connection with 
periodic renewals and in response to specific complaints, which may be made to governmental agencies, 
private agencies or even the media by patients, ombudsmen or employees, among others. 
 
BMC, BH and other members of the System have received, from time to time, subpoenas, civil 
investigatory demands, and other formal inquiries from state or federal governmental agencies or 
investigators.  It is often impossible to determine the specific nature of any such investigation, or whether 
BMC might have any potential liability under a cause of action that might subsequently be asserted by the 
government.  Moreover, BMC is generally not informed when such investigations are resolved without 
the assertion of any claims.  Management considers these investigations a routine part of operations in the 
current health care climate, and expects them to continue in the future. 
 
 
Changes in Patient Service Volume 
 
Reductions in patient service volume could have a material adverse effect on patient service revenue.  In 
addition, under Massachusetts law, an acute care hospital’s medical/surgical beds are subject to 
delicensure in the event certain minimum occupancy standards are not met. Failure to meet such standards 
and consequent delicensure of medical/surgical beds could have an adverse effect on the financial 
condition of BMC.  There is no guarantee that BMC will meet such conditions in the future. 
 
BMC’s percentage of gross patient service revenue attributable to managed care contracts has increased 
from approximately 44% in FY 2002 to over 48% in FY 2004.  Continued growth in the number of 
persons enrolled in managed care plans may result in material reductions in patient volume levels, 
reduced payment levels, and other changes which may challenge management to operate BMC under 
different payment incentives, including capitated arrangements.  Such changes may have a material 
adverse effect on future revenue levels of BMC. 
 
In addition, the managed-care plan market place in BMC’s service area is concentrated primarily among 
Blue Cross, Health New England and HealthNet.  There can be no assurance that one or more of these 
plans will not fail and be liquidated or be sold, with possible financial detriment to BMC which may be 
material. 
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Determination of Need Restrictions; Limitations on Reductions of Essential Services 
 
Under the Massachusetts determination of need (DON) statute and regulations, operators of acute care 
hospitals such as BMC are prohibited from making certain substantial capital expenditures, acquiring 
certain new technology, and making certain changes of control without prior receipt of a DON approval 
from DPH.  In addition, DPH has authority to eliminate DON review of various types of services and 
technology, and is at present considering deregulating various services.  The elimination or modification 
of the DON program or its restrictions on specific types of technology and services could lead to 
increased competition among providers with respect to certain types of technology and services whose 
availability is now limited by the program.  BMC cannot predict the effect of such changes, if made, on 
their operations. 
 
Pursuant to a law enacted by the Massachusetts legislature in 2000, new limits have been imposed on the 
ability of an acute care hospital to terminate “essential services” without prior notice to DPH, a public 
hearing and various remedial actions, including in certain circumstances financial payments to support or 
continue public access to such services through other means.  While DPH has issued regulations setting 
forth a process it will apply in evaluating reductions in “essential services,” it is uncertain how the 
regulations will be applied and whether and in what manner BMC could terminate or materially reduce 
the scope of licensed services, or whether significant financial obligations would be imposed as a result of 
such termination or reduction.  Management believes that the regulations will limit the flexibility of acute 
care hospitals to reconfigure their service lines in pursuit of cost reduction initiatives or other goals.   
 
 
Reimbursement for Uncompensated Care and Medicaid 
 
As discussed under “Sources of Patient Service Revenue – The Uncompensated Care Pool,” the 
Commonwealth operates the Pool, which is funded by payments from hospitals, health plans and the 
Commonwealth.  Adequate funding for the Pool has been an issue in the past, and there can be no 
assurance that adequate funding for the Pool will not become an even more significant issue in the future.  
Notwithstanding efforts over the last several years to shift reliance for coverage of the poor from the Pool 
to other programs administered by the Commonwealth, funding for the Pool continues to be inadequate.  
To the extent that funding is inadequate, hospitals will not receive payment for all of the care that they 
provide and may be responsible for paying an increased portion of the Pool’s shortfall.  Each hospital is 
also required to absorb any shortfall that results if the total free care it provides exceeds its available free 
care allocation. 
 
Certain factors increase demand on the Pool’s funds, thereby decreasing the amount available to 
reimburse hospitals for the free care that they provide and bad debts that they incur.  Such factors include 
an increase in the number of Massachusetts residents that lack health insurance and programmatic 
cutbacks in MassHealth.  According to DHCFP, the percentage of Massachusetts residents without health 
insurance rose from 6.7% in 2002 to 7.4% in 2004.  As a result of these and other factors, the 
Massachusetts Hospital Association has estimated that for 2005 the projected Pool deficit may total as 
much as $165 million, with an even more substantial deficit projected for 2006. 
 
Effective October 1, 2004, DHCFP amended the Pool regulations to restrict the types of charges for 
which the Pool will reimburse hospitals.  Under these regulations, the Pool will no longer cover the costs 
of hospital based primary care that is not emergent or urgent, except in limited circumstances.  The Pool 
will reimburse hospitals for the costs of urgent services provided only to Massachusetts residents.  The 
regulations also impose more stringent income requirements, and limit the types of Pool reimbursable 

A-42 



APPENDIX A 
 

 

services to exclude such services as ambulance and home health services and limit the retroactive billing 
period to six months from the date of service or the date that the charges were written off as bad debt, 
whereas previously hospitals could bill for up to a year, and in some cases for an indefinite period beyond 
these dates.  The impact of these restrictions on the types of Pool reimbursable charges is not certain, but 
it may have the effect of increasing the amount of non-reimbursable free care and bad debt for hospitals, 
including BMC. 
 
Many of MassHealth’s programs are funded through the Section 1115 Waiver, which grants the 
Commonwealth the ability to offer Medicaid coverage to populations that are not otherwise categorically 
eligible for Medicaid and still receive federal financial participation for the Commonwealth’s spending on 
these populations.  The Section 1115 Waiver also allows the Commonwealth to require that certain 
MassHealth members enroll in Medicaid MCOs sponsored by Boston Medical Center (Health Net) and 
Cambridge Health Alliance (Cambridge), and provides for supplemental federal payments to these public 
MCOs and their sponsoring hospitals.  Part of these supplemental payments funds $70 million in free care 
provided at Boston Medical Center and Cambridge that, in the absence of such payments, would have 
been due from the Pool. 
 
The Section 1115 Waiver has been extended to June 2008, but beginning in July 2005, the use of 
Intergovernmental Transfers (IGTs) to draw down federal dollars for hospitals will no longer be 
permitted.  IGTs have been a major source of funding (approximately $200 million) for the Pool, Boston 
Medical Center and Cambridge.  However, Certified Public Expenditures, a more limited, alternative 
method of financing, will be allowed.  For one year, DHHS will continue to allow the supplemental 
payments to the public MCOs sponsored by Boston Medical Center and Cambridge, but the allowable 
supplemental payment amounts will be capped, and in 2006, these supplemental payments will also be 
eliminated.  The renewed Section 1115 Waiver does not include an inflation adjustment. 
 
The renewed Section 1115 Waiver establishes a Safety Net Care Pool (SNCP) that, beginning in July 
2006, will pay for costs of providing health care services to the uninsured and of covering “unreimbursed 
Medicaid costs,” meaning costs that do not receive federal financial participation.  The Commonwealth 
may only access federal funds in the SNCP with prior approval from CMS.  In order for the 
Commonwealth to receive federal funding for the SNCP, it must either identify $600 million in current 
state expenditures that they do not now receive, but are eligible for, federal match dollars, or come up 
with $300 million of new spending that is eligible for federal matching dollars, either through provider 
assessments or new tax dollars. 
 
Elimination of the IGTs and the Medicaid MCO supplemental payments is likely to cause a substantial 
Pool deficit in future years and, depending on the ability of the SNCP to cover this deficit, may jeopardize 
the financial stability of Boston Medical Center and Cambridge.  Such an outcome may have an adverse 
effect on hospitals (including BMC) because of the potential for increases in the number of uninsured 
individuals in the area.   
 
Currently, both the Governor and the Massachusetts Legislature are seeking to implement major health 
care coverage and Pool funding and reimbursement reforms.  The success of any such measures and the 
possibility of future changes in MassHealth and in the operation and funding of the Pool and their effect 
on hospitals (including BMC) cannot be predicted but may be adverse. 
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Anti-Dumping 
 
In response to concerns regarding inappropriate hospital transfers of emergency patients based on the 
patients’ inability to pay for the services provided, Congress enacted the Emergency Medical Treatment 
and Active Labor Act, the so-called “anti-dumping” statute.  This law imposes certain requirements that 
must be met before transferring a patient to another facility.  Failure to comply with the law can result in 
exclusion from the Medicare and/or Medicaid programs as well as civil and criminal penalties.  Failure of 
BMC to meet its responsibilities under the law could adversely affect the financial condition of BMC. 
 
 
Limitations on Certain Arrangements Imposed by Federal Ethics in Patient Referrals Act 
 
The Federal Ethics in Patient Referrals Act (the Stark Law) generally prohibits a physician who has a 
financial relationship with an entity such as a hospital from making referrals to that entity for “designated 
health services” if payment may be made under the Medicare or Medicaid program.  If such a financial 
relationship exists, referrals are prohibited unless a statutory exception is met.  Violations of the Stark law 
can result in denial of payment, substantial civil money penalties and exclusion from the Medicare and 
Medicaid programs. “Designated health services” include inpatient and outpatient hospital services, 
clinical laboratory services, physical and occupational therapy services, radiology services, radiation 
therapy services, durable medical equipment, parenteral and enteral nutrients, prosthetics, home health 
services, and outpatient prescription drugs.  
 
Exceptions exist for certain arrangements, including arrangements between hospitals and physicians in 
which the remuneration paid is directly related to the provision of the listed services.  However, the 
failure of arrangements between BMC and a physician to fall within one or more of these exceptions 
could have a materially adverse effect on BMC.  There is no assurance that all financial relationships 
between BMC and physicians would be found to be in compliance with the Stark Law. 
 
 
Limitations on Certain Arrangements Imposed by Fraud and Abuse Statutes 
 
There is an expanding and complex body of laws, regulations and policies relating to federal and state 
health programs.  These include reporting and other technical rules, as well as broadly stated prohibitions 
regarding inducements for referrals, such as the Federal Medicare/Medicaid Anti-Fraud and Abuse 
Amendments to the Social Security Act (the Anti-Kickback Law), all of which carry potentially 
significant penalties for noncompliance.  Because the prohibitions on inducements for referrals are 
broadly drafted (and broadly interpreted by several applicable federal cases and in statements by officials 
of the Office of the Inspector General (the OIG) of the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 
(HHS), which is charged with enforcement), they may create significant financial and other liability in 
connection with a wide variety of business arrangements involving hospitals, physicians, and other health 
care providers.  HHS has published regulations which describe certain “safe harbor” arrangements that 
will not be deemed to constitute violations of the Anti-Kickback Law, although failure to satisfy the 
conditions of a safe harbor does not necessarily reflect a violation of the statute.  Activities that fall 
outside of the safe harbor arrangements include a wide range of activities frequently engaged in between 
hospitals and physicians and other third parties.  Violations may result in civil and criminal penalties, 
either of which, if imposed on BMC, could have a materially adverse effect on BMC.  Civil penalties 
range from monetary fines that may be levied on a per violation basis to temporary or permanent 
exclusion from the federal health care programs (which account for a significant portion of revenue and 
cash flow of most hospitals, including BMC).  Criminal penalties may also be imposed.  These penalties 
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may be applied to many cases in which hospitals and physicians conduct any of the following activities: 
joint business activities; practice acquisitions; physician recruiting and retention programs; various forms 
of hospital assistance to individual physicians and medical practices or the physician contracting entities; 
physician referral services; hospital-physician service or management contracts; and space or equipment 
rentals between hospitals and physicians.  BMC conducts activities of these general types or similar 
activities, which pose varying degrees of risk.  Much of that risk cannot be assessed accurately due to the 
lack of case law or material guidance by the OIG and other state and federal authorities.   
 
While BMC management is not aware of any challenge or investigation concerning BMC with respect to 
such matters, there can be no assurance that none will occur in the future. 
 
 
False Claims Act and Compliance Initiatives 
 
The health care industry is increasingly subject to investigations relating to errors in billing and improper 
billing practices under the False Claims Act, the Civil Monetary Penalties statute and similar federal and 
state laws (the False Claims Laws).  Under the False Claims Laws, health care providers that submit 
incorrect or improper bills not only must refund any overpayments, but under some circumstances may be 
held liable for multiple damages and civil monetary penalties.  Payment for health care services by 
government agencies is regulated by complex laws, regulations, manual provisions and program 
memoranda.  While BMC believes it conducts its billing in accordance with these requirements, many of 
the applicable requirements are not clearly written or understood, and it is possible that in the future BMC 
may have to make refunds to third party payers based on a dispute over the interpretations of these 
requirements. 
 
Private individuals, including patients, employees of health care providers, and others, also may bring suit 
under the qui tam provisions of the False Claims Act and may be eligible to receive a share of the funds 
ultimately recovered by the government.  Under certain circumstances, violations of the False Claims 
Laws also can lead to suspension or exclusion from the Medicare and Medicaid programs or, in cases of 
willful violations, criminal penalties.  The OIG, the U.S. Attorney’s Office, the Medicaid Fraud Control 
Unit and other government agencies from time to time have commenced investigations of various billing 
and financial practices in the health care industry.  While BMC is not to its knowledge the subject of any 
such investigation, there can be no assurance that BMC will not be investigated by one or more of these 
agencies in the future.  An action under the False Claims Laws, if determined adversely to BMC, could 
have a material adverse effect on the finances of BMC.   
 
The OIG has encouraged all health care providers to adopt and implement compliance programs to 
promote compliance with federal and state laws, including the False Claims Laws, the Anti-Kickback 
Law and the Stark Law.  BMC has developed a compliance program, appointed a compliance officer, and 
established a BH Board-appointed Compliance Committee.  It should be noted, however, that the 
presence of a compliance program is not an assurance that BMC will not be investigated by one or more 
federal and state agencies that enforce the False Claims Laws or that it will not be required to make 
repayments to various health care insurers (including the Medicare and/or Medicaid programs). 
 
While BMC management is not aware of any other challenge or investigation concerning BMC with 
respect to such matters, there can be no assurance that such challenge or investigation will not occur in the 
future.   
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Limitations on Contractual and Other Arrangements Imposed by Internal Revenue Code 
Contractual and Other Arrangements Imposed By Internal Revenue Code 
 
As a tax-exempt organization, BMC is limited with respect to its use of practice income guarantees, 
reduced rent on medical office space, low interest loans, joint venture programs, and other means of 
recruiting and retaining physicians.  The Internal Revenue Service (the Service) has intensified its 
scrutiny of a broad variety of contractual relationships commonly entered into by hospitals and has issued 
detailed hospital audit guidelines suggesting that field agents scrutinize numerous activities of hospitals in 
an effort to determine whether any action should be taken with respect to limitations on, or revocation of, 
their tax-exempt status or assessment of additional tax.   
 
The Service has also commenced intensive audits of selected health care providers to determine whether 
the activities of these providers are consistent with their continued tax-exempt status.  Any suspension, 
limitation, or revocation of the tax-exempt status of BMC or assessment of significant tax liability could 
have a materially adverse effect on BMC, and might lead to loss of tax exemption of interest on the 
Bonds.  The Service has also indicated that, in certain circumstances, violation of the fraud and abuse 
statutes could constitute grounds for revocation of a hospital’s tax-exempt status.  BMC, like many 
hospitals, has entered into arrangements, directly or through affiliates, with physicians that are of the kind 
that the Service has indicated it will examine in connection with audits of tax-exempt hospitals. 
 
 
Revocation of Tax Exemption; Private Inurement 
 
Revocation of the tax-exempt status of BMC under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code  
(the Code) could subject the interest paid to Bondowners to federal income tax retroactively to the date of 
issuance of the Bonds.  Section 501(c)(3) of the Code specifically conditions the continuing exemption of 
all organizations described in such section upon the requirement, among others, that no part of the net 
earnings of the organization inure to the benefit of any private individual.  Any violation of the 
prohibition against private inurement may cause the organization to lose its status as tax exempt under 
Section 501(c)(3).  The Service has issued guidance in informal private letter rulings and general counsel 
memoranda on some situations that give rise to private inurement, but there is no definitive body of law, 
regulations or public advisory rulings that address many common arrangements between exempt hospitals 
and non-exempt individuals or entities.  While the management of BMC believes that BMC’s 
arrangements with private persons and entities are generally consistent with the Service’s guidance, there 
can be no assurance concerning the outcome of an audit or other investigation by the Service given the 
lack of clear authority interpreting the range of activities undertaken by BMC. 
 
Intermediate sanctions legislation enacted in 1996 imposes penalty excise taxes in cases where an exempt 
organization is found to have engaged in an “excess benefit transaction” with a “disqualified person.”  
Such penalty excise taxes may be imposed in lieu of revocation of exemption, or in addition to such 
revocation in cases where the magnitude or nature of the excess benefit calls into question whether the 
organization functions as a public charity.  The tax is imposed both on the disqualified person receiving 
such excess benefit and on any officer, director, trustee or other person having similar powers or 
responsibilities who participated in the transaction willfully or without reasonable cause, knowing it to 
involve “excess benefit.”  “Excess benefit transactions” include transactions in which a disqualified 
person receives unreasonable compensation for services, or receives other economic benefit from the 
organization that either exceeds fair value or, to the extent provided in regulations yet to be promulgated, 
is determined in whole or in part by the revenues of one or more activities of such organization.  
“Disqualified persons” include “insiders” such as board members and officers, senior management and 
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members of the medical staff, who in each case are in a position to substantially influence the affairs of 
the organization; their family members; and thirty-five percent-owned entities.  The legislative history 
sets forth Congress’ intent that compensation of disqualified persons shall be presumed to be reasonable if 
it is:  (i) approved by disinterested members of the organization’s board or compensation committee; (ii) 
based upon data regarding comparable compensation arrangements paid by similarly situated 
organizations; and (iii) adequately documented by the board or committee as to the basis for its 
determination.  A presumption of reasonableness will also arise with respect to transfers of property 
between the exempt organization and disqualified persons if a similar procedure with approval by an 
independent board is followed.   
 
Although management believes that the sanction of revocation of tax-exempt status is likely to be 
imposed only in cases of pervasive excess benefit, the imposition of penalty excise tax in lieu of 
revocation, based upon a finding that BMC or its affiliates had engaged in an excess benefit transaction, 
would likely result in negative publicity and other consequences that could have a materially adverse 
effect on the operations, property or assets of BMC. 
 
 
Affiliation, Merger, Acquisition and Divestiture; Recent Legislation 
 
BMC evaluates and considers potential merger and affiliation candidates on a consistent basis as part of 
its overall strategic planning and development process.  As part of its on-going planning and property 
management functions, BMC reviews the use, compatibility and financial viability of many of its 
operations, and from time to time may pursue changes in the use of, or disposition of, its facilities.  
Likewise, BMC may receive offers from, or conduct discussion with, third parties about the potential 
acquisition of operations or properties that may become part of BMC in the future, or about the potential 
sale of some of the operations and properties of BMC.  Discussions with respect to affiliation, merger, 
acquisition, disposition, or change of use, including those that may affect BMC, are held on an 
intermittent, and usually confidential, basis with other parties and may include the execution on non-
binding letters of intent.  As a result, it is possible that the assets currently owned by BMC may change 
from time to time, subject to the provisions in the financing documents that apply to merger, sale, 
disposition or purchase of assets. 
 
In July 2000, the Massachusetts legislature amended Massachusetts General Law Chapter 180 by adding 
Section 8A(d).  Section 8A(d) requires a non-profit acute care hospital or HMO to provide written notice 
to the Attorney General of Massachusetts at least 90 days before it enters into a sale, lease, exchange or 
other disposition of a substantial amount of its assets or operations with a person or entity other than a 
public charity.  Section 8A(d) provides for an investigation of the proposed transaction by the Attorney 
General, including at least one public hearing, unless the Attorney General grants the hospital or HMO a 
written waiver of the notice and hearing requirement.  Management believes that this law will limit the 
flexibility of Massachusetts non-profit acute care hospitals, including BMC, in managing their affairs.  
 
 
Antitrust 
 
Enforcement of the antitrust laws against health care providers is becoming more common.  Antitrust 
liability may arise in a wide variety of circumstances including medical staff privilege disputes, payer 
contracting, physician relations, joint ventures, merger, affiliation and acquisition activities, and certain 
pricing and salary setting activities.  In some respects, the application of the federal and state antitrust 
laws to health care is still evolving, and enforcement activity by federal and state agencies appears to be 

A-47 



APPENDIX A 
 

 

increasing.  Violation of the antitrust laws could be subject to criminal and civil enforcement by federal 
and state agencies, as well as by private litigants.  At various times, BMC may be subject to an 
investigation by a governmental agency charged with the enforcement of the antitrust laws, or may be 
subject to administrative or judicial action by a federal or state agency or a private party.  The most 
common areas of potential liability are joint action among providers with respect to payer contracting, 
medical staff credentialing, and use of a hospital’s local market power for entry into related health care 
businesses.  From time to time, BMC may be involved in activities which raise these issues, and it cannot 
be predicted whether or to what extent antitrust liability may arise.  Liability in any of these or other trade 
regulation areas may be substantial, depending on the facts and circumstances of each case.  With respect 
to payer contracting, BMC may, from time to time, be involved in joint contracting activity with other 
hospitals or providers.  The precise degree to which this or similar joint contracting activities may expose 
the participants to antitrust risk from governmental or private sources is dependent on a myriad of factual 
matters which may change from time to time. 
 
If any medical group or other provider with which BMC becomes affiliated is determined to have violated 
the antitrust laws, BMC also may be subject to liability as a joint actor. 
 
In August 2000, in the Acts of 2000, Chapter 236, § 93, the Massachusetts legislature directed the 
Attorney General to study the health care market in Springfield to determine whether any barriers exist to 
access to health care in the city of Springfield, and to detail the existing relationships between health 
insurers, health maintenance organizations, hospitals and other providers in the Springfield health care 
market.   
 
The Attorney General’s office conducted a review, which included gathering and reviewing relevant 
documents; interviewing the management of health care institutions; and conferring with economists, 
public health specialists and other experts.  The Attorney General’s  “Report to the Legislature on the 
Springfield Health Care Market,” dated September 12, 2001, and released October 2, 2001, concluded 
that there are no barriers to open access in the Springfield area, and that there is no need at this time for 
legislative action to address the current contracting relationships between health care insurers and 
providers.  Noting that BH holds the largest share of the greater Springfield health care market, the report 
indicated that the Attorney General will continue to scrutinize carefully areas where significant 
imbalances exist in a health care market.  The report suggested that there might be a need for government 
intervention if Springfield’s Mercy Medical Center and its parent system, the Sisters of Providence Health 
System, cannot remain viable service providers, in order to preserve local competitive alternatives.  The 
report contained a number of recommendations, some applicable specifically to BH, and some applicable 
to the state health care system generally.  For example, the report recommended that BH take into account 
the impact of its business decisions on other important providers of health care and the impact on the 
community if those other providers should be substantially weakened or fail, and that the state legislature 
focus on providing adequate government reimbursement rates for government funded health care, 
providing affordable health care and on educating consumers about health care options in the 
Commonwealth. 
 
A lawsuit filed in May 2002 in the United States District Court for the District of Columbia brought by 
three plaintiff residents purporting to represent a class of all persons employed as resident physicians in 
ACGME residency programs since May 7, 1998 names as defendants seven organizations and 29 
institutional defendants.  The suit also seeks to have a defendant class certified that includes other non-
governmental hospitals that administer or sponsor residency programs.  BMC would be a member of the 
purported defendant class.  The complaint alleges that the National Resident Matching Program’s match, 
accreditation standards and the exchange of data on resident compensation and other terms of 
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employment constitute anti-competitive restraints on trade in violation of the antitrust laws.  The suit 
seeks money damages and injunctive relief.  Under the federal antitrust laws, damages would be trebled, 
and a prevailing plaintiff would be entitled to attorneys’ fees.  In addition, under the federal antitrust laws, 
each member of the antitrust conspiracy may be jointly and severally liable for the entire amount of 
damages found, with no right of contribution from other defendants. 
 
In 2004, Congress enacted a law entitled “Confirmation of Antitrust Status of Graduate Resident 
Matching Program,” which is codified as 15 U.S.C. § 37(b) (“Match Legislation”).  On August 12, 2004, 
the United States District Court for the District of Columbia dismissed the case against the named 
defendants on the basis of the Match Legislation and other grounds.  The plaintiffs have appealed that 
judgment to the United State Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia Circuit. 
 
BMC management believes that this lawsuit raises difficult, novel and complex issues under the antitrust 
laws and that the named defendants have substantial defenses even if the August 2004 dismissal is not 
affirmed in all respects.  At this time, BMC is unable to determine its potential exposure, if any, under this 
suit, and consequently it cannot predict whether the suit will have a material effect on its operations or on 
its financial condition. 
 
 
Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act 
 
Congress enacted The Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA) to mandate 
portability of health insurance and protect the use and disclosure of personal health information.  
Congress also included in HIPAA certain “administrative simplification” provisions intended to reduce 
the administrative costs of processing health care payments by encouraging the electronic exchange of 
health information and the use of standardized formats for health care claims and other transactions. 
 
HIPAA and its regulations apply to health plans, health care clearinghouses, and those health care 
providers who electronically conduct certain financial and administrative transactions (e.g., electronic 
health care claim submissions).  Regulations regarding privacy, security and transaction standards have 
been finalized and are now in effect.  The final privacy regulations address five basic privacy principles: 
(1) consumer control over health information, (2) boundaries on patient record use and release, (3) 
safeguards for personal health information, (4) accountability for patient record use and release, and (5) a 
balance between public responsibility and privacy protections.  The final transaction standards regulations 
require covered entities to conduct certain electronic transactions in compliance with the applicable 
transactions and code sets standards published by DHHS, although individual payors are permitted 
temporarily to accept non-compliant claims.  The final security regulations require covered entities to 
safeguard access to protected health information by the use of encryption, passwords and other similar 
measures. 
 
Under HIPAA, there are specific federal penalties if a patient’s right to privacy is violated.  Civil 
violations, including disclosures made in error, carry a monetary penalty of $100 per violation up to 
$25,000 per year.  Criminal penalties for intentional violations carry fines of up to $250,000 and 10 years 
in prison. 
 
Compliance with HIPAA has required changes in information technology platforms, major operational 
and procedural changes in the handling of data, and vigilance in monitoring of ongoing compliance with 
the various regulations.  Accordingly, BMC will continue to incur costs related to complying with 
HIPAA’s regulatory requirements.   
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At BH, HIPAA project teams were organized, with the necessary funding and leadership oversight, to 
implement provisions covering HIPAA transactions and code set, privacy and security regulations.  
Remediation efforts required certain technology solutions and generated numerous policies, procedures 
and processes and extensive workforce training programs.  These enhancements will be maintained in the 
future. 
 
 
Environmental Matters 
 
Health care providers are subject to a wide variety of federal, state and local environmental and 
occupational health and safety laws and regulations.  These requirements govern medical and toxic or 
hazardous waste management, air and water quality control, notices to employees and the public, and 
training requirements for employees.  As a health care operator and employer, BMC is subject to 
potentially material liability for costs of investigating and remedying releases of any such substances 
either on its properties or that have migrated from its properties or that have been improperly disposed of 
off site and the harm to persons or property that such releases may cause. 
 
BMC has on occasion reported oil and hazardous materials (OHM) releases to the Massachusetts 
Department of Environmental Protection and performed response actions in accordance with applicable 
law.  Currently, BMC owns three properties where OHM releases are known to exist.  At two of these 
properties, parties other than BMC are obliged under existing agreements to perform necessary response 
actions to cleanup or otherwise manage OHM releases.  The third property is 3350 Main Street, where the 
D’Amour Center for Cancer Care is located.  In connection with the development of BMC’s Ambulatory 
Care Center on the 3300 and 3350 Main Street Properties in 1996, BMC reported historic OHM releases 
discovered at 3350 Main Street. Under Massachusetts’ privatized waste site cleanup program, BMC has 
performed necessary response actions to achieve a condition of No Significant Risk at the 3350 Main 
Street site.  BMC has imposed a Notice of Activity and Use Limitation  (AUL) on a portion of the 3350 
Main Street.  The AUL is, in essence, a restriction in the chain of title upon certain uses of and activities 
on a portion of the property, for example, use as a residence or unsupervised excavation activity.  Except 
for management of some site soil during site preparation, the AUL does not restrict the construction or 
operation of the Center. 
 
 
Low Income Discount Litigation 
 
Recently, there have been a series of class action lawsuits filed against non-profit hospitals on the 
judicially unprecedented theory that these hospitals breached contracts with federal and state governments 
by not providing sufficient public benefit to justify their tax-exempt status.  These claims target the 
practice of certain non-profit hospitals of charging uninsured patients more for services than insured 
patients and aggressively seeking payment from these uninsured patients for these services.  To date, all 
proceedings in federal court have either been dismissed or remanded to state courts, where several cases 
are currently pending. 
 
BMC and BH, along with the American Hospital Association (“AHA”) and other unnamed “John Doe” 
defendants, are defendants in a lawsuit entitled Diane Harrington, et al. v. Baystate Medical Center, et al, 
Civil Acton No. 04-11663-RCL filed in the United States District Court for the District of Massachusetts 
by a former BMC patient  who alleges, among other things, that she and a class of uninsured patients were 
overcharged for medical care and subjected to improper collection activity in connection with those 
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charges.  The action seeks monetary damages and other remedies intended to provide the alleged class 
with affordable health care and relief with respect to BMC’s and BH’s billing and collection policies.  The 
case is one of many similar lawsuits filed by a loosely affiliated group of plaintiffs’ lawyers against non-
profit hospitals, health systems, and the AHA around the United States.  Before any class was certified, 
the plaintiff voluntarily dismissed many of the claims and the Court dismissed the remaining claims.  Ms. 
Harrington’s appeal of the Court’s ruling was subsequently dismissed. 
 
In February 2004, CMS and the OIG provided guidance to hospitals on whether offering discounts to 
uninsured and underinsured patients is consistent with health care fraud and abuse laws, such as the Anti-
Kickback Law, and Medicare reimbursement principles.  In particular, the guidance made clear that the 
Anti-Kickback Law does not prohibit a hospital’s offering of discounts to uninsured or underinsured 
patients, provided that the discount is not linked in any manner to the generation of business payable 
under a federal health care program.  Furthermore, CMS strongly encouraged hospitals to offer discounts 
and cost-sharing waivers to uninsured and underinsured patients, including Medicare beneficiaries. 
 
In FY 2005, BH hospitals introduced a financial assistance program as a supplement to the Pool.  Patients 
with income at or below 400% of federal poverty levels are eligible for benefits. 
 
 
Other Risk Factors 
 
The following additional factors, among others, may adversely affect the operations of health care 
providers, including BMC, to an extent that cannot be determined at this time: 
 
Employee strikes and other adverse labor actions and conditions, which could result in a substantial 
reduction in revenues without corresponding decreases in costs;  
 
Difficulty in recruiting and retaining skilled clinical staff in the face of severe labor shortages, which 
could result in an increased dependence on temporary personnel to fill vacant positions at significantly 
increased expense or an inability to meet volume demands due to staffing shortages; 
 
Increased unemployment or other adverse economic conditions in BMC’s service areas, which might 
increase the proportion of patients without health insurance benefits or who otherwise are unable to pay 
fully for the costs of their care; 
 
Efforts by employers to reduce the costs of health insurance by having employees bear a greater portion 
of their health care costs, causing employees to be more selective and cost-conscious in choosing health 
care services; 
 
Efforts by insurers and governmental agencies to reduce the utilization of hospital facilities and limit 
payments for the services provided in such facilities; 
 
Changes in the federal and state regulatory support for BMC’s recovery of the costs of delivering health 
care; 
 
Reduced demand for the services of BMC which might result from decreases in the population of BMC’s 
service area; 
 

A-51 



APPENDIX A 
 

 

Reduced need for hospitalization or other health care services arising from medical and scientific 
advances; 
 
Increases in cost and limitations in the availability of any insurance, such as malpractice, fire, automobile 
and general comprehensive liability, that providers of a size and type similar to BMC generally carry; 
 
Losses of revenues from outpatient and ancillary services resulting from physicians shifting tests and 
procedures to their own offices and other suppliers; 
 
Developments affecting the federal or state tax-exempt status of not-for-profit hospitals or of securities 
such as the Series G Bonds; and 
 
Acts of war or acts of so-called terrorists, including the use of weapons capable of mass destruction. 
 
This letter and the information herein are submitted to the Authority for inclusion in its Official Statement 
relating to its Revenue Bonds, Baystate Medical Center Issue, Series G (2005).  The use of this letter by 
the Authority in connection with the initial sale and public offering of the Series G Bonds, and its 
execution and delivery by the undersigned officer of BMC, have been duly authorized by the Board of 
Trustees of BMC. 
 
      BAYSTATE MEDICAL CENTER, INC. 
 
 

By: /s/ Mark R. Tolosky 
 
      Its: President 
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Report of Independent Auditors 

Board of Trustees 
Baystate Health System, Inc. 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statement of financial position of 
Baystate Health System, Inc. and Subsidiaries (Health System) as of September 30, 2004, 
and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in net assets and cash 
flows for the year then ended.  These financial statements are the responsibility of Health 
System’s management.  Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 
statements based on our audit.  The financial statements of Health System for the year 
ended September 30, 2003, were audited by other auditors whose report dated December 
3, 2003, expressed an unqualified opinion on those statements. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement.  An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  An audit also includes assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.  We believe that our audit 
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the consolidated financial position of Baystate Health System, Inc. and 
Subsidiaries at September 30, 2004, and the consolidated results of their operations, 
changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended, in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. 

December 10, 2004 

A Member Practice of Ernst & Young Global
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Baystate Health System, Inc. and Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position 

(in thousands) 

 September 30  September 30 
 2004 2003  2004  2003  
Assets   Liabilities and net assets   
Current assets:    Current liabilities:   

Cash and cash equivalents $   44,174 $  24,065  Accounts payable: 
Investments in pooled funds 165,092  134,757  Trade $ 27,348 $  29,277  
Accounts receivable, patients, less  Other 22,328 15,493  

allowance for uncollectible accounts Medical claims payable 27,765 22,307  
of $39,040 (2003 - $35,074) 95,760 98,897  Accrued salaries and wages 42,487  50,468  

Accounts receivable, other 9,189   7,833  Accrued interest on bonds payable 2,899  2,960  
Estimated final settlements receivable 12,713 10,398  Estimated final settlements payable 28,292  16,596  
Inventories 12,164 11,358  Refundable advances 3,701  2,942  
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 10,362   6,642  Short-term obligations 30,428 30,483  

Total current assets 349,454 293,950    Deferred revenue 8,498  5,784  
 Current portion of bonds, mortgages and  
 notes payable, and capital lease obligations 9,066  9,182  
 Total current liabilities 202,812 185,492 

Long-term investments: 
Other investments 1,425 1,114  Mortgages and notes payable, and  
Investments in pooled funds 48,640 46,290  capital lease obligations 4,577 5,562 
Equity investment in unconsolidated affiliates 2,965 2,896 Bonds payable 210,649 218,814 

Goodwill  2,887 4,247  Accrued pension liability 39,503 72,305 
Intangible pension asset  13,616 15,431  Insurance liability loss reserves 56,719 51,315 
Deferred expense 8,485  7,806  Other liabilities  598 1,152 
Land, buildings and equipment, net 267,336 236,508  Total liabilities 514,858 534,640 
Construction in progress 19,503 45,766   

364,857 360,058   

Assets whose use is limited:  Net assets: 
Board-designated funds:  Unrestricted: 
  Cash and investments 6,201 5,218     Operating 388,206 330,385  
  Investments in pooled funds 119,363 112,849     Minimum pension liability adjustment (66,385)  (88,150) 
Investments of captive insurance company 50,601 44,959 Total unrestricted 321,821  242,235  
Investments held by trustee under bond   Temporarily restricted 46,855   43,492  

indenture agreements 7,177 17,376 Permanently restricted 45,253  43,048  
Beneficial interest in perpetual trusts 31,134 29,005  

214,476 209,407 Total net assets 413,929 328,775  

Total assets $ 928,787  $863,415  Total liabilities and net assets $928,787 $863,415  

See accompanying notes. 
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Baystate Health System, Inc. and Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Statements of Operations 

(in thousands) 

Years Ended September 30
2004 2003 

Unrestricted revenues, gains and other support:  
Net patient service revenue (exclusive of standard charges
of $43,261 (2003 - $25,804) for charity care) $   770,441  $   705,235
Premiums  213,935 193,455
Other revenue 40,671  36,520
Net assets released from restrictions used for operations 2,504  1,955

Total revenues, gains and other support 1,027,551  937,165

Expenses:
Salaries and wages 407,307  382,164
Supplies and expense 349,750 316,409
Medical claims and capitation  153,265 139,995
Depreciation and amortization  41,618  39,981
Bad debts 32,762  29,980
Interest expense 11,855  11,385

Total expenses 996,557 919,914

Income from operations before charges for other expenses 30,994 17,251
Other expenses 1,471
Income from operations 30,994 15,780

Other income (loss): 
Unrestricted income from investments: 

Board-designated funds 1,539 1,881
Net realized gain (loss) on investments 4,767 (768)
Equity gain in unconsolidated affiliates 836 728
Loss on extinguishment of debt (2,574)
Net interest savings on swap agreements 1,888 454
Change in fair value of swap agreements 75 518
Income taxes and other   (1,115) (187)

Total other income 7,990 52

Excess of revenues, gains and other support over expenses 38,984 15,832

Net assets released from restrictions for capital 5,422 2,326
Transfers for the cost of land, buildings and equipment 2,699 323
Transfers to restricted net assets (72) (223)
Net unrealized gain on investments 9,226 23,777
Minimum pension liability adjustment 21,765 (54,780)
Other 1,562 1,140

Increase (decrease) in unrestricted net assets $     79,586  $  (11,605) 

See accompanying notes. 
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Baystate Health System, Inc. and Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets 

(in thousands) 

Years Ended September 30
2004 2003 

Unrestricted net assets:  
Excess of revenues, gains and other support over expenses $  38,984  $  15,832
Net assets released from restrictions for capital 5,422  2,326
Transfers for the cost of land, buildings and equipment 2,699  323
Transfers to restricted net assets (72) (223)
Net unrealized gain on investments 9,226  23,777
Minimum pension liability adjustment 21,765   (54,780) 
Other 1,562  1,140

Increase (decrease) in unrestricted net assets 79,586  (11,605) 

Temporarily restricted net assets: 
Restricted investment income 259  288
Net realized and unrealized gain on investments  5,316  6,858
Contributions 5,829  4,599
Grants 4,286 3,330
Transfers for the cost of land, buildings and equipment (2,699) (323)
Transfers from unrestricted net assets 72  223
Net assets released from restrictions: 

For operations (2,504) (1,955)
For capital (5,422) (2,326)

Other (1,774) (1,433)
Increase in temporarily restricted net assets 3,363  9,261

Permanently restricted net assets: 
Contributions 940  8,333
Change in value of perpetual trusts 1,265  1,965

Increase in permanently restricted net assets 2,205 10,298

Increase in net assets 85,154 7,954
Net assets, beginning of year 328,775 320,821

Net assets, end of year $413,929  $328,775

See accompanying notes. 
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Baystate Health System, Inc. and Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

(in thousands) 

 Years Ended September 30 
 2004 2003 
Operating activities   
Change in net assets $  85,154 $   7,954 
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to cash provided by 

operating activities: 
Depreciation and amortization  41,618   39,981
Minimum pension liability adjustment  (21,765) 54,780
Net realized and unrealized gain on investments  (24,179)   (34,974) 
Provision for bad debts 32,762 29,919
Loss on extinguishment of debt  -   2,574
Change in beneficial interest of perpetual trusts  (2,129)  (10,021) 
Restricted contributions (6,769)  (4,875) 
Changes in equity investment of affiliate    (836)  (1,193) 
Increase in accounts receivable, patients (29,657)  (31,437) 
Net change in estimated final settlements   9,381  (12,600) 
(Decrease) increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses (3,136)   6,070
Change in accrued pension liability, net (9,222)  (8,472) 
Increase in medical claims payable   5,458 4,967
Transfers for the cost of land, buildings and equipment acquired  (2,699)  (323) 
Increase in insurance liability loss reserves  5,404   4,569
Other (3,420)  (2,468) 

Net cash provided by operating activities 75,965 44,451

Investing activities  
Proceeds from sale and maturities of investments  490,766 460,716
Purchase of investments  (502,212)  (440,684) 
Purchase of land, buildings and equipment, net  (44,557)  (63,052) 
Transfers for the cost of land, buildings and equipment acquired  2,699   323
Net cash used in investing activities (53,304)   (42,697) 

Financing activities  
Proceeds from restricted contributions  6,769 4,875
Proceeds from bond issuance  - 87,420
Net repayments of short-term obligations  (55) (591)
Repayment of bonds, mortgages, notes payable and capital lease 

obligations (9,266)  (98,696) 
Net cash used in financing activities (2,552)  (6,992) 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 20,109  (5,238) 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 24,065 29,303

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 44,174  $   24,065

See accompanying notes. 
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1.  Significant Accounting Policies 

Principles of Consolidation 

The financial statements include the accounts of Baystate Health System, Inc. (Health System) 
and its subsidiaries, which are:

Baystate Medical Center, Inc.    BMC 
Franklin Medical Center    FMC 
Mary Lane Hospital Corporation   MLH 
Baystate Medical Education and Research Foundation, Inc.   BMERF 
Baystate Affiliated Practice Organization, Inc.    BAPO 
Visiting Nurse Association & Hospice of Western New England, Inc.   VNAH 
Health New England, Inc. and subsidiaries   HNE 
Ingraham Corporation and subsidiary   IC 
Baystate Health Systems Ambulance, Inc.   BHSA 
Baystate Health System, Inc.   BHS 
Baystate Administrative Services, Inc.   BAS 
Baystate Health Foundation, Inc.   BHF 
BHS Insurance Company, Ltd.   BHSIC 
Baystate Health System Health Services, Inc.    BHSHS 

All significant intercompany and subsidiary accounts and transactions have been eliminated. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent 
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues 
and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ from those estimates.  
Significant estimates are made in the areas of the allowance for uncollectible patient accounts 
receivable, reserve for contractual allowances, investment valuation, accruals for settlements 
with third-party payors, medical claims payable, accrued insurance liability loss reserves, 
pension costs and accrued compensation and benefits. 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
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1.  Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Basis of Presentation 

Health System and its subsidiaries report net assets and revenues, expenses, gains and losses 
based upon the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.  In the accompanying 
financial statements, net assets that have similar characteristics have been combined into the 
following categories: 

Unrestricted Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations.  
Net assets may be designated for specific purposes by action 
of the Board of Directors or may otherwise be limited by 
contractual agreements with outside parties. 

Temporarily restricted Net assets whose use by Health System and its subsidiaries 
are subject to donor-imposed stipulations that can be fulfilled 
by actions of Health System and its subsidiaries or that expire 
by the passage of time.  At September 30, 2004 and 2003, 
temporarily restricted net assets consist of amounts restricted 
as to spending for various purposes, such as education, 
research, clinical and health care programs, as well as 
cumulative net appreciation of permanent endowment funds. 

Permanently restricted Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that they be 
maintained permanently by Health System and its 
subsidiaries. At September 30, 2004 and 2003, permanently 
restricted net assets consist of the original cost of permanent 
endowment gifts and beneficial interests in perpetual trusts. 

Revenues from sources other than donor restricted contributions are reported as increases in 
unrestricted net assets.  Expenses are reported as decreases in unrestricted net assets.  Gains and 
losses on investments are reported as increases or decreases in unrestricted net assets unless their 
use is restricted by explicit donor stipulations or by law.  Expirations of temporary restrictions 
recognized on net assets (i.e., the donor stipulated purpose has been fulfilled and/or the stipulated 
time period has elapsed) are reported as reclassifications from temporarily restricted net assets to 
unrestricted net assets.  Temporary restrictions on gifts to acquire long-lived assets are 
considered met in the period in which the assets are acquired or placed in service. 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
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1.  Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Contributions, including unconditional promises to give and grant awards, are recognized as 
revenues in the period received.  Contributions received with donor imposed restrictions are 
reported as permanently or temporarily restricted revenues depending upon the specific 
restriction.  Conditional promises to give are not recognized until the conditions on which they 
depend are substantially met.  Contributions of assets other than cash are recorded at their 
estimated fair value at the date of the gift.  Contributions to be received after one year are 
discounted at a risk-free rate commensurate with the expected payment term.  Amortization of 
the discount is recorded as contribution revenue in the appropriate net asset category.  Allowance 
is made for uncollectible contributions based upon management’s judgment and analysis of the 
creditworthiness of the donors, past collection experience and other relevant information. 

Investments 

Investments, including funds held by trustees under bond indenture agreements, are recorded at 
fair value in the statement of financial position.  The fair value of investments is estimated using 
quoted market values.  Realized gains and losses, interest, and dividends on investments are 
included in other income or other revenue in the statement of operations unless the income or 
loss is restricted by donor or law.  Unrealized gains and losses on investments are included in the 
change in unrestricted or temporarily restricted net assets, as applicable. Health System reviews 
investments where the market value is substantially below cost and in cases where the decline is 
considered to be other than temporary, an adjustment is recorded as a realized loss. 

Certain pooled endowment funds are administered under a total return policy.  Under this policy, 
any shortfall between investment income utilized under the total return spending policy and the 
actual income earned is met by reclassifying realized and unrealized gains of temporarily 
restricted net assets to unrestricted for operations. 

Investments are included in pooled investment funds.  Current market-value is used to determine 
the percent of each fund in the pool.  Income from investments of a pool, including gains or 
losses, is allocated to participating funds based on the respective fund’s percentage of the pool. 

Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

Fair value approximates carrying value for cash and investments, accounts receivable, 
contributions receivable (included with other assets on the consolidated statements of financial 
position), estimated final settlements receivable and payable with third-party payors, accounts 
payable and medical claims payable. 

The fair value of bonds payable is estimated using discounted cash flow analyses based on 
current estimated borrowing rates for similar types of borrowing arrangements or debt. 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) 
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1.  Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (principally first in, first-out method) or market. 

Deferred Expense 

Deferred expense includes unamortized bond issuance expenses, which are amortized over the 
weighted average terms of the bonds, and deferred tax assets of HNE.

Goodwill is amortized on a straight-line basis over the expected life of the benefit. 

Assets Whose Use Is Limited 

Assets whose use is limited include assets held by trustee under indenture agreements and 
designated assets set aside by the Board of Trustees for future capital improvements and other 
strategic initiatives which are in furtherance of Health System and its subsidiaries’ exempt and 
charitable purposes.  Also included are investments of the captive insurance company and 
beneficial interests in perpetual trusts. 

Land, Buildings and Equipment 

Land, buildings and equipment are stated at cost, less depreciation and amortization determined 
on the straight-line basis. 

Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred.  Betterments and major renewals 
are capitalized.  Cost of assets sold or retired and the related amounts of accumulated 
depreciation are eliminated from the accounts in the year of disposal, and the resulting gain or 
loss is included in other revenue.  Buildings and equipment under capital lease obligations are 
amortized on the straight-line method over the shorter period of the lease term or the estimated 
useful life.  Such amortization is included in depreciation and amortization in the financial 
statements.  Interest cost incurred on borrowed funds during the period of construction of capital 
assets is capitalized as a component of the cost of acquiring those assets. 

Excess of Revenues, Gains and Other Support over Expenses 

The excess of revenues, gains, and other support over expenses includes income from operations, 
investment income, realized gains (losses), contributions and equity gains (losses) in affiliates.  
Changes in unrestricted net assets which are excluded from the excess of revenues, gains, and 
other support over expenses include net assets released from restrictions for capital, unrealized 
gains and losses on investments other than trading securities, permanent transfers of assets to and 
from affiliates for other than goods and services and the minimum pension liability adjustment. 
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1.  Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Other Expenses 

Other expenses are presented separately from the natural classification of expenses reported in 
the consolidated statements of operations.  Other expenses are considered nonrecurring and are 
comprised of severance and benefit costs resulting from the discontinuance of certain health care 
programs. 

Patient Service Revenue 

Net patient service revenue is reported at estimated net realizable amounts from patients, third-
party payors, and others for services rendered and includes estimated retroactive revenue 
adjustments due to future audits, reviews, and investigations.  Retroactive adjustments are 
considered in the recognition of revenue on an estimated basis in the period the related services 
are rendered, and such amounts are adjusted in future periods as adjustments become known or 
as years are no longer subject to such audits, reviews and investigations.  Contracts, laws and 
regulations governing the Medicare, Medicaid, Blue Cross, and the uncompensated care pool 
programs are complex and subject to interpretation.  As a result, there is at least a reasonable 
possibility that recorded estimates will change by a material amount in the near term.   

Blue Cross and other managed care plans have negotiated with Health System and its 
subsidiaries various forms of contractual payment rates.  The most common payment rates 
include discounted charges, per case, per diems and fee schedules. 

Medicaid payment rates are negotiated between the Division of Medical Assistance and 
individual hospitals.  Medicare Prospective Payment System (PPS) regulations determine 
payment due acute care hospitals for inpatient services provided to Medicare beneficiaries.  
Medicare payments for outpatient services are a blend of PPS and fee schedules. 

During 2004 and 2003, Health System recorded adjustments to amounts accrued for settlements 
related to prior fiscal years.  The net effect of such adjustments was to (decrease) increase net 
patient service revenue by approximately $(3,993,000) and $11,155,000 in 2004 and 2003, 
respectively. 

Uncompensated Care Pool 

The Commonwealth of Massachusetts operates an “Uncompensated Care Pool” (the Pool) which 
is partially funded by acute care hospitals through an assessment on gross charges billed to 
nongovernmental payors.  Prior to 2004, Massachusetts hospitals shared pro-rata in any liability 
attributable to free care expenditures in excess of funds available.  Beginning in 2004, hospitals 
within the Commonwealth are reimbursed for their uncompensated care at a predetermined 
amount based in part on free care provided in a prior year.  The assessment and reimbursement 
are reported within net patient service revenue. 
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1.  Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

Charity Care 

It is the policy of BMC, FMC, MLH, BMERF, and VNAH to provide care to any patient in need 
of medical care, regardless of the patient’s ability to pay for such care.  Based upon the patient’s 
financial capability to pay, such care is provided free of charge or at amounts below normal 
charges.  Because amounts determined to qualify as charity care are not pursued, they are not 
reported as revenue.  The amounts of such care at standard charges were approximately 
$43,261,000 and $25,804,000 for the years ended September 30, 2004 and 2003, respectively. 

In addition to the charity care provided to patients, Health System and its subsidiaries have 
ongoing community outreach initiatives in the areas of health services access, education, safety 
and community reinvestment.  The initiatives include free-standing health centers, improving 
school based health services, implementing an immunization tracking system to link preschool 
aged children to primary care providers, youth development programs, increasing minority 
employment, improving the community’s health status, wellness, health and safety programs for 
senior citizens and health screenings and forums. 

Income Taxes 

All of Health System’s consolidated entities qualify as tax exempt not-for-profit organizations 
under Section 501(c) (3) of the Internal Revenue Code, except for BHSIC, IC and its subsidiary, 
and HNE and its subsidiaries. 

Statement of Cash Flows 

For purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows, Health System and its subsidiaries 
consider all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to 
be cash equivalents. 

Interest paid was $12,858,000 and $14,102,000 for 2004 and 2003, respectively. 

In connection with Health System’s minimum pension liability adjustment, Health System 
reduced its intangible pension asset by approximately $1,815,000 in 2004.  The recorded 
intangible pension asset at September 30, 2003 was approximately $15,431,000. 
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2.  Cash and Investments 

The composition of cash and investments at September 30, 2004 and 2003 are as follows (in 
thousands):

 2004 2003 
   
Cash and cash equivalents $  56,548 $  52,036 
Common and preferred stock 179,901 159,114
U.S. government and domestic fixed income securities 185,027 159,507
Other investments 21,197 15,971

$442,673 $386,628

Cash and investments at September 30, 2004 and 2003 are included in net assets as follows (in 
thousands):

 2004 2003 
   
Unrestricted $383,945 $332,114
Temporarily restricted 44,611 40,473
Permanently restricted 14,117 14,041

$442,673 $386,628
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2.  Cash and Investments (continued) 

Investment income, gains and losses on unrestricted funds at September 30, 2004 and 2003 are 
as follows (in thousands): 

2004 2003 
Investment income included in: 

Other revenue $  4,621 $  6,110 
Interest expense 282 324
Other income 1,539 1,881

Net interest savings on swap agreements 1,888 454
Change in fair value of swap agreements 75 518
Net realized gain (loss) on investments included in: 

Other revenue 4,870 3,520
Other income 4,767 (768)

$18,042 $12,039
Other changes in unrestricted net assets: 

Net unrealized gain on investments $  9,226 $23,777

Management continually reviews its investment portfolio and evaluates whether declines in the 
fair value of securities should be considered other-than-temporary.  Factored into this evaluation 
are the general market conditions, the issuer’s financial condition and near-term prospects, 
conditions in the issuer’s industry, the recommendation of advisors and the length of time and 
extent to which the market value has been less than cost. 

At September 30, 2004, Health System had gross unrealized losses on investments, primarily 
publicly traded equity securities, of approximately $3,013,000 with a fair value of approximately 
$34,815,000.  Approximately 5% of the gross unrealized losses relate to investments where the 
market value had been below cost for longer than twelve months.  Management believes that, 
given the small percentage declines below cost, market conditions and mangement’s intent and 
ability to hold the securities, any losses recognized on the sale of such investments will not be 
material to the financial statements. At September 30, 2004, the Health System had gross 
unrealized gains on investments of approximately $15,935,000 with a fair value of 
approximately $337,176,000. 
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3.  Land, Buildings and Equipment 

Details of land, buildings and equipment at September 30, 2004 and 2003 are as follows (in 
thousands):

2004 2003 
   
Land, land improvements and leasehold 

improvements $  18,964 $  18,177 
Buildings 289,137 249,365
Fixed equipment 89,676 88,255
Moveable equipment 317,089 291,336
Assets under capital leases 13,593 15,252

728,459 662,385
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (461,123) (425,877)

$267,336 $236,508

4.  Medical Claims and Capitation Expense 

Medical claims and capitation expense include the following components for the years ended 
September 30, 2004 and 2003 (in thousands): 

2004 2003 
   
Physician and other outpatient specialty services $  90,831 $  84,943 
Inpatient care and same day surgery 28,604 25,284
Pharmacy 32,991 30,575
Primary care capitation 2,705 2,799
Other medical services 4,101 3,891
Coordination of benefits  (572) (527)
Net reinsurance recoveries  (100) 1,016

158,560  147,981 
Provider risk sharing, net  (5,295) (7,986)

Total medical claims and capitation expense $153,265 $139,995
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5.  Leases 

Health System and its subsidiaries lease certain real property and equipment under noncancelable 
leases expiring at various dates through 2016 with varying renewal options.  Rentals generally 
include insurance and maintenance costs. 

Future minimum lease payments at September 30, 2004 are as follows (in thousands): 

Year Ending September 30  
Capital
Leases

Operating
Leases

   
2005 $1,103 $   2,976 
2006 731 2,635 
2007 550 2,133 
2008 550 1,917 
2009 550 1,824 
After 2009 5,264 32 

Total minimum lease payments 8,748 $11,517
Less amount representing interest (3,789)  
Present value of net minimum lease payments 4,959  
Less current portion (641)  

Long-term portion $4,318

Rental expense of operating leases amounted to approximately $7,638,000 and $7,469,000 for 
the years ended September 30, 2004 and 2003, respectively. 

6.  Insurance Liability Loss Reserves 

BHSIC, wholly owned by Health System, insures the professional and general liability of 
substantially all of Health System’s subsidiaries, with the exception of HNE, on an indemnity 
basis.  Health System and certain of its subsidiaries have also purchased excess professional and 
general coverage from other insurers. In addition, BHSIC insures the workers’ compensation, 
employer’s liability, excess workers’ compensation, and long-term disability of certain of Health 
System’s subsidiaries.   
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6.  Insurance Liability Loss Reserves (continued) 

Reserves have been provided with the assistance of a consulting actuary for asserted claims and 
for unasserted claims probable of assertion arising from both reported and unreported incidents 
which are based on historical experience and existing reported incidents. 

7.  Short-Term Obligations 

Health System’s commercial paper borrowings at September 30, 2004 were $30,428,000 
($30,483,000 at September 30, 2003) at an average interest rate of 2.00%.  The carrying value of 
these short-term obligations approximates fair value.  The bank letter of credit committed to 
support commercial paper borrowings of Health System amounted to $40,000,000 at 
September 30, 2004 and 2003. 

8.  Mortgages and Notes Payable 

Details of mortgages and notes payable at September 30, 2004 and 2003 are (in thousands): 

2004 2003 
Mortgage, payable in monthly installments of $19, 

including interest at a variable rate (4.00% at 
September 30, 2004 and 4.25% at September 30, 
2003).  The mortgage note is collateralized by certain 
property. $ 474 $ 679 

Other obligations 4   51 
478 730

Less current portion (219) (221)

Long-term portion $ 259 $ 509 

For the aggregate principal payments for mortgages and notes payable over the next five years, 
see Note 9. 
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9.  Bonds Payable 

BMC, FMC, and MLH have loan agreements with the Massachusetts Health and Educational 
Facilities Authority (MHEFA) for construction projects and equipment. 

   
Amount

of

 Interest Rate 
at

September 30 
Amount Outstanding 

September 30 
  Borrowing  2004  2004 2003 
        
MHEFA Revenue Bonds, 
   BMC Issue: 

       

      Series C  $112,330  6.2-7.5%  $       265 
      Series D  $122,925  2.7-6.0%  $  87,420  91,625 
      Series E  $  78,545  4.7-6.0%  70,330  71,870 
      Series F  $  47,640  4.0-5.8%  46,975  47,640 
      
MHEFA Variable Rate Demand 

Revenue Bonds, Capital 
Asset Program Issues: 

     

Series J-2 
   BMC $  14,000 Variable 1.2% 12,696  13,052 
Series D 
   FMC $    5,175 Variable 3.0% 469    1,058 
Series G-1 
   MLH $    3,900 Variable 1.28% 1,702   2,020 

      219,592 227,530
Less original issue discount, net
Less current portion 

    (737) 
 (8,206) 

(779)
(7,937)

      
      $210,649 $218,814
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9.  Bonds Payable (continued) 

These agreements include various financial covenants, the most restrictive of which are a pledge 
of revenues and the maintenance of a ratio of Net Revenue Available to Meet Debt Service to 
Total Principal and Interest Requirements of at least 1.1.  Health System was in compliance with 
these covenants at September 30, 2004 and 2003. 

Certain buildings and equipment have been pledged as collateral for these borrowings. 

The following funds and their balances at September 30, 2004 and 2003 have been established in 
accordance with these agreements (in thousands): 

2004 2003 
   
Debt service fund $5,837 $  6,143 
Construction fund 1,340 11,233

$7,177 $17,376

Aggregate future principal payments of all long-term borrowings are as follows (in thousands): 

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
After
2009

Mortgages, notes 
  payable and capital 
  lease obligations:  $   860 $   600 $   188 $   206 $   225 $   3,358 
    Series D Bonds 4,690 4,925   5,165 5,435 5,720 61,485 
    Series E Bonds  1,635 1,735 1,835   1,935 2,050 61,140 
    Series F Bonds  695 730   765  810   850 43,125 
     
Capital asset program:     
    Series D Bonds 469    
    Series G-1 Bonds   341 365 392  420   184 -
    Series J-2 Bonds 376 399  423   448    475 10,575 
     
 $9,066 $8,754 $8,768 $9,254 $9,504 $179,683 

BMC has entered into guaranty agreements on behalf of FMC and MLH in connection with 
outstanding MHEFA bonds.

The fair value of the bonds payable at September 30, 2004 approximates $232,905,000. 
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9.  Bonds Payable (continued) 

BMC periodically enters into interest rate swap agreements to moderate its exposure to interest 
rate changes and to lower the overall cost of borrowings.  Gains and losses realized on 
termination of contracts are deferred and amortized over the remaining life of the associated 
contract.  In 2001, BMC had four interest rate swap agreements for a notional amount of 
$10,000,000 each, associated with the MHEFA Revenue Bonds, Series E.   

In 2001, BMC terminated the four swap agreements at a gain of approximately $1,090,000, 
which is being amortized over the remaining term of the agreements.  The amortized gain for 
fiscal years 2004 and 2003 totaling approximately $275,000 and $304,000, respectively, were 
netted against interest expense (see Note 10). 

Due to the favorable interest rate environment during fiscal year 2003, BMC decided to 
restructure its existing fixed rate MHEFA Revenue Bonds, Series D, which had a weighted 
average fixed rate of approximately 5.4%.  BMC exercised its call option on $87,420,000 of its 
MHEFA Revenue Bonds, Series D and on July 1, 2003 purchased the bonds from the original 
holders.  The bonds were reissued on the same date to a financial institution for $87,420,000.  In 
connection with the bond restructuring, BMC recognized a loss on the extinguishment of debt of 
approximately $2,574,000, which is included under other income in the consolidated statements 
of operations. 

Also on July 1, 2003, BMC executed a total return swap agreement with the financial institution 
in the amount of $87,420,000.  The total return swap agreement provides for the financial 
institution to pay fixed payments to BMC equal to the debt service on the Series D Bonds and for 
BMC to pay the financial institution variable rate payments based upon the BMA Municipal 
Swap Index plus 40 basis points.  The BMA Municipal Swap Index rate was 1.69% and 1.08% at 
September 30, 2004 and 2003, respectively.   The agreement, in effect, converts $87,420,000 of 
fixed rate debt to a variable rate of interest.  There are termination provisions for each party to 
this contract.

In order to manage the risk of changes in interest rates, BMC entered into an interest rate swap 
agreement with the financial institution with a notional amount of $67,470,000.  Under the terms 
of the agreement, BMC pays a fixed rate of 3.26% and receives variable payments based upon 
the BMA Municipal Swap Index from the financial institution.  The fair value of this agreement 
of approximately $593,000 and $518,000 at September 30, 2004 and 2003, respectively, is 
included in investments in pooled funds on the consolidated statements of financial position.   

The net interest savings resulting from the restructuring and the change in the fair value of the 
associated interest rate swaps are included in other income on the consolidated statement of 
operations.
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10.  Interest Expense 

Health System and its subsidiaries capitalize interest cost as part of the historical cost of 
acquiring certain significant qualifying assets.  During the years ended September 30, 2004 and 
2003, interest cost was as follows (in thousands): 

 2004 2003 
   
Total interest cost $13,377 $13,743
Less interest earned on the temporary investment 

of proceeds from restricted tax-exempt 
borrowings (7)   (15) 

Less amortized gain on terminated interest rate 
swaps (275) (304)

Net interest cost 13,095 13,424
Net interest cost capitalized  (1,240) (2,039)

Net interest cost expensed $11,855 $11,385

11.  Income Taxes 

No income taxes have been provided for the years ended September 30, 2004 and 2003 for IC 
and its subsidiary as a result of net operating losses.  As of September 30, 2004, operating loss 
carryforwards for financial reporting purposes totaled approximately $2,360,000 which expire in 
various years ranging from 2006 to 2024.  This results in a deferred tax asset; however, because 
utilization of these net operating losses is not assured, IC has recorded a full valuation allowance 
offsetting this deferred tax asset. 

Income tax expense for the period ended September 30, 2004 for HNE and its subsidiaries was 
approximately $1,824,000.  Net federal and state deferred tax assets totaled approximately 
$6,228,000 and $5,314,000 as of September 30, 2004 and 2003, respectively.  HNE utilized state 
net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $11,000 for the year period September 30, 
2004.

12.  Funds Held in Trust By Others 

Health System and its subsidiaries are beneficiaries of certain perpetual trusts (Trusts), from 
which they receive unrestricted income.  Appreciation (depreciation) in the value of the Trusts is 
recorded as an increase (decrease) to permanently restricted net assets.  During 2004 and 2003, 
Trust distributions of approximately $678,000 and $725,000, respectively, are included in other 
income. 
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13.  Pension Plan 

Health System and certain of its consolidated subsidiaries and other ownership interests 
participate in a noncontributory defined benefit cash balance retirement plan (the plan) covering 
substantially all of their eligible employees. 

Health System’s policy is to fund amounts as are necessary on an actuarial basis to provide for 
benefits in accordance with the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA) 
using the Accrued Benefit (Net Credit) actuarial cost method. 

The following table presents a reconciliation of the beginning and ending balances of the plan-
projected benefit obligations, fair value of plan assets and funded status of the plan as of 
September 30: 

2004 2003 
   
Change in pension obligation 
Pension obligation at beginning of year $359,532 $291,879
Service cost 19,718 15,692
Interest cost 23,230 21,819
Actuarial (gain) loss (1,372) 41,816
Benefits paid (18,187) (11,674)
Pension obligation at end of year 382,921 359,532

Change in plan assets  
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 243,755 224,346
Actual return on plan assets 36,319 11,083
Employer contributions 31,500 20,000
Benefits paid (18,187) (11,674)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year 293,387 243,755

Funded Status  
Funded status of the plan (89,534) (115,777)
Unrecognized net actuarial loss 110,416 127,206
Unrecognized prior service cost 13,677 15,500
Contributions received between measurement date  

and fiscal year end 6,000 4,364
Prepaid pension cost 40,559 31,293
Intangible asset recorded (13,677) (15,500)
Minimum pension liability adjustment (66,695) (88,567)

Accrued pension liability $ (39,813) $ (72,774) 
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13.  Pension Plan (continued) 

The assumptions used to develop the projected benefit obligation as of September 30: 

2004 2003 

Measurement date June 30, 2004 June 30, 2003 
Discount rate 6.50% 6.25%
Rate of compensation increase 3.75 3.50

A minimum pension liability adjustment is required when the actuarial present value of 
accumulated benefits (ABO) exceeds plan assets and accrued pension liabilities.  As of the 
June 30, 2004 and June 30, 2003 measurement date, the plan’s ABO exceeded its plan assets by 
approximately $45,813,000 and $77,138,000 respectively.  These amounts, less the portion of the 
plan related to unconsolidated ownership interests, have been recorded as a long-term liability in 
the consolidated statements of financial position.  An intangible asset has also been recorded 
equal to the unrecognized prior service cost of approximately $13,677,000 and $15,500,000 in 
2004 and 2003, respectively, less the portion related to the unconsolidated ownership interest.  
The reduction of net assets is equal to the minimum pension liability and the reversal of the 
deferred pension cost, less the intangible asset. 

Net pension cost for the defined benefit plan for the years ended September 30, 2004 and 2003 
includes the following components (in thousands): 

2004 2003 

Service cost $ 19,718 $ 15,692 
Interest cost 23,230 21,819
Expected return on plan assets (24,963) (23,606)
Amortization of prior service cost 1,823 1,823
Recognized net actuarial loss 4,062 121

Net pension cost $ 23,870 $15,849
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13.  Pension Plan (continued) 

The assumptions used to determine net pension cost for the years ended September 30, 2004 and 
2003:

2004 2003 

Discount rate 6.25% 7.25%
Expected return on plan assets 8.75 9.00
Rate of compensation increase 3.50 4.00

Plan Assets 

The plan’s investment objectives are to achieve long-term growth in excess of inflation and to 
provide a rate of return that meets or exceeds the actuarial expected long-term rate of return on 
plan assets.  In order to minimize risk, the plan aims to minimize the variability in yearly returns.  
The plan also aims to diversify its holdings among sectors, industries, and companies.  The target 
allocations of assets at September 30, 2004, were equities 55%, fixed income 27%, and other 
18%.

To develop the expected long-term rate of return on plan assets assumption, the Health System 
considered the historical return and the future expectations for returns for each asset class, as 
well as the target asset allocation of the pension portfolio. 

Health System’s pension plan asset allocation at September 30, 2004, by asset category, are as 
follows: 

 2004 

Common and preferred stock     54% 
U.S. government and domestic fixed income securities 31
Other investments 15

  100% 

Contributions

Health System expects to contribute $34,000,000 to its pension plan in 2005. 
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13.  Pension Plan (continued) 

Estimated Future Benefit Payments 

The following approximate benefit payments, which reflect expected future service, as 
appropriate, are expected to be paid over the next ten calendar years  (in thousands): 

Calendar Year 
Pension
Benefits

2004 $  16,000 
2005 16,600 
2006 19,500 
2007 24,100 
2008 29,300 
Years 2009–2013 204,600 

HNE provides a 401(k) Retirement Plan (Plan).  Each year, employees may contribute up to 20% 
of pre-tax annual compensation, as defined in the Plan document.  HNE matches 100% of 
employee contributions to the Plan up to a maximum of 4% of compensation.  An additional 
contribution of 1% may be made by HNE at its discretion.  Contributions and compensation 
levels are subject to certain limitations under the Internal Revenue Code.  The Plan expense 
amounted to approximately $616,000 and $546,000 in 2004 and 2003, respectively. 

14.  Concentrations of Credit Risk

Health System and its subsidiaries grant credit without collateral to its patients, most of who are 
local residents and are insured under third-party payor agreements.  The mix of receivables from 
patients and third-party payors at September 30, 2004 and 2003 are as follows: 

 2004 2003 

Medicare 13% 13%
Medicaid 14 12
Blue Cross 3   6 
Health maintenance organizations 32 36
Commercial 19 15
Self-pay patients 19 18

100% 100%
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15.  Functional Expenses 

Health System and its subsidiaries provide general health care services to residents within its 
geographic location.  Expenses related to providing these services for the years ended 
September 30, 2004 and 2003 are as follows (in thousands): 

 2004 2003 

Health care services $838,427 $772,855
General and administrative 158,130 147,059

$996,557 $919,914

16. Reclassifications 

Certain 2003 amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year’s presentation. 
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In the consolidating financial schedules on the following pages, the company names have been 
abbreviated, as follows: 

Baystate Medical Center, Inc.    BMC 
Franklin Medical Center    FMC 
Mary Lane Hospital Corporation   MLH 
Baystate Medical Education and Research Foundation, Inc.   BMERF 
Baystate Affiliated Practice Organization, Inc.    BAPO 
Visiting Nurse Association & Hospice of Western New England, Inc.   VNAH 
Health New England, Inc. and subsidiaries   HNE 
Ingraham Corporation and subsidiary   IC 
Baystate Health Systems Ambulance, Inc.   BHSA 
Baystate Health System, Inc.   BHS 
Baystate Administrative Services, Inc.   BAS 
Baystate Health Foundation, Inc.   BHF 
BHS Insurance Company, Ltd.   BHSIC 
Baystate Health System Health Services, Inc.    BHSHS 
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Auditors’ Report on Other Financial Information 

Board of Trustees 
Baystate Health System, Inc. 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated 
financial statements taken as a whole.  The accompanying consolidating balance sheets, 
statements of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows are presented for purposes 
of additional analysis and are not a required part of the consolidated financial statements.  
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audits of 
the consolidated financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material 
respects in relation to the consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.   

December 10, 2004 

A Member Practice of Ernst & Young Global
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APPENDIX C 

 

DEFINITIONS OF CERTAIN TERMS 
 

In addition to the terms defined in this Official Statement, unless the context otherwise requires, 
the following terms shall have the following meanings in the Master Trust Indenture (the “Master Trust 
Indenture”), the Loan and Trust Agreement (the “Agreement”) and the Supplemental Master Indenture For 
Obligation No. 6 (the “Supplemental Indenture”). 

“Act” means Chapter 614 of the Massachusetts Acts of 1968, as amended from time to time. 

“Act of Bankruptcy of the Bank” means the filing of a petition in bankruptcy or commencement of 
a bankruptcy or similar proceeding by or against the Bank under the United States Bankruptcy Code or any 
applicable federal or state bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or similar law now or hereinafter in effect 
unless such petition or proceeding shall have been dismissed and such dismissal shall be final and not 
subject to appeal; provided that, in the event that such a petition is filed or proceeding is commenced 
against the Bank without its consent, such action shall not constitute an Act of Bankruptcy of the Bank 
unless (i) it results in the entry of an order for relief or (ii) any such proceeding remains undismissed, 
undischarged or unbonded for a period of sixty (60) days. 

 “Additional Indebtedness” means any Indebtedness (including all Indenture Indebtedness) 
incurred by any Member of the Obligated Group, subsequent to its becoming a Member of the Obligated 
Group, which shall not include the Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities Authority Revenue 
Bonds, Baystate Medical Center Issue, Series C, or Obligation No. 1 securing such bonds or the loan of 
proceeds of such bonds  The Series D Bonds, the Series J-2 Bonds, the Series F Bonds and the Series G 
Bonds are and will be Additional Indebtedness.   

“Adjusted Annual Operating Revenues” means, as to any twelve-month period, the aggregate of 
operating revenues of all Members of the Obligated Group for such period, less contractual allowances, 
free care and uncollectible accounts, determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles and in such a manner that no portion of the operating revenues, contractual allowances, free care 
or uncollectible accounts of any Member is included more than once. 

“Affiliate” means a corporation, partnership, joint venture, association, business trust or similar 
entity organized under the laws of the United States of America or any state thereof:  (a) which Controls or 
which is Controlled, directly or indirectly, by the Corporation or the Parent; or (b) a majority of the 
members of any Governing Body of which are members of the Governing Body of the Corporation. 

“Aggregate Debt Service Requirements” means, as to any period, the aggregate of the Debt 
Service Requirements of all members of the Obligated Group for such period, determined in such a manner 
that no portion of  the Debt Service Requirement of any Member is included more than once. 

“Aggregate Income Available for Debt Service” means, as to any period, the aggregate of Income 
Available for Debt Service of all Members of the Obligated Group for such period, determined in such a 
manner that no portion of Income Available for Debt Service of any such Member is included more than 
once and that debt service on Long-Term Indebtedness secured pursuant to the Master Trust Indenture shall 
be calculated as provided in clause (p) under “Limitations on Creation of Liens” in Appendix D-2. 

“Agreement” means the Loan and Trust Agreement dated as of October 11, 2005 among the 
Authority, the Institution and U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee. 

 “Authority” means the Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities Authority and its 
successors. 

“Authorized Officer” means: (i) in the case of the Authority, the Chairman, Vice Chairman, 
Secretary, Executive Director, Director of Financing Programs, Director of Administration and Finance or 
General Counsel, and when used with reference to an act or document of the Authority also means any 
other person authorized to perform the act or execute the document; and (ii) in the case of the Institution, 
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the Chairman or other presiding officer of the Board of Trustees, the President, Director or other chief 
executive or administrative officer, any Vice President or Vice Chairman, the Treasurer or other chief 
financial officer or any Assistant Treasurer, and when used with reference to an act or document of the 
Institution, also means any other person authorized to perform the act or execute the document. 

“Balloon Indebtedness” means Long-Term Indebtedness which is part of an issue of Indebtedness 
25% or more of which has its Date of Maturity in the same 12 month period. 

“Bank” means Bank of America, N.A., in its capacity as issuer of the Letter of Credit, and any 
other issuer or issuers of a Credit Facility. 

“Bank Rate” means, on any date, the per annum rate of interest on such date applicable to the 
Institution’s reimbursement obligations under the Letter of Credit, as described in the Reimbursement 
Agreement. 

“BMA Index” means The Bond Market Association Municipal Swap Index as of the most recent 
date for which such index was published or such other weekly, high-grade index comprised of seven-day, 
tax-exempt variable rate demand notes produced by Municipal Market Data, Inc., or its successor, or as 
otherwise designated by The Bond Market Association; provided, however, that, if such index is no longer 
produced by Municipal Market Data, Inc. or its successor, then “BMA Index” shall mean such other 
reasonably comparable index selected by the Authority. 

“Bond Counsel” means any attorney at law or firm of attorneys selected by the Authority, of 
nationally recognized standing in matters pertaining to the federal tax exemption of interest on bonds issued 
by states and political subdivisions, and duly admitted to practice law before the highest court of any state 
of the United States, but shall not include counsel for the Institution. 

“Bond Fund” means the fund so established pursuant to the Agreement. 

“Bond Year” means each one year period (or shorter period from the date of issue of the Bonds) 
ending on September 30. 

“Bondowners” or “Owners” means the registered owners of the Bonds from time to time as shown 
in the books kept by the Trustee as bond registrar and transfer agent. 

“Bonds” means the $71,740,000 Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities Authority 
Revenue Bonds, Baystate Medical Center Issue, Series G (2005), dated as of the date of their original 
delivery and any Bond or Bonds duly issued in exchange or replacement therefor. 

 “Book Value,” when used in connection with Property of any Member of the Obligated Group, 
means the cost of such Property, net of accumulated depreciation, calculated in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles, and when used in connection with Property of the Obligated Group, means 
the aggregate of the values so determined with respect to such Property of all Members of the Obligated 
Group determined in such a manner that no portion of such value of Property of any Member is included 
more than once. 

“Business Day” means a day (i) that is not a Saturday or Sunday or legal holiday, (ii) that is a day 
on which banks are not required or authorized to close in New York, New York or Boston, Massachusetts, 
(iii) that is a day on which banking institutions in all of the cities in which the principal corporate trust 
office of the Trustee and, if applicable, the principal offices of the Remarketing Agent and the office of the 
Bank specified in the Letter of Credit for draws thereunder) are located are not required or authorized to 
remain closed and (iv) that is a day on which the New York Stock Exchange or the Depository Trust 
Company is not closed. 
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 “Capitalization” means the sum of (i) the aggregate principal amount of all Outstanding Long-
Term Indebtedness of the Members of the Obligated Group plus (ii) the aggregate Unrestricted Fund 
Balance of the Members of the Obligated Group. 

“Code” means the Internal Revenue code of 1986, as it may be amended from time to time. 

“Commonwealth” means The Commonwealth of Massachusetts. 

  “Completion Indebtedness”  means any Long-Term Indebtedness incurred by any Member of the 
Obligated Group for the purpose of financing the completion of constructing or equipping facilities for the 
construction or equipping of which Long-Term Indebtedness has theretofore been incurred to the extent 
necessary to provide a completed and equipped facility of the type and scope contemplated at the time such 
prior Long-Term Indebtedness was originally incurred and for the purpose of financing a related debt 
service reserve fund, if any. 

“Construction Fund” means the fund so established pursuant to the Agreement. 

 “Consultant” means an independent firm which is a certified public accountant or professional 
management consultant, selected by the Corporation or other Member of the Obligated Group, as the case 
may be, acceptable to the Master Trustee and having the skill and experience necessary to render the 
particular report required by the provision of the Master Trust Indenture in which such requirement 
appears. 

“Continuing Disclosure Agreement” means the Continuing Disclosure Agreement between the 
Institution and the Trustee dated the date of issuance and delivery of the Bonds, as originally executed and 
as it may be amended from time to time in accordance with the terms thereof. 

“Controlled” or “Controls” means with respect to: (a) a corporation having stock, the ownership, 
directly or indirectly, of more than 50% of the voting power of securities (as defined in Section 2(1) of the 
Securities Act of 1933, as amended) of any class or classes, the holders of which are ordinarily, in the 
absence of contingencies, entitled to elect a majority of such corporation’s directors (or persons performing 
similar functions); (b) a not for profit corporation not having stock, the power to elect or appoint, directly 
or indirectly, a majority of the Governing Body of such corporation; (c) a partnership, the ownership, 
directly or indirectly, of general partnership interests equal to at least 50% of the general partnership 
interests; or (d) any other entity, the power to direct the management of such entity through the ownership 
of at least a majority of the voting power of its securities or the right to designate or elect at least a majority 
of the members of its Governing Body, by contract or otherwise. 

“Conversion Date” means the date on which a new Mode becomes effective. 

 “Corporate Trust Office” means the office of the Master Trustee at which its principal corporate 
trust business is conducted, which at the date hereof is located at Boston, Massachusetts. 

“Corporation” means Baystate Medical Center, Inc. and its successors or permitted assigns. 

“Credit Facility” means the Letter of Credit and any substitute irrevocable transferable letter of 
credit delivered to the Trustee pursuant to this Agreement and then in effect. 

 “Date of Maturity” means, subject to the provisions under “Debt Service on Balloon 
Indebtedness” in Appendix D-2, as to any Indebtedness, as of any date of determination, the first date 
thereafter on which such Indebtedness is payable, whether at maturity, by mandatory (including sinking 
fund) redemption (or purchase) or by redemption (or purchase) at the option of the holders; provided that if 
portions of any Indebtedness are payable on different dates, the Date of Maturity shall be separately 
determined for each such portion. 
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“Debt Service Requirement” means, with respect to each Member of the Obligated Group, as to 
any period of time, the aggregate of the amounts required to be paid to amortize principal of Outstanding 
Long-Term Indebtedness and to pay interest (other than capitalized interest or interest or principal to be 
paid from funds held in escrow therefor) on Outstanding Long-Term Indebtedness of such Member during 
such period, taking into account in determining the Debt Service Requirement (A) for any future period that 
(i) certain Indebtedness described in the Master Trust Indenture shall be deemed payable on the dates and 
in the amounts as provided under “Debt Service on Guarantees” and “Debt Service on Balloon 
Indebtedness” in Appendix D-2, and (ii) except as otherwise expressly permitted in the Master Trust 
Indenture, principal on all Indebtedness shall be deemed to be payable on the Date of Maturity thereof, and 
(iii) with respect to indebtedness bearing other than a fixed rate of interest or containing one or more 
substantially disproportionate maturities (after treating sinking fund installments as if they were maturities), 
which maturities do not constitute Balloon Indebtedness, a Consultant or the Member, as the case may be, 
may make such assumptions in determining the Debt Service Requirements with respect to such 
Indebtedness as it deems reasonable and as are acceptable to the Master Trustee and (B) for any period with 
respect to Indebtedness that has been refunded or refinanced or is secured by an Irrevocable Deposit, the 
amounts of principal and interest taken into account during such period shall exclude amounts payable from 
proceeds (and/or the investment thereof) of such refunding or refinancing or from such Irrevocable Deposit. 

“Default” has the meaning given such term in Appendix E to the Official Statement under the 
heading “Default by the Institution”. 

“Delivery Date” means, with respect to a Bond tendered for purchase at the election of the 
Bondowner, the Purchase Date or any subsequent Business Day on which such Bond is delivered to the 
Trustee as provided in the form of Variable Rate Bond in the Agreement. 

“Effective Date” means, while the Bonds are in a Variable Rate Mode, the date on which a new 
interest rate takes effect. 

“Effective Rate” is defined in the form of Variable Rate Bond. 

“Eligible Funds” means (i) amounts drawn on any Credit Facility; (ii) amounts paid to the Trustee 
pursuant to the Agreement which have been held by it for a period of at least 123 days during which no 
Event of Bankruptcy has occurred; and (iii) amounts which if applied to the payment of the Bonds would 
not, in the opinion of nationally recognized counsel experienced in bankruptcy matters selected by the 
Institution and satisfactory to the Trustee, be subject to avoidance as a preference under the United States 
Bankruptcy Code upon an Event of Bankruptcy. The Trustee shall maintain records of Eligible Funds held 
by it. 

“Expense Fund” means the Fund so established pursuant to this Agreement. 

“Event of Bankruptcy” means the filing of a petition in bankruptcy or the commencement of a 
proceeding under the United States Bankruptcy Code or any other applicable law concerning insolvency, 
reorganization or bankruptcy by or against the Institution, or the Authority, as debtor. 

 “Event of Default” means any one or more of those events set forth in the Master Trust Indenture 
and the Agreement. 

“Fiscal Year” means the fiscal year of the Corporation or the fiscal year of any other Member if so 
specified. 

“Fixed Rate” means a rate or rates of interest on the Bonds that is fixed for the remaining term or 
terms of the Bonds. 

“Fixed Rate Conversion Date” means the date upon which the Fixed Rate first becomes effective 
for the Bonds. 
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“Fixed Rate Mode” has the meaning set forth in the form of Variable Rate Bond. 

 “Governing Body” means, when used with respect to the Corporation or any other Member of the 
Obligated Group, its board of directors, board of trustees, or other board or group of individuals, in which 
the powers of the Representative or the Corporation of the Obligated Group are vested. 

“Government or Equivalent Obligations” means (i) obligations issued or guaranteed by the United 
States and (ii) certificates evidencing ownership of the right to the payment of the principal of an interest 
on obligations described in clause (i), provided that such obligations are held in the custody of a bank or 
trust company satisfactory to the Trustee or the Authority, as the case may be, in a special account separate 
from the general assets of such custodian.  

“Governmental Issuer” means any federal, state or municipal corporation or political subdivision 
thereof or any instrumentality of any of the foregoing empowered to issue obligations on behalf thereof. 

“Gross Receipts” means all accounts, accounts receivable, contract rights and the proceeds 
thereof, including all revenues and receipts of each Member of the Obligated Group from all sources (other 
than gifts, grants or bequests which by their terms may not lawfully be used to fulfill such Member’s 
obligations under the Master Trust Indenture). 

“Guaranty” means obligations of any Member of the Obligated Group other than a guaranty of 
obligations of another Member of the Obligated Group, guaranteeing in any manner whether directly or 
indirectly any obligation of any other Person which would, if such other Person were a member of the 
Obligated Group, constitute Indebtedness under the Master Trust Indenture. 

“Hedge Agreement” means an interest rate swap, cap, collar, floor, forward, or other hedging 
agreement, arrangement or security, however denominated, expressly identified pursuant to its terms as 
being entered into in connection with and in order to hedge interest rate fluctuations on all or a portion of 
any indebtedness, and with a counterparty which is rated at least “A” by Moody’s or S&P. 

“Historical Debt Service Coverage Ratio” means, for any period of time, and subject to clause (p) 
of “Limitation on Creation of Liens” in Appendix D-2, the ratio determined by dividing Aggregate Income 
Available for Debt Service for that period by the Aggregate Debt Service Requirement for such period. 

“Historical Test Period” means, with respect to an event, the most recent full Fiscal Year of the 
Obligated Group preceding the event for which audited financial statements are available. 

 “Income Available for Debt Service” means, with respect to each Member of the Obligated 
Group, as to any period of time, the excess of revenue over expenses (excluding from revenues and 
expenses extraordinary items and income from Irrevocable Deposits and excluding from expenses 
depreciation, interest on Long-Term Indebtedness and amortization of bond discount and financing 
expenses), determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, provided that no 
determination thereof shall take into account any revenue or expense of an Affiliate which is not a Member 
of the Obligated Group except as provided in the following sentence.  In determining the Historical Debt 
Service Coverage Ratio or historical coverage of pro forma Indebtedness, (i) amounts actually transferred 
from the Parent to any Member may be treated as revenues of such Member provided such amounts were 
not restricted to purposes inconsistent with the payment of any Indebtedness of such Member and would 
constitute operating or nonoperating revenues of the Member under generally accepted accounting 
principles and (ii) if a Member has audited financial statements for the period in question, its Income 
Available for Debt Service shall be determined to the extent possible from such statements. 

“Indebtedness” means all obligations for borrowed money, or installment sale and capitalized 
lease obligations, incurred or assumed by any Member of the Obligated Group, including Guaranties (other 
than obligations of a Member of the Obligated Group to another Member of the Obligated Group). 
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“Indenture” means the Master Trust Indenture. 

“Indenture Indebtedness” means any Indebtedness evidenced by or the repayment of which is 
secured by an Obligation or Obligations issued and delivered under the Master Trust Indenture and 
authenticated by the Master Trustee. 

 “Institution” means Baystate Medical Center, Inc. and its successors or permitted assigns. 

“Institution Bond” means any Bond registered to the Institution pursuant to the Agreement. 

 “Insurance Consultant” means an independent Person or firm which is selected by the 
Corporation or other Member of the Obligated Group, as the case may be, and acceptable to the Master 
Trustee and qualified to survey risks and to recommend insurance coverage for hospitals, health-related 
facilities and services and organizations engaged in such operations. 

“Interest Payment Date” means with respect to the Bonds, November 1, 2005 and thereafter when 
the Bonds are in the Variable Rate Mode, the first Business Day of each calendar month. 

 “IRC” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as it may be amended and applied to each series 
of Bonds from time to time. 

“Irrevocable Deposit” means the irrevocable deposit in trust of cash in an amount (or Government 
or Equivalent Obligations the principal of and interest on which will be in an amount) and under terms 
sufficient to pay all or a portion of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on, as the same shall 
become due, any Indebtedness which is Outstanding.  The trustee of such deposit may be the Master 
Trustee, a Related Bond Trustee or any other trustee authorized to act in such capacity. 

“Letter of Credit” means initially the $72,801,359 irrevocable letter of credit issued by the Bank 
for the benefit of the Trustee supporting the Bonds in the Variable Rate Mode. 

 “Lien” means any mortgage or pledge of, security interest in or lien or encumbrance on any 
Property of any Member of the Obligated Group which secures any Indebtedness or any other obligation of 
any Member of the Obligated Group, or which secures any obligation of any Person other than an 
obligation to any Member of the Obligated Group, excluding liens applicable to Property in which the 
Member of the Obligated Group has only a leasehold interest unless the lien secures Indebtedness of any 
Member of the Obligated Group. 

“Long-Term Indebtedness” means any Indebtedness which is not Short-Term Indebtedness. 

“Long-Term Plant Indebtedness” shall mean at any time Long-Term Indebtedness of any Member 
incurred to finance or refinance any Property, Plant and Equipment which is in service at such time or for 
which the Member has made a substantial binding commitment. 

 “Master Trust Indenture” means the Master Trust Indenture dated as of November 7, 1989 
between the Institution and State Street Bank and Trust Company, as Master Trustee and as successor to 
Fleet National Bank, as successor to Shawmut Bank N.A., as amended and supplemented by the 
Supplement Master Indenture for Obligation No. 1 dated as of November 7, 1989, Supplement Master 
Indenture for Obligation No. 2 dated as of June 1, 1993, Supplemental Master Indenture for Obligation No. 
3 dated as of May 14, 1996, Supplemental Master Indenture for Obligation No. 4 dated as of February 2, 
1999, Supplemental Master Indenture for Obligation No. 5 dated as of May 14, 2002,  Supplemental 
Master Indenture dated as of September 1, 2004 and Supplemental Master Indenture for Obligation No. 6 
dated as of October 11, 2005, each between the Institution and the Master Trustee. 
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“Master Trustee” means U.S. Bank National Association, as successor to State Street Bank and 
Trust Company, as successor to Fleet National Bank, as successor to Shawmut Bank N.A. or any successor 
thereto. 

“Maximum Annual Debt Service” means the highest Aggregate Debt Service Requirement for the 
then current or any succeeding Fiscal Year. 

“Maximum Interest Rate” means the maximum interest rate on Bonds in the Variable Rate Mode 
supported by a Credit Facility, which rate is initially 12% per annum. The Maximum Interest Rate may be 
adjusted at any time by the Institution by filing with the Authority and the Trustee a certificate stating the 
new Maximum Interest Rate. In no event shall an increase in the Maximum Interest Rate be permitted to 
cause the amount entitled to be drawn under a Credit Facility to be less than the minimum required amount 
specified in the Agreement. 

 “Member of the Obligated Group” or “Member” means (i) the Corporation and (ii) any Affiliate 
which at any time after the delivery of the Master Trust Indenture has become a Member of the Obligated 
Group in accordance with the Master Trust Indenture and has not withdrawn from the Obligated Group 
pursuant to the Master Trust Indenture. 

 “Mode” means the period for and the manner in which the interest rates on the Bonds are set and 
includes the Variable Rate Mode and the Fixed Rate Mode. 

 “Moody’s” means Moody’s Investors Service, Inc., or any successor rating agency. 

“Note” means Obligation No. 6 issued under the Master Trust Indenture. 

“Obligated Group” means the Institution and any other entities admitted pursuant to the Master 
Indenture. 

“Obligation” means an instrument evidencing or securing the repayment of particular Indenture 
Indebtedness, provided such instrument has been issued in accordance with, and executed and authenticated 
as provided in, the Master Trust Indenture. 

“Obligation Holder” or “Holder” means the registered owner of any Obligation in registered form. 

“Obligation No. 6” means the Obligation No. 6 dated as of October 11, 2005 issued under the 
Master Indenture. 

 “Officer’s Certificate” means a certificate meeting the requirements of the Master Trust 
Indenture, an original of which shall be received by the Master Trustee, signed by the chief financial officer 
or such other person designated in writing by the chief financial officer or by resolution of the Governing 
Body of the Corporation or other Member as the case may be. 

“Opinion of Bond Counsel” means an opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect that the matter or 
action in question will not have an adverse impact on the tax-exempt status of the Bonds for federal income 
tax purposes. 

“Opinion of Counsel” means an opinion in writing signed by an attorney or firm of attorneys, 
acceptable to the Master Trustee, who may be counsel for any Member of the Obligated Group, or other 
counsel. 

“Outstanding,” when used to modify Bonds, refers to Bonds issued under the Agreement, 
excluding: (i) Bonds which have been exchanged or replaced or delivered to the Trustee for credit against a 
principal payment or a sinking fund installment; (ii) Bonds which have been paid; (iii) Bonds which have 
become due and for the payment of which moneys have been duly provided; (iv) Bonds deemed tendered 
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for purchase and not delivered to the Trustee on the Purchase Date, provided sufficient funds for payment 
of the Purchase Price are on deposit with the Trustee; and (v) Bonds for which there have been irrevocably 
set aside sufficient funds or Government or Equivalent Obligations bearing interest at such rates, and with 
such maturities as will provide sufficient funds to pay or redeem them; provided, however, that if any such 
Bonds are to be redeemed prior to maturity, the Authority shall have taken all action necessary to redeem 
such Bonds and notice of such redemption shall have been duly mailed in accordance with the Agreement 
or irrevocable instructions so to mail shall have been given to the Trustee. 

 “Parent” means Baystate Health, Inc. and its successors, so long as it, or its successor, Controls 
the Corporation. 

“Paying Agent” means the Paying Agent designated from time to time pursuant to the Agreement. 

“Permitted Investments” has the meaning given such term in Appendix E to the Official Statement 
under the heading “Investments.” 

“Period” or “Rate Period” has the meaning set forth in the form of Variable Rate Bond. 

“Permitted Liens” has the meaning set forth in Appendix D-2 under the heading “Limitations on 
Creation of Liens.” 

“Person” shall include an individual, association, unincorporated organization, a corporation, 
partnership, joint venture, or a government or an agency or a political subdivision thereof. 

“Pledge Agreement” means (a) the Pledge Agreement dated as of October 1, 2005 by and between 
the Institution and the Bank, as said Pledge Agreement may be supplemented or amended from time to 
time, and (b) any similar agreement entered into by and between the Institution and any substitute bank or 
banks, as said agreement may be supplemented or amended from time to time. 

“Pledged Bond” means any Bond purchased with proceeds provided by the Credit Facility which 
is registered to the Bank or its designee, as pledgee, pursuant to the Agreement. 

“Principal Payment Date” means the day on which principal shall be payable on the Bonds 
according to their terms so long as any of such Bonds shall be Outstanding. 

“Project” means the acquisition of land, site development, construction or alteration of buildings 
or the acquisition or installation of furnishings and equipment, refinancing of, or any combination of the 
foregoing, in connection with the following: 

(i) the refinancing of the Authority’s Revenue Bonds, Baystate Medical Center Issue, Series E, 
issued to finance or refinance the following property owned by the Institution: (A) construction of 
a new 104,500 gross square foot Ambulatory Care Center at 3300 Main Street, Springfield, 
Massachusetts; (B) construction of a new 100,000 gross square foot building to house the 
Ambulatory Surgery Center, Medical Library and education/conference space on the Institution’s 
North campus located at 759 Chestnut Street, Springfield, Massachusetts (the “North Campus”); 
(C) renovation of various existing spaces within North Campus; (D) acquisition of equipment for 
the new facilities; and 

(ii) financing of routine capital construction, renovations, and equipping of various facilities of the 
Institution. 

The word “Project” also refers to the facilities which result or have resulted from the foregoing 
activities. The scope of the Project may be increased or decreased with the written consent of the Authority 
upon certification by the Project Officer on behalf of the Institution describing the change, estimating the 
resulting increase or decrease in the cost of the Project and stating that the amendment will not cause the 
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Project to violate any applicable building, zoning, land use, environmental protection, historical, sanitary, 
safety or educational laws, rules and regulations or applicable grant, reimbursement or insurance 
requirements or the provisions of this Agreement. The signers of the certificate may rely, as to conclusions 
of law, on an opinion of counsel furnished to the Authority and referred to in the certificate. The Authority 
may waive any provision required to be contained in the certificate upon advice of counsel that the waiver 
does not adversely affect the security for the Bonds. The scope of the Project may be increased only upon 
receipt by the Authority of an Opinion of Bond Counsel regarding the increase in scope. 

“Project Costs” means the costs of issuing the Bonds and carrying out the Project, including 
repayment of external loans and internal advances for the same to the extent permitted by the Agreement, 
working capital expenditures directly related to the Project, and interest prior to, during and for up to one 
year after construction is substantially complete, but excluding general administrative expenses, overhead 
of the Institution and interest on internal advances. 

“Project Officer” means the Treasurer or an alternate or successor appointed by the Institution. 

 “Projected Debt Service Coverage Ratio” means, for any future forecast period of time, and 
subject to clause (t) under “Limitations on the Creation of Liens” in Appendix D-2, the ratio determined by 
dividing projected or forecasted Aggregate Income Available for Debt Service during such period by 
Maximum Annual Debt Service during such period. 

“Projection” means a forecast or determination of the Projected Debt Service Coverage Ratio or a 
determination of historical coverage of pro forma Indebtedness. 

“Property” means with respect to each Member any and all of its property, whether real or 
personal, tangible or intangible and wherever situated including, without limitation, accounts, accounts 
receivable, contract rights and general intangibles, and all proceeds of all of the foregoing, whether cash or 
non-cash and all of its rights, titles and interests in and to any such property. 

“Property, Plant and Equipment” means all Property of the Members of the Obligated Group 
which is property, plant and equipment under generally accepted accounting principles. 

“Purchase Date” means, while the Bonds are in a Variable Rate Mode, the date on which Bonds 
shall be required to be purchased following a mandatory or optional tender in accordance with the 
provisions in the form of Variable Rate Bond. 

“Purchase Price” shall have the meaning set forth in the form of Variable Rate Bond. 

“Rebate Year” means the one year period (or shorter period beginning on the date of issue) ending 
on September 30. 

 “Record Date” has the meaning set forth in the forms of the Bonds. 

 “Refunding Trust Agreement” means the Refunding Trust Agreement dated as of October 11, 
2005 among the Authority, the Institution and U.S. Bank National Association, as Refunded Bond Trustee. 

“Reimbursement Agreement” means (a) the Reimbursement Agreement dated as of October 1, 
2005 between the Institution and the Bank and any amendments and supplements thereto and (b) any letter 
of credit agreement or reimbursement agreement by and between the Institution and any substitute bank or 
banks, and any amendments and supplements thereto. 

“Related Bond Indenture” means any indenture, bond resolution or other comparable instrument 
pursuant to which a series of Related Bonds is issued, together with any mortgage, note, loan agreement or 
similar instrument securing such series of Related Bonds. 
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“Related Bond Issuer” means the Governmental Issuer of any issue of Related Bonds, or the 
Corporation, as the case may be. 

“Related Bonds” means the revenue bonds, notes, other evidences of indebtedness or any other 
obligations issued pursuant to a single Related Bond Indenture, the proceeds of which are loaned or 
otherwise made available to or for the benefit of a Member of the Obligated Group, directly or indirectly, in 
consideration, in whole or in part, of the execution, authentication and delivery of an Obligation or series of 
Obligations to or for the order of a Governmental Issuer or Related Bond Trustee. 

“Related Bond Trustee” means the trustee and its successors in the trust created under any Related 
Bond Indenture, and if there is no such trustee, means the Related Bond Issuer. 

“Related Supplement” means an indenture supplemental to, and authorized and executed pursuant 
to the terms of, the Master Trust Indenture for the purpose of creating Indenture Indebtedness issued 
thereunder. 

“Remarketing Agent” means Citigroup Global Markets Inc., in its capacity as remarketing agent 
under the Remarketing Agreement, its successors and assigns. 

“Remarketing Agreement” means the Remarketing Agreement dated as of October 27, 2005 
among the Institution, the Trustee and the Remarketing Agent, as the same may be amended or 
supplemented from time to time. 

 “Representative” means the Corporation or such other Member of the Obligated Group as may be 
designated from time to time pursuant to written notice to the Master Trustee executed by each Member of 
the Obligated Group. 

“Restricted Property” means the property described in Exhibit A to the Master Trust Indenture, as 
modified from time to time as a result of the admission or withdrawal of Members of the Obligated Group 
or of the merger or consolidation of Members of the Obligated Group with other corporations. 

“Revenues” means all rates, payments, rents, fees, charges, and other income and receipts, 
including proceeds of insurance, eminent domain and sale, and including proceeds derived from any 
security provided hereunder, payable to the Authority or the Trustee under the Agreement, excluding 
administrative fees of the Authority, fees of the Trustee, reimbursements to the Authority or the Trustee for 
expenses incurred by the Authority or the Trustee, and indemnification of the Authority and the Trustee. 

 “Series C Bonds” means the $112,330,000 Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities 
Authority Revenue Bonds, Baystate Medical Center Issue, Series C, dated November 1, 1989. 

“Series D Bonds” means the $122,925,000 Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities 
Authority Revenue Bonds, Baystate Medical Center Issue, Series D, dated August 15, 1993. 

“Series D Bond Insurer” means Financial Guaranty Insurance Company, a New York state 
insurance company, or any successor thereto. 

“Series D Loan and Trust Agreement” means the Loan and Trust Agreement  

“Series E Bond Insurance Policy” means the municipal bond insurance policy issued by the Series 
E Bond Insurer guaranteeing the scheduled payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds. 

“Series E Bonds” means the $78,545,000 Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities 
Authority Revenue Bonds, Baystate Medical Center Issue, Series E, dated June 1, 1996. 
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“Series F Bonds” means the $47,640,000 Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities 
Authority Revenue Bonds, Baystate Medical Center Issue, Series F, dated June 1, 2002. 

“Series G Bonds” means the $71,740,000 Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities 
Authority Revenue Bonds, Baystate Medical Center Issue, Series G (2005), dated October 27, 2005. 

“Series J-2 Bonds”  means the Institution’s loan as of February 2, 1999 of a portion of the 
proceeds of the Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities Authority Revenue Bonds, Capital Asset 
Program, Series J-2, in the original loan amount of $12,856,343. 

“Short-Term Indebtedness” means any issue of Indebtedness no portion of which has a Date of 
Maturity more than one year from the date of original issuance thereof. 

“S&P” means Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, 
Inc. or any successor rating agency. 

“Supplemental Master Indenture for Obligation No. 6”  means the Supplemental Master Indenture 
for Obligation No. 6 dated as of October 11, 2005 between the Institution and the Master Trustee. 

“Tendered Bond” means any Bond with respect to which the Bondowner has elected to require 
purchase pursuant to the Agreement. 

“Trustee” means U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee under this Agreement and its 
successors in such capacity. 

“UCC” means the Massachusetts Uniform Commercial Code as in effect from time to time. 

 “Unrestricted Fund Balance” means, as of any date of determination, (i) for each Member which 
is a tax-exempt entity, the aggregate unrestricted (or general) fund balance of such Member, and (ii) for 
each Member which is not a tax-exempt entity, the excess of assets over liabilities of such Member, in each 
case as shown on the most recent audited financial statements of such Member. 

“Variable Rate” means the rate of interest that is set weekly as provided in the form of Variable 
Rate Bond. 

“Variable Rate Mode” has the meaning set forth in the form of Variable Rate Bond. 
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Appendices C, D-1, D-2 and E contain brief summaries, prepared by Ropes & 
Gray LLP, Bond Counsel to the Authority, of certain provisions of the Master Trust 
Indenture, the Supplemental Master Indenture for Obligation No. 2, the Supplemental 
Master Indenture for Obligation No. 3, the Supplemental Master Indenture for 
Obligation No. 5  and the Loan and Trust Agreement.  These summaries do not purport 
to be complete, and reference is made to each of the documents for full and complete 
statements of such and all provisions. 

Certain of the amendments to the Master Trust Indenture described in Appendix 
D-2 under the heading “Supplemental Covenants and Future Amendments to the Master 
Trust Indenture” will take effect without further approval of the Series G  Bondowners as 
provided by the Supplemental Master Indenture for Obligation No. 2, Supplemental 
Master Indenture for Obligation No. 3 and Supplemental Master Indenture for 
Obligation No. 5. 

SUMMARY OF THE MASTER TRUST INDENTURE 

Amount of Indenture Indebtedness 

The number of Obligations evidencing or securing Indenture Indebtedness that may be created 
under the Master Trust Indenture is not limited.  The aggregate principal amount of Indenture Indebtedness 
and the principal amount of each Obligation that may be issued, authenticated and delivered under the 
Master Trust Indenture is not limited except as limited by the provisions of the Master Trust Indenture or of 
the Related Supplements.  (Section 2.01) 

Designation of Indenture Indebtedness 

Obligations shall be issued in such forms as may from time to time be determined by Related 
Supplements.  Each Obligation or series of Obligations shall be created by a different Related Supplement 
and each Obligation shall be designated in such a manner as will differentiate such Obligation from any 
other Obligation.  (Section 2.02) 

Security for Obligations 

Subject to certain limitations in the Master Trust Indenture, any Obligation may be secured by 
security (including, without limitation, letters or lines of credit, insurance or Permitted Liens on Property, 
or security interests in depreciation reserves, debt service or interest reserves or debt service or similar 
funds) in addition to the Lien on Gross Receipts, which additional security need not extend to any other 
Indebtedness (including any other Obligations).  (Section 2.06) 

Pledge of Gross Receipts 

Under the Master Trust Indenture, each Member of the Obligated Group pledges and grants to the 
Master Trustee a Lien on its Gross Receipts to secure all Indenture Indebtedness subject to its right to grant 
a prior lien pursuant to the Master Trust Indenture, as described under “Limitations on Creation of Liens” 
in this Appendix D-1.  If any required payment on any Indenture Indebtedness is not made when due, any 
Gross Receipts with respect to which this security interest remains perfected pursuant to law shall, to the 
extent permitted by law, be transferred or paid over immediately to the Master Trustee without being 
commingled with other funds (unless already commingled) and any Gross Receipts thereafter received shall 
upon receipt by a Member of the Obligated Group be transferred to the Master Trustee in the form received 
(with necessary endorsements) to the extent necessary to cure the deficiency.  Each Member of the 
Obligated Group represents and warrants that the Lien on Gross Receipts is and at all times will be a first 
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Lien, subject only to (i) Liens described below under “Permitted Liens” and (ii) non-consensual Liens 
arising by operation of law.  (Section 2.07) 

_______________ 

Gross Receipts paid by any Member of the Obligated Group to other parties in the 
ordinary course might no longer be subject to the lien of the Master Trust 
Indenture and might therefore be unavailable to the Master Trustee.  The 
enforcement of the lien on Gross Receipts and receivables is also subject to the 
exercise of discretion by a court of equity which, under certain circumstances, 
may have power to direct the use thereof to meet expenses of the Obligated Group 
before paying debt service.  In the event of the bankruptcy of any Member of the 
Obligated Group, any receivables coming into existence, and any Gross Receipts 
received, on or after the date which is 90 days (or, in some circumstances, one 
year) prior to the commencement of the case in bankruptcy court, might not, 
pursuant to Sections 547 and 552 of the Bankruptcy Code, Title 11 of the United 
States Code, be subject to the lien of the Master Trust Indenture.  With respect to 
receivables and Gross Receipts not subject to the lien, the Master Trustee would 
occupy the position of an unsecured creditor. 

_______________ 

Conditions for Membership 

The initial Member of the Obligated Group is the Corporation.  Any other Person which is an 
Affiliate of the Corporation may become a member of the Obligated Group upon meeting certain 
conditions in the Master Trust Indenture, which include: 

(a) Such Person shall agree (i) to become a Member of the Obligated Group under the 
Master Trust Indenture and thereby to become subject to compliance with all provisions of the Master Trust 
Indenture pertaining to a Member of the Obligated Group; (ii) to unconditionally and irrevocably guarantee 
to the Master Trustee and each other Member of the Obligated Group that all Obligations issued and then 
Outstanding under the Master Trust Indenture will be paid in accordance with the terms thereof and of the 
Master Trust Indenture when due; and (iii) to pledge its Gross Receipts under the Master Trust Indenture; 

The Master Trustee shall have received an Opinion of Counsel to the effect that (i) the Master 
Trust Indenture as executed and delivered by such Person is a valid and binding obligation of such Person 
with respect to Indenture Indebtedness or Obligations then Outstanding, enforceable against such Person in 
accordance with its terms and (ii) the pledge of Gross Receipts by such Person constitutes a valid and 
perfected security interest in such Gross Receipts; provided that such opinion as to enforceability may be 
qualified to the extent that enforcement of the rights and remedies created by the Master Trust Indenture is 
subject to general principles of equity or to bankruptcy, insolvency, moratorium or other similar laws 
affecting the enforcement of creditors’ rights in general, restrictions on the use of charitable funds and other 
exceptions customarily included in opinions of this type; and provided further that such opinion may be 
qualified to the extent that the making of any payment required to be made by such Person pursuant to the 
Master Trust Indenture, with respect to Indenture Indebtedness or Obligations other than those for which it 
is primarily liable, might constitute a fraudulent conveyance under applicable bankruptcy and insolvency 
laws; 

(c) The Master Trustee shall have received an Officer’s Certificate of each Member of the 
Obligated Group as it then exists to the effect that such Member consents to such Person’s becoming a 
Member of the Obligated Group; 

(d) The Master Trustee shall have received an Opinion of Counsel to the effect that the 
conditions contained herein relating to membership in the Obligated Group have been satisfied, and that 
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under then existing law such Person becoming a Member of the Obligated Group will not subject any 
Obligation or Indenture Indebtedness to the registration provisions of the Securities Act of 1933, as 
amended (or that such Obligation or Indenture Indebtedness has been so registered if registration is 
required); 

(e) Such Person shall be Controlled by the Parent, the Corporation or another Member of the 
Obligated Group or such Person shall Control the Corporation; 

(f) If any Related Bond which bears interest that is not includable in gross income under the 
Code has not been paid, the Master Trustee shall have received an Opinion of Bond Counsel, in form and 
substance satisfactory to the Master Trustee, to the effect that under then existing law such Person 
becoming a member of the Obligated Group would not cause the interest payable on such Related Bond to 
be includable in gross income under the Code; 

(g) The Master Trustee shall have received an Officer’s Certificate of the Representative’s 
chief financial officer or a report of a Consultant to the effect that, subject to the provisions described 
below in paragraph (g) under “Limitations on Incurrence of Additional Indebtedness,” the Historical Debt 
Service Coverage Ratio for the first Fiscal Year preceding the date of admission of such Person as a 
Member and assuming the admission of such Person (x) is equal to or greater than the Historical Debt 
Service Coverage Ratio for such Fiscal Year without such Person or (y) after the admission of such 
Member the Obligated Group could issue $1 of additional Long-Term Indebtedness pursuant to the 
provisions of the Master Trust Indenture.  The Officer’s Certificate or Consultant’s report, as the case may 
be, shall include combined pro forma balance sheets, statements of income or of revenue and expenses and 
statements of the relevant assumptions upon which such pro forma statements are based; and 

(h) The Master Trustee shall have received an Officer’s Certificate from each Member of the 
Obligated Group to the effect that, immediately after the admission of such Person to the Obligated Group, 
the Obligated Group will not be in default in the performance or observance of any covenant or condition 
to be performed or observed under the Master Trust Indenture. 

(i) The real property of such Person at which, as determined by the Master Trustee, 
substantially all of its operating revenues are generated shall be added to the Restricted Property.  (Section 
3.01) 

Withdrawal From the Obligated Group 

(a) The Corporation may not withdraw from the Obligated Group.  No other Member of the 
Obligated Group may withdraw from the Obligated Group unless certain conditions are met, including: 

 (i) each remaining Member consents to such withdrawal in writing; 

 (ii) such Member is not a party to a Related Bond Indenture with respect to Related 
Bonds then Outstanding and is not primarily liable for the payment of any Outstanding Obligation or 
Indenture Indebtedness or such Member makes provision prior to withdrawal for the payment or securing 
of such Related Bonds, Outstanding Obligations or Indenture Indebtedness; 

 (iii) the Master Trustee shall receive an Opinion of Counsel to the effect that 
withdrawal of such Member from the Obligated Group would not, in itself, cause any remaining Member, 
other than the Corporation, to cease to be Controlled by a Member of the Obligated Group or the Parent 
unless such remaining Member Controls the Corporation; 

 (iv) if any Related Bond which bears interest that is not includable in gross income 
under the Code has not been paid, the Master Trustee shall have received an Opinion of Bond Counsel, in 
form and substance satisfactory to the Master Trustee, to the effect that under then existing law such 

D-3 



 

Member’s withdrawal from the Obligated Group would not cause the interest payable on such Related 
Bond to be subject to federal income tax; 

 (v) the Master Trustee shall have received an Officer’s Certificate of the 
Representative’s chief financial officer, or, if required by the provisions under “Limitations on Incurrence 
of Additional Indebtedness,” a report of a Consultant to the effect that, subject to the provisions described 
below in paragraph (g) under “Limitations on Incurrence of Additional Indebtedness”, the Historical Debt 
Service Coverage Ratio for the first Fiscal Year preceding the date of withdrawal of such Member and 
assuming that such Member had not been a Member for such Fiscal Year (x) is equal to or greater than the 
Historical Debt Service Coverage Ratio for such Fiscal Year of the Obligated Group including such 
Member or (y) after the withdrawal of such Member the Obligated Group could issue $1 of additional 
Long-Term Indebtedness pursuant to the terms of the Master Trust Indenture.  The Officer’s Certificate or 
Consultant’s report, as the case may be, shall include combined pro forma balance sheets, statements of 
income or of revenue and expenses and statements of cash flows for such period, and changes in financial 
position for such period, together with a statement of the relevant assumptions upon which such pro forma 
statements are based; and 

 (vi) the Master Trustee shall have received an Officer’s Certificate of the 
Representative’s chief financial officer to the effect that, immediately after the withdrawal of such Member 
from the Obligated Group, the Obligated Group will not be in default in the performance or observance of 
any covenant or condition to be performed under the Master Trust Indenture. 

(b) Upon compliance with the conditions contained in Subsection (a), the Master Trustee 
shall execute any documents reasonably requested by the withdrawing Member to evidence the termination 
of such Member’s obligations hereunder, under any Related Supplements and under all Obligations, 
including the termination of the pledge of Gross Receipts of such Member and the deletion of the property 
of such withdrawing Member from the Restricted Property.  (Section 4.03) 

Joint and Several Obligation; Individual Obligation 

Each Member of the Obligated Group unconditionally and irrevocably agrees that it shall be 
jointly and severally obligated to pay all amounts becoming due and payable on all Obligations issued 
under the Master Trust Indenture according to the terms thereof.  If for any reason any payment required 
pursuant to the terms of any Obligations issued under the Master Trust Indenture has not been timely paid, 
each Member shall be obligated to make such payment. 

Each Member agrees that, subject to the preceding paragraph, with respect to Indenture 
Indebtedness incurred by it or the net proceeds of which have been received by it or for its direct benefit 
and evidenced or secured by an Obligation, it will be primarily liable to make full and timely payment on 
such Obligation and Indenture Indebtedness. 

Covenants as to Corporate Existence, Maintenance of Properties, Etc. 

Each Member of the Obligated Group, respectively, covenants: 

Except as otherwise expressly provided, to preserve its corporate or other separate legal existence 
and all its rights and licenses to the extent necessary or desirable in the operation of its business and affairs 
and to be qualified to do business and conduct its affairs in each jurisdiction where its ownership of 
Property or the conduct of its business or affairs requires such qualifications; provided, however, that 
nothing in the Master Trust Indenture shall be construed to obligate it to retain or preserve any of its rights 
or licenses which is no longer used or, in the judgment of its Governing Body, useful in the conduct of its 
business or affairs. 

At all times to cause its Property to be maintained, preserved and kept in good repair, working 
order and condition and all needful and proper repairs, renewals and replacements thereof to be made; 
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provided, however, that the covenant does not (i) prevent it from ceasing to operate any portion of its 
Properties if in its judgment it is advisable not to operate the same, or if it intends to sell or otherwise 
dispose of the same and within a reasonable time endeavors to effect such sale or other disposition, or (ii) 
obligate it to retain, preserve, repair, renew or replace any Property, leases, rights, privileges or licenses no 
longer used or, in the judgment of its Governing Body, useful in the conduct of its business or affairs. 

To do all things reasonably necessary to conduct its affairs and carry on its business and 
operations in such manner as to comply in all material respects with any and all applicable laws of the 
United States and the several states thereof and with all valid orders, regulations or requirements of any 
governmental authority relative to the conduct of its business and the ownership of its Property, unless the 
validity of such laws, orders, regulations or requirements or the applicability thereof to it shall be contested 
in good faith. 

Promptly to pay all lawful taxes, governmental charges and assessments at any time levied or 
assessed upon or against it or its Property; provided, however, that it shall have the right to contest in good 
faith any such taxes, charges or assessments or the collection of any such sums and pending such contest 
may delay or defer payment thereof.  To procure and maintain all necessary licenses and permits and to use 
its best efforts to procure and maintain accreditation of its health care facilities (other than those of a type 
for which accreditation is not available) by the Joint Commission on Accreditation of Healthcare 
Organizations or other applicable recognized accrediting body, when and as available, and the status of its 
health care facilities (excluding, as to the Corporation, those facilities not currently having such status) as a 
provider of health care services eligible for reimbursement under the Medicare, Medicaid, Blue Cross and 
comparable programs, including future governmental programs in with the Member is a participant; 
provided, however, that it need not comply with this paragraph if and to the extent that its Governing Body 
shall have determined in good faith, evidenced by an Officer’s Certificate, that such compliance is not in its 
best interests and that lack of such compliance would not materially impair its ability to pay its 
Indebtedness when due.  (Section 5.02) 

Limitations on Creation of Liens 

Each Member of the Obligated Group, respectively, agrees that it will not create or suffer to be 
created or exist any Lien upon any Restricted Property or Gross Receipts now owned or hereafter acquired 
by it other than Permitted Liens. 

Permitted Liens consist of the following: 

(a) Any judgment lien or notice of pending action against any Member of the Obligated 
Group so long as such judgment or pending action is being contested and execution thereon is stayed within 
60 days of entry or while the period for responsive pleading has not lapsed; 

(b) (1)  Rights reserved to or vested in any municipality or public authority by the terms of 
any right, power, franchise, grant, license, permit or provision of law, affecting any Property, to (a) 
terminate such right, power, franchise, grant, license or permit, provided that the exercise of such right 
would not materially impair the use of the Member’s Property or materially and adversely affect the value 
thereof, or (b) purchase, condemn, appropriate, or recapture, or designate a purchaser of, such Property or 
(c) control or regulate any Property or use such Property in any manner, which rights do not materially 
impair the use of such Property or materially and adversely affect the value thereof; (2) any liens on any 
Property for taxes, assessments, levies, fees, water and sewer rents, and other governmental and similar 
charges and any liens of mechanics, materialmen, laborers, suppliers or vendors for work or services 
performed or materials furnished in connection with such Property, which are not due and payable or which 
are not delinquent or which, or the amount or validity of which, are being contested and execution thereon 
is stayed or, with respect to liens of mechanics, materialmen, and laborers, have been due for less than 60 
days; and (3) easements, right-of-way, servitudes, restrictions and other minor defects, encumbrances, and 
irregularities in the title to any Property which do not materially impair the use of such Property or 
materially and adversely affect the value thereof; 
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(c) Any Lien which is existing on the date of authentication and delivery of Obligation No. 1 
provided that no such Lien (or the amount of Indebtedness secured thereby) may be increased, extended, 
renewed or modified to apply to any Property of any Member of the Obligated Group not subject to such 
Lien on such date, unless such Lien as so increased, extended, renewed or modified otherwise qualifies as a 
Permitted Lien under the Master Trust Indenture; 

(d) Purchase money security interests and security interests existing on any Property prior to 
the time of its acquisition through purchase, merger, consolidation or otherwise, or placed upon Property to 
secure a portion of the purchase price thereof, or lessor’s interests in leases required to be capitalized in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; provided that the aggregate principal amounts 
secured by any such interests shall not exceed at the time of incurrence or assumption the lesser of the cost 
or fair market value of such Property plus, in the case only of equipment purchased under energy savings 
arrangements, fees, costs and other charges payable under such arrangements; 

(e) Any Lien in favor of the Master Trustee securing all Indenture Indebtedness equally and 
ratably; 

(f) Liens arising by reason of good faith deposits in connection with leases of real estate, 
bids or contracts (other than contracts for the payment of money), deposits to secure public or statutory 
obligations, or to secure, or in lieu of, surety, stay or appeal bonds, and deposits as security for the payment 
of taxes or assessments or other similar charges; 

(g) Any Lien arising by reason of deposits with, or the giving of any form of security to, any 
governmental agency or any body created or approved by law or governmental regulation for any purpose 
at any time as required by law or governmental regulation as a condition to the transaction of any business 
or the exercise of any privilege or license, or to enable any Member of the Obligated Group to maintain 
self-insurance or to participate in any funds established to cover any insurance risks or in connection with 
workers’ compensation, unemployment insurance, pension or profit-sharing plans or other similar 
arrangements, or to share in the privileges or benefits required for companies participating in such 
arrangements; 

(h) Any Lien arising by reason of an Irrevocable Deposit; 

(i) Any Lien in favor of a trustee on the proceeds of Indebtedness prior to the application of 
such proceeds or on moneys to repay Indebtedness while held in a debt service fund, a debt service reserve 
fund or similar fund or on any moneys to secure payment of the trustee’s fees or on the proceeds of any 
insurance or condemnation award received in accordance with the Master Trust Indenture; 

(j) Liens on moneys deposited by patients or others with any Member as security for or as 
prepayment for the cost of patient care; 

(k) Liens on Property received by any Member through gifts, grants or bequests, such Liens 
being due to restrictions on such gifts, grants or bequests of Property or the income thereon, up to the fair 
market value of such Property; 

(l) Statutory rights of the United States of America by reason of federal funds made 
available under 42 U.S.C. §291 et seq. and similar rights under other federal and state statutes relating to 
the Hill-Burton program; 

(m) Liens for taxes or special assessments not then delinquent or which are being contested in 
accordance with the Master Trust Indenture; 

(n) Liens on Property due to rights of third-party payors for recoupment of amounts paid to 
any Member; 
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(o) Liens securing Long-Term Indebtedness, provided that the aggregate amount of 
Indebtedness of the Members of the Obligated Group (including capitalized leases) which is secured 
pursuant to this Paragraph (o) shall not at any time exceed 20% of the total Book Value of the Restricted 
Property; 

(p) Any Lien existing on property of a Member of the Obligated Group other than the 
Corporation with respect to Long-Term Indebtedness existing at the time it becomes a Member, provided 
that for purposes of calculating Aggregate Income Available for Debt Service under the Master Trust 
Indenture, Debt Service on Long-Term Indebtedness secured as permitted by this paragraph (p) shall be 
deducted (but such Debt Service shall be included for purposes of calculating the Aggregate Debt Service 
Requirement even though previously deducted from Aggregate Income Available for Debt Service). 

(q) Liens on accounts receivable securing Short-Term Indebtedness incurred in accordance 
with the Master Trust Indenture; 

(r) Any Lien arising solely by reason of a lease of Property to others which lease would not 
have any material adverse effect upon (1) the security for the Outstanding Obligations, (2) the operations of 
the Property of the Obligated Group or (3) the Aggregate Income Available for Debt Service; and 

(s) Any Lien upon Restricted Property the loss of which Restricted Property would not have 
any material adverse effect upon (1) the security for the Outstanding Obligations, (2) the operations of the 
Property of the Obligated Group or (3) the Aggregate Income Available for Debt Service. 

(t) Any Lien on Property securing Indebtedness which is secured solely by such Property 
and the revenues with respect thereto provided that such Property is not financed by Indenture Indebtedness 
and that revenues, expenses and Debt Service with respect thereto shall be disregarded for purposes of 
Historical and Projected Debt Service Coverage Ratios. 

A determination by the Master Trustee that a Lien is a Permitted Lien pursuant to paragraphs (r) or 
(s) shall be binding upon the Obligation Holders, but such a determination shall not be required.  (Section 
5.04) 

Limitations on Incurrence of Additional Indebtedness 

Each Member of the Obligated Group, respectively, agrees that it will not incur any Additional 
Indebtedness except as follows: 

(a) Long-Term Indebtedness, including Indenture Indebtedness, if prior to incurrence of the 
Long-Term Indebtedness, there is delivered to the Master Trustee an Officer’s Certificate of the 
Representative’s chief financial officer, or, if requested by the Master Trustee with respect to subparagraph 
(ii)(B), a report of a Consultant (provided that the Master Trustee shall not require a Consultant’s report if 
the Indebtedness incurred pursuant to such subsection does not exceed 10% of Capitalization), certifying 
that: 

 (i) Subject to the provisions described in paragraph (g) below, the ratio determined 
by dividing Aggregate Income Available for Debt Service for the most recent Fiscal Year for which the 
combined financial statements of the Obligated Group have been reported upon by independent certified 
public accountants, by Maximum Annual Debt Service including the Additional Indebtedness, is not less 
than 1.30; or 

 (ii) Subject to the provisions described in paragraph (g) below, (A) the Historical 
Debt Service Coverage Ratio for the period mentioned in paragraph (a)(i), not including the proposed 
Additional Indebtedness, is not less than 1.10 and (B) the Projected Debt Service Coverage Ratio, taking 
the proposed Additional Indebtedness into account, for (1) in the case of Additional Indebtedness to finance 
capital improvements, each of the two Fiscal Years succeeding the date on which such capital 
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improvements are expected to be placed in operation, or (2) in the case of Long-Term Indebtedness 
refinancing other Indebtedness for completed capital projects or Long-Term Indebtedness not financing 
capital improvements, each of the two Fiscal Years succeeding the date on which the Indebtedness is 
incurred, is not less than 1.10, as shown by combined pro forma balance sheets, statements of income or of 
revenue and expenses and statements of changes in financial position for each such period, accompanied by 
a statement of the relevant assumptions upon which such pro forma statements are based, delivered to the 
Master Trustee along with the Officer’s Certificate or Consultant’s report, as the case may be. 

(b) Completion Indebtedness in an amount not greater than twenty-five percent (25%) of the 
Indebtedness originally incurred to finance the facilities being completed. 

(c) Long-Term Indebtedness incurred for the purpose of refunding any Long-Term 
Indebtedness if the conditions described in paragraph (a) above are met with respect to such proposed 
Long-Term Indebtedness or if upon the incurrence thereof: 

 (i) An Officer’s Certificate is delivered to the Master Trustee stating that, taking the 
proposed Long-Term Indebtedness and the refunding of the existing Long-Term Indebtedness into account, 
Maximum Annual Debt Service will not be increased; and 

 (ii) An Irrevocable Deposit is made from the proceeds of such proposed Long-Term 
Indebtedness, together with any other funds, to pay all or a portion of the Debt Service on such Long-Term 
Indebtedness or other Long-Term Indebtedness. 

(d) Short-Term Indebtedness, if immediately after the incurrence of such Short-Term 
Indebtedness the principal amount of all Outstanding Short-Term Indebtedness does not exceed the greater 
of (1) 15% of the Adjusted Annual Operating Revenues or (2) 75% of the aggregate accounts receivable 
(net of provision for uncollectible accounts and contractual adjustments) of the Obligated Group as of the 
end of the most recent Fiscal Year for which the combined financial statements of the Obligated Group 
have been reported upon by independent certified public accountants, provided that for a period of at least 
30 consecutive days in each Fiscal Year the Obligated Group shall not have Outstanding Short-Term 
Indebtedness of more than three percent of Adjusted Annual Operating Revenues, and further provided that 
the Master Trustee shall waive the requirement of the preceding proviso if there is delivered to the Master 
Trustee a Consultant’s report confirming that there is a temporary interruption in the flow of reimbursement 
revenues from third parties.  Failure to comply with the three percent limitation of the preceding sentence 
shall not constitute an Event of Default under this paragraph (d), but for each succeeding Fiscal Year of 
non-compliance, unless the limitation is waived by the Master Trustee as provided above, any Short-Term 
Indebtedness in excess of the three-percent limitation shall be deemed to be Long-Term Indebtedness for 
all purposes of this Indenture. 

(e) Indebtedness the payment of which is subordinated in a manner satisfactory to the Master 
Trustee to the payment of all Indenture Indebtedness. 

(f) Agreements relating to letters or lines of credit or similar credit facilities used to secure 
Additional Indebtedness incurred in accordance with the provisions of the Master Trust Indenture. 

(g) Otherwise unmet requirements of clauses (A) and (B) of paragraph (a)(ii) above shall be 
deemed satisfied if there shall be filed with the Master Trustee a report by a Consultant containing the 
following opinions: 

 (i) That applicable laws or regulations, and contracts generally applicable to all 
similar health care providers in the Commonwealth have prevented or will prevent generation of the 
required level of Aggregate Income Available for Debt Service, and, if requested by the Master Trustee, an 
accompanying Opinion of Counsel acceptable to the Master Trustee setting forth any conclusions of law 
relevant to such opinion; 
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 (ii) That, with regard to a failure to satisfy the requirements of clause (A) of 
paragraph (a)(ii), the Obligated Group has generated the maximum amount of Aggregate Income Available 
for Debt Service which could reasonably be generated given such governing laws and regulations during 
the applicable period and that the Historical Debt Service Coverage Ratio for the period was at least 1.00; 
and 

 (iii) That, with regard to a failure to satisfy the requirements of clause (B) of 
paragraph (a)(ii), based upon forecasts and estimates contained in the report, the Obligated Group will 
generate the maximum amount of Aggregate Income Available for Debt Service which can reasonably be 
generated given such governing laws and regulations during the applicable period and that the Projected 
Debt Service Coverage Ratio for the applicable period is not less than 1.00. 

(h) Indebtedness secured solely by Liens permitted by paragraphs (d) or (t) described under 
the heading, “Limitations on Creation of Liens.” 

(i) Indebtedness incurred for the purpose of funding the debt service reserve fund 
requirement for the Series C Bonds.  (Section 5.05) 

Debt Service on Guaranties 

In determining the Debt Service Requirement of any Member, whether historical or projected, 
computations of debt service on Long-Term Indebtedness shall include an amount equal to twenty-five 
percent (25%) of the debt service on Guaranties; provided, however, that debt service on Guaranties 
secured on a parity with Obligations issued under the Master Trust Indenture or with respect to which a 
payment has been made during the preceding twelve (12) months or with respect to which the primary 
obligor is in default by reason of bankruptcy or insolvency shall be included at one hundred percent (100%) 
of debt service.  (Section 5.06) 

Debt Service on Balloon Indebtedness 

At the election of any Member, for the purpose of any computation of any projected Debt Service 
Requirement, the principal and interest deemed to be payable on Balloon Indebtedness of such Member 
outstanding for the period during which such projected Debt Service Requirement is computed, shall be as 
set forth below: 

(a) If the Member has obtained a binding commitment of a financial institution satisfactory 
to the Master Trustee to refinance such Balloon Indebtedness (or a portion thereof), including without 
limitation, a letter of credit or a line of credit, which commitment is subject only to usual conditions 
applicable to loans to entities similar to such Member, the Balloon Indebtedness (or portion thereof) may be 
deemed to be payable in accordance with the terms of the refinancing arrangement; or 

(b) If (i) the Date of Maturity of any portion of such Balloon Indebtedness, which portion is 
for purposes of this paragraph (b) not in excess of 25% of the Capitalization of such Member as of the end 
of the most recent Fiscal Year for which audited financial statements are available, is more than 18 months 
after the date of any transaction for which a Projection is made or (ii) the condition of paragraph (a) above 
is satisfied with respect to such portion by a financing arrangement having a term not less than 3 years, 
such portion of such Balloon Indebtedness may be deemed to be Indebtedness payable over a 25 year term, 
at the interest rate certified below, in equal annual installments of principal and interest, provided that the 
Representative has delivered to the Master Trustee a certificate of an investment banker satisfactory to the 
Master Trustee stating that it is reasonable to assume that such Indebtedness of the Member could be sold 
and stating the interest rate then applicable to 25 year obligations of comparable quality and type.  (Section 
5.07) 
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Debt Service Coverage Ratios 

The Obligated Group agrees, subject to applicable governmental contractual, third party payor, 
fiduciary and other restrictions and limitations on its legal authority (collectively referred to as “Applicable 
Restrictions”), to charge and collect rates and charges which shall together with other available moneys 
provide moneys at all times to make any payments required under the Master Trust Indenture and to 
comply with the Master Trust Indenture in all other respects, and to satisfy all other obligations of the 
Obligated Group in a timely fashion. 

The Obligated Group agrees to use its best efforts to maintain the Historical Debt Service 
Coverage Ratio at least equal to 1.10 in each Fiscal Year.  The Obligated Group shall, within one hundred 
and twenty (120) days after the end of each Fiscal Year, cause its auditors to furnish to the Master Trustee a 
letter informing it whether such requirement was met during the Fiscal Year and setting forth for the Fiscal 
Year the Aggregate Income Available for Debt Service and the Aggregate Debt Service Requirements.  If 
the Historical Debt Service Coverage Ratio, as calculated at the end of any Fiscal Year, is less than 1.10, 
the Obligated Group covenants to retain within 150 days after the end of the Fiscal Year a Consultant to 
make recommendations as to rates and charges and other aspects of hospital management and operation.  
Copies of the report of the Consultant shall be filed with the Master Trustee.  The Obligated Group shall, 
subject to Applicable Restrictions, revise its rates and charges and other aspects of its management and 
operation in conformity with the recommendations or file with the Master Trustee its reasons for not 
following the recommendations.  The Obligated Group shall thereafter achieve a Historical Debt Service 
Coverage Ratio of at least 1.10 unless the Obligated Group is prevented from doing so by Applicable 
Restrictions and the ratio actually achieved is at least 1.00.  (Sections 5.09) 

Sale, Lease and Other Transfer of Property 

Each Member of the Obligated Group, respectively, agrees that it will not in any Fiscal Year sell, 
lease or otherwise transfer any Property, the disposition of which would cause the aggregate Book Value of 
Property so transferred by members of the Obligated Group in such year to exceed 5% of the Book Value 
of the Property of the Obligated Group as of the most recent Fiscal Year for which combined financial 
statements have been reported upon by independent certified public accountants, except in the ordinary 
course of business and except for transfers of Property: 

(a) To any Person if prior to the sale, lease or other transfer there is delivered to the Master 
Trustee an Officer’s Certificate stating that in the judgment of the signer such Property has become, or 
within the next succeeding 24 calendar months is reasonably expected to become, inadequate, obsolete, 
worn out, unsuitable, unprofitable, undesirable or unnecessary and the sale, lease, removal or other transfer 
thereof will not impair the structural soundness, efficiency or economic value of the remaining Property in 
any material respect; 

(b) To another Member of the Obligated Group; 

(c) To any Person provided that prior to the sale, lease or other transfer there is delivered to 
the Master Trustee an Officer’s Certificate of the Representative’s chief financial officer, or a Consultant’s 
report, if required by the provisions under “Limitations on Incurrence of Additional Indebtedness”, to the 
effect that after giving effect to such transfer as if it had occurred at the beginning of the applicable period 
covered by the Officer’s Certificate or Consultant’s report, (A) the Obligated Group could issue $1 of 
additional Long-Term Indebtedness pursuant to paragraph (a) of “Limitations on Incurrence of Additional 
Indebtedness” above or (B) the Projected Debt Service Coverage Ratio for such Fiscal Year is no less than 
it would be if such transfer were not to occur; 

(d) As part of a merger, consolidation, sale or conveyance permitted by the Master Trust 
Indenture; 
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(e) To any Person if in exchange therefore such Member receives the fair market value of the 
Property so transferred, provided that, in the case of transfers of real property, prior to such transfer there is 
delivered to the Master Trustee an Officer’s Certificate certifying that the Member will receive the fair 
market value of such real property; 

(f) In the case of cash or cash equivalents or securities, an amount (based, in the case of 
securities, on market value and excluding transfers permitted under paragraph (b), (d) or (e) of this section) 
not exceeding the lesser of (i) fifty percent (50%) of the aggregate excess of revenues over expenses of the 
Obligated Group from October 1, 1989 to the end of the most recent Fiscal Year for which audited financial 
statements are available less any amounts previously transferred under this paragraph or (ii) in any one 
Fiscal Year ten percent (10%) of the Member’s Unrestricted Fund Balance of the Member making the 
transfer as of the end of its most recent Fiscal Year for which audited financial statements are available; or 

(g) To any person in connection with a “sale and leaseback” transaction that would constitute 
and be treated as a true sale and leaseback under the Code.  (Section 5.10) 

Consolidation, Merger, Sale or Conveyance 

(a) Each Member of the Obligated Group, respectively, covenants that it will not merge or 
consolidate with any other corporation not a Member of the Obligated Group or sell or convey all or 
substantially all of its assets to any Person not a Member of the Obligated Group unless: 

 (i) Either it will be the surviving corporation, or the successor corporation (if other 
than a Member of the Obligated Group) shall be a corporation organized and existing under the laws of the 
United States of America or a state thereof and such corporation shall expressly assume the due and 
punctual payment of the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on all Outstanding Obligations 
issued under the Master Trust Indenture, and the due and punctual performance and observance of all of the 
covenants and conditions of the Master Trust Indenture by a supplement satisfactory to the Master Trustee, 
executed and delivered to the Master Trustee by such corporation; 

 (ii) If any  Related Bond which bears interest that is not includable in gross income 
under the Code has not been fully paid, the Master Trustee shall have received an Opinion of Bond 
Counsel, in form and substance satisfactory to the Master Trustee, to the effect that under then existing law 
the consummation of such merger, consolidation, sale or conveyance, whether or not contemplated on any 
date of the delivery of such Related Bond, would not cause the interest payable on such  Related Bonds to 
be subject to federal income tax; 

 (iii) The Master Trustee shall have received an Officer’s Certificate of the 
Representative’s chief financial officer or a Consultant’s Report if required under the Master Trust 
Indenture, to the effect that after giving effect to the proposed merger, consolidation or conveyance as if it 
had occurred at the beginning of the applicable period covered by the Officer’s Certificate or Consultant’s 
report, (A) the Obligated Group could issue $1 of additional Long-Term Indebtedness pursuant to the 
provisions of the Master Trust Indenture or (B) the Projected Debt Service Coverage Ratio for the next 
Fiscal Year is no less than it would be for such Fiscal Year if such consolidation, merger or conveyance 
were not to occur; and 

 (iv) The Master Trustee shall have received an Officer’s Certificate to the effect that 
immediately following such transaction the Obligated Group will not be in default in the performance or 
observance of any covenant or condition to be performed or observed under the Master Trust Indenture; 
and 

 (v) The Restricted Property shall include the property of the surviving corporation 
as provided in paragraph (i) under “Conditions for Membership” above. 
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(b) In case of any such consolidation, merger, sale or conveyance and upon any such 
assumption by the successor corporation, such successor corporation shall succeed to and be substituted for 
its predecessor, with the same effect as if it had been named herein as the Corporation or other Member of 
the Obligated Group, as the case may be. 

(c) In case of any such consolidation, merger, sale or conveyance such changes in 
phraseology and form (but not in substance) may be made in Obligations thereafter to be issued as may be 
appropriate. 

(d) The Master Trustee shall receive an Opinion of Counsel as conclusive evidence that any 
such consolidation, merger, sale or conveyance, and any such assumption, complies with the provisions of 
this section and that it is proper for the Master Trustee under the provisions of the Master Trust Indenture to 
join in the execution of the supplement provided for by this section.  (Section 5.11) 

Insurance 

(a) Each Member of the Obligated Group shall (i) keep its plant, equipment and furnishings 
included in its Property insured against fire, lightning and extended coverage perils and against such other 
risks as are customarily insured against by similar institutions in the area; (ii) to the extent required by law, 
carry worker’s compensation insurance (which may be through the so-called Massachusetts Self-Insurance 
Group), disability insurance and other insurance covering injury, sickness, disability or death of employees; 
(iii) maintain insurance against liability of the Member imposed by law or assumed by contract for injuries 
to persons (excluding liability covered by clauses (iv) and (v)), and for death of persons from such injuries; 
(iv) maintain motor vehicle liability insurance covering owned, unowned and hired motor vehicles, 
protecting the Member against liability for property damage; and (v) maintain insurance against liability of 
the Member for professional malpractice. 

(b) In lieu of obtaining third-party coverage for the risks described above, a Member may 
self-insure any of the required coverages or a portion thereof (or may participate in captive insurance 
programs sponsored by the Parent, any Affiliate, or any association or organization exposed to comparable 
risks); provided such Member delivers to the Master Trustee a report of an Insurance Consultant stating 
that the self-insurance of such risks (or such participation) is consistent with reasonable management and 
insurance practices.  The requirement of an Insurance Consultant shall not apply to the Corporation’s 
captive insurance program existing on the date of original delivery of the Master Trust Indenture. 

(c) As long as any Member maintains any self-insurance (or participates in any captive 
insurance program), it will provide the Master Trustee annually with a report of an Insurance Consultant 
concerning the adequacy of funding and the funding determination processes employed in connection 
therewith.  The insurance maintained by any Member shall also be subject to the review of an Insurance 
Consultant who shall every five years after the issuance of the initial Obligation under the Master Trust 
Indenture prepare and file with the Master Trustee a report on the adequacy of such insurance.  Each 
Member of the Obligated Group, respectively, agrees that it will follow any reasonable recommendations 
of the Insurance Consultant to the extent feasible.  (Section 5.03) 

Insurance and Condemnation Proceeds 

Any Member of the Obligated Group may make agreements and covenants with the holder of 
secured Indebtedness which is incurred in compliance with the provisions of the Master Trust Indenture 
and which is secured by a Permitted Lien with respect to the application or use to be made of insurance 
proceeds or condemnation awards which may be received in connection with Property which is subject to 
such Permitted Lien. 

Subject to any agreement or covenant made pursuant to the above paragraph, amounts received by 
any Member of the Obligated Group as insurance proceeds with respect to any casualty loss or as 
condemnation awards shall be paid to such Member and, if the proceeds of any one casualty or 
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condemnation or series of related events (as determined by the Master Trustee) exceed $500,000, applied as 
follows: 

(a) if there is delivered to the Master Trustee an Officer’s Certificate of the Member’s chief 
financial officer, or, if requested by the Master Trustee, a Consultant’s report, to the effect that (A) the 
Projected Debt Service Coverage Ratio for the Fiscal Year immediately following such loss or 
condemnation is at least 1.10 or (B) the Projected Debt Service Coverage Ratio for such Fiscal Year is not 
less than it would be if such loss or condemnation had not occurred (the “Coverage Certificate”) then the 
Member may retain the amounts for its own use, provided, however, that the Member shall retain such 
amounts unexpended until the end of the Fiscal Year following the Fiscal Year in which the loss or taking 
occurred, at which time there shall be filed with the Master Trustee and Officer’s Certificate of the 
Member’s chief financial officer indicating an Historical Debt Service Coverage Ratio for the Fiscal Year 
following the Fiscal Year in which the loss or taking occurred at least as good as that required in a 
Coverage Certificate and upon such filing the retained amounts shall become available to the Member for 
its own use; and provided further, that if the Member is unable to deliver such an Officer’s Certificate, it 
shall either apply such amounts to restoration, replacement or acquisition as provided in the following 
clause (b) or shall apply such amounts to debt service as provided in the following clause (c); 

(b) if the Member is not able or chooses not to deliver the Coverage Certificate, the Member 
may project expenditures to restore or replace the property lost or taken or to acquire other capital assets 
and project income taking into account the income and expenses to be generated from such restoration, 
replacement or acquisition, and if on the basis of such projection the Member delivers to the Master Trustee 
an Officer’s Certificate showing for the Fiscal Year following completion of the restoration, replacement or 
acquisition, coverage in the amount required for a Coverage Certificate, the Member may expend so such 
of such amounts to restore or replace the property lost or taken or to acquire other capital assets until either 
(A) all the amounts are expended or (B) a sufficient portion of the amounts are expended as are necessary 
to permit the Member to justify the coverage shown in such projection, provided that the Member shall 
retain the remaining amounts expended until the end of such following Fiscal Year at which time there 
shall be filed with the Master Trustee an Officer’s Certificate of the Member’s Chief financial officer 
indicating an Historical Debt Service Coverage Ratio for such Fiscal Year showing coverage at least as 
good as that required in a Coverage Certificate and upon such filing at which time the retained amounts 
shall become available to the member of its own use; and provided further, that if the Member is unable to 
deliver such an Officer’s Certificate, it shall either provide the Master Trustee with a Consultant’s report to 
the effect that applying the remaining amounts for additional restoration, replacement or acquisition will 
result in a Project Debt Service Coverage Ratio at least as good as that required in Coverage Certificate or 
its shall apply the remaining amounts as provided in the following clause (c); or 

(c) to the prepayment of the Outstanding Obligations ratably, either directly or indirectly by 
paying underlying Indenture Indebtedness.  (Section 5.13) 

Events of Default 

Event of Default, as used in the Master Trust Indenture, shall mean any of the following events: 

(a) Any payment of the principal of, the premium, if any, and interest on any Obligation 
issued and Outstanding under the Master Trust Indenture is not made within 5 days after the same shall 
become due and payable, whether at maturity, by proceeding for redemption, by acceleration or otherwise, 
in accordance with the terms thereof, of the Master Trust Indenture and the Related Supplement; 

(b) Any Member of the Obligated Group shall fail duly to observe or perform any covenant 
or agreement on its part under the Master Trust Indenture for a period of 60 days (or such longer period as 
permitted in writing by the Master Trustee) after the date on which written notice of such failure, requiring 
the same to be remedied, shall have been given to the Members of the Obligated Group by the Master 
Trustee, or to the Members of the Obligated Group and the Master Trustee by the Holders of at least 25% 
in aggregate principal amount of Obligations then Outstanding; 

D-13 



 

(c) A breach shall occur (and continue beyond any applicable grace period) with respect to a 
payment by any Member of Indebtedness, or with respect to the performance of any agreement securing 
such other Indebtedness or pursuant to which the same was issued or incurred, or an event shall occur with 
respect to provisions of any such agreement relating to matters of the character referred to in this section, 
and as a result of such breach or occurrence a holder or holders of such Indebtedness or a trustee or trustees 
under any such agreement accelerates any such Indebtedness in an amount exceeding $500,000; but an 
Event of Default shall not be deemed to be in existence or to be continuing under this clause (c) if (i) the 
Member is in good faith contesting the existence of such breach or event and if such acceleration is being 
stayed by judicial proceedings, (ii) the power of acceleration ceases to be in effect, or (iii) such breach or 
event is remedied and the acceleration is wholly annulled.  Each Member shall notify the Master Trustee of 
any such breach or event immediately upon becoming aware of its occurrence and shall from time to time 
furnish such information as the Master Trustee may reasonably request for the purpose of determining 
whether a breach or event described in this paragraph has occurred and whether such power of acceleration 
has been exercised or continues to be in effect; 

(d) The entry of a decree or order by a court having jurisdiction in the premises adjudging 
any Member of the Obligated Group a bankrupt or insolvent, or approving as properly filed a petition 
seeking reorganization, arrangement, adjustment or composition of or in respect of such Member under the 
Federal Bankruptcy Code or any other applicable federal or state law, or appointing a receiver, liquidator, 
assignee, or sequestrator (or other similar official) of such Member or of any substantial part of its 
Property, or ordering the winding up or liquidation of its affairs, and the continuance of any such decree or 
other unstayed and in effect for a period of 60 consecutive days or the consent of such Member to such 
decree or order; 

(e) The institution by any Member of the Obligated Group of proceedings to be adjudicated a 
bankrupt or insolvent, or the consent by it to the institution of bankruptcy or insolvency proceedings against 
it, or the filing by it of a petition or answer or consent seeking reorganization or relief under the Federal 
Bankruptcy Code or any other similar applicable federal or state law, or the consent by it to the filing of 
any such petition or to the appointment of a receiver, liquidator, assignee, trustee or sequestrator (or other 
similar official) of such Member or of any substantial part of its Property, or the making by it of an 
assignment for the benefit of creditors, or the admission by it in writing of its inability to pay its debts 
generally as they become due.  (Section 6.01) 

Remedies for Events of Default 

Upon the occurrence and during the continuation of an Event of Default under the Master Trust 
Indenture, the Master Trustee may, and upon the written request of the Holders of not less than 50% in 
aggregate principal amount of the Obligations Outstanding, shall, by notice to the Members of the 
Obligated Group, declare all Obligations Outstanding immediately due and payable, whereupon such 
Obligations shall become and be immediately due and payable without any further action or notice.  In such 
event, there shall be due and payable on the Obligations an amount equal to the total principal amount of all 
such Obligations, plus all interest accrued thereon and, to the extent permitted by applicable law, interest 
that accrues to the date of payment. 

At any time after the principal of the Outstanding Obligations shall have been so declared to be 
due and payable and before the entry of the final judgment or decree on any suit, action or proceeding 
instituted on account of such default, if (A) the Obligated Group has paid or caused to be paid or deposited 
with the Master Trustee moneys sufficient to pay all matured installments of interest, and interest on 
installments of principal and interest, and principal or redemption prices then due (other than the principal 
then due only because of such declaration) of all Obligations Outstanding, (B) the Obligated Group has 
paid or caused to be paid or deposited with the Master Trustee moneys sufficient to pay the charges, 
compensation, expenses, disbursements, advances and liabilities of the Master Trustee and any paying 
agents incurred as a result of such Event of Default, (C) all other amounts then payable by the Obligated 
Group under the Master Trust Indenture shall have been paid or a sum sufficient to pay the same shall have 
been deposited with the Master Trustee, and (D) every Event of Default (other than a default in the 
payment of the principal of such Obligations then due only because of such declaration) shall have been 
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remedied, then, unless otherwise directed in writing by Holders of not less than 50% in aggregate principal 
amount of the Obligations then Outstanding, the Master Trustee shall annul such declaration and its 
consequences with respect to any Obligations or portions thereof not then due by its terms.  No such 
annulment shall extend to or affect any subsequent Event of Default or impair any right consequent 
thereon. 

The Master Trustee may exercise all of the rights and remedies of a secured party, under the UCC 
or otherwise, with respect to the lien on Gross Receipts created by the Master Trust Indenture.  Without 
limiting the generality of the foregoing, to the extent permitted by law, the Master Trustee may realize upon 
such lien by any one or more of the following actions:  (i) take possession of the financial books and 
records of any Member of the Obligated Group relating to the Gross Receipts and of all checks or other 
orders for payment of money and cash in the possession of the Member representing Gross Receipts or 
proceeds thereof; (ii) notify account debtors obligated on any Gross Receipts to make payment directly to 
the order of the Master Trustee; (iii) collect, compromise, settle, compound or extend Gross Receipts which 
are in the form of accounts receivable or contract rights from the Institution’s account debtors by suit or 
other means and give a full acquittance therefore and receipt therefore in the name of the Member, whether 
or not the full amount of any such account receivable or contract right owing shall be paid to the Authority; 
(iv) require the Member to deposit all cash, money and checks or other orders for the payment of money 
which represent Gross Receipts within five (5) business days after receipt of written notice of such 
requirement, and thereafter as received, into a fund or account to be established for such purpose by the 
Master Trustee, provided, however, that the requirement to make such deposits shall cease, and the balance 
of such fund or account shall be paid to the Member, when all Events of Default have been cured; 
(v) forbid the Member to extend, compromise, compound or settle any accounts receivable or contract 
rights which represent Gross Receipts, or release, wholly or partly, any person liable for the payment 
thereof (except upon receipt of the full amount due) or allow any credit or discount thereon; and 
(vi) endorse in the name of the Member any checks or other orders for the payment of money representing 
Gross Receipts or the proceeds thereof.  (Section 6.02) 

Additional Remedies and Enforcement of Remedies 

Upon the occurrence and continuance of any Event of Default, the Master Trustee may, and upon 
the written request of the Holders of not less than 25% in aggregate principal amount of the Obligations 
Outstanding, together with indemnification of the Master Trustee to its satisfaction therefore, shall, proceed 
forthwith to protect and enforce its rights and the rights of the Obligation Holders under the Master Trust 
Indenture by such suits, actions or proceedings as the Master Trustee, being advised by counsel, shall deem 
expedient. 

Regardless of the occurrence of an Event of Default, the Master Trustee, if requested in writing by 
the Holders of not less than 25% in aggregate principal amount of Obligations then Outstanding, shall, 
upon being indemnified to its satisfaction therefor, institute and maintain such suits and proceedings as it 
may be advised shall be necessary or expedient to prevent any impairment of the security under the Master 
Trust Indenture by an acts which may be unlawful or in violation thereof or which with the giving or notice 
or the passage of time or both would constitute an Event of Default.  (Section 6.03) 

Application of Revenues and Other Moneys After Default 

During the continuance of an Event of Default, the Master Trustee may by written notice to the 
Representative require that all payments of Outstanding Obligations be made to the Master Trustee when 
due in immediately available funds.  During the continuance of an Event of Default all money s received by 
the Master Trustee pursuant to any right given or action taken, after payment of the costs and expenses of 
the proceeding resulting in the collection of such moneys and of the expenses and advances incurred or 
made by the Master Trustee with respect thereto shall be applied as follows: 

First:  To the payment to the Persons entitled thereto of all installments of interest then 
due on Obligations in the order of the maturity of such installments, and, if the amount available 
shall not be sufficient to pay in full any installment or installments maturing on the same date, 
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then to the payment thereof ratable, according to the amounts due thereon to the Persons entitled 
thereto, without any discrimination or preference; and 

Second:  To the payment to the Persons entitled thereto of the unpaid principal 
installments of any Obligations which shall have become due, whether at maturity or by call for 
redemption, in the order of their due dates, and if the amounts available shall not be sufficient to 
pay in full all Obligations due on any date then to the payment thereof ratably, according to the 
amount of principal installments due on such date, to the Persons entitled thereto, without any 
discrimination or preference. 

Whenever moneys are to be applied by the Master Trustee pursuant to the provisions of this 
Section, such moneys shall be applied by it at such times, and from time to time, as the Master Trustee shall 
determine, having due regard for the amount of such moneys available for application and the likelihood of 
additional moneys becoming available for such application in the future.  Whenever the Master Trustee 
shall apply such moneys, it shall fix the date upon which such application is to be made and upon such date 
interest on the amounts or principal to be paid on such date shall cease to accrue.  The Master Trustee shall 
give such notice as it may deem appropriate of the deposit with it of any such moneys and of the fixing of 
any such date, and shall not be required to make payment to the Holder of any Obligation until such 
Obligation shall be presented to the Master Trustee for appropriate endorsement of any partial payment or 
for cancellation if fully paid. 

Whenever all Obligations and interest thereon have been paid under the provisions of this Section 
and all expenses and charges of the Master Trustee have been paid, any balance remaining shall be paid to 
the Person entitled to receive the same; if no other Person shall be entitled thereto, then the balance shall be 
paid to the Members of the Obligated Group, their successors, or as a court of competent jurisdiction may 
direct.  (Section 6.04) 

Obligation Holders’ Control of Proceedings 

If an Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing, the Holders of at least a majority in 
aggregate principal amount of Obligations then Outstanding shall have the right, at any time, by an 
instrument in writing executed and delivered to the Master Trustee to direct the method and place of 
conducting any proceeding to be taken in connection with the enforcement of the terms and conditions of 
the Master Trust Indenture or for the appointment of a receiver or any other proceedings under the Master 
Trust Indenture, provided that such direction is not in conflict with any applicable law or the provisions of 
the Master Trust Indenture and, in the sole judgment of the Master Trustee is not unduly prejudicial to the 
interest of Obligation Holders not joining in such direction, and provided further than nothing in this 
section shall impair the right of the Master Trustee in its discretion to take any other action hereunder 
which it may deem proper and which is not inconsistent with such direction by Obligation Holders. 

Certain Obligations Holders may exercise rights against the Corporation and other Members of the 
Obligated Group in connection with Related Bonds and otherwise which are independent of the Indenture.  
The Master Trustee shall not be required to take notice of the exercise of such rights, and the Master 
Trustee shall have no duty to other Obligation Holders where the exercise of such rights by a particular 
Obligation Holder is or may be prejudicial to such other Obligation Holders.  (Section 6.07) 

Waiver of Event of Default 

No delay or omission of the Master Trustee or of an Obligation Holder to exercise any right or 
power accruing upon any Event of Default shall impair any such right or power or shall be construed to be 
a waiver of any such Event of Default or an acquiescence therein.  Every power and remedy given to the 
Master Trustee and the Obligation Holders, respectively, may be exercised from time to time and as often 
as may be deemed expedient by them. 

 
The Master Trustee may waive any Event of Default which in its opinion shall have been 

remedied before the entry of final judgment or decree in any suit, action or proceeding instituted by it under 
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the provisions of the Master Trust Indenture, or before the completion of the enforcement of any other 
remedy under the Master Trust Indenture. 

 
The Master Trustee, upon the written request of the Holders of at least a majority in aggregate 

principal amount of Indenture Indebtedness then Outstanding, shall waive any Event of Default and its 
consequences; provided, however, that a default in the payment of the principal of, premium, if any, or 
interest on any Obligation, when the same shall become due and payable by the terms thereof or upon call 
for redemption, may not be waived without the written consent of the Holders of all the Obligations at the 
time Outstanding unless (i) the conditions set forth in the second paragraph under “Remedies for Events of 
Default” are satisfied and (ii) the principal of the Obligations has been declared due and payable, such 
declaration has been annulled. 

In case of any waiver by the Master Trustee of an Event of Default under the Master Trust 
Indenture, the Members of the Obligated Group, the Master Trustee and the Obligation Holders shall be 
restored to their former positions and rights under the Master Trust Indenture, respectively, but no such 
waiver shall extend to any subsequent or other Event of Default or impair any right consequent thereof.  
(Section 6.09) 

Limitations on Responsibility of Master Trustee 

No provision of the Master Trust Indenture shall be construed to relieve the Master Trustee from 
liability for its own negligent action, its own negligent failure to act, or its own willful misconduct, except 
that: 

(a) The preceding paragraph shall not be construed to limit the Master Trustee’s obligation to 
perform those duties specifically set forth in the Master Trust Indenture; 

(b) The Master Trustee shall not be liable for any error of judgment made in good faith by a 
chairman or vice-chairman of the board of directors, the chairman or vice-chairman of the executive 
committee of the board of directors, the president, any vice president, the secretary, any assistant secretary, 
the treasurer, any assistant treasurer, the cashier, any assistant cashier, any trust officer or assistant trust 
officer, the controller and any assistant controller or any other officer of the Master Trustee customarily 
performing functions similar to those performed by any of the above designated officers or with respect to a 
particular matter, any other officer to whom such matter is referred because of his knowledge of and 
familiarity with the particular subject, unless it shall be proved that the Master Trustee was negligent in 
ascertaining the pertinent facts: 

The Master Trustee shall not be liable with respect to any action taken or omitted to be taken by it 
in good faith in accordance with the direction of the Holders of a majority in principal amount of the 
Outstanding Obligations relating to the time, method and place of conducting any proceeding for any 
remedy available to the Master Trustee, or exercising any trust or power conferred upon the Master 
Trustee, under the Master Trust Indenture. 

The Master Trustee shall not be required to expend or risk its own funds or otherwise incur any 
financial liability in the performance of any of its duties under the Master Trust Indenture, or in the exercise 
of any of its duties under the Master Trust Indenture, or in the exercise of any of its rights or powers, if it 
shall have reasonable grounds for believing that repayment of such funds or adequate indemnity against 
such risk or liability is not reasonably assured to it.  (Section 7.01) 

The Master Trustee may rely and shall be protected in acting or refraining from acting upon any 
resolution, certificate, statement, instrument, opinion, report, notice request, direction, consent, order, bond, 
obligation, note or other paper or document believed by it to be genuine and to have been signed or 
presented by the proper party or parties.  The Master Trustee shall not be liable for any action taken or 
omitted to be taken by it in good faith and reasonably believed by it to be within the discretion or power 
conferred upon it, or taken by it pursuant to any direction or instruction by which it is governed under this 
Indenture or omitted to be taken by it by reason of the lack of direction or instruction required for such 
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action, or be responsible for the consequences of any error of judgment reasonably made by it.  When any 
payment or consent or other action by the Master Trustee is called for by this Indenture, the Master Trustee 
may defer such action pending receipt of such evidence, if any, as it may reasonably require in support 
thereof.  A permissive right or power to act shall not be construed as a requirement to act.  The Master 
Trustee shall not in any event be liable for the application or misapplication of funds, or for other acts or 
defaults, by any person, firm or corporation except by its own directors, officers, agents, and employees.  
No recourse shall be had by any Member or any Obligation Holder for any claim based on this Indenture or 
any Obligation against any director, officer, agent or employee of the Master Trustee unless such claim is 
based upon the bad faith, fraud or deceit of such person. 

The Master Trustee may consult with counsel, accountants and consultants (who may be counsel, 
accountants, or consultants for any Obligation Holder) and the written advice of such counsel, accountants 
or consultants or any Opinion of Counsel shall be full and complete authorization and protection in respect 
of any action taken, suffered or omitted by it under the Master Trust Indenture in good faith and in reliance 
thereof. 

The Master Trustee shall be under no obligation to exercise any of the rights or powers vested in it 
by the Master Trust Indenture at the request or direction of any of the Obligation Holders pursuant to this 
Indenture, unless such Obligation Holders shall have offered to the Master Trustee reasonable security or 
indemnity against the costs, expenses and liabilities which might be incurred by it in compliance with such 
request or direction. 

Except as specifically provided in the Master Trust Indenture, the Master Trustee shall not be 
required to monitor the financial condition of the Members of the Obligated Group or the physical 
condition of the Property and shall not have any responsibility with respect to reports, notices, certificates 
or other documents filed or to be filed with it under the Master Trust Indenture.  The Master Trustee shall 
not be required to take notice of any breach or default under the Master Trust Indenture by the Corporation 
or any Member of the Obligated Group, except for (i) those of which it receives written notice by an 
Obligation Holder, and (ii) the failure of the Master Trustee to receive certificates, reports, or opinions 
specifically required to be furnished to the Master Trustee by the Master Trust Indenture.  The Master 
Trustee shall not be bound to make any investigation into the facts or matters stated in any resolution, 
certificate, statement, instrument, opinion, report, notice, request, direction, consent, order, bond, note or 
other paper or document, but the Master Trustee, in its discretion, may make such further inquiry  or 
investigation into such facts or matters as it may see fit, and, if the Master Trustee shall determine to make 
such further inquiry or investigation, it shall be entitled to examine the books, records and premises of any 
Member of the Obligated Group, personally or by agent or attorney. 

The Master Trustee may execute any of the trusts or powers under the Master Trust Indenture or 
perform any duties thereunder, either directly or by or through agents or attorneys, and the Master Trustee 
shall not be responsible for any misconduct or negligence on the part of any agent or attorney appointed 
with due care by it thereunder. 

Nothing contained in the Master Trust Indenture shall in any way obligate the Master Trustee to 
pay any debt or meet any financial obligations to any person in relation to the Obligations except from 
moneys received under the provisions of the Master Trust Indenture or from the exercise of the Master 
Trustee’s rights thereunder other than the moneys received for its own purposes.  The Master Trustee 
makes no representation as to the enforceability of the Master Trust Indenture of the Obligations issued 
thereunder. 

The Master Trustee shall not be required to furnish any bond or surety.  (Section 7.02) 
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Supplements to Master Trust Indenture Not Requiring Consent of Obligation Holders 

The Representative, on behalf of each Member of the Obligated Group, when authorized by 
resolution of the Governing Body of the Representative, and the Master Trustee may, without the consent 
of or notice to any of the Holders, enter into one or more supplements for one or more of the following 
purposes: 

(a) To cure any ambiguity or formal defect or omission in the Master Trust Indenture. 

(b) To correct or supplement any provision which may be inconsistent with any other 
provision of the Master Trust Indenture, or to make any other provisions with respect to matters or 
questions arising under the Master Trust Indenture and which shall not materially and adversely affect the 
interests of the Holders. 

(c) To grant or confer ratably upon all of the Holders any additional rights, remedies, powers 
or authority that may lawfully be granted or conferred upon them subject to the provisions of the Master 
Trust Indenture. 

(d) To qualify the Master Trust Indenture under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as 
amended, or corresponding provisions of federal laws from time to time in effect. 

(e) To create and provide for the issuance of Obligations as permitted under the Master Trust 
Indenture. 

(f) To obligate a successor to the Representative or other Member of the Obligated Group as 
provided in the Master Trust Indenture. 

(g) To add additional property to the Restricted Property or to additional security for the 
benefit of the Holders.  (Section 8.01) 

Supplements to Master Trust Indenture Requiring Consent of Obligation Holders 

Other than supplements referred to above and subject to the terms and provisions and limitations 
contained in the Master Trust Indenture and not otherwise, the Holders of not less than a majority in 
aggregate principal amount of Obligations then Outstanding shall have the right, from time to time, to 
approve such supplements as shall be deemed necessary and desirable for the purpose of modifying, 
altering, amending, adding to or rescinding, in any particular, any of the terms or provisions contained in 
the Master Trust Indenture; provided, however, nothing shall permit or be construed as permitting a 
supplement which would: 

(a) Extend the stated maturity of or time for paying interest on any Obligations or reduce the 
principal amount of or the redemption premium, if any, or rate of interest payable on any Obligations; 

(b) Make any Obligation redeemable other than in accordance with its terms; 

(c) Create a preference or priority of one Obligation over any other Obligation; or 

(d) Reduce the aggregate principal amount of Obligations the consent of the Holders of 
which is required to authorize any such supplement without the unanimous written consent of the affected 
Holders of Obligations then Outstanding.  (Section 8.02) 

Satisfaction and Discharge of Master Trust Indenture 

If (A) (i) there shall be delivered to the Master Trustee for cancellation all Obligations, or (ii) all 
Obligations shall have become due and payable and shall have been paid, or (iii) the Members of the 
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Obligated Group shall deposit with the Master Trustee (or with a bank or trust company acceptable to the 
Master Trustee) as trust funds Government or Equivalent Obligations bearing interest at such rates and with 
such maturities as will provide sufficient funds to pay or redeem in full all Obligations, including principal, 
premium, if any, and interest due or to become due to such date of maturity or redemption date, as the case 
may be, and (B) the Members of the Obligated Group shall also pay or cause to be paid all other sums 
payable under the Master Trust Indenture by the Members of the Obligated Group or any thereof, then the 
Master Trust Indenture shall cease to be of further effect.  If any Obligation is to be redeemed prior to 
Maturity thereof, the Master Trust Indenture shall cease to be of further effect.  If any Obligation is to be 
redeemed prior to Maturity thereof, the Master Trust Indenture shall not cease to be in effect until all action 
necessary to redeem such Obligation shall have been taken or irrevocable provision satisfactory to the 
Master Trustee has been made for the taking of such action.  (Section 9.01) 

Obligation Holders 

An Obligation Holder making any request, direction, consent or other instrument may, in its 
discretion, do so pro rata to reflect any such action by the holders of its underlying Indenture Indebtedness.  
(Section 10.01) 
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APPENDIX D-2 

 

SUMMARY OF SUPPLEMENTAL MASTER INDENTURE FOR OBLIGATION NO. 6 AND 
CERTAIN ADDITIONAL AMENDMENTS TO THE MASTER TRUST INDENTURE 

Summary of Supplemental Master Indenture for Obligation No. 6 
 
Issuance of Obligation No. 6 

The Supplemental Master Indenture for Obligation No. 6 (the "Supplemental Indenture") creates 
and authorizes the issuance of an Obligation under the Master Trust Indenture ("Obligation No. 6") in an 
aggregate principal amount of $71,740,000.  (Section 3) 

Payments on Obligation No. 6; Credits 

Principal of, premium, if any, and interest on Obligation No. 6 are payable in lawful money of the 
United States of America.  Principal of, premium, if any, and interest on Obligation No. 6 shall be payable 
on such dates and in such amounts as are required under the Agreement to provide for payment of the 
principal of (including sinking fund installments), premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds when due, 
whether at maturity, upon redemption or acceleration or otherwise. 

The Institution's payments under Obligation No. 6 may be prepaid at such times and with such 
notice to the Bond Trustee as will accomplish simultaneous prepayment under the Agreement of the Bonds 
otherwise payable therefrom.  Such payments may also be reduced (and the Institution's obligations with 
respect thereto correspondingly credited) to the extent that the principal (including sinking fund 
installments) of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds payable therefrom is actually paid from other 
sources. 

When all Outstanding Bonds are deemed to have been paid in full when due or prepaid in whole 
and all other conditions imposed by the Agreement are satisfied, Obligation No. 6 shall be deemed to have 
been paid and to be no longer Outstanding under the Master Trust Indenture.  (Sections 4 and 7) 

Registration, Number, Negotiability and Transfer of Obligation No. 6 

Except as otherwise provided, so long as any Bond remains Outstanding, Obligation No. 6 shall 
consist of a single Obligation without coupons registered as to principal and interest in the name of the 
Bond Trustee and no transfer of Obligation No. 6 shall be registered under the Master Trust Indenture 
except for transfers to a successor Trustee.  Upon the principal of all Indenture Indebtedness Outstanding 
being declared immediately due and payable upon and during the continuance of an Event of Default, 
Obligation No. 6 may be transferred, if and to the extent the Bond Trustee requests that the restrictions on 
transfers be terminated.  (Section 5) 

Default 

Upon the occurrence of certain "Events of Default" (as defined in the Master Trust Indenture), the 
principal of all Outstanding Obligations may be declared, and thereupon shall become, due and payable as 
provided in the Master Trust Indenture. 

The Holder of Obligation No. 6 shall have no right to enforce the provisions of the Master Trust 
Indenture, institute any action to enforce the covenants of the Master Trust Indenture, take any action with 
respect to any default under the Master Trust Indenture, institute, appear in or defend any suit or other 
proceeding with respect to any default under the Master Trust Indenture, or institute, appear in or defend 
any other suit or proceeding with respect to the Master Trust Indenture, except as provided in the Master 
Trust Indenture.  (Section 7) 
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Substitution of Master Trust Indenture or Obligations 

 So long as the Series G Bonds are Outstanding, the Obligated Group covenants and agrees that it 
will not substitute the Master Trust Indenture or any Obligations as provided under the heading “Future 
Amendments to the Master Trust Indenture – Series E Amendments – Substitution of Master Trust 
Indenture” below. 

Currently Effective, Permanent Amendments to the Master Trust Indenture 

Pursuant to amendments to the Master Trust Indenture adopted pursuant to Supplemental Master 
Indenture for Obligation No. 2, in addition to the requirements under the heading "Conditions for 
Membership" of Appendix D-1 any new member shall agree to provide to the Representative on a timely 
basis all information required for the Representative to comply with its undertakings under the Continuing 
Disclosure Agreement executed in connection with the Series D Bonds. 

Supplemental Covenants and Future Amendments to the Master Trust Indenture 

 The supplemental covenants and future amendments to the Master Trust Indenture described in 
the remainder of this Appendix D-2 are in effect during such time as the applicable bond insurance policy 
remains in effect, or will go into effect upon the occurrence of certain events as further specified below.  

Supplemental Covenants to the Master Trust Indenture – Series D Bond Insurer Requirements 

Notwithstanding any provision of the Master Trust Indenture, the Supplemental Master 
Indenture for Obligation No. 6 or the Agreement to the contrary, so long as the bond insurance 
policy issued by the Series D Bond Insurer remains in effect and the Series D Bond Insurer is not in 
default of its payment obligations thereunder, the following provisions of the Supplemental Master 
Indenture for Obligation No. 2 shall be in effect: 

Definitions. 

(i) Variable rate indebtedness issued under the Master Trust Indenture shall be 
assumed, for all purposes including the definition of Debt Service Requirement in Appendix C, to 
bear interest at the highest of:  (i) the actual rate on the date of calculation, or if the indebtedness is 
not yet outstanding, the initial rate (if established and binding), (ii) if the indebtedness has been 
outstanding for at least twelve months, the average rate over the twelve months immediately 
preceding the date of calculation, and (iii) if the indebtedness has a final maturity of less than 10 
years, the average rate over the twelve months immediately preceding the date of calculation plus 
2%, but if the indebtedness has a final maturity of greater than 10 years, then (1) if interest on the 
indebtedness is excludable from gross income under the applicable provisions of the Internal 
Revenue Code, the most recently published Bond Buyer 25 Bond Revenue Index (or comparable 
index if no longer published) plus fifty (50) basis points, or (2) if interest is not so excludable, the 
interest rate on direct U.S. Treasury obligations with comparable maturities plus fifty (50) basis 
points. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, for purposes of any rate covenant measuring actual debt 
service coverage during a test period, variable rate indebtedness shall be deemed to bear interest at 
the actual rate per annum applicable during the test period. 

(ii) section (A)(iii) of the definition of Debt Service Requirement in Appendix C 
shall deleted. 

(iii) The maximum purchase price of indebtedness which is subject to tender for 
purchase shall be included in Debt Service Requirements in any Fiscal Year in which payment of 
the full amount of such purchase price is not available pursuant to a credit facility (A) pursuant to 
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which repayment of amounts drawn is not required for at least one year, and (B) the provider of 
which is rated in the highest two rating categories by Moody’s and Standard and Poor’s. 

(iv) The definition of Restricted Property in Appendix C shall be amended to 
include, with respect to each Member of the Obligated Group, all real Property acquired 
subsequent to the date of its becoming a Member, except that any Property which would qualify to 
be encumbered by liens pursuant to paragraph (s) under the heading “Limitations on Creation of 
Liens” in Appendix D-1 shall not constitute Restricted Property. 

Conditions for Membership.  Paragraph (i) under the heading “Conditions for Membership” in Appendix 
D-1 shall be replaced with the following: 

“(i) The real property of such Person at which, as determined by the Master Trustee 
at the direction of the Bond Insurer so long as any Obligation secures Bonds insured by the Bond 
Insurer, substantially all of its operating revenues are generated shall be added to the Restricted 
Property.” 

Insurance.  Paragraph (c) under the heading “Insurance” in Appendix D-1 shall be replaced with the 
following: 

“(c) As long as any Member maintains any self-insurance (or participates in any 
captive insurance program), it will provide the Master Trustee and the Bond Insurer annually with 
a report of a nationally recognized actuary and Insurance Consultant concerning the adequacy of 
funding and the funding determination processes employed in connection therewith.  If such report 
indicates a deficiency in insurance coverage, such deficiency shall be corrected within one year or 
the self-insurance program shall be replaced with commercial insurance which shall be deemed 
adequate by an Insurance Consultant.  The insurance maintained by any Member shall also be 
subject to the review of an Insurance Consultant who shall every five years after the issuance of 
the initial Obligation under the Master Trust Indenture prepare and file with the Master Trustee a 
report on the adequacy of such insurance.  With respect to medical malpractice insurance, such 
report shall be prepared and filed every two years.  Each Member of the Obligated Group, 
respectively, agrees that it will follow any reasonable recommendations of the Insurance 
Consultant to the extent feasible.” 

Permitted Liens.  Paragraph (o) under the heading “Limitations on Creation of Liens” in Appendix D-1 
shall be replaced with the following: 

“(o) Liens securing Long-Term Indebtedness, provided that the aggregate amount of 
Indebtedness of the Members of the Obligated Group (including capitalized leases) which is 
secured pursuant to this Paragraph (o) shall not at any time exceed 20% of the total Book Value of 
the Restricted Property, and that the aggregate Book Value of all Restricted Property encumbered 
by all Liens under this paragraph (o) shall not exceed 15% of the total Book Value of all 
Restricted Property;” 

Additional Indebtedness.  No Indebtedness shall be entered into pursuant to the Master Trust Indenture, as 
described under the heading “Limitations on Incurrence of Additional Indebtedness” in Appendix D-1 if an 
Event of Default has occurred and is continuing. 

Paragraph (a)(i) under the heading “Limitations on Incurrence of Additional Indebtedness” in 
Appendix D-1 shall be replaced with the following: 

“(i) Subject to the provisions described in paragraph (2) below, the ratio determined 
by dividing Aggregate Income Available for Debt Service for the two most recent Fiscal Years for 
which the combined financial statements of the Obligated Group have been reported upon by 
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independent certified public accountants, by Maximum Annual Debt Service including the 
Additional Indebtedness, is not less than 1.25; or 

Paragraph (a)(ii) under the heading “Limitations on Incurrence of Additional Indebtedness” in 
Appendix D-1 shall be replaced with the following: 

“(ii) Subject to the provisions described in paragraph (g) below, (A) the Historical 
Debt Service Coverage Ratio for the period mentioned in paragraph (a)(i), not including the 
proposed Additional Indebtedness, is not less than 1.25 and (B) the Projected Debt Service 
Coverage Ratio, taking the proposed Additional Indebtedness into account, for (1) in the case of 
Additional Indebtedness to finance capital improvements, each of the two Fiscal Years succeeding 
the date on which such capital improvements are expected to be placed in operation, or (2) in the 
case of Long-Term Indebtedness refinancing other Indebtedness for completed capital projects or 
Long-Term Indebtedness not financing capital improvements, each of the two Fiscal Years 
succeeding the date on which the Indebtedness is incurred, is not less than 1.25, as shown by 
combined pro forma balance sheets, statements of income of revenue and expenses and statements 
of changes in financial position for each such period, accompanied by a statement of the relevant 
assumptions upon which such pro forma statements are based, delivered to the Master Trustee 
along with the Officer’s Certificate or Consultant’s report, as the case may be.  Such Officer’s 
Certificate or Consultant’s report shall be acceptable and provided to the Bond Insurer.” 

Paragraph (g)(i) under the heading “Limitations on Incurrence of Additional Indebtedness” in 
Appendix D-1 shall be replaced with the following: 

“(i) That applicable laws or regulations, and contracts generally applicable to all 
similar health care providers in the Commonwealth have prevented or will prevent generation of 
the required level of Aggregate Income Available for Debt Service, and, if requested by the 
Master Trustee or the Bond Insurer, an accompanying Opinion of Counsel acceptable to the 
Master Trustee and the Bond Insurer setting forth any conclusions of law relevant to such 
opinion;” 

Debt Service Coverage Ratios.  If the Historical Debt Service Coverage Ratio, as calculated at the end of 
the Fiscal Year, is less than 1.10, the Obligated Group consents to retain within 150 days after the end of 
the Fiscal Year a nationally recognized Consultant to make recommendations as to rates and charges and 
other aspects of hospital management and operation. 

Sale, Lease or Other Transfer of Property.  Paragraph (f) under the heading “Sale, Lease or Other Transfer 
of Property” in Appendix D-1 shall be replaced with the following: 

“(f) In the case of cash or cash equivalents or securities, an amount (based, in the 
case of securities, on market value and excluding transfers permitted under paragraphs (b), (d) or 
(e) of this section) not exceeding the lesser of (i) fifty percent (50%) of the aggregate excess of 
revenues over expenses of the Obligated Group from October 1, 1989 to the end of the most recent 
Fiscal Year for which audited financial statements are available less any amounts previously 
transferred under this paragraph or (ii) in any one Fiscal Year ten percent (10%) of the Member’s 
Unrestricted Fund Balance of the Member making the transfer as of the end of its most recent 
Fiscal Year for which audited financial statements are available, provided however, that 
unrestricted cash and cash equivalents will not be reduced below a level equal to the sum of thirty 
days daily adjusted operating expenses (daily adjusted operating expenses means total operating 
expenses and principal due and payable on all indebtedness, each for the immediately preceding 
Fiscal Year, less depreciation expenses, divided by 365); or” 

Events of Default.  Paragraph (b) under the heading “Events of Default” in Appendix D-1 shall be replaced 
with the following: 
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“(b) Any Member of the Obligated Group shall fail duly to observe or perform any 
covenant or agreement on its part under the Master Trust Indenture for a period of 60 days (or 
such longer period as permitted in writing by the Master Trustee and the Bond Insurer) after the 
date on which written notice of such failure, requiring the same to remedied, shall have been given 
to the Members of the Obligated Group by the Master Trustee, or to the Members of the Obligated 
Group and the Master Trustee by the Holders of at least 25% in aggregate principal amount of 
Obligations then Outstanding.” 

Future Amendments to the Master Trust Indenture -- Series E Amendments 

The Master Trustee, the Obligated Group, the Series E Bond owners, by their purchase of the 
Series E Bonds, and the Holder of Obligation No. 3 by agreeing to hold Obligation No. 3, have consented 
to the following additional amendments to the Master Trust Indenture.  Such amendments to the Master 
Trust Indenture are adopted pursuant to the headings "Supplements to Master Trust Indenture Not 
Requiring Consent of Obligation Holders" and "Supplements to Master Trust Indenture Requiring Consent 
of Obligation Holders" of Appendix D-1 (the "Amendment Requirements") and shall take effect upon 
receipt by the Master Trustee of all certificates and opinions required by the Amendment Requirements and 
upon the earlier of (i) the retirement or defeasance of the Series C Bonds and the Series D Bonds, or (ii) the 
obtaining of all necessary consents to such amendments, as required by the Amendment Requirements, 
from the required percentage of Obligation Holders, in addition to the Holder of Obligation No. 3, who has 
consented thereto by agreeing to hold Obligation No. 3.  The Series G Bondowners, by their purchase of 
the Series G Bonds, and the Holder of Obligation No. 6 by agreeing to hold Obligation No. 6, have 
consented to the following additional amendments to the Master Trust Indenture. 

 Definitions 

 The definition of “Historical Test Period” shall be amended to read as follows: 

“Historical Test Period” means, with respect to an event, the most recent full Fiscal Year 
of the Obligated Group preceding the event for which audited financial statements are available. 

The definition of "Income Available for Debt Service" shall be amended to read as follows: 

"Income Available for Debt Service" shall mean, with respect to each Member of the 
Obligated Group, as to any period of time, the excess revenues over expenses (excluding from 
revenues and expenses extraordinary items and income from Irrevocable Deposits and excluding 
from expenses depreciation, interest on Long-Term Indebtedness and amortization of bond 
discount and financing expenses), as determined in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, provided that no determination thereof shall take into account any revenue or expense 
of an Affiliate which is not a Member of the Obligated Group except as provided in the following 
sentence and provided further that there shall be excluded from revenues or expenses, as the case 
may be, any gain or loss resulting from the valuation of investment securities at market at market 
value and any other gain or loss that does not require or result in the expenditure of cash.  In 
determining the Historical Debt Service Coverage Ratio or historical coverage of pro forma 
indebtedness, (i) amounts actually transferred from the Parent to any Member may be treated as 
revenues of such Member provided such amounts were not restricted to purposes inconsistent with 
the payment of any Indebtedness of such Member and would constitute operating or nonoperating 
revenues of the Member under generally accepted accounting principles; and (ii) if a Member has 
audited financial statements for the period in question, its Income Available for Debt Service shall 
be determined to the extent possible from such statements. 

Limitations on Increase of Additional Indebtedness.  Paragraph (a) under the heading “Limitations on 
Incurrence of Additional Indebtedness” in Appendix D-1 shall be deleted and replaced with the following: 
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“(a) Long-Term Indebtedness, is included Indenture Indebtedness, if prior to 
incurrence of the Long-Term Indebtedness, there is delivered to the Master Trustee: 

(i) Subject to the provisions described in paragraph (g) below, (A) a report 
of an independent certified public accountant certifying that the Historical Debt Service 
Coverage Ratio for the Historical Test Period not including the proposed Additional 
Indebtedness, is not less than 1.10 and (B) a Consultant’s report to the effect that the 
Projected Debt Service Coverage Ratio, taking the proposed Additional Indebtedness into 
account, for (1) in the case of Additional Indebtedness to finance capital improvements, 
the first full Fiscal Year succeeding the date on which such capital improvements are 
expected to be placed in operation or the date to which interest on such Additional 
Indebtedness has been capitalized, if earlier, or (2) in the case of Long-Term 
Indebtedness refinancing other Indebtedness for completed capital projects or Long-Term 
Indebtedness not financing capital improvements, the first full Fiscal Year succeeding the 
date on which the Indebtedness is incurred, is not less than 1.20, as shown by combined 
pro forma balance sheets, statements of operations or of revenue and expenses and 
statements of cash flows for each such period, accompanied by a statement of the 
relevant assumptions upon which such pro forma statements are based; or  

(ii) Subject to the provisions described in paragraph (g) below, for 
purposes of any calculation of (A) the Historical Debt Service Coverage Ratio calculated 
thereunder for the previous Fiscal Year (including the Additional Indebtedness) in not 
less than 1.25; or (B) the Projected Debt Service Coverage Ratio required under 
subparagraph (i)(B) of this paragraph (a) is greater than 1.50, then in either such case, the 
Master Trustee shall accept an Officer’s Certificate certifying thereto.” 

Paragraph (b) under the heading “Limitations on Incurrence of Additional Indebtedness” in 
Appendix D-1 shall be amended by adding the following sentence to the end of such paragraph: 

“In addition, there shall be no limit on Completion Indebtedness provided that the Master 
Trustee receives a certificate of an Architect stating that the amount of such Long-Term 
Indebtedness is required to pay the cost of completing the facility.” 

Paragraph (c) under the heading “Limitations on Incurrence of Additional Indebtedness” in 
Appendix D-1 shall be amended by deleting the language of such paragraph that precedes clause (i) and 
replacing it with the following: 

“Long-Term Indebtedness incurred for the purposes of refunding any Long-Term 
Indebtedness if the conditions described in paragraph (a) of this section are met with respect to 
such proposed Long-Term Indebtedness or if there is delivered an Officer’s Certificate to the 
Master Trustee certifying that taking the proposed Long-Term Indebtedness and the refunding of 
the existing Long-Term Indebtedness into account, the Maximum Annual Debt Service will not be 
increased  by more than 15% or if upon the incurrence thereof:” 

Paragraph (d) under the heading “Limitations on Incurrence of Additional Indebtedness: in 
Appendix D-1 is amended by: 

(i) increasing the total amount of allowable Short-Term Indebtedness from 15% of 
adjusted Annual Operating Revenues to 20% of Adjusted Annual Operating Revenues; 

(ii) altering the first proviso of such paragraph that currently requires a period of 30 
consecutive days in each Fiscal Year in which the Obligated Group shall not have Outstanding 
Short-Term Indebtedness of more than three percent of the Adjusted Annual Operating Revenues 
to requiring twenty consecutive days and five percent of Adjusted Annual Operating Revenues; 
and 
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(iii) in accordance with (ii) above, altering the requirement of the last sentence of 
such paragraph to provide that Short-Term Indebtedness in excess of the five percent limitation 
shall be deemed to be Long-Term Indebtedness for all purposes of the Master Trust Indenture. 

Paragraph (e) under the heading “Limitations on Incurrence of Additional Indebtedness” in 
Appendix D-1 shall be amended by adding the following language to the end of such paragraph: 

“; provided that no such subordinated Indebtedness shall be incurred unless the Obligated 
Group is in compliance with the Debt Service Coverage Ratio requirement of the heading “Debt 
Service Coverage Ratios” of Appendix D-1.” 

Paragraph (g) under the heading “Limitations on Incurrence of Additional Indebtedness” in 
Appendix D-1 shall be amended to refer to clauses (A) and (B) of paragraph (a)(i) of that heading. 

A new paragraph (j) under the heading “Limitations on Incurrence of Additional Indebtedness” in 
Appendix D-1 shall be added as follows: 

“(j) Long-Term Indebtedness not exceeding in aggregate principal amount 
Outstanding at any time (together with all other Indebtedness issued pursuant to this paragraph (j) 
15% of Adjusted Annual Operating Revenues for the historical Test Period.  Any Outstanding 
Indebtedness incurred under this paragraph (j) shall be deemed to have been incurred under 
another provision of the heading “Limitations on Incurrence of Additional Indebtedness” in 
Appendix D-1, upon the satisfaction of such other provision as if such Outstanding Indebtedness 
were then being incurred.  To the extent that Long-Term Indebtedness is deemed to be incurred 
pursuant to another provision of the heading, “Limitations on Incurrence of Additional 
Indebtedness” in Appendix D-1, it shall not reduce the amount of Indebtedness permitted to be 
incurred pursuant to this paragraph (j).” 

Debt Service on Guaranties.  The paragraph under the heading “Debt Service on Guaranties” in Appendix 
D-1 shall be amended by: 

(i) decreasing the amount of Long-Term Indebtedness that shall be included in 
computations of debt service from an amount equal to 25% to an amount equal to 20%; and 

(ii) adding the following language to the end of such paragraph: 

“Guaranties not exceeding (i) $5,000,000 aggregate principal amount 
Outstanding at any time for the Historical Test Period and (ii) $500,000 per Guaranty 
shall not be included in debt service calculations.” 

The entire section under the heading “Debt Service on Balloon Indebtedness” in Appendix D-1 
shall be deleted and replaced with the following: 

“Debt Service on Balloon Indebtedness and Variable Rate Indebtedness. 

(a) At the election of any Member, for the purpose of any computation of any 
projected Debt Service Requirement, the principal and interest deemed to be payable on Balloon 
Indebtedness of such Member outstanding for the period during which such projected Debt 
Service Requirement is computed shall be as set forth below: 

(i) If the Member has obtained a binding commitment of a financial 
institution satisfactory to the Master Trustee to refinance such Balloon Indebtedness (or a 
portion thereof), including without limitation, a letter of credit or a line of credit, which 
commitment is subject only to usual conditions applicable to loans to entities similar to 
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such Member, the Balloon Indebtedness (or portion thereof) may be deemed to be 
payable in accordance with the terms of the refinancing arrangement; or  

(ii) If (A) the Date of Maturity of any portion of such Balloon 
Indebtedness, which portion is for purposes of this paragraph (a) not in excess of 25% of 
the Capitalization of such Member as of the end of the most recent Fiscal Year for which 
audited financial statements are available, is more than 18 months after the date of any 
transaction for which a Projection is made or (B) the condition of subparagraph (i) above 
is satisfied with respect to such portion by a financing arrangement having a term not less 
than 3 years, such portion of such Balloon Indebtedness may be deemed to be 
Indebtedness payable over a 25 year term, at an interest rate equal to the most recently 
published Bond Buyer 30-year Revenue Bond Index (or comparable index if no longer 
published), in equal annual installments of principal and interest, provided that the 
Representative has delivered to the Master Trustee a certificate of an investment banker 
satisfactory to the Master Trustee stating that it is reasonable to assume that such 
Indebtedness of the Member could be sold. 

(b) At no time shall the amount of Balloon Indebtedness exceed 50% of the 
aggregate Unrestricted Fund Balance of the Obligated Group. 

(c) In determining Debt Service Requirements for any Member, for any period the 
interest deemed to be payable on Indebtedness which bears interest at other than a fixed rate shall 
be calculated at the actual rate of interest for the historical period.  In determining the Debt Service 
Requirement of any Member for a projected period, the interest deemed to be payable on 
Indebtedness which bears interest at other than a fixed rate shall be calculated at the interest rate 
most recently published for the Bond Buyer 30-year Revenue Bond Index (or comparable index if 
no longer published).” 

Paragraph (f) under the heading “Sale, Lease or Other Transfer of Property” in Appendix D-1 shall 
be amended by adding transfers listed under paragraph (c) under the heading “Sale, Lease or Other Transfer 
of Property” in Appendix D-1 to the types of transfers that are excluded from the restrictions imposed upon 
transfers of cash or cash equivalents or securities in paragraph (f). 

The following paragraph (h) shall be added to the section under the heading “Sale, Lease or Other 
Transfer of Property” of Appendix D-1; 

“(h) In the case of a sale, factoring or securitization of accounts receivable, so long as 
the Debt Service Coverage Ratio exceeds a 1.50 for the Historical Test Period, there shall be no 
restrictions on the Obligated Group’s power to factor, pledge or sell accounts receivable.” 

The following section shall be added to the Master Trust Indenture: 

“Substitution of Master Trust Indenture. 

(a) The Obligation Holders shall surrender the Obligations to the Master Trustee 
upon presentation to the Obligation Holders and the Master Trustee of the following: 

(i) original replacement notes or similar obligations (the “Substitute Obligations”) 
issued by the Obligated Group or a surviving, resulting or transferee entity meeting the 
requirements of the Indenture under the heading “Consolidation, Merger, Sale or Conveyance” of 
Appendix D-1 (the “Substitute Master Trust Indenture”) executed by the Obligated Group or any 
Substitute Obligated Group, all then current Obligated Groups and any other parties named therein 
(collectively, the “New Group”) and an independent corporate trustee (the “New Trustee”) (which 
may be the Master Trustee) meeting the eligibility requirements for the Master Trustee as set forth 
in the Indenture, which Substitute Obligations have been duly authenticated by the New Trustee; 
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(ii) the Substitute Master Trust Indenture which shall contain (a) a pledge of the 
Gross Receipts of the New Group, (b) the agreement of each member of the New Group (1) to 
become a member of the New Group and thereby to become subject to compliance with all 
provisions of the Substitute Master Trust Indenture and (2) unconditionally and irrevocably 
(subject to the right of such Person to cease its status as a member of the New Group pursuant to 
the terms and conditions of the Substitute Master Trust Indenture) jointly and severally to make 
payments upon each obligation, including the Substitute Obligations, issued under the Substitute 
Master Trust Indenture at the times and in the amounts provided in each such obligation and (c) 
terms, covenants and provisions which substantially cover the matters and do not materially 
weaken the requirements imposed for the benefit of the Obligation Holders contained in the 
Indenture (including the defined terms used herein); 

(iii) evidence of compliance with the tests for adding a new member of the Obligated 
Group set forth under paragraph (g) of the heading “Conditions for Membership” of Appendix D-
1; 

(iv) an Opinion of Bond Counsel that the replacement of the Obligations will not 
adversely affect the validity of the Series C Bonds, Series D Bonds or Series E Bonds or any 
Indenture Indebtedness or any exemption for the purposes of federal income taxation to which 
interest on the Series C Bonds, Series D Bonds or Series E Bonds and such Indenture Indebtedness 
would otherwise be entitled; 

(v) an Opinion of Counsel to the Obligated Group that the conditions in this section 
for the surrender of the Substitute Obligation have been met and that, as of the date of such 
surrender, no event of default shall have occurred and be continuing under the Indenture or the 
Substitute Master Trust Indenture; 

(vi) an original executed counterpart of the Substitute Master Trust Indenture; and 

(vii) such other opinions and certificates as the Master Trustee and the Obligation 
Holders may reasonably require, together with such reasonable indemnities as the Master Trustee 
and the Obligation Holders may request. 

(b) The provisions of this section may be implemented by the Obligated Group, 
notwithstanding any provisions of the Indenture under the headings “Supplements to Master Trust 
Indenture Not Requiring Consent of Obligation Holders” and “Supplements to Master Trust 
Indenture Requiring Consent of Obligation Holders” of Appendix D-1, so long as the provisions 
of this section are fully complied with by the Obligated Group. 

(c) Following the surrender of the Obligations, and satisfaction of the conditions set 
forth above in this section and receipt of security and indemnity satisfactory to the Master Trustee, 
the Master Trustee will cancel the Obligations and assign, set over and transfer all of its right, title 
and interest in and to the trust estate under the Indenture to the New Trustee, and shall execute 
such documents and instruments as are necessary and appropriate to effect such transfer and 
assignment and to discharge the lien of the Indenture upon the trust estate.  Then and thereafter, 
Obligation Holders shall no longer be entitled to any rights and remedies under the Indenture, but 
shall have all of the rights and remedies granted under the Substitute Master Trust Indenture.”  
(Section 8) 

Future Amendments to the Master Trust Indenture – Series F Amendments 

Upon the earlier of (i) the retirement or defeasance or repayment of the Series C Bonds, the Series 
D Bonds, the Series E Bonds, and the Institution’s loan of a portion of the Series J-2 Bonds or (ii) the 
obtaining of all necessary consents to such amendments, as required by the Amendment Requirements, 
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from the required percentage of Obligation Holders, in addition to the Holder of Obligation No. 6, the 
following provisions shall be deemed effective: 

 The following definition of “Hedge Agreement” is hereby added to the Master Trust Indenture: 

“Hedge Agreement” means an interest rate swap, cap, collar, floor, forward, or other hedging 
agreement, arrangement or security, however denominated, expressly identified pursuant to its terms as 
being entered into in connection with and in order to hedge interest rate fluctuations on all or a portion of 
any indebtedness, and with a counterparty which is rated at least “A” by Moody’s or S&P. 

The following paragraph is hereby added to the Master Trust Indenture: 

(a) Obligations may be issued in a form other than a promissory note to evidence any type of 
Indenture Indebtedness or Hedge Agreement that itself is in a form other than a promissory note, including 
without limitation, deeming such Indenture Indebtedness or Hedge Agreement to be an Obligation.  
Consequently, the Related Supplement pursuant to which any Obligation is issued may provide for such 
supplements or amendments to the provisions hereof, as are necessary or appropriate to permit the issuance 
of such Obligation and as are not inconsistent with the intent that all Obligations be equally and ratably 
secured.  Any Hedge Agreement which is authenticated as an Obligation under the Indenture shall be 
equally and ratably secured by any lien created under the Indenture with all other Obligations except as 
otherwise provided in the Indenture; provided, however, that any such Obligation shall be deemed 
outstanding under the Indenture solely for the purpose of receiving payment under the Indenture and shall 
not be entitled to exercise any rights under the Indenture, including without limitation the right to vote or 
control remedies and any Obligations issued to secure any Hedge Agreement shall not be deemed to be 
Outstanding for any purpose with respect to granting of consent to amendments, other than the right to 
receive payment of amounts due thereunder equally and ratably with all other Obligations. 

(b) The heading “Debt Service on Balloon Indebtedness” of Appendix D-1 shall be amended by 
adding the following paragraph: 

“(d) Notwithstanding anything in the Indenture to the contrary, any so-called mark to market 
charge or credit attributable to any Hedge Agreement under Financial Accounting Standard 133 or 
otherwise shall be excluded from calculation of the revenues and expenses, in each case, of each Member 
of the Obligated Group and all related definitions and financial covenants in the Indenture.  Furthermore, 
notwithstanding anything else to the contrary, any portion of any Indebtedness of any Member for which an 
Hedge Agreement has been obtained by such Member shall be deemed to bear interest for the period of 
time that such Hedge Agreement is in effect at a net rate which takes into account the interest payments 
made by such Member on such Indebtedness and the payments made or received by such Member on such 
Hedge Agreement; provided that the long-term credit rating of the provider of such Hedge Agreement (or 
any guarantor thereof) is in one of the three highest rating categories of any Rating Agency (without regard 
to any refinements of gradation of rating category by numerical modifier or otherwise).  In addition, so long 
as any Indebtedness is deemed to bear interest at such net rate taking into account an Hedge Agreement, 
any payments made by a Member on such Hedge Agreement shall be excluded from expenses and any 
payments received by a Member on such Hedge Agreement shall be excluded from revenues, in each case, 
for all purposes of the Indenture.” 
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APPENDIX E 

SUMMARY OF LOAN AND TRUST AGREEMENT 

The Note and Pledge   

The Authority directs the Trustee to receive and hold the Note in trust upon the terms the Agreement.  The 
Authority assigns and pledges to the Trustee in trust upon the terms of the Agreement (a) all Revenues to be 
received from the Institution or derived from any security provided hereunder, (b) all rights to receive such 
Revenues and the proceeds of such rights and (c) the moneys and investments on deposit in the Funds established 
under this Agreement, other than the Rebate Fund.  This assignment and pledge does not include: (i) the rights of the 
Authority pursuant to provisions for consent, concurrence, approval or other action by the Authority, notice to the 
Authority or the filing of reports, certificates or other documents with the Authority or (ii) the powers of the 
Authority as stated in the Agreement to enforce the provisions of the Agreement. (Section 201) 

Establishment of Funds 

The following funds have been established and shall be maintained with the Trustee for the account of the 
Institution, to be held in trust by the Trustee and applied subject to the provisions of the Agreement: the Bond Fund 
and the Rebate Fund. 

A Construction Fund and Expense Fund have been established with the Authority to be held by the 
Authority in trust for the account of the Institution and applied subject to the provisions of the Agreement. (Sections 
303, 304, 305 and 401) 

Bond Fund 

The moneys in the Bond Fund and any investments held as part of such Fund shall be held in trust and, 
except as otherwise provided in the Agreement, shall be applied by the Trustee solely to pay principal, Purchase 
Price of, premium, if any, and interest on, the Bonds. In case any moneys deposited with the Trustee for the payment 
of the Purchase Price or principal of, premium, if any, or interest on any Bond remain unclaimed for two years after 
such Purchase Price, principal, premium or interest has been paid or has become due and payable, the Trustee may, 
and upon receipt of a written request by an Authorized Officer shall, pay over to the Institution the amount so 
deposited and thereupon the Trustee and the Authority shall be released from any further liability with respect to the 
payment of such Purchase Price or principal, premium or interest and the owner of such Bond shall be entitled 
(subject to any applicable statute of limitations) to look only to the Institution as an unsecured creditor for the 
payment thereof. (Section 303) 

Construction Fund 
 

The moneys in the Construction Fund and any investments held as part of such Fund shall be held in trust 
and, except as otherwise provided in the Agreement, shall be applied by the Authority solely to the payment or 
reimbursement of Project Costs. If there is an Event of Default known to the Authority with respect to payments to 
the Rebate Fund, Bond Fund or to the Authority, the Paying Agent or the Trustee, the Authority may use the 
Construction Fund without requisition to make up the deficiency, and the Institution shall restore the funds so used.  
Moneys remaining in the Construction Fund after completion of the Project will be transferred to the Bond Fund. 
(Section 401) 

Rebate Fund.   

A Rebate Fund shall be established by the Trustee for the purpose of complying with IRC Section 148(f) 
and the regulations thereunder.  Amounts in the Rebate Fund shall not be available to pay principal, interest, or 
redemption premium on the Bonds.  Within forty-five (45) days after the close of each Rebate Year (or any earlier 
date that may be necessary to make a required payment to the United States), the Institution shall compute and 
certify to the Authority and the Trustee in reasonable detail the amount payable to the Rebate Fund, if any, for such 
Rebate Year and the Institution shall pay such amount to the Trustee for deposit into the Rebate Fund.  
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No later than sixty (60) days after the close of the fifth Rebate Year following the date of issue of the 
Bonds (or any earlier date that may be required to comply with the applicable rules and regulations) and the close of 
each fifth Rebate Year thereafter, the Trustee shall pay from the Rebate Fund to the United States on behalf of the 
Authority the full amount of rebate then required to be paid as certified and directed by the Institution in accordance 
the Agreement. Within sixty (60) days after the Bonds have been paid in full, the Trustee shall pay to the United 
States from the Rebate Fund on behalf of the Authority the full amount of rebate then required to be paid as certified 
by the Institution. If on any rebate payment date the amount in the Rebate Fund will be insufficient to pay the 
amount required to be paid under the Rebate Provision, the Institution shall pay the amount of such deficiency to the 
Trustee for deposit into the Rebate Fund prior to the rebate payment date. 

No later than fifteen (15) days prior to each date on which a payment could become due under the 
foregoing paragraph, the Institution shall deliver to the Authority and the Trustee a certificate either summarizing 
the determination that no amount is required to be paid or specifying the amount then required to be paid pursuant to 
the Agreement.  

Expense Fund 

The moneys in the Expense Fund and any investments held as part of such Fund shall be held in trust and, 
except as otherwise provided in the Agreement, shall be applied by the Authority solely to the payment or 
reimbursement of the costs of issuing the Bonds. The Authority shall pay from the Expense Fund the costs of issuing 
the Bonds, including the Initial Administrative Fee, the reasonable fees and expenses of financial consultants, bond 
counsel and counsel to the Bank, the reasonable fees and expenses of the Trustee incurred prior to the completion of 
the Project in accordance with the Agreement, any recording or similar fees and any expenses of the Institution in 
connection with the issuance of the Bonds which are approved by the Authority. Earnings on the Expense Fund shall 
not be applied to pay costs of issuance of the Bonds, but shall be transferred to the Construction Fund as provided in 
the Agreement. After all costs of issuing the Bonds have been paid any amounts remaining in the Expense Fund 
shall be transferred to the Construction Fund. To the extent the Expense Fund is insufficient to pay any of the above 
costs, the Institution shall be liable for the deficiency and shall pay such deficiency as directed by the Authority. 
(Section 305) 

Application of Moneys 

 If, in addition to moneys drawn on the Credit Facility (if any), available moneys in the Bond Fund are not 
sufficient on any day to pay all principal, premium, if any, and interest on the Outstanding Bonds then due or 
overdue, such moneys shall, after payment of all amounts owing to the Trustee and the Authority under the 
Agreement (other than the Annual Administrative Fee), be applied first to the payment of interest, including interest 
on overdue principal, in the order in which the same became due (pro rata with respect to interest which became due 
at the same time), second to the payment of principal and redemption premiums, if any, without regard to the order 
in which the same became due in each case pro rata among Bondowners, provided, however, that amounts drawn on 
the Credit Facility (if any), debt services payments made by the Institution and amounts the Remarketing Agent has 
received for the purchase of Tendered Bonds shall be applied exclusively to pay interest and principal on the Bonds 
and, with respect to amounts drawn on the Credit Facility, in accordance with the Credit Facility, and thereafter to 
payment of the Annual Administrative Fee. If the owners of any Bonds have received all payments of principal and 
interest that have become due and payable from a draw on the Credit Facility, the Bank shall be treated as the 
owners of such Bonds. In the event there exist Pledged Bonds or Institution Bonds on the date of any application of 
moneys under this section, moneys otherwise to be paid to the Institution or to the Bank shall be applied as follows: 
first, so long as all payments due on Bonds supported by a Credit Facility have been made, pro rata to all 
Bondowners other than the Institution (but including the Bank to the extent provided in the preceding sentence), 
otherwise, first, pro rata to all Bondowners other than the Bank and the Institution, second (and irrespective of which 
the first clause applies), if any balance remains, to the Bank in fulfillment of any obligations owed to it under the 
Reimbursement Agreement or any Pledged Bonds (to the extent not satisfied pursuant to clause first), and third, if 
any further balance remains, to the Institution in respect of any Institution Bonds. Whenever overdue interest is to be 
paid on the Bonds, the Trustee may establish a special record date as provided in the forms of Bonds. The Trustee 
shall give such notice as it may deem appropriate of the fixing of any such date and special record date. When 
interest or a portion of the principal is to be paid on an overdue Bond, the Trustee may require presentation of the 
Bond for endorsement of the payment. Prior to any payment to be made to the Bank pursuant to the second clause of 
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the sixth preceding sentence, the Trustee may require a certificate from the Bank as to amounts due under the 
Reimbursement Agreement, and the Trustee may rely conclusively thereon. (Section 306) 

Payments by the Institution.   

Payments of Debt Service by the Institution.  While the Bonds are supported by a Credit Facility and are in 
the Variable Rate Mode, the Institution shall make payments in immediately available funds to the Trustee for 
deposit in the Bond Fund no later than the opening of business on the Business Day next preceding each Interest 
Payment Date, in an amount equal to the interest payment then coming due on such Bonds, plus 1/12th of the annual 
installment of principal next coming due, if any, by redemption pursuant to the Agreement. While the Bonds are in 
the Fixed Rate Mode (whether or not they are supported by a Credit Facility), on or before December 15 and June 
15 in each year, the Institution shall pay to the Trustee for deposit in the Bond Fund an amount equal to the interest 
coming due on such Bonds on the next January 1 or July 1, as the case may be, plus any principal coming due by 
redemption pursuant to the Agreement.  

Payment of Debt Service.  The Trustee shall apply Eligible Funds, and to the extent necessary other funds, 
from the Bond Fund for the payment of principal, premium, if any, and interest payable on the Bonds (whether at 
maturity, upon redemption or acceleration, on an Interest Payment Date, or otherwise) as provided in the Agreement 
to the extent amounts drawn on the Credit Facility are insufficient to pay the same. The Trustee shall apply to the 
payment of principal, premium, if any, and interest on Bonds, in the following order (i) moneys drawn on the Credit 
Facility, (ii) Eligible Funds on deposit in the Bond Fund other than moneys drawn on the Credit Facility, and (iii) 
any other moneys in the Bond Fund; provided, however, that in no event shall the Trustee use any moneys other 
than Eligible Funds to pay principal of, premium, if any, or interest on Bonds supported by a Credit Facility. 
Promptly after any payment on the Bonds is made from funds drawn under the Credit Facility, the Trustee shall to 
the extent available pay to the Bank from amounts in the Bond Fund (whether or not Eligible Funds, excluding 
proceeds of the Credit Facility) an amount equal to such payment on the Bonds from the drawing on the Credit 
Facility.  

Institution’s Purchase of Bonds.  If the amount drawn on the Credit Facility and deposited with the Trustee, 
together with all other amounts (including remarketing proceeds) received by the Trustee for the purchase of Bonds 
supported by a Credit Facility and tendered pursuant to the Agreement is not sufficient to pay the Purchase Price of 
such Bonds on the Purchase Date, the Trustee shall before 3:00 p.m. on such Purchase Date, notify the Institution 
and the Remarketing Agent of such deficiency electronically or by telephone promptly confirmed in writing. The 
Institution shall pay to the Trustee in immediately available funds by 4:00 p.m. on the Purchase Date an amount 
equal to the Purchase Price of such Bonds less the amount, if any, available to pay the Purchase Price in accordance 
with the Agreement from the proceeds of the remarketing of such Bonds and/or from drawings on the Credit 
Facility, as reported by the Trustee. Bonds so purchased with moneys furnished by the Institution shall be Institution 
Bonds.  (Section 307) 

The Credit Facility 

Drawings on the Credit Facility.  If a Credit Facility is available for the Bonds, the Trustee shall not later 
than 10:00 a.m. on the Business Day next preceding any date on which payments of the principal of, or interest on 
the Bonds are due, whether at maturity, on an Interest Payment Date, by acceleration, redemption, or otherwise, 
draw on the Credit Facility an amount sufficient to pay in full the principal of, and interest then coming due on the 
Bonds. The Trustee shall immediately notify the Institution electronically or by telephone promptly confirmed in 
writing if it has not been paid by the Bank for such a draw on the Letter of Credit by 1:00 p.m. on the date such 
payment on the Bonds is due. 

All amounts received by the Trustee under any Credit Facility shall be held in a fund separate and apart 
from all other amounts held by the Trustee (the “Credit Facility Fund”), shall be invested as provided in the 
Agreement and shall be used solely to pay the Purchase Price or principal of and interest on the Bonds for which the 
Credit Facility is available. Principal and Purchase Price of and interest on Institution Bonds and Pledged Bonds 
shall not be paid from amounts drawn on a Credit Facility, and the Trustee shall not draw on a Credit Facility for 
any such amounts. (Section 307) 
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Substitute Credit Facility. Upon satisfaction of the requirements described herein, the Institution may 
(except during the period between the giving of notice of mandatory tender for purchase on account of the expiration 
of the Credit Facility and the Purchase Date) replace a Credit Facility then in effect with a substitute Credit Facility; 
provided, however, that (1) the Credit Facility being replaced shall in no event be terminated or released until the 
Institution has given not less than forty-five (45) days’ written notice to the Trustee and the Remarketing Agent, and 
the Trustee has received the proceeds of all outstanding drawings on the Credit Facility being replaced, (2) the 
Trustee has given not less than fifteen (15) days’ written notice of the termination or release of the Credit Facility to 
owners of such Bonds, and (3) the provider of the substitute Credit Facility purchases all Outstanding Pledged 
Bonds, at par plus accrued interest at the Bank Rate, on the effective date of the substitute Credit Facility. The 
extension of an existing Credit Facility shall not constitute a substitute Credit Facility.  

Prior to the replacement of any Credit Facility, the Institution shall have delivered to the Trustee: (i) an 
opinion of counsel for the issuer of the substitute Credit Facility to the effect that it constitutes a legal, valid and 
binding obligation of the issuer enforceable in accordance with its terms; (ii) an opinion of Bond Counsel to the 
effect that the issuance of a substitute Credit Facility will not adversely affect the exclusion of interest on such 
Bonds from gross income for federal income tax purposes; (iii) a certificate of the Bank that all amounts due under 
the Reimbursement Agreement or otherwise owed by the Institution to the Bank have been paid and that the 
Institution has fulfilled all its obligations arising out of the Reimbursement Agreement and (iv) evidence of the 
rating of Bonds with the substitute Credit Facility by S&P and/or Moody’s. 

Each Credit Facility must: (i) be an irrevocable, unconditional obligation of a financial institution; (ii) in 
the Fixed Rate Mode, be issued by a financial institution whose senior long-term debt obligations (or the debt 
obligations of any guarantor of its obligations) have an investment grade rating from a nationally recognized rating 
agency equal to or greater than that had by the facility being replaced at the time of such replacement; (iii) be on 
terms no less favorable to the Trustee than the Letter of Credit and entitle the Trustee to draw upon or demand 
payment and receive in immediately available funds an amount equal to the sum of the principal amount of the 
Bonds supported by the Credit Facility, any premium applicable thereto, and forty-five (45) days’ accrued interest at 
the Maximum Interest Rate on the principal amount of Bonds then Outstanding in the Variable Rate Mode; and (iv) 
for Bonds in the Variable Rate Mode, provide for a term which may not expire or be terminated prior to the fifth 
Business Day after the mandatory tender for purchase as provided in the Agreement. The Institution shall not enter 
into any Reimbursement Agreement or agree to any amendment of a Reimbursement Agreement which in any way 
limits the obligation of the Bank to provide funds under the Credit Facility without the prior written consent of 
100% of the owners of the principal amount of the Bonds Outstanding and entitled to the benefit thereof. (Section 
315) 

Investments 

 Pending their use under this Agreement, moneys in the Funds and Accounts established pursuant 
to the Agreement may be invested by the Trustee or the Authority, as the case may be, in Permitted Investments 
maturing or redeemable at the option of the holder at or before the time when such moneys are expected to be 
needed and shall be so invested pursuant to written direction of the Institution if there is not then an Event of Default 
known to the Trustee or the Authority, as the case may be.  

Moneys received by the Trustee under any Credit Facility and amounts the Remarketing Agent has 
received for the purchase of Tendered Bonds shall either be held uninvested or be invested in investments described 
in clause (i) of the definition of “Government or Equivalent Obligations” with a maturity of not more than the lesser 
of thirty (30) days or when needed. 

 Except as set forth below, any interest realized on investments in any Fund and any profit realized 
upon the sale or other disposition thereof shall be credited to the Fund with respect to which they were earned and 
any loss shall be charged thereto. Earnings (which for this purpose include net profit and are after deduction of net 
loss) on the Expense Fund shall be transferred to the Construction Fund not less often than quarterly. 

 The term “Permitted Investments” means (A) Government or Equivalent Obligations or shares of 
any open-end or closed-end management type investment company or trust registered under 15 U.S.C. §80(a)-1 et 
seq., provided that the portfolio of such investment company or trust is limited to Government or Equivalent 

E-4 



 

Obligations and repurchase agreements fully collateralized by such obligations, and provided further that such 
investment company or trust shall take custody of such collateral either directly or through a custodian satisfactory 
to the Trustee, (B) “tax exempt bonds” as defined in IRC §150(a)(6), other than “specified private activity bonds” as 
defined in IRC §57(a)(5)(C), rated at least AA or Aa2 by S&P and Moody’s, respectively, or the equivalent by any 
other nationally recognized rating agency, at the time of acquisition thereof or shares of a so-called money market or 
mutual fund that do not constitute “investment property” within the meaning of IRC §148(b)(2), provided either that 
the fund has all of its assets invested in such “tax exempt bonds” of such rating quality or, if such obligations are not 
so rated, that the fund has comparable creditworthiness through insurance or otherwise and which fund is rated 
AAm or AAm-G if rated by S&P, (C) negotiable certificates of deposit or other evidences of deposit issued by a 
nationally or state-chartered bank or a state or federal savings and loan association or by a state-licensed branch of a 
foreign bank, which have assets of not less than $1,000,000,000, provided that the senior debt obligations of the 
issuing institution are rated “Aa3” or “AA” or better by Moody’s or S&P and mature not more than two years after 
the date of purchase, (D) bills of exchange or time drafts drawn on and accepted by a commercial bank (otherwise 
known as bankers acceptances), provided that such bankers acceptances may not exceed 180 days maturity, and 
provided further that the accepting bank has the highest short term letter and numerical rating as provided by 
Moody’s or S&P, (E) Repurchase Agreements, (F) money market funds rated at least Aam or Aam-G by S&P, (G) 
investment agreements with providers rated at least AA and AA2 by S&P and Moody’s, respectively, (H) 
collateralized investment agreements with providers rated at least A and A2 by S&P and Moody’s, respectively, (I) 
Federal Agency Securities and participation certificates issued by the Federal National Mortgage Association, 
Federal Home Loan Bank, Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, Federal Farm Credit Bank System, Student 
Loan Marketing Association, World Bank or Federal Agricultural Mortgage Corporation, and (J) commercial paper 
which is rated at the time of purchase at least A-1+ by S&P or P-1 by Moody’s and which matures not more than 
270 days after the date of purchase. The term “Repurchase Agreement” shall mean a written agreement under which 
a bank or trust company which has a capital and surplus of not less than $50,000,000 or a government bond dealer 
reporting to, trading with, and recognized as a primary dealer by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York sells to, 
and agrees to repurchase from the Authority or the Trustee obligations issued or guaranteed by the United States or 
other securities identified in the Section; provided that the market value of such obligations is at the time of entering 
into the agreement at least one hundred and three percent (103%) of the repurchase price specified in the agreement 
and that such obligations are segregated from the unencumbered assets of such bank or trust company or 
government bond dealer; and provided further that unless the agreement is with a bank or trust company, such 
agreement shall require the repurchase to occur on demand or on a date certain which is not later than one (1) year 
after such agreement is entered into and shall expressly authorize the Trustee or the Authority, as the case may be, to 
liquidate the purchased obligations in the event of the insolvency of the party required to repurchase such 
obligations or the commencement against such party of a case under the federal Bankruptcy Code or the 
appointment of or taking possession by a trustee or custodian in a case against such party under the Bankruptcy 
Code. Any such investments may be purchased from or through the Trustee. 

Notwithstanding the immediately preceding paragraph Permitted Investments shall not include the 
following:  

(i) Government or Equivalent Obligations, certificates of deposit and bankers’ acceptances, in each case 
with yields lower than either (1) the yield available on comparable obligations then offered by the United States 
Treasury, or (2) the highest yield published or posted by the provider of the Permitted Investments to be currently 
available from the provider on reasonably comparable investments;  

(ii) Any demand deposit or similar account with a bank, trust company or broker, unless (1) the account is 
used for holding funds for a short period of time until such funds are reinvested or spent, and (2) substantially all the 
funds in the account are withdrawn for reinvestment or expenditure within fifteen (15) days of their deposit therein; 
or 

(iii) Investment agreements, unless (1) at least three (3) bids are obtained on the proposed investment 
agreement from persons other than those with an interest in the Bonds, (2) the highest yielding investment 
agreement for which a qualifying bid is received is purchased, (3) the terms of the investment agreement, including 
collateral requirements, are reasonable, and (4) a written record of the yield offered by each bidder is maintained. 
(Section 314) 
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Insurance 

The Institution shall maintain insurance in such amounts and covering such risks as are customarily insured 
against by similar institutions. 

Default by the Institution 

“Event of Default” means any one of the events set forth below and “Default” means any Event of Default 
without regard to any lapse of time or notice. 

(i) Debt Service on Bonds; Required Purchase.  Any principal of, premium, if any, or 
interest on any Bond shall not be paid when due, whether at maturity, by acceleration, upon redemption or 
otherwise or any Purchase Price for Bonds shall not be paid as provided in the Agreement. 

(ii) Other Obligations.  The Institution shall fail to make any other required payment to the 
Trustee, and such failure is not remedied within seven (7) days after written notice thereof is given by the 
Authority or the Trustee to the Institution, or the Institution shall fail to perform its obligations under the 
Agreement, and such failure is not remedied within seven (7) days after written notice thereof is given by 
the Authority or the Trustee to the Institution; or the Institution shall fail to observe or perform any of its 
other agreements, covenants or obligations under this Agreement and such failure is not remedied within 
sixty (60) days after written notice thereof is given by the Authority or the Trustee to the Institution. 

(iii) Warranties.  There shall be a material breach of warranty made herein by the Institution 
as of the date it was intended to be effective and the breach is not cured within sixty (60) days after written 
notice thereof is given by the Authority or the Trustee to the Institution. 

(iv) Voluntary Bankruptcy.  The Institution shall commence a voluntary case under the 
federal bankruptcy laws, or shall become insolvent or unable to pay its debts as they become due, or shall 
make an assignment for the benefit of creditors, or shall apply for, consent to or acquiesce in the 
appointment of, or taking possession by, a trustee, receiver, custodian or similar official or agent for itself 
or any substantial part of its property. 

(v) Appointment of Receiver.  A trustee, receiver, custodian or similar official or agent shall 
be appointed for the Institution or for any substantial part of its property and such trustee or receiver shall 
not be discharged within sixty (60) days. 

(vi) Involuntary Bankruptcy.  The Institution shall have an order or decree for relief in an 
involuntary case under the federal bankruptcy laws entered against it, or a petition seeking reorganization, 
readjustment, arrangement, composition, or other similar relief as to it under the federal bankruptcy laws or 
any similar law for the relief of debtors shall be brought against it and shall be consented to by it or shall 
remain undismissed for sixty (60) days. 

(vii) Reimbursement Agreement.  While any Bonds are supported by a Credit Facility, the 
Trustee shall have received written notice from the Bank of the occurrence of an Event of Default, as such 
term is defined under the Reimbursement Agreement and directing the Trustee to cause an acceleration of 
the Bonds.  

(viii) Non-Reinstatement under the Credit Facility.  While the Bonds are supported by a Credit 
Facility, the Trustee shall receive written notice from the Bank within ten (10) calendar days after a 
drawing with respect to Interest under the Credit Facility that the Bank has not reinstated the amount so 
drawn. 

(ix) Breach of Other Agreements.  A breach shall occur (and continue beyond any applicable 
grace period) with respect to indebtedness of the Institution for borrowed money with respect to loans 
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exceeding the greater of (x) $10,000,000 or (y) 1% of Adjusted Annual Operating Revenues, or a holder or 
holders of such indebtedness or a trustee or trustees under any such agreement accelerates or is empowered 
to accelerate any such indebtedness; but an Event of Default shall not be deemed to be in existence or to be 
continuing under this clause (ix) if (A) the Institution is in good faith contesting the existence of such 
breach or event and if such acceleration is being stayed by judicial proceedings, (B) the power of 
acceleration is not exercised and it ceases to be in effect, or (C) such breach or event is remedied and the 
acceleration, if any, is wholly annulled.  The Institution shall notify the Authority and the Trustee of any 
such breach or event immediately upon the Institution’s becoming aware of its occurrence and shall from 
time to time furnish such information as the Authority or the Trustee may reasonably request for the 
purpose of determining whether a breach or event described in this clause (vii) has occurred and whether 
such power of acceleration has been exercised or continues to be in effect. 

(x) Default Under Master Indenture.  An Event of Default shall occur under the Master 
Indenture. 

At any time before an acceleration, the Trustee may waive a Default under the Agreement and its 
consequences by written notice to the Institution, and in the absence of inconsistent instructions from the Bank or 
the Bondowners shall do so upon written instruction of the Bank or the Owners of at least twenty-five per cent 
(25%) in principal amount of such Bonds Outstanding. No waiver under this section shall affect the right of the 
Trustee or the Authority to enforce the payment of any amounts owing to it. The Trustee shall not waive any Event 
of Default under paragraph (i), (iv), (v), (vi) or (viii) above. The Trustee shall not waive any Event of Default under 
paragraph (vii) above without the consent of the Bank. While the Bonds are supported by a Credit Facility, the 
Trustee shall not waive any Event of Default unless the Credit Facility, if previously drawn upon in connection with 
the Default, has been fully reinstated. (Section 601) 

Remedies for Events of Default.   

If an Event of Default occurs and is continuing: 

(i) Acceleration 

(a) Bonds Supported by a Credit Facility.  If the Event of Default is one described in 
paragraph (i), (vii) or (viii) under the heading “Default by the Institution” above, the principal of the Bonds that are 
supported by the Credit Facility and Pledged Bonds and accrued interest thereon shall automatically become 
immediately due and payable without any further notice or action. So long as a Credit Facility is in effect and the 
Bank has not failed to honor a properly presented and conforming drawing thereunder, no acceleration shall be 
declared by reason of an Event of Default described in paragraphs (ii), (iii), (iv), (v) or (vi) under the heading 
“Default by the Institution” above, without the prior written consent of the Bank. 

 (b) Bonds Not Supported by a Credit Facility.  If the Bonds are not supported by a Credit 
Facility, and if the Event of Default is one described in paragraphs (i), (ii), (iii), (iv), (v) or (vi) under the heading 
“Default by the Institution” above, the Trustee may, and upon the written request of the Bondowners of at least 
twenty-five per cent (25%) in principal amount of the Bonds Outstanding shall, by written notice to the Institution 
and the Authority declare immediately due and payable the principal of such Outstanding Bonds and the accrued 
interest thereon, whereupon the same shall become immediately due and payable without any further action or 
notice. If at any time after such acceleration and before any judgment or decree for the payment of moneys with 
respect thereto has been entered all amounts payable to the Authority and the Trustee hereunder and on Bonds 
subject to acceleration under this section (except principal of and interest on the Bonds which are due solely by 
reason of such acceleration) shall have been paid or provided for by deposit with the Trustee and all existing 
Defaults shall have been cured or waived, then the Bondowners representing a majority in principal amount of the 
Bonds subject to acceleration under this section may annul such acceleration and its consequences by written notice 
to the Authority, the Trustee and the Institution. Such annulment shall be binding upon the Authority, the Trustee 
and all of the Bondowners, but no such annulment shall extend to or affect any subsequent Default or impair any 
right or remedy consequent thereto. 
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(c) Rights as a Secured Party and Note Holder. 

(i)  Rights as a Secured Party.  Subject to the rights of the Bank, the Trustee may exercise all 
of the rights and remedies of a secured party under the UCC with respect to the Note issued under the Master 
Indenture and any other assets pledged hereunder.   

(ii) Rights as Note Holder.  The Trustee may exercise all its rights and remedies under the 
Master Indenture as holder of the Note, including but not limited to directing the Master Trustee as to the exercise of 
its remedies and the conduct or proceedings, the acceleration of Obligations, the annulment of any such acceleration 
and the waiver of Events of Default.  If any Note is declared to be due and payable because of an Event of Default 
under the Master Indenture which does not arise from or cause (otherwise than by such declaration) an Event of 
Default under the Agreement, and if such Event of Default under the Master Indenture is cured and the conditions 
set forth in the Master Indenture are satisfied, the Trustee shall refrain from directing the Master Trustee not to annul 
such declaration and its consequences. (Section 602) 

(c) Court Proceedings 

(i) No Bondowner shall have any right to institute any legal proceedings for the enforcement 
of the Agreement or any applicable remedy thereunder, unless the Bondowners have directed the Authority to act 
and furnished the Authority indemnity and have afforded the Authority reasonable opportunity to proceed, and the 
Authority shall thereafter fail or refuse to take such action.  No Bondowner shall have any right to institute any legal 
proceedings for the enforcement of the obligations of the Authority under the Agreement or any applicable remedy 
thereunder, unless the Bondowners have directed the Trustee to act and furnished the Trustee indemnity and have 
afforded the Trustee reasonable opportunity to proceed, and the Trustee shall thereafter fail or refuse to take such 
action. 

Subject to the foregoing, any Bondowner may by any available legal proceedings enforce and protect its 
rights hereunder and under the laws of The Commonwealth of Massachusetts.  Any request, consent or vote of the 
owner of any Bond shall bind all future owners of such Bond. Bonds owned or held by or for the account of the 
Authority or the Institution shall not be deemed Outstanding Bonds for the purpose of any consent or other action by 
Bondowners, except that for such purposes Pledged Bonds shall be treated as Outstanding and shall be deemed to be 
owned by the Bank. So long as no Default exists under paragraph (i) under the heading “Default by the Institution” 
above with respect to any Bonds supported by a Credit Facility, the Bank and not the Bondowners shall be treated as 
the Owner of all Bonds entitled to the benefits of such Credit Facility for the purpose of any waiver, consent or other 
action by Bondowners, unless such waiver, consent or other action either (A) would affect some, but not all, of the 
Bonds Outstanding, or (B) would be governed by clauses (i) through (iv) under the heading of “Amendment” below. 
(Section 902) 

Tax Status  

The Institution has represented and warranted that (i) it is an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of 
the IRC and it is not a “private foundation” as defined in Section 509 of the IRC; (ii) it has received letters from the 
Internal Revenue Service to that effect; (iii) such letters have not been modified, limited or revoked; (iv) it is in 
compliance with all terms, conditions and limitations, if any, contained in such letters; (v) the facts and 
circumstances which form the basis of such letters continue substantially to exist as represented to the Internal 
Revenue Service; and (vi) it is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(a) of the IRC. To the extent 
consistent with its status as a nonprofit hospital, the Institution agrees that it will not take any action or omit to take 
any action if such action or omission would cause any revocation or adverse modification of such federal income tax 
status of the Institution. 

The Institution has agreed to not take or omit to take any action if such action or omission would cause the 
Bonds to be “arbitrage bonds” under Section 148 of the IRC, cause the Bonds to not meet any of the requirements of 
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Section 149 of the IRC, or cause the Bonds to cease to be “qualified 501(c)(3) bonds” under Section 145 of the IRC. 
(Section 1002) 

Amendment 

Without Bondowners’ Consent.  The parties may from time to time, without the consent of any Bondowner, 
amend the Agreement in order to (i) cure any ambiguity, defect or omission in the Agreement that does not 
materially adversely affect the interests of the Bondowners, (ii) grant additional rights or security to the Trustee for 
the benefit of the Bondowners, (iii) add additional Events of Default as shall not be inconsistent with the provisions 
of this Agreement and which shall not materially adversely affect the interests of the Bondowners, (iv) qualify the 
Agreement under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended, or corresponding provisions of federal laws from 
time to time in effect, (v) effective upon any Conversion Date, make any amendment affecting only the Bonds being 
converted, (vi) to add provisions relating to the partial conversion of Bonds which do not impair the security for the 
Bonds, (vii) amend or modify the provisions of the Agreement, so long as the Trustee and Authority are provided 
with an opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect that (a) such amendment or modification does not adversely affect the 
federal tax-exempt status of interest on the Bonds or (b) such amendment or modification is required to preserve the 
federal tax-exempt status of interest on the Bonds, (viii) modify or delete any provision in the Agreement if, in the 
opinion of Bond Counsel, such modification or deletion is necessary in order to comply with regulations under or 
official interpretations of the IRC, provided the Trustee determines that the amendment will not materially adversely 
affect the interests of the Bondowners or (ix) make such other provisions in regard to matters or questions arising 
under the Agreement as shall not be inconsistent with the provisions of the Agreement and which shall not 
materially adversely affect the interests of the Bondowners. The Institution acting alone may amend the Maximum 
Interest Rate to a higher interest rate without Bondowner consent, provided that, if a Credit Facility is then in effect, 
it entitles the Trustee to draw upon or demand and receive in immediately available funds an amount equal to the 
principal amount of the Bonds then outstanding plus a number of days of accrued interest at such amended 
Maximum Interest Rate at least equal to the number of days required to be covered under the Agreement. 

With Bondowners’ Consent.  Except as set forth in the Agreement, the parties may from time to time amend 
the Agreement with the consent of the owners of more than 50% in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds 
Outstanding; provided, that no amendment shall be made which adversely affects the rights of some but less than all 
the Bonds Outstanding without the consent of the owners of more than 50% in aggregate principal amount of the 
Bonds so affected; and provided further, that no amendment of the Agreement shall be effective to (i) change the 
principal, premium or interest on any Bonds, (ii) change the interest payment dates, maturity dates or purchase or 
redemption provisions of any Bonds, (iii) reduce the percentage of Bondowners whose consent is required for the 
amendment of the Agreement, or (iv) modify the lien upon or pledge of the payments and other revenues assigned 
and pledged hereunder (including any Credit Facility), without the consent, in each case, of the owner of each Bond 
which would be affected by the action proposed to be taken. 

So long as a Credit Facility supports the Bonds no amendment to the Agreement shall be made without the 
consent of the Bank. So long as no Default described in paragraph (i) under the heading “Default by the Institution” 
above exists with respect to any Bonds supported by a Credit Facility, the Bank and not the Bondowners shall be 
deemed to be the owner of all Bonds entitled to the benefits of such Credit Facility for the purpose of granting 
waivers and consents and consenting to any amendment, by Bondowners except amendments referred to in clauses 
(i) through (iv) of the preceding paragraph. (Section 1101) 

Defeasance 

  When there are in the Bond Fund sufficient funds and/or Government or Equivalent Obligations described 
in clause (i) of the definition thereof in such principal amounts, bearing interest at such rates and with such 
maturities (including with respect to any Bonds in the Variable Rate Mode, maturities no greater than seven (7) 
days, to fund the payment of the Purchase Price) as will provide, without reinvestment, sufficient funds to pay the 
Purchase Price, principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds in full as and when such amounts become 
due, and when all the rights hereunder of the Authority, the Trustee and the Bank (including the right to receive 
payments under the Agreement) have been provided for including, without limitation, the payment in full of all 
amounts due and owing to the Bank under the Reimbursement Agreement if there is a Credit Facility then in effect, 
upon written notice from the Institution to the Authority, the Trustee and the Bank so long as the Credit Facility is in 
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effect, the Bondowners shall cease to be entitled to any benefit or security under this Agreement except the right to 
receive payment of the funds deposited and held for payment and other rights set forth below as rights which by 
their nature cannot be satisfied prior to or simultaneously with termination of the lien hereof (including obligations 
of the Institution under the Agreement), the security interests created by the Agreement (except in such funds and 
investments) shall terminate, the Bonds shall be deemed paid, and the Authority and the Trustee shall execute and 
deliver such instruments as may be necessary to discharge the lien and security interests created hereunder; 
provided, however, that (a) with respect to any Bonds that are supported by a Credit Facility, all such funds and 
obligations in the Bond Fund shall be Eligible Funds; (b) if any such Bonds are to be redeemed prior to the maturity 
thereof, the Authority shall have taken all action necessary to redeem such Bonds and notice of such redemption 
shall have been duly mailed in accordance with this Agreement or irrevocable instructions so to mail shall have been 
given to the Trustee; and (c) if the Bonds bear interest at a Variable Rate, the Trustee shall have received written 
confirmation from S&P and/or Moody’s, if the Bonds are then rated by S&P and/or Moody’s, that the proposed 
defeasance will not in and of itself cause a reduction or withdrawal of the rating then in effect on the Bonds. Upon 
such defeasance, the funds and investments required to pay or redeem the Bonds in full shall be irrevocably set aside 
for that purpose, subject, however, to the section under the heading “Bond Fund”, and moneys held for defeasance 
shall be invested only as provided above in this section. Any funds or property held by the Trustee and not required 
for payment or redemption of the Bonds in full shall, after satisfaction of all the rights of the Authority, the Trustee 
and the Bank including, without limitation, the payment in full of all amounts due and owing to the Bank under the 
Reimbursement Agreement if there is a Credit Facility then in effect and after allowance for payment into the 
Rebate Fund, be distributed to the Institution upon such indemnification, if any, as the Authority or the Trustee may 
reasonably require. (Section 203) 
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APPENDIX F 
 
 

CERTAIN INFORMATION ABOUT THE BANK 
 
 

Bank of America, N.A. (the “Bank”) is a national banking association organized under the laws of the United States, 
with its principal executive offices located in Charlotte, North Carolina.  The Bank is a wholly-owned indirect 
subsidiary of Bank of America Corporation (the “Corporation”) and is engaged in a general consumer banking, 
commercial banking and trust business, offering a wide range of commercial, corporate, international, financial 
market, retail and fiduciary banking services.  As of June 30, 2005, the Bank had consolidated assets of $1,048 
billion, consolidated deposits of $685 billion and stockholder’s equity of $102 billion based on regulatory 
accounting principles. 
 
The Corporation is a bank holding company and a financial holding company, with its principal executive offices 
located in Charlotte, North Carolina.  Additional information regarding the Corporation is set forth in its Annual 
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004, together with any subsequent documents it filed 
with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Commission”) pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 
1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”). 
 
Recent Developments:  On April 1, 2004, the Corporation completed its merger with FleetBoston Financial 
Corporation, and, on June 13, 2005, the Bank completed its merger with Fleet National Bank.  On June 30, 2005, the 
Corporation announced its intention to acquire MBNA Corporation. 

 
Additional information regarding the foregoing is available from the filings made by the Corporation with the SEC, 
which filings can be inspected and copied at the public reference facilities maintained by the SEC at 100 F Street, 
N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549, United States, at prescribed rates.  In addition, the SEC maintains a website at 
http://www.sec.gov, which contains reports, proxy statements and other information regarding registrants that file 
such information electronically with the SEC. 
 
The information concerning the Corporation, the Bank and the foregoing mergers contained herein is furnished 
solely to provide limited introductory information and does not purport to be comprehensive.  Such information is 
qualified in its entirety by the detailed information appearing in the documents and financial statements referenced 
herein. 
 
The Letter of Credit has been issued by the Bank.  Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. (“Moody’s”) currently rates the 
Bank’s long-term debt as “Aa1” and short-term debt as “P-1.”  Standard & Poor’s rates the Bank’s long-term debt as 
“AA” and its short-term debt as “A-1+.”  Fitch Ratings, Inc. (“Fitch”) rates long-term debt of the Bank as “AA-” 
and short-term debt as “F1+.”  Further information with respect to such ratings may be obtained from Moody’s, 
Standard & Poor’s and Fitch, respectively.  No assurances can be given that the current ratings of the Bank’s 
instruments will be maintained.   
 
The Bank will provide copies of the most recent Bank of America Corporation Annual Report on Form  
10-K, any subsequent reports on Form 10-Q, and any required reports on Form 8-K (in each case as filed with the 
Commission pursuant to the Exchange Act), and the publicly available portions of the most recent quarterly Call 
Report of the Bank delivered to the Comptroller of the Currency, without charge, to each person to whom this 
document is delivered, on the written request of such person.  Written requests should be directed to: 
 
   Bank of America Corporate Communications 
   100 North Tryon Street, 18th Floor 
   Charlotte, North Carolina 28255 
   Attention: Corporate Communications 
 
 
PAYMENTS OF PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST ON THE BONDS WILL BE MADE FROM DRAWINGS 
UNDER THE LETTER OF CREDIT.  PAYMENTS OF THE PURCHASE PRICE OF THE BONDS WILL BE 
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MADE FROM DRAWINGS UNDER THE LETTER OF CREDIT IF REMARKETING PROCEEDS ARE NOT 
AVAILABLE.  ALTHOUGH THE LETTER OF CREDIT IS A BINDING OBLIGATION OF THE BANK, THE 
BONDS ARE NOT DEPOSITS OR OBLIGATIONS OF THE CORPORATION OR ANY OF ITS AFFILIATED 
BANKS AND ARE NOT GUARANTEED BY ANY OF THESE ENTITIES.  THE BONDS ARE NOT INSURED 
BY THE FEDERAL DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION OR ANY OTHER GOVERNMENTAL AGENCY 
AND ARE SUBJECT TO CERTAIN INVESTMENT RISKS, INCLUDING POSSIBLE LOSS OF THE 
PRINCIPAL AMOUNT INVESTED. 
 

The delivery hereof shall not create any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the Corporation or 
the Bank since the date hereof, or that the information contained or referred to in this Appendix F is correct as of any 
time subsequent to its date. 
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APPENDIX G 
 

 
 

SUMMARY OF CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF 
THE REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT 

 
 The following is a brief description of certain provisions of the Reimbursement Agreement and is not 
presented as a full statement of the provisions of such document.  This summary is qualified by reference to 
and is subject to the provisions of such document. 
 
 Baystate Medical Center, Inc. (the “Borrower”) has entered into a Reimbursement Agreement with Bank of 
America, N.A. (the “Bank”), pursuant to which the Borrower has agreed to reimburse the Bank for sums drawn on 
the Letter of Credit.  The Reimbursement Agreement also provides for drawing fees, amendment fees and other fees 
and charges. 
 
 The Reimbursement Agreement sets forth conditions to the issuance of the Letter of Credit and certain 
representations and warranties which are to be true at the closing date of the Bonds.  Such representations and 
warranties incorporate by reference all of the representations and warranties in the Loan and Trust Agreement, the 
Master Trust Indenture, the Bond Purchase Agreement and other agreements relating to the issuance of the Bonds 
and also include representations as to: due organization, legal existence and legal capacity of the Borrower; due 
corporate approval, execution and delivery of financing documents; enforceability of financing documents; no 
material litigation; compliance with corporate documents and agreements; payment of taxes; compliance with 
material requirements of laws; obtaining material permits; compliance with licenses, accreditations and inspection 
bodies; not extending credit for purchase or carry margin stock and not being an “investment company”; title to 
assets and lack of encumbrances on assets, except as otherwise allowed; accuracy of financial information; no 
ERISA violation; no burdensome contracts; principal place of business of the Borrower; environmental matters; 
intellectual property matters; solvency of the Borrower; and accuracy of information furnished. 
 
 The Reimbursement Agreement also contains affirmative and negative covenants and reporting requirements. 
Affirmative covenants of the Borrower include: making payment of amounts due to the Bank; making payment of 
taxes, charges, indebtedness and other obligations; complying with other agreements; maintaining of insurance; 
maintaining legal existence, qualification and tax-exempt status; complying with charter documents and laws; 
providing access and inspection to the Bank; maintaining proper books and records; maintaining and repairing 
property; charging fees sufficient to pay debt service and operating expenses; continuing operations as currently 
conducted; providing further assurances; maintaining debt service coverage, tested semi-annually, of at least 1.1 to 
1; obtaining approval from the Bank of requisitions for Bond proceeds; making payment of amounts due under the 
Loan and Trust Agreement; and maintaining public credit rating of at least A-/A3 by Standard & Poors and Moody’s 
Investors Services, respectively.  Negative covenants include limitations against: incurring indebtedness; granting or 
creating liens; making guaranties or other contingent or direct liabilities; liquidating, dissolving, merging, 
consolidating or disposing of assets; selling, assigning, discounting or disposing of accounts receivable; making 
loans or advances to others; writing up for the purposes of its financial statements the value of any assets; materially 
changing or adding any ERISA plans; changing the fiscal year without consent of the Bank or changing 
organizational documents; removing books and records from the Borrower’s principal place of business; changing 
the name or legal structure or place of incorporation of the Borrower; entering into any sale-leaseback transaction; 
equity contributions and loans to subsidiaries; transactions with affiliates except on arm’s length terms; storing or 
transporting hazardous substances; changing the remarketing agent or trustee without consent of the Bank.  
Reporting requirements include requirements to furnish: annual audited financial statements of the Borrower; 
quarterly unaudited financial statements; annual and quarterly compliance certificates; notices of default; annual 
operating budget; notice of material litigation; management letters; copies of notices from Governmental 
Authorities; notice of ERISA violations; notice of environmental events; notice of change in accountants; notice of 
the incurrence of certain additional indebtedness; and such other information as the Bank may reasonably request. 
 
 The Reimbursement Agreement also sets out certain Events of Default.  These include:  (i) failure to pay; (ii) 
failure to observe certain affirmative covenants (including covenants relating to taxes, insurance, legal existence, 
maintenance of tax-exempt status, compliance with charter documents and laws, Bank’s right of access, further 
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assurances by Borrower, observance of debt service coverage ratio test, making payments under the Agreement, and 
maintaining the required minimum public credit rating), as well as failure to comply with any of the negative 
covenants or reporting requirements and failure to comply with certain covenants regarding amendments to related 
documents, and conversion to a different interest rate mode; (iii) failure to comply with any other covenant for 30 
days after notice, or in some instances within 180 days after notice; (iv) failure of any representation or warranty to 
have been true in any material respect; (v) cross-default to other agreements now or hereafter made by the Borrower 
with the Bank; (vi) cross-default to other indebtedness; (vii) dissolution of the Borrower or any of its subsidiaries or 
bankruptcy, reorganization or similar proceedings affecting the Borrower or any of its subsidiaries, other than 
involuntary proceedings dismissed within 90 days; (viii) material ERISA violations; (ix) material loss, theft, damage 
or destruction or loss of material permits; (x) unenforceability of financing documents including any documents 
granting a security interest or mortgage to the Bank; (xi) final uninsured judgments in excess of $750,000; (xii) any 
material adverse change occurs with respect to the Borrower; and (xiii) cross-defaults to the Loan and Trust 
Agreement, the Master Trust Indenture and other related agreements. 
 
 Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default under the Reimbursement Agreement, the Bank may, among other 
things:  (i) direct the Trustee to accelerate the Bonds or cause a mandatory tender of the Bonds; (ii) enforce its rights 
against the Borrower through legal action, including its rights and remedies with respect to any collateral granted to 
the Bank as security for the obligations under the Reimbursement Agreement; (iii) exercise other remedies under 
applicable law or other agreements, and/or (iv) give notice of non-reinstatement of the interest component of the 
Letter of Credit. 
 
 The Reimbursement Agreement also contains provisions as to the Bank’s right (but not obligation) to cure 
certain defaults of the Borrower; indemnification of the Bank by the Borrower; amendments and waivers; notices 
and other miscellaneous provisions. 
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APPENDIX H

 

[PROPOSED FORM OF BOND COUNSEL OPINION] 

 

[Closing Date]  
 
 
 
Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities Authority 
99 Summer Street - Suite 1000 
Boston, MA  02111 
 

 Re: $71,740,000 Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities Authority 
Revenue Bonds, Baystate Medical Center Issue, Series G (2005) (the “Bonds”), 
issued under the Loan and Trust Agreement (the “Agreement”) dated as of 
October 11, 2005 among the Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities 
Authority (the “Authority”), Baystate Medical Center, Inc. (the “Institution”) and 
U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (the “Trustee”) 

 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

We have acted as bond counsel in connection with the issuance of the Bonds, and we have 
examined the Constitution and laws of The Commonwealth of Massachusetts (the “Commonwealth”), 
particularly Chapter 614 of the Acts of 1968 of the Commonwealth, as amended (the “Enabling Act”); an 
executed counterpart of the Agreement; a certified copy of a resolution adopted by the board of directors 
of the Authority authorizing execution and delivery of the Agreement and the issuance and sale of the 
Bonds; and such other papers, documents and opinions as we have deemed necessary in connection with 
this opinion, including the Master Trust Indenture (the “Indenture”) dated as of November 7, 1989 
between the Institution and U.S. Bank National Association (as successor to State Street Bank and Trust 
Company, as successor to Fleet National Bank, as successor to Shawmut Bank, N.A.), as Master Trustee,  
as previously amended, the Supplemental Master Indenture for Obligation No. 6 (the “Supplemental 
Indenture”) dated as of October 11, 2005 between the Institution and the Master Trustee (the Indenture as 
previously supplemented and the Supplemental Indenture being collectively referred to the “Master 
Indenture”). 

The Bonds are issued pursuant to the Agreement and secured by Obligation No. 6 issued under 
the Supplemental Indenture.  Under the Agreement, the Institution has agreed to make payments 
sufficient to pay when due the principal (including sinking fund installments) of and interest on the 
Bonds.  Such payments and other moneys payable to the Authority or the Trustee under the Agreement, 
including proceeds derived from any security provided thereunder (collectively the “Revenues”), and the 
rights of the Authority under the Agreement to receive the same (excluding, however, certain 
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administrative fees, indemnification, and reimbursements), are pledged and assigned by the Authority to 
the Trustee as security for the Bonds.  Such payments are secured by Obligation No. 6 issued under the 
Supplemental Indenture.  The payment of Obligation No. 6 is the obligation of the Institution (which is 
currently the only Member of the “Obligated Group” established by the Master Indenture) and is secured 
by a security interest in the Gross Receipts of the Institution.  The Bonds are payable solely from the 
Revenues and amounts received from payments on Obligation No. 6. 

The Bonds are being issued initially by means of a book-entry only system, with bond certificates 
immobilized at The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York (“DTC”), or its custodial agent, 
and not available for distribution to the public, with transfers of beneficial ownership effected on the 
records of DTC and its participants pursuant to rules and procedures established by DTC and its 
participants. 

Each Bond should be signed by the manual or facsimile signature of the Chairman or Vice 
Chairman of the Authority and should bear the seal of the Authority or a facsimile thereof, attested by the 
manual signature of an authorized officer of the Authority and the authenticating certificate, duly 
executed, of the Trustee. 

Of the issue described, we have examined Bond No. R-1, as executed, and we are of the opinion 
that the form of such Bond and the form of its execution and authentication are regular and proper. 

For purposes of this opinion, we have assumed, with your approval and without any independent 
investigation, that the copies of documents and certificates provided to us conform to the originals 
thereof, that the signatures on all documents and certificates examined by us are genuine, that each of the 
Master Trustee and the Trustee has all requisite power and authority and has taken all necessary action to 
execute and deliver the documents or certificates to which it is a party, and that each of the Agreement 
and the Master Indenture is a valid and legally binding obligation of the parties thereto (other than the 
Authority), enforceable against the parties thereto (other than the Authority) in accordance with its terms, 
except to the extent that enforcement of the rights and remedies created thereby is subject to (i) 
bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization and other laws affecting the rights and remedies of creditors and 
secured parties, and (ii) principles of equity, regardless of whether enforcement is sought in proceedings 
in equity or at law. 

We have also relied upon certain covenants of the Authority, the Institution and the Trustee, and 
upon certifications and representations of fact made by the Authority, the Institution and certain other 
parties without undertaking to verify the same by independent investigation. 

Reference is made to opinions of even date of Bulkley, Richardson and Gelinas, LLP, counsel to 
the Institution, with respect to, among other matters, the corporate existence of the Institution, the power 
of the Institution to carry out the Project (as defined in the Agreement) being financed in part by the 
Bonds, the tax-exempt status of the Institution, the power of the Institution to enter into and perform its 
obligations under the Indenture, the Supplemental Indenture, Obligation No. 6, the Agreement and the 
Refunding Trust Agreement dated as of October 11, 2005 among the Authority, the Institution and U.S. 
Bank National Association, as Refunded Bond Trustee (such instruments and agreements being 
collectively called the “Bond Documents”), the authorization, execution and delivery of the Bond 
Documents by the Institution, and the extent to which the Bond Documents are binding and enforceable 
upon the Institution. 
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We express no opinion as to laws other than the laws of the Commonwealth and the United States 
of America. 

Based on the foregoing, we are of the opinion that, under existing law: 

1. The Authority is a duly created and validly existing body politic and corporate and a 
public instrumentality under the laws of the Commonwealth, with all necessary power and authority to 
enter into and perform the Agreement and to issue the Bonds. 

2. The Agreement has been duly authorized, executed and delivered by the Authority and is 
a valid and legally binding obligation of the Authority, enforceable against the Authority in accordance 
with its terms.   

3. The Bonds, executed and authenticated as above indicated, have been duly authorized, 
issued and delivered against payment of the agreed upon consideration and, subject to the qualifications 
contained in the last paragraph of this opinion, are valid, legally binding, limited obligations of the 
Authority, enforceable against the Authority in accordance with their terms.  The Bonds are payable 
solely from the Revenues and are entitled to the benefits of the Agreement and the Enabling Act. 

4. Interest on the Bonds is excluded from the gross income of the owners thereof for federal 
income tax purposes.   Moreover, such interest is not an item of tax preference for purposes of computing 
the alternative minimum tax imposed on corporations and taxpayers other than corporations; however, 
such interest is taken into account in determining adjusted current earnings for the purpose of computing 
the alternative minimum tax imposed on certain corporations (as defined for federal tax purposes), and 
such interest is included in the measure of certain other taxes imposed on corporations and in the measure 
of income of certain recipients of Social Security and Railroad Retirement benefits for the purpose of 
determining whether such benefits shall be included in the taxable income of such recipients.  We call 
your attention to certain requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”) 
that must be complied with subsequent to the issuance of the Bonds in order that interest thereon be, or 
continue to be, excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes.   Failure by the Institution or 
the Authority to comply with certain of such requirements subsequent to the issuance of the Bonds may 
cause interest on the Bonds to become subject to federal income taxation retroactive to the date of their 
issuance.  The Institution has covenanted to take all lawful action necessary to comply with those 
provisions of the Code that, except for such compliance, would affect adversely the excludability of 
interest on the Bonds from gross income for federal income tax purposes.  The Authority has covenanted 
not to take any action or knowingly omit to take any action within its power that, if taken or omitted, 
would violate its obligations under its non-arbitrage certificate delivered upon the initial issuance of the 
Bonds.  We express no opinion with respect to other federal tax consequences arising with respect to the 
Bonds. 

5. The Bonds and any income derived therefrom, including income from any sale, exchange 
or transfer of the Bonds, shall at all times be free from taxation by the Commonwealth, except that the 
Bonds or the interest thereon are included in the measure of estate and inheritance taxes and of applicable 
corporation excise and franchise taxes. 

Our opinions that the Agreement is a valid and legally binding obligation of the Authority and 
that the Bonds are valid, legally binding, limited obligations of the Authority, and that the Agreement and 
the Bonds are enforceable against the Authority in accordance with their respective terms are qualified to 
the extent that enforcement of the rights and remedies created thereby are subject to (i) bankruptcy, 
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insolvency, reorganization and other laws affecting the rights and remedies of creditors and secured 
parties, and (ii) principles of equity, regardless of whether enforcement is sought in proceedings in equity 
or at law.  Furthermore, we express no opinion herein as to (i) the sufficiency or effectiveness of the 
recording or filing of any instrument; (ii) compliance with applicable legal requirements in connection 
with the acquisition, construction, improvement, equipping or operation of the Project (as that term is 
defined in the Agreement); or (iii) the accuracy, adequacy or completeness of the Official Statement 
relating to the Bonds. 

      Very truly yours, 

H-4 



APPENDIX I 

 

FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT 

This Continuing Disclosure Agreement (the “Disclosure Agreement”) is executed and 
delivered by Baystate Medical Center, Inc. (the “Representative”), as representative of the 
Obligated Group, and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (the “Trustee”), in connection 
with the issuance of $71,740,000 Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities Authority 
Revenue Bonds, Baystate Medical Center Issue, Series G (2005) (the “Bonds”).  The Bonds are 
being issued by the Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities Authority (the “Authority”) 
pursuant to a Loan and Trust Agreement dated as of October 11, 2005 (the “Agreement”) among 
the Authority, the Representative, and the Trustee.  The Authority is loaning the proceeds of the 
Bonds to the Representative for the purpose of financing the Project as defined in the Agreement.  
The Representative and the Trustee covenant and agree as follows: 

SECTION 1. Purpose of the Disclosure Agreement.  This Disclosure Agreement is 
being executed and delivered by the Representative and the Trustee for the benefit of the 
Bondowners and in order to assist the Participating Underwriters (defined below) in complying 
with the Rule (defined below).  The Representative and the Trustee acknowledge that the 
Authority has undertaken no responsibility with respect to any reports, notices or disclosures 
provided or required under this Disclosure Agreement, and has no liability to any person, 
including any Bondowner, with respect to any such reports, notices or disclosures.  The Trustee, 
except as provided in Section 3(c), has undertaken no responsibility with respect to any reports, 
notices or disclosures provided or required under this Disclosure Agreement, and has no liability 
to any person, including any Bondowner, with respect to any such reports, notices or disclosures 
except for its negligent failure to comply with its obligations under Section 3(c). 

SECTION 2. Definitions.  In addition to the definitions set forth in the Agreement, 
which apply to any capitalized terms used in this Disclosure Agreement unless otherwise defined 
in this Section, the following capitalized terms shall have the following meanings: 

“Annual Report” shall mean any Annual Report provided by the Representative pursuant 
to, and as described in, Sections 3 and 4 of this Disclosure Agreement. 

“Bondowner” shall mean the registered owner of a Bond and any beneficial owner 
thereof, as established to the reasonable satisfaction of the Trustee or the Representative. 

“Dissemination Agent” shall mean any Dissemination Agent or successor Dissemination 
Agent designated in writing by the Representative and which has filed with the Representative, 
the Trustee and the Authority a written acceptance of such designation.  The same entity may 
serve as both Trustee and Dissemination Agent.  The initial Dissemination Agent shall be the 
Trustee.  In the absence of a third-party Dissemination Agent, the Representative shall serve as 
the Dissemination Agent. 

“Listed Events” shall mean any of the events listed in Section 5(a) of this Disclosure 
Agreement. 
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“National Repository” shall mean any Nationally Recognized Municipal Securities 
Information Repository for purposes of the Rule.  The National Repositories as of the date of 
execution of this Disclosure Agreement are listed in Exhibit B. 

“Participating Underwriters” shall mean any of the original underwriters of the Bonds 
required to comply with the Rule in connection with offering of the Bonds. 

“Quarterly Statement” shall mean any Quarterly Statement provided by the 
Representative pursuant to, and as described in, Sections 3 and 4 of this Disclosure Agreement. 

“Repository’ shall mean each National Repository and each State Repository. 

“Rule” shall mean Rule 15c2-12(b)(5) adopted by the Securities and Exchange 
Commission under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as the same may be amended from time 
to time. 

“State Repository” shall mean any public or private repository or entity designated by 
The Commonwealth of Massachusetts as a state repository for the purpose of the Rule. 

“Transmission Agent” shall mean any central filing office, conduit or similar entity 
which undertakes responsibility for accepting filings under the Rule for submission to each 
Repository.  The current Transmission Agent is listed on Exhibit B attached hereto. 

SECTION 3. Provision of Annual Reports and Quarterly Statements. 

(a) The Dissemination Agent, not later than one hundred fifty (150) days after the end 
of each fiscal year (commencing with the fiscal year ended September 30, 2005) (the “Annual 
Report Filing Deadline”), shall provide to each Repository an Annual Report which is consistent 
with the requirements of Section 4 of this Disclosure Agreement.  Commencing with the fiscal 
quarter ending December 31, 2005, the Dissemination Agent, not later than 60 days after the end 
of each of the first, second and third fiscal quarters (i.e., the fiscal quarters ending December 31, 
March 31 and June 30) (each a “Quarterly Statement Filing Deadline;” and together with the 
Annual Report Filing Deadline, the “Filing Deadline”), shall provide to each Repository a 
Quarterly Statement which is consistent with the requirements of Section 4 of this Disclosure 
Agreement.  Not later than three (3) Business Days prior to each Filing Deadline, the 
Representative (if it is not the Dissemination Agent) shall provide the Annual Report or 
Quarterly Statement, as applicable, to the Dissemination Agent.  The Annual Report and the 
Quarterly Statement may be submitted as a single document or as separate documents 
comprising a package, and may cross-reference other information as provided in Section 4 of this 
Disclosure Agreement; provided that the audited financial statements of the Obligated Group or 
Baystate Health, Inc. may be submitted separately from, and at a later date than, the balance of 
the Annual Report if such audited financial statements are not available as of the date set forth 
above.  If the Dissemination Agent submits the audited financial statements at a later date, it 
shall provide unaudited financial statements by the above-specified deadline and shall provide 
the audited financial statements as soon as practicable after the audited financial statements 
become available.  The Representative shall submit the audited financial statements to the 
Dissemination Agent and the Trustee as soon as practicable after they become available and the 
Dissemination Agent shall submit the audited financial statements to each Repository as soon as 
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practicable thereafter.  The Representative shall also provide a copy of each Annual Report and 
Quarterly Statement to the Authority and the Trustee. 

(b) The Dissemination Agent (or, in the case of clause “(iii)” below, the 
Representative) shall: 

(i) determine each quarter within five (5) Business Days of each Filing 
Deadline the name and address of each National Repository and the State Repository, if 
any (insofar as determinations regarding National Repositories are concerned, the  
Dissemination Agent or the Representative, as applicable, may rely conclusively on the 
list of National Repositories maintained by the United States Securities and Exchange 
Commission); 

(ii) file a report with the Representative, the Authority and the Trustee 
certifying that the Annual Report or Quarterly Statement, as applicable, has been 
provided pursuant to this Disclosure Agreement, stating the date it was provided, and 
listing all the Repositories to which it was provided (the “Compliance Certificate”); such 
report shall include a certification from the Representative that the Annual Report or 
Quarterly Statement, as applicable, complies with the requirements of this Disclosure 
Agreement; and 

(iii) upon request in writing of any Bondowner of at least $1,000,000 in 
principal amount of the Bonds to the Chief Financial Officer of the Representative, 
provide the most recent Annual Report and Quarterly Statement directly to such 
requesting Bondowner, and the costs of complying with such requests will be borne by 
the Representative. 

(c) If the Trustee has not received a Compliance Certificate by the Filing Deadline 
and upon inquiry of the Representative learns that an Annual Report or Quarterly Statement has 
not been filed by the applicable Filing Deadline, the Trustee shall send a notice to each 
Repository in substantially the form attached as Exhibit A. 

(d) If the Representative at any time determines that an Annual Report or Quarterly 
Statement has not been provided to the Repositories by the applicable Filing Deadline, the 
Representative shall send, or cause the Dissemination Agent to send, a notice substantially in the 
form of Exhibit A if the Trustee has not submitted such notice. 

SECTION 4. Content of Annual Reports and Quarterly Statements.  (a) The Annual 
Report submitted by the Representative shall contain or incorporate by reference the following: 

1) the most recently available audited financial statements of the Obligated 
Group or of Baystate Health, Inc.; 

2) utilization statistics of the kind set forth in the charts provided under the 
heading “Hospital’s Utilization” in Appendix A to the Official Statement 
dated October 20, 2005 (“Appendix A”); 
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3) liquidity information and debt service coverage calculations of the kind set 
forth in the charts entitled “Liquidity Table” and “Debt Service Coverage” 
in Appendix A; and 

4) payor mix statistics of the kind set forth in the chart entitled “Sources of 
Patient Service Revenue” in Appendix A. 

(b) The financial statements included as a part of the Annual Report provided 
pursuant to Sections 3 and 4 of this Disclosure Agreement shall be prepared in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, as in effect from time 
to time.  The audited financial statements may include financial information with respect to 
entities that are not Obligated Group Members so long as one or more supplemental schedules 
contained in such audited financial statements reflects the results of operations of the Obligated 
Group.  Any or all of the items listed above may be incorporated by reference from other 
documents, including official statements of debt issues with respect to which an Obligated Group 
Member is an “obligated person” (as defined by the Rule), which have been filed with each of 
the Repositories or the Securities and Exchange Commission.  If the document incorporated by 
reference is a final official statement, it must be available from the Municipal Securities 
Rulemaking Board.  The Representative shall clearly identify each such other document so 
incorporated by reference. 

(c) Each Quarterly Statement submitted by the Representative shall contain an 
unaudited statement of financial position and statement of operations for Baystate Medical 
Center, Inc. relating to the fiscal quarter and for the year to date of the type, in the case of the 
statement of operations, included in Appendix A and selected operating and utilization data for 
such fiscal quarter. 

(d) In the event an additional member joins the Obligated Group and such Obligated 
Group member accounts for more than 10% of net revenues of the Obligated Group, the 
following financial and operating data shall be provided with respect to such Obligated Group 
member on a consolidated basis, at the election of the Representative, if such Obligated Group 
member is engaged in a similar line of business as another Obligated Group member, or on an 
individual basis: the same financial and operating data (to the extent applicable) required to be 
provided for Baystate Medical Center, Inc. under sections 4(a), 4(b) and 4(c) hereof.  

SECTION 5. Reporting of Significant Events. 

(a) This Section 5 shall govern the giving of notices of the occurrence of any of the 
following events: 

1) Principal or interest payment delinquencies on the Bonds or under the 
Agreement. 

2) Occurrence of any default under the Agreement (other than as described in 
clause (1) above). 

3) Any unscheduled draw on a debt service reserve fund, if applicable, 
reflecting financial difficulties. 
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4) Any unscheduled draw on credit enhancement facilities, if applicable, 
reflecting financial difficulties. 

5) Any change in the provider of the credit enhancement facility described in 
clause 4, if applicable, or any successor thereto, or its failure to perform. 

6) The rendering of an opinion of bond counsel to the effect that there has 
been an adverse development affecting the tax-exempt status of the Bonds, 
or the occurrence of any event adversely affecting the tax-exempt status of 
the Bonds. 

7) Modifications to the rights of the Bondowners. 

8) Giving of a notice of redemption of any Bonds (the giving of notice of 
regularly scheduled mandatory sinking fund redemption shall not be 
deemed material for this purpose under clause (b) of this Section 5). 

9) Defeasance of the Bonds or any portion thereof. 

10) The release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the 
Bonds. 

11) Any change in the rating on the Bonds or the rating of any obligated 
person, credit enhancer or liquidity facility provider. 

(b) Whenever the Representative obtains knowledge of the occurrence of a Listed 
Event, if such Listed Event is material, the Representative shall, in a timely manner, direct the 
Dissemination Agent to file a notice of such occurrence with the Repositories.  The 
Representative shall provide a copy of each such notice to the Authority and the Trustee.  The 
Dissemination Agent, if other than the Representative, shall have no duty to file a notice of an 
event described hereunder unless it is directed in writing to do so by the Representative, and 
shall have no responsibility for verifying any of the information in any such notice or 
determining the materiality of the event described in such notice. 

SECTION 6. Alternate Methods for Reporting.  Notwithstanding anything herein to the 
contrary, the Dissemination Agent may satisfy its obligation to make a filing with each 
Repository hereunder by transmitting the same to a Transmission Agent if and to the extent such 
Transmission Agent has received an interpretive advice from the Securities and Exchange 
Commission, which has not been withdrawn, to the effect that an undertaking to transmit a filing 
to such Transmission Agent for submission to each Repository is an undertaking described in the 
Rule. 

SECTION 7. Termination of Reporting Obligation.  The Representative’s obligations 
under this Disclosure Agreement shall terminate upon the defeasance, prior redemption or 
payment in full of all of the Bonds or upon delivery to the Trustee of an opinion of counsel 
expert in federal securities laws selected by the Representative and acceptable to the Trustee to 
the effect that compliance with this Disclosure Agreement is not required by the Rule, provided, 
however, that the Representative shall be required to provide Quarterly Statements in the manner 
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required hereunder for so long as the Representative is required to comply with the other 
provisions of this Disclosure Agreement regardless of whether the provision of Quarterly 
Statements is required by the Rule.  If the Representative’s obligations under the Agreement are 
assumed in full by some other entity, such person shall be responsible for compliance with this 
Disclosure Agreement in the same manner as if it were the Representative and the original 
Representative shall have no further responsibility hereunder.  If any Obligated Group Member 
ceases to be an Obligated Group Member in conformity with the release provisions of the 
Agreement, the disclosures required under this Disclosure Agreement shall cease to include data 
or information relating to such former Obligated Group Member.  

SECTION 8. Dissemination Agent.  The Representative may, from time to time with 
notice to the Trustee and the Authority, appoint or engage a third-party Dissemination Agent to 
assist it in carrying out its obligations under this Disclosure Agreement, and may, with notice to 
the Trustee and the Authority, discharge any such third-party Dissemination Agent, with or 
without appointing a successor Dissemination Agent.  The Dissemination Agent (if other than 
the Representative) may resign upon 30 days’ written notice to the Representative, the Trustee 
and the Authority. 

SECTION 9. Amendment; Waiver.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this 
Disclosure Agreement, the Representative and the Trustee may amend this Disclosure 
Agreement (and the Trustee shall agree to any amendment so requested by the Representative, 
subject to the provisions of the last sentence of this Section 9) and any provision of this 
Disclosure Agreement may be waived, if such amendment or waiver is supported by an opinion 
of counsel expert in federal securities laws acceptable to both the Representative and the Trustee 
to the effect that such amendment or waiver would not, in and of itself, violate the Rule, 
provided, however, that no amendment or waiver which eliminates or diminishes the requirement 
to deliver Quarterly Statements may be made unless the amendment is consented to by the 
Bondowners as though it were an amendment to the Agreement pursuant to Section 1101 of the 
Agreement.  Without limiting the foregoing, the Representative and the Trustee may amend this 
Disclosure Agreement if (a) such amendment is made in connection with a change in 
circumstances that arises from a change in legal requirements, change in law, or change in the 
identity, nature or status of the Obligated Group or of the type of business conducted by the 
Obligated Group, (b) this Disclosure Agreement, as so amended, would have complied with the 
requirements of the Rule at the time the Bonds were issued, taking into account any amendments 
or interpretations of the Rule, as well as any change in circumstances; and (c)(i) the Trustee 
determines, or the Trustee receives an opinion of counsel expert in federal securities laws and 
acceptable to the Trustee to the effect that, the amendment does not materially impair the 
interests of the Bondowners or (ii) the amendment is consented to by the Bondowners as though 
it were an amendment to the Agreement pursuant to Section 1101 of the Agreement.  The annual 
financial information containing the amended operating data or financial information will 
explain, in narrative form, the reasons for the amendment and the impact of the change in the 
type of operating data or financial information being provided.  Neither the Trustee nor the 
Dissemination Agent shall be required to accept or acknowledge any amendment of this 
Disclosure Agreement if the amendment adversely affects its respective rights or immunities or 
increases its respective duties hereunder. 

I-6 



 

 

SECTION 10. Additional Information.  Nothing in this Disclosure Agreement shall be 
deemed to prevent the Representative from disseminating any other information, using the means 
of dissemination set forth in this Disclosure Agreement or any other means of communication, or 
including any other information in any Annual Report, Quarterly Statement or notice of 
occurrence of a Listed Event, in addition to that which is required by this Disclosure Agreement.  
If the Representative chooses to include any information in any Annual Report, Quarterly 
Statement or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event, in addition to that which is specifically 
required by this Disclosure Agreement, the Representative shall have no obligation under this 
Disclosure Agreement to update such information or include it in any future Annual Report, 
Quarterly Statement or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event.   

SECTION 11. Default.  In the event of a failure of the Representative or the 
Dissemination Agent to comply with any provision of this Disclosure Agreement, the Trustee 
may (and, at the request of Bondowners representing at least 25% in aggregate principal amount 
of Outstanding Bonds, shall), take such actions as may be necessary and appropriate, including 
seeking specific performance by court order, to cause the Representative or the Dissemination 
Agent, as the case may be, to comply with its obligations under this Disclosure Agreement.  
Without regard to the foregoing, any Bondowner may take such actions as may be necessary and 
appropriate, including seeking specific performance by court order, to cause the Representative 
or the Dissemination Agent, as the case may be, to comply with its obligations under this 
Disclosure Agreement.  A default under this Disclosure Agreement shall not be deemed an Event 
of Default under the Agreement, and the sole remedy under this Disclosure Agreement in the 
event of any failure of the Representative or the Dissemination Agent to comply with this 
Disclosure Agreement shall be an action to compel performance and not for monetary damages 
in any amount. 

SECTION 12. Duties, Immunities and Liabilities of Trustee and Dissemination Agent.  
As to the Trustee, Article VII of the Agreement is hereby made applicable to this Disclosure 
Agreement as if this Disclosure Agreement were (solely for this purpose) contained in the 
Agreement.  The Dissemination Agent (if other than the Representative) shall have only such 
duties as are specifically set forth in this Disclosure Agreement, and the Obligated Group agrees 
to the maximum extent of its insurance coverage to indemnify and save the Dissemination Agent 
(if other than the Representative), its officers, directors, employees and agents, harmless against 
any loss, expense and liabilities which it may incur arising out of or in the exercise or 
performance of its powers and duties hereunder, including the costs and expenses (including 
attorneys fees) of defending against any claim of liability, but excluding liabilities due to the 
Dissemination Agent’s negligence or willful misconduct.  The obligations of the Obligated 
Group under this Section shall survive resignation or removal of the Dissemination Agent and 
payment of the Bonds.  The Representative covenants that whenever it is serving as 
Dissemination Agent, it shall take any action required of the Dissemination Agent under this 
Disclosure Agreement.   

The Trustee shall have no obligation under this Disclosure Agreement to report any 
information to any Repository or any Bondowner.  If a responsible corporate trust officer of the 
Trustee obtains actual knowledge of the occurrence of an event described in Section 5 hereunder, 
whether or not such event is material, the Trustee shall timely notify the Representative of such 
occurrence, provided, however, that any failure by the Trustee to give such notice to the 
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Representative shall not affect the Obligated Group’s obligations under this Disclosure 
Agreement or give rise to any liability by the Trustee for such failure. 

SECTION 13. Beneficiaries.  This Disclosure Agreement shall inure solely to the benefit 
of the Obligated Group, the Trustee, the Dissemination Agent, the Participating Underwriters 
and the Bondowners, and shall create no rights in any other person or entity. 

SECTION 14. Disclaimer.  No Annual Report, Quarterly Statement or notice of a Listed 
Event filed by or on behalf of the Obligated Group or Baystate Health, Inc. under this Disclosure 
Agreement shall obligate the Obligated Group or Baystate Health, Inc. to file any information 
regarding matters other than those specifically described in Section 4 and Section 5 hereof, nor 
shall any such filing constitute a representation by the Obligated Group, any Obligated Group 
Member, or Baystate Health, Inc. or raise any inference that no other material events have 
occurred with respect to the Obligated Group, any Obligated Group Member, Baystate Health, 
Inc. or the Bonds or that all material information regarding the Obligated Group, each Obligated 
Group Member, Baystate Health, Inc. or the Bonds has been disclosed.  The Obligated Group 
and Baystate Health, Inc. shall have no obligation under this Disclosure Agreement to update 
information provided pursuant to this Disclosure Agreement except as specifically stated herein. 

SECTION 15. All Future Obligated Group Members Bound.  The Representative hereby 
represents and warrants that it has full authority to bind any future Obligated Group Member to 
provide to the Representative on a timely basis all information with respect to such Obligated 
Group Member required for the Representative to comply with its undertakings under this 
Disclosure Agreement.  The Representative further represents and warrants that, pursuant to the 
Agreement, it shall be a condition to entry into the Obligated Group of any additional Obligated 
Group Member that such additional Obligated Group Member agree in writing, subject to 
meeting the standard as to percentage of Obligated Group net revenues set forth in Section 4(c) 
hereof, to provide (i) to the Representative for filing with the Dissemination Agent all such 
information on a timely basis and (ii) to the Trustee an opinion of counsel that such agreement is 
valid, binding and enforceable, subject to bankruptcy and other normal exceptions.  The 
Representative covenants to enforce the undertakings of each Obligated Group Member to 
provide all such information to the Representative on a timely basis. 

 
Dated:  October __, 2005 

BAYSTATE MEDICAL CENTER, INC., as 
Representative of the Obligated Group  

By_____________________________________________ 

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, as Trustee 

By___________________________________________ 
Authorized Officer 
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EXHIBIT A 
NOTICE TO REPOSITORIES OF FAILURE TO FILE ANNUAL REPORT 

Name of Issuer: Massachusetts Health and Educational Facilities Authority 
 
Name of Bond Issue: Revenue Bonds, Baystate Medical Center Issue, Series G (2005) 
 
Name of Obligated Person: Baystate Medical Center, Inc. 
 
Date of Issuance: October __, 2005 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that Baystate Medical Center, Inc. (the “Representative”), as 
representative of the Obligated Group has not provided an Annual Report or Quarterly Statement 
with respect to the above-named Bonds as required by the Continuing Disclosure Agreement 
dated October __, 2005 between the Representative and U.S. Bank National Association, as 
Trustee. 
 
 
 
Dated:______________ 
 
 
 

[TRUSTEE/DISSEMINATION AGENT on behalf of] the 
REPRESENTATIVE OF THE OBLIGATED GROUP 

 
 
 
[cc: Representative of the Obligated Group] 
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EXHIBIT B 
NRMSIRs 

Bloomberg Municipal Repository 
100 Business Park Drive 

Skillman, New Jersey 08558 
PH:  (609) 279-3225 

FAX:  (609) 279-5962 
http://www.bloomberg.com/markets/rates/municontacts.html 

Email:  Munis@bloomberg.com 
 

DPC Data Inc. 
One Executive Drive 

Fort Lee, New Jersey 07024 
PH:  (201) 346-0701 

FAX:  (201) 947-0107 
http://www.dpcdata.com 

Email:  nrmsir@dpcdata.com 
 

FT Interactive Data 
Attn:  NRMSIR 

100 William Street, 15th Floor 
New York, New York 10038 

PH:  (212) 771-6999 
FAX:  (212) 771-7390 (Secondary Market Information) 

http://www.ftid.com 
Email:  NRMSIR@FTID.com 

 
Standard & Poor’s Securities Evaluations, Inc. 

55 Water Street, 45th Floor 
New York, New York 10041 

PH:  (212) 438-4595 
FAX:  (212) 438-3975 

www.jjkenny.com/jjkenny/pser_descrip_data_rep.html 
Email:  nrmsir_repository@sandp.com 

 
 

TRANSMISSION AGENT 
 

Disclosure USA 
P.O. Box 684667 

Austin, Texas 78768-4667 
www.DisclosureUSA.org 

 
 

I-10 



[THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]



[THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]





Recycled Paper - Printed by
IMAGEMASTER 800.452.5152

M
A

S
S

A
C

H
U

S
E

T
T

S
 H

E
A

L
T

H
 A

N
D

 E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

A
L

 F
A

C
IL

IT
IE

S
 A

U
T

H
O

R
IT

Y
 • R

E
V

E
N

U
E

 B
O

N
D

S
 • B

A
Y

S
T

A
T

E
 M

E
D

IC
A

L
 C

E
N

T
E

R
 IS

S
U

E
, S

E
R

IE
S

 G
 (2005)


	OFFICIAL STATEMENT
	TABLE OF CONTENTS
	INTRODUCTION
	SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE SERIES G BONDS
	THE AUTHORITY
	THE SERIES G BONDS
	ADDITIONAL INDEBTEDNESS
	TOTAL DEBT SERVICE
	DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE RATIO AND RATE COVENANT
	LETTER OF CREDIT AND REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT
	THE PROJECT
	ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS
	BONDOWNERS’ RISKS
	CONTINUING DISCLOSURE
	TAX EXEMPTION
	VERIFICATION OF MATHEMATICAL COMPUTATIONS
	LEGALITY OF SERIES G BONDS FOR INVESTMENT AND DEPOSIT
	COMMONWEALTH NOT LIABLE ON SERIES G BONDS
	DESCRIPTION OF RATINGS
	UNDERWRITING
	LEGAL MATTERS
	MISCELLANEOUS
	APPENDIX A - Certain Information About the Institution
	APPENDIX B - Financial Statements of the Institution
	APPENDIX C - Definitions of Certain Terms
	APPENDIX D-1 - Summary of the Master Trust Indenture
	APPENDIX D-2 - Summary of Supplemental Master Indenture For Obligation No 6 and Certain Additional Amendments To the Master Trust Indenture
	APPENDIX E - Summary of Loan and Trust Agreement
	APPENDIX F - Certain Information About the Bank
	APPENDIX G - Summary of Certain Provisions of the Reimbursement Agreement
	APPENDIX H - Proposed Form of Opinion of Bond Counsel
	APPENDIX I - Form of Continuing Disclosure Agreement



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJDFFile false
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /LeaveColorUnchanged
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize false
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages false
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth 8
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /FlateEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages false
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages false
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth 8
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /FlateEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages false
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages false
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile (None)
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /Description <<
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /FRA <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /PTB <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /ENU (Use this for creating files for ImageMaster Workflow.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice



 
 
    
   HistoryItem_V1
   AddNumbers
        
     Range: From page 31 to page 82
     Font: Times-Roman 11.0 point
     Origin: bottom centre
     Offset: horizontal 0.00 points, vertical 36.00 points
     Prefix text: 'A-'
     Suffix text: ' '
     Use registration colour: no
      

        
      
     BC
     A-
     1
     TR
     1
     0
     663
     323
     0
     11.0000
            
                
         Both
         52
         31
         SubDoc
              

       CurrentAVDoc
          

     0.0000
     36.0000
      

        
     QITE_QuiteImposingPlus2
     Quite Imposing Plus 2 2.0
     Quite Imposing Plus 2
     1
      

        
     30
     200
     81
     52
      

   1
  

    
   HistoryItem_V1
   AddNumbers
        
     Range: From page 83 to page 83
     Font: Times-Bold 11.0 point
     Origin: top right
     Offset: horizontal 54.00 points, vertical 54.00 points
     Prefix text: 'APPENDIX B'
     Suffix text: ' '
     Use registration colour: no
      

        
      
     TR
     APPENDIX B
     83
     TB
     1
     1
     663
     323
     0
     11.0000
            
                
         Both
         1
         83
         SubDoc
              

       CurrentAVDoc
          

     54.0000
     54.0000
      

        
     QITE_QuiteImposingPlus2
     Quite Imposing Plus 2 2.0
     Quite Imposing Plus 2
     1
      

        
     82
     200
     82
     1
      

   1
  

    
   HistoryItem_V1
   AddNumbers
        
     Range: From page 127 to page 137
     Font: Times-Roman 11.0 point
     Origin: bottom centre
     Offset: horizontal 0.00 points, vertical 36.00 points
     Prefix text: 'C'
     Suffix text: ' '
     Use registration colour: no
      

        
      
     BC
     C
     1
     TR
     1
     0
     663
     323
     0
     11.0000
            
                
         Both
         11
         127
         SubDoc
              

       CurrentAVDoc
          

     0.0000
     36.0000
      

        
     QITE_QuiteImposingPlus2
     Quite Imposing Plus 2 2.0
     Quite Imposing Plus 2
     1
      

        
     126
     200
     136
     11
      

   1
  

    
   HistoryItem_V1
   AddNumbers
        
     Range: From page 127 to page 137
     Font: Times-Roman 11.0 point
     Origin: bottom centre
     Offset: horizontal 0.00 points, vertical 36.00 points
     Prefix text: 'C-'
     Suffix text: ' '
     Use registration colour: no
      

        
      
     BC
     C-
     1
     TR
     1
     0
     663
     323
     0
     11.0000
            
                
         Both
         11
         127
         SubDoc
              

       CurrentAVDoc
          

     0.0000
     36.0000
      

        
     QITE_QuiteImposingPlus2
     Quite Imposing Plus 2 2.0
     Quite Imposing Plus 2
     1
      

        
     126
     200
     136
     11
      

   1
  

    
   HistoryItem_V1
   AddNumbers
        
     Range: From page 139 to page 168
     Font: Times-Roman 11.0 point
     Origin: bottom centre
     Offset: horizontal 0.00 points, vertical 36.00 points
     Prefix text: 'D-'
     Suffix text: ' '
     Use registration colour: no
      

        
      
     BC
     D-
     1
     TR
     1
     0
     663
     323
     0
     11.0000
            
                
         Both
         30
         139
         SubDoc
              

       CurrentAVDoc
          

     0.0000
     36.0000
      

        
     QITE_QuiteImposingPlus2
     Quite Imposing Plus 2 2.0
     Quite Imposing Plus 2
     1
      

        
     138
     200
     167
     30
      

   1
  

    
   HistoryItem_V1
   AddNumbers
        
     Range: From page 169 to page 178
     Font: Times-Roman 11.0 point
     Origin: bottom centre
     Offset: horizontal 0.00 points, vertical 36.00 points
     Prefix text: 'E-'
     Suffix text: ' '
     Use registration colour: no
      

        
      
     BC
     E-
     1
     TR
     1
     0
     663
     323
     0
     11.0000
            
                
         Both
         10
         169
         SubDoc
              

       CurrentAVDoc
          

     0.0000
     36.0000
      

        
     QITE_QuiteImposingPlus2
     Quite Imposing Plus 2 2.0
     Quite Imposing Plus 2
     1
      

        
     168
     200
     177
     10
      

   1
  

    
   HistoryItem_V1
   AddNumbers
        
     Range: From page 179 to page 180
     Font: Times-Roman 11.0 point
     Origin: bottom centre
     Offset: horizontal 0.00 points, vertical 36.00 points
     Prefix text: 'F-'
     Suffix text: ' '
     Use registration colour: no
      

        
      
     BC
     F-
     1
     TR
     1
     0
     663
     323
     0
     11.0000
            
                
         Both
         2
         179
         SubDoc
              

       CurrentAVDoc
          

     0.0000
     36.0000
      

        
     QITE_QuiteImposingPlus2
     Quite Imposing Plus 2 2.0
     Quite Imposing Plus 2
     1
      

        
     178
     200
     179
     2
      

   1
  

    
   HistoryItem_V1
   AddNumbers
        
     Range: From page 181 to page 182
     Font: Times-Roman 11.0 point
     Origin: bottom centre
     Offset: horizontal 0.00 points, vertical 36.00 points
     Prefix text: 'G-'
     Suffix text: ' '
     Use registration colour: no
      

        
      
     BC
     G-
     1
     TR
     1
     0
     663
     323
     0
     11.0000
            
                
         Both
         2
         181
         SubDoc
              

       CurrentAVDoc
          

     0.0000
     36.0000
      

        
     QITE_QuiteImposingPlus2
     Quite Imposing Plus 2 2.0
     Quite Imposing Plus 2
     1
      

        
     180
     200
     181
     2
      

   1
  

    
   HistoryItem_V1
   AddNumbers
        
     Range: From page 183 to page 186
     Font: Times-Roman 11.0 point
     Origin: bottom centre
     Offset: horizontal 0.00 points, vertical 36.00 points
     Prefix text: 'H-'
     Suffix text: ' '
     Use registration colour: no
      

        
      
     BC
     H-
     1
     TR
     1
     0
     663
     323
     0
     11.0000
            
                
         Both
         4
         183
         SubDoc
              

       CurrentAVDoc
          

     0.0000
     36.0000
      

        
     QITE_QuiteImposingPlus2
     Quite Imposing Plus 2 2.0
     Quite Imposing Plus 2
     1
      

        
     182
     200
     185
     4
      

   1
  

    
   HistoryItem_V1
   AddNumbers
        
     Range: From page 187 to page 196
     Font: Times-Roman 11.0 point
     Origin: bottom centre
     Offset: horizontal 0.00 points, vertical 36.00 points
     Prefix text: 'I-'
     Suffix text: ' '
     Use registration colour: no
      

        
      
     BC
     I-
     1
     TR
     1
     0
     663
     323
    
     0
     11.0000
            
                
         Both
         10
         187
         SubDoc
              

       CurrentAVDoc
          

     0.0000
     36.0000
      

        
     QITE_QuiteImposingPlus2
     Quite Imposing Plus 2 2.0
     Quite Imposing Plus 2
     1
      

        
     186
     200
     195
     10
      

   1
  

 HistoryList_V1
 qi2base





